City of Westminster

Title:

Meeting Date:
Time:

Venue:

Members:

Public Document Pack

Committee Agenda

Planning Applications Committee (4)

Tuesday 27th October, 2015

6.30 pm

Rooms 5,6 & 7 - 17th Floor, City Hall

Councillors:

Tony Devenish (Chairman)
Jonthan Glanz
Angela Harvey
Jason Williams

Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting
and listen to the discussion Part 1 of the Agenda

Admission to the public gallery is by ticket, issued from the
ground floor reception at City Hall from 6.00pm. If you have
a disability and require any special assistance please
contact the Committee Officer (details listed below) in
advance of the meeting.

An Induction loop operates to enhance sound for anyone
wearing a hearing aid or using a transmitter. If you require
any further information, please contact the Committee
Officer, Reuben Segal, Committee and Governance Officer.

Tel: 020 7641 3160; Email: rsegal@westminster.gov.uk
Corporate Website: www.westminster.gov.uk



http://www.westminster.gov.uk/

Note for Members: Members are reminded that Officer contacts are shown at the end of
each report and Members are welcome to raise questions in advance of the meeting.
With regard to item 2, guidance on declarations of interests is included in the Code of
Governance; if Members and Officers have any particular questions they should contact
the Head of Legal & Democratic Services in advance of the meeting please.

AGENDA
PART 1 (IN PUBLIC)

1.

MEMBERSHIP

To note any changes to the membership.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive declarations by members and officers of the existence
and nature of any personal or prejudicial interests in matters on
this agenda.

MINUTES

To sign the minutes of the last meeting as a correct record of
proceedings.

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 628, 11 GERALD ROAD,
SW1W 9EH

Report of the Director of Law:

PLANNING APPLICATIONS

Applications for decision

Schedule of Applications

1. 11 GERALD ROAD, NW6

2. LORDS CRICKET GROUND, ST JOHN'S WOOD ROAD,
NwW8

3. 12 TREVOR SQUARE, SW7

4, 5 DENNING CLOSE, NW8

5. 98 WESTBOURNE GROVE, W2

(Pages 1-12)

(Pages 19 - 30)

(Pages 31 -
102)

(Pages 103 -
124)

(Pages 125 -
148)

(Pages 149 -
168)



10.

1.

12.

13.

3 HALL GATE, NW8

31 EASTCASTLE STREET, W1

41 FARM STREET, W1

32 HARCOURT STREET, W1

5 BINGHAM PLACE, W1

9 MONTAGU BRYANSTON AND DORSET SQUARE
MEWS WEST, W1

40-41 PALL MALL, SW1

CLUTHA HOUSE, 10 STOREY'S GATE, SW1

Exempt Information under the Local Government Act (1972)

RECOMMENDED: That under section 100 (A) (4) and Schedule
12A of the Local Government Act 1972, the press and public be
excluded from the meeting for the following item of business as it
involves the likely disclosure of exempt information relating to the
financial or business affairs of any particular person.

14. 8 CARLTON VALE, NW6

Charlie Parker
Chief Executive
19 October 2015

(Pages 169 -
180)

(Pages 181 -
210)

(Pages 211 -
224)

(Pages 225 -
244)

(Pages 245 -
274)

(Pages 275 -
288)

(Pages 289 -
330)

(Pages 331 -
362)

(Pages 363 -
370)



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 4

KB Executive Summary
City of Westminster and ReCOmmendationS

Title of Report:  Tree Preservation Order No. 628
(2015)
11 Gerald Road, London SW1W
9EH

Date: 27" October 2015

Page 1



Executive Summary

A

city of Westminster | and Recommendations

Title of Report:  Tree Preservation Order No. 628
(2015) 11 Gerald Road, London
SW1W 9EH

Date: 27" October 2015

Summary of this Report

The City Council has made a Tree Preservation Order (TPO) to protect one London
Plane tree (T1) located in the rear garden at 11 Gerald Road London SW1W 9EH.
The TPO is provisionally effective for a period of six months from 29" May 2015 during
which time it may be confirmed with or without modification. If not confirmed, the TPO
will lapse after 28" November 2015.

The TPO was made because the tree has significant amenity value and makes a
positive contribution to the character and appearance of the area. The City Council,
having been made aware of the proposal to remove T1 considers it expedient in the
interests of the amenity that a TPO is made in order to safeguard its preservation and
future management.

Objection to the TPO has been made by Norman Rourke Pryme Limited and ACS
Consulting on behalf of the owner of 11 Gerald Road.

The City Council's Arboricultural Officer has responded to the objections.

Recommendations
The Sub-Committee should decide EITHER
(a) NOT to confirm Tree Preservation Order No. 628 (2015); OR

(b) Confirm Tree Preservation Order No. 628 (2015) with or without modification with
permanent effect.

Pag1e 2



Item No:

Date:

Classification:

Title of Report:

Report of:

Wards involved:

Policy context:

Financial summary:

Report Author:

Contact details

Committee Report

27 October 2015

General Release

Tree Preservation Order No. 628 (2015)
11 Gerald Road, London SW1W 9EH

The Director of Law

Knightsbridge and Belgravia

No financial issues are raised in this report.

| James Holliman

| jholliman@westminster.gov.uk

Pagzje 3



1.1

1.2

1.3

1.4

1.5

2.1

3.1

3.2

Background

Under current legislation the City Council has the power to make and to confirm
Tree Preservation Orders within the City of Westminster. Tree Preservation
Order 628 (2015), authorised by the Operational Director Development Planning
acting under delegated powers on 28" May 2015, was served on all the parties
whom the Council is statutorily required to notify and took effect on 29" May
204 5.

The purpose of a Tree Preservation Order is to protect the tree or trees
concerned in the interest of amenity and, to this end, to control their
management and replacement if they have to be removed. The presence of a
Tree Preservation Order does not prevent works to the tree being undertaken,
but the TPO does give the Council the power to control any such works or
require replacement if consent is granted for trees to be removed.

Tree Preservation Order 628 (2015) was made following the receipt by the City
Council of six weeks notice of intention to remove the London Plane tree (T2)
submitted under section 211 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (Trees
in Conservation Areas). The Tree is situated within the Belgravia Conservation
Area. On receipt of such notice the City Council can either raise no objections
to the works or make a Tree Preservation Order.

Removal of the London Plane tree was proposed on the grounds that the tree
has outgrown its current location and has the potential to further dominate the
property as it increases in size. The tree causes excessive nuisance associated
with leaf and debris fall and the leaf hairs cause respiratory problems to the
house holders. The tree also causes dense shade and prevents the residents
from fully enjoying the property and its garden.

Subsequent to the making of the TPO the City Council received two objections.
Objection by Norman Rourke Pryme Limited

On 26"™June 2015 the Head of Legal and Democratic Services received an
email from Norman Rourke Pryme Limited objecting to the grounds for making
the TPO, namely the significant public amenity value of the tree and the need to
safeguard its preservation and future management.

Objection by ACS Consulting on behalf of the owner of 11 Gerald Road

On 26™ June 2015 the Head of Legal and Democratic Services received a
formal objection from ACS Consulting.

The grounds for objection were as follows:

3.2.1 The TPO is not appropriate on the basis that the tree is secluded and is
not visible by the general public from a public place.

Pag3e 4



3.2.2 The tree’s general health and condition does not warrant protection in its
own right.

3.2.3 The tree has no cultural or historic significance.

3.2.4 The tree does not make a significant contribution to the character and
appearance of the conservation area.

4. Revised Objection by ACS Consulting

41 On 7" July 2015 the Head of Legal and Democratic Services received revised
objection from ACS Consulting.

4.2 The grounds for objection were as follows:

4.2.1 The TPO is not appropriate on the basis that the tree does not meet the
criteria in Government Guidance.

4.2.2 The Council’s Belgravia Conservation Area Audit recognises the
importance of trees but states that they should be in scale with their
surroundings. T1 has out grown its locality and is inappropriate in this small
garden.

4.2.3 The tree is not visible by the general public from a public space and the
tree’s general health and condition does not warrant protection.

4.2.4 The tree has no cultural of historic significance

4.2.5 The tree does not make a significant contribution to the character and
appearance of the conservation area.

5. Response to Objection

5.1 The City Council’s Arboricultural Officer responded to the objection by letter
dated 18" September 2015.

5.1 The City Council considers the tree is of significant amenity value, an
appropriate size and species for the location and makes a positive contribution
to the character and appearance of the conservation area.

5.2 The amenity value of the tree was assessed by considering the visibility, the
individual, collective and wider impact and any other factors.

5.3 The tree is visible from the neighbouring properties and partially visible from
Burton Mews.

5.4 The tree is a significant specimen with good from and an attractive appearance.

5.5 The tree is not considered to be over dominant in the garden.

Paée 5



2.6 The tree enhances the rear garden views and softens the appearance of the tall
buildings and as such makes a positive contribution to the character and
appearance of the conservation area.

5.7 The tree makes some contribution to carbon dioxide absorption and nature
conservation.

6. Support for retaining the London Plane Tree (T1)

6.1 In response to consultation on the section 211 notice of intent to remove the tree
the City Council received two letters of objection to tree removal together with
objections from the Belgrave Square Garden Committee, The Belgravia Society
and the Grosvenor Estate.

6.2 In response to an application for consent to remove the tree the City Council
received five objections to tree removal.

7. Ward Member Consultation

7.1 Ward member comments were sought in this matter but no responses have been
received. Should any comments be received, they will be reported to the
Committee at the meeting.

8. Conclusion

8.1 In the light of the representations received from the objectors it is for the

Planning Applications Sub-Committee to decide whether to confirm the TPO,
with or without modification, or whether the TPO should not be confirmed.

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT PLEASE CONTACT JAMES
HOLLIMAN, PLANNING AND PROPERTY SECTION, LEGAL SERVICES ON 020
7641 2837 (FAX 020 7641 2761) (Email jholliman@westminster.gov.uk)

Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1985

Appendix 1 - Copy of TPO 628 (2015)
Background Papers

1. Objection by email dated 26™ June 2015

2. Objection by letter dated 22™ June 2015

3. Revised objection by letter dated 7" July 2015

4. Responses to consultation and application for consent
5. Letter to objector dated 18" September 2015

Pagse 6




TREE PRESERVATION ORDER
TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990

CITY OF WESTMINSTER TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 628 (2015)

The Westminster City Council, in exercise of the powers conferred on them by section 198 of the Town and
Country Planning Act 1990 make the following Order —

Citation
I This Order may be cited as The City of Westminster Tree Preservation Order 628 (2015)

Interpretation
2, (1) In this Order “the authority” means Westminster City Council.

(2) In this Order any reference to a numbered section is a reference to the section so numbered in
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 and any reference to a numbered regulation is a
reference to the regulation so numbered in the Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation)
(England) Regulations 2012.

Effect
3 (1) Subject to article 4, this Order takes effect provisionally on the date on which it is made.
(2) Without prejudice to subsection (7) of section 198 (power to make tree preservation orders) or
subsection (1) of section 200 (tree preservation orders: Forestry Commissioners) and, subject to
the exceptions in regulation 14, no person shall -
(a) cut down, top, lop, uproot, wilfully damage, or wilfully destroy; or
(b) cause or permit the cutting down, topping, lopping, uprooting, wilful damage or wilful
destruction of,
any tree specified in the Schedule to this Order except with the written consent of the authority in
accordance with regulations 16 and 17, or of the Secretary of State in accordance with regulation

23, and, where such consent is given subject to conditions, in accordance with those conditions.

Page 7



Application to trees to be planted pursuant to a condition

4. In relation to any tree identified in the first column of the Schedule by the letter “C”, being a tree to
be planted pursuant to a condition imposed under paragraph (a) of section 197 (planning
permission to include appropriate provision for preservation and planting of trees), this Order takes

effect as from the time when the tree is planted.

4, :
Dated this Qq day of Wl(({j 2015

THE COMMON SEAL OF THE LORD )
MAYOR AND CITIZENS OF THE )
CITY OF WESTMINSTER was )

)

hereunto affixed by order:

fo—

! Principa! Solicitor iE

*g"‘m}

>

Page 8



SCHEDULE
SPECIFICATION OF TREES

Trees specified individually
(encircled in black on the map)

Reference on map Description Situation
T1 London Plane 11 Gerald Road, London
SW1W 9EH

Trees specified by reference to an area
(within a dotted black line on the map)

Reference on map Description Situation
None
Groups of trees
(within a broken black line on the map)
Reference on map Description Situation
None
Woodlands

(within a continuous black line on the map)

Reference on map Description Situation

None

Page 9




w JO1I210S, [ediduiig

wmwuuu:ﬁmuuzmaS_mHON_?mE“Uumn_
wes| 519 a1es0dio] Ag paznpoud depy

H+—

sanam o0z 0L § O
052l 8jeas

wea] 510 ajesodio)

INSUTWISIA JO A1)

LBS6TO00T SO 'STOZ 5B aseqeiep pue WRADOD UMOID 3

HI6 MTMS ‘UopuoT ‘peoy plesan TT
"8Z9 "ON J21SUIWISIAN J2PIQ UOIIBAISSAld 33U

l/ll

» paudis

$321AJ3S J13eI00W(] pue |eSa7 Jo peay ayl




DATED 2 %& Way 2015

U

THE TOWN AND COUNTRY PLANNING
ACT 1990 (AS AMENDED)

CITY OF WESTMINSTER

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER 628 (2015)

11 Gerald Road
London
SW1W 9EH

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER
MADE FOR THE PURPOSES
OF SECTION 198 OF THE
TOWN AND COUNTRY
PLANNING ACT 1990

(AS AMENDED)

Peter G Large

Head of Legal and Democratic Services
Westminster City Council

Westminster City Hall

Victoria Street

LONDON SW1E 6QP

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda' ltem

CITY OF WESTMINSTER
PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE - 27 OCTOBER 2015
SCHEDULE OF APPLICATIONS TO BE CONSIDERED

ITEM References/ SITE ADDRESS PROPOSAL

No Ward

1 RN 15/05658/TPO | 11 GERALD RQAD, Removal of one London Plane from the rear
Knightsbridge and NWBE garden of 11 Gerald Road.

Belgravia ’
Recommendation
Refuse consent.
2 RN 15/07111/FULL | LORDS CRICKET Demolition of the existing Tavern Stand, Allen
RN 15/07112LBC | GROUND, ST JOHN'S | Stand, Thomas Lord Building, MCC Office
Regent's Park WOOD ROAD, NW8 Building and Scorer's Box and redevelopment
comprising the erection of new stand, new
Thomas Lord Building with an expanded
basement and relocated public house, new
Harris Garden Building, new scorers Box,
internal and external alterations t¢ the Pavilion,
a new shop in the Bowlers' Annexe together with
relocation of the floodlight, hard and soft
landscaping, servicing facilities and all
necessary ancillary and enabling works, plant
and equipment.

Recommendation

For Committee's Consideration:

1. Does Committee agree that the less than substantial harm to the setting of the listed
pavilion as a result of the proposed new stand is outweighed by the public benefits of the new
stand and other works to the Ground, and the heritage improvements to the setting of the
Grace Gates.

2. If agree fo 1. resolve to grant conditional permission subject to the concurrence of the
Mayor of London and subject to the satisfactory completion of a legal agreement to secure the
following:

Construction Monitoring Contribution and Site Envirenmental Management Plan (SEMP) and
adherence to the Construction Code of Practice.

3. Grant conditional listed building consent.

4. Agree the reasons for granting conditional listed building consent as set out in Informative 1
on the draft decision letter.

3 RN 15/05331/FULL | 12 TREVOR SQUARE, | Excavation werks into garden for extension of
RN 15/05332BC | SW7 - 1 the existing lower ground floor level including the
Knightsbridge And demglition of existing rear single storey
Belgravia extension. Use of the proposed extension roof
as a terrace. Erection of a third floor mansard
roof extension.
Recommendation

1. Grant conditional permission and conditional listed building consent.

2. Agree the reasons for granting listed building consent as set out in Informative 1 of the
draft decision letter.

4 RN 15/01828/FULL | 5§ DENNING CLOSE, Creation of new basement storey with two front

Regent's Park NW8 lightwells, one rear lightwell and one rear glazed
reoflight.
Recommendation
Grant conditional permission.
Page 13

template/reh-sch-1




CITY OF WESTMINSTER
PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE - 27 QCTOBER 2015
SCHEDULE OF APPLICATIONS TO BE CONSIDERED

ITEM
No

References! SITE ADDRESS FPROPOSAL
Ward

RN 16/01715/TCH | Application 1: Use of the public highway (10.5m x 0.75m) for

RN 15/04113FULL | 98 \WESTBOURNE the placing of three tables and six chairs on the

Bayswater GROVE, W2 Westbourne Grove frontage.
Application 2: Variation of Condition 13 {tables and chairs) of
43 HEREFORD ROAD, | Planning permission dated 7 February 2003 (RN
2 -6 BOTTS MEWS, 2 | 02/03540) for part demolition/redevelopment to
CHEPSTOW ROAD, provide new buildings, part
104 - 106 alterations/extensions (including listed buiiding)
WESTBOURNE to provide 36 flats, 2 live-work units, retail,
GROVE restaurant facilities and 34 parking spaces in
98 - 112 basement with associated works; namely to
WESTBOURNE remove restrictions outside of No. 98
GROVE, W2 Woestbourne Grove (Cote restaurant) only.

Recommendation

1. Grant condition
2. Grant condition

al permission.
al permission.

RN
15/06586/ADFULL

Regent's Park

3 HALL GATE, NW$§

Details of a construction management plan
pursuant to Condition 3 of planning permission
dated 06 January 2015 (RN: 14/10072}.

Recommendation
Approve details.

RN 15/04232/FULL
West End

31 EASTCASTLE
STREET, W1

Use of the lower ground and ground floors as a
restaurant (Class A3}, installation of a high leve!
extract duct to rear; new access to front;
replacement balustrade to front lightwell and
alterations to the shopfront. Installation of plant
within an enclosure in the rear lightwell at lower
ground floor level.

Recommendation

Grant conditional permission.

RN 15/01607/FULL
RN 15/01608/LBC
West End

41 FARM STREET,
W1

Retention and relocation of plant and installation
of associated acoustic enclosures on the rear
second floor level.

Recommendation

Had an appeal not been lodged, permission and listed building consent would have been
refused on the grounds that the proposed plant installation would harm the appearance of this
listed building and detrimentally impact upon the character and appearance of the Mayfair
Conservation Area.

templatefrch-sch-1



CITY OF WESTMINSTER
PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE - 27 QCTOBER 2015
SCHEDULE OF APPLICATIONS TO BE CONSIDERED

VAR e i g e e

ITEM References/

SITE ADDRESS
No Ward

PROPOSAL

9 RN 15/04723/FULL | 32 HARCOURT
RN 15/04724/LBC | STREET, W1

Erection of a single storey rear extension at
lower ground floor leve!l and alterations to the
front elevation including the removal of

decision letter.

Bryanston And

Dorset Square redundant advertising. Installation of a new rear
high level extract duct in connection with the
existing public house and internal alterations at
all floor levels.

Recommendation

1. Grant conditional permission and conditional listed building consent.
2. Agree the reasons for granting listed building consent as set out in Informative 1 of the draft

1 0 RN 15/02805/FULL | 5 BINGHAM PLACE,

Marylebone High W1
Street

Demolition of the existing dwelling behind the
retained front facade. Excavation beneath site
and erection of replacement dwelling (Class C3)
aver two basement storeys, ground, first and
new mansard second storey. Use of Part of 21
Nottingham Place to form part of replacement
dwelling (Class C3).

Recommendation
Grant conditional permission.

1 1 RN 15/04673/FULL 9 MONTAGU
Bryanston And BRYANSTON MEWS
Dorset Square WEST, W1

Erecticn of a second floor roof extension and re-
configuration of existing terrace and other
associated external alterations.

Recommendation
Grant conditional permission.

1 2 RN 14/10618/FULL | 40-41 PALL MALL,
St James's SWH1

(ADDENDUM
REPORT)

Demolition of 40 and 41 Pall Mall behind
retained facades and redevelopment to provide
a building of basement, ground and five upper
floors comprising retail (Class A1) at part
basement and part ground floor levels with the
remainder of the building in use as four self-
contained residential flats (Class C3).

Recommendaticn
Grant conditional permission.

templatedrch-sch-1

Y
Q
Q
@
=
o1




CITY OF WESTMINSTER )
PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE - 27 OCTOBER 2015
SCHEDULE OF APPLICATIONS TC BE CONSIDERED

ITEM References/ SITE ADDRESS PROPOSAL
No Ward
1 3 RN 03807/FULL CLUTHA HOUSE, 10 Conversion of part lower ground and all upper
St James's STOREY'S GATE, floors from offices (Use Class B1(a)) to 8 x
SW1 residential flats (Use Class C3), including the
erection of an enlarged mansard roof extension
at fourth floor level, extension to wine bar within
the internal courtyard area at rear lower ground
floor level with ground floor roof terrace above
and associated external and internal works.
Recommendation

Refuse permission - impact on public house.

teinplatefrch-sch-1

Page 16

19/10/2014




CITY OF WESTMINSTER
PLANNING APPLICATIONS COMMITTEE -27 OCTOBER 2015
SCHEDULE QF APPLICATIONS TO BE CONSIDERED

P i e e s

This report is not available for public inspection because it is likely that the public will be excluded while it is being
considered. The report contains information which is exempt under paragraph 3 of part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local

Government Act 1972 because it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information relating to the financial or business
affairs of any particular person {including the authority holding that information).

ITEM References/
SITE ADDRESS PROPOSAL
No Ward
1 4 07832/TPO 8 CARLTON VALE, Felling of two Lime trees.
Maida Vale NW6E
Recommendation
Grant conditional consent.

templata/reh-gch-1

J\d_wpdocsishori-te\sei2015-10-27112-apri-con. docl0

Page 17

18/10/2015




This page is intentionally left blank



4.

Agenda ltem 1

ftem No.
1

CITY OF WESTMINSTER

PLANNING APPLICATIONS
COMMITTEE

Date Classification
27 October 2015 For general release

Report of
Director of Planning

Wards involved
Knightsbridge and Beigravia

Subject of Report

11 Ggra_ld Road, London, SW1wW 9EH

Proposal Removal of one London plane from the rear garden of 11 Gerald
Road

Agent ACS Consulting

On behalf of Miss Quona Mitchell

Registered Number 15/05658/TPQ TP /PP No TP/19396

: . Co ' - | PP-D4297596 - -4

Date of Application 24.06.2015 Date 24.06.2015
amended/
completed

Category of Application Non DCLG

Historic Building Grade

Conservation Area Belgravia

Development Plan Context

- London Pian July 2011

- Westminster's City Plan:

Strategic Polices 2013

- Unitary Development Plan
(UDP) January 2007

QOutside London Plan Central Activities Zone

Qutside Central Activities Zone

Stress Area

Qutside Stress Area

Current Licensing Position

Not Applicable

1. RECOMMENDATIONS
{i) If Committee decide to confirm Tree Preservation Order (TPO) no. 628, to refuse consent.
(i) If Committee decide not to confirm TPO no. 628, this application to remove the tree

becomes invalid as there is no Order under which the application is made. In this case,

the report is withdrawn.

Page 19



This product includes mapping data licensed from nama
Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s

Stationery Office.

i
l G

g
=
&
=
o

All rinhte recarved | irence numher | & 10NN195G7

® Crown copyright and/or database right 2013,




11 GERALD ROAD, NW6




2.1

2.2

ltem No.

1

SUMMARY

Consent is sought to remove one London plane from the rear garden of 11 Gerald Road.
The application has been made on the grounds that the tree is not considered to be of
public amenity value, and raises issues of over dominance, shading, leaf fall and irritating
leaf hairs, which prevent full enjoyment of the garden.

Committee will already have considered the report of the Director of Law concerning the
confirmation of TPQ no. 628 which protects the tree. If Members decide to confirm the
Order then the key issues to consider in relation to this application are the loss of amenity
should the trees be removed, balanced with the reasons put forward to support tree
removal. If Members decide not to confirm the Order, then no decision is necessary on
this application and the tree can be removed without further reference to the Council.

CONSULTATIONS
ADJOINING OWNERS/OCCUPIERS AND OTHER REPRESENTATIONS

As a result of notification of intent to remove the London plane tree application
{15/08840/TCA), the following consultation was carried out
Nao. Consulted; 21: Total No. of Replies: 2

Replies:

2 emails received from 2 local residents objecting to the removal of the tree under on the

grounds that:

» The tree is healthy, in good condition and has the potential to make a continued
contribution to the character of the conservation area.
Tree removal would result in a loss of screening and privacy to surrounding properties.

+ Respondents have queried the motive behind the application to remove the tree
suggesting that a possible basement development may be part of the reason.

« The tree provides habitat and shelter for birdlife within the local area.

As a result of the current application to remove the London plane tree under the terms of
the TPO the following consultation was carried out.
No. Consulted: 20: Total No. of Replies: 4

Replies:
3 emails and 1 letter received from 4 local residents objecting to the removal of the
London plane tree on the grounds that:

The tree is typical and representative of the area.

The tree provides habitat and shelter for birdlife within the local area.

A number of trees have already been lost from the surrounding gardens.

The tree provides shade from the heat and glare of the sun.

The owners of 11 Gerald Road purchased the property fully aware of the existence of
the tree.

ADDITIONAL REPRESENTATIONS

GROSVENOR ESTATE

One email objecting to removal under application reference 15/03391/TCA stating that
Grosvenar is not in favour of the removal of the tree unless it is deemed unsafe. A further
email was received from Grosvenor objecting to removal under the current application.
Included in the objection was an Arboricultural report stating that the tree appears in good

Page 22

e gtttk b —



ltem No.

condition, makes a contribution to the green infrastructure of the area and provides
amenity to local residents.

THE BELGRAVIA SOCIETY

One email objecting to removal under application reference 15/03391/TCA stating that the
Society's policy is to retain as many trees within Belgravia as possible, that the owners
purchased the property with the knowledge of the trees existence and that to request its
removal in order to develop the property is unacceptable. The email also states that the
tree encourages wildlife into the area and adds to the character and amenity of Belgravia.

BELGRAVE GARDEN SQUARE COMMITTEE

One email objecting to removal under application reference 15/03391/TCA stating that
mature trees are very important to the local environment and that the tree provides
valuable wildlife habitat.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
4.1 The Application Site/ Tree

11 Gerald Road is a four storey residential property, with a relatively large rear garden which
separates the host property from a two storey property at 2 Burton Mews.

The London plane is located on the south west side of the rear garden close to the boundary
with 7 Gerald Road. The tree is approximately 18 m in height and is a mature specimen. Its
canopy was reduced recently as agreed under reference 15/00614/TCA, from which points it
is beginning to regrow. It is in good condition and has a fong life expectancy if allowed to
remain.

In addition to the London plane, there are three smaller semi-mature trees growing in the
rear garden of 11 Gerald Road, an evergreen magnolia, a southern beech and a hormbeam.
These trees are protected by virtue of being located within a conservation area.

4.2 Relevant History

15/09279/FULL

Extension to existing basement under terrace house at 11 Gerald Road and under
existing Mews Building, and 85% of Front and Rear gardens.

Application received

15/07820/FULL

Excavation to create a new basement level extension beneath 2 Burton Mews to the rear
of 11 Gerald Road.

Pending consideration

156/07603/FULL

Excavation of lower ground floor and basement under the front garden. Replacement of
front basement lightwell stair.

Pending consideration

15/03391/TCA

1 x London plane (rear}. removal

This notice of intent to remove the tree was made on the same grounds as the current
application for tree removal. Tree Preservation Order (TPO) no. 628 was made in
response to the notification.

Page 23



[T T I

15/00614/TCA

1 x London plane (rear): Crown reduce to previous, most recent reduction points leaving
furnishing growth.

No objections.

13/11570/TCA

T1 London plane (rear): thin crown by 20%

T2 Hornheam (rear): thin crown by 20%

T3 Magnolia {rear}. thin crown by 20%

T4 Southern beech (rear): prune back from neighbouring garden to boundary line.
Ne objections

08/03022/TCA _

1 x plane tree: Crown reduction pruning to previous (most recent) pruning points.

1 x Hornbeam: Confine spread of crown by pruning lower outer most growth to suitable
points.

No objections

THE PROPOSAL

1 x London plane {rear). removal

DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS

6.1 Reasons for the application

The application has been made by arboricultural consultants on behalf of the owner of 11
Gerald Road. Tree removal is proposed on the following grounds:

Amenity and conservation area reasons:

» The tree is of low public amenity value and its removal would have no discernible impact

on the character and appearance of the area.

Technical and domestic reasons:

+ Recent pruning has not resolved on going issues with the dominance/ overbearance of

the tree. Continued maintenance is required. The tree has outgrown its current location.
Tree pruning results in loss of visual amenity.

The tree causes excessive nuisance associated with leaf and debris fall and leaf hairs
causing respiratory problems to the house holders.

The tree cause dense shade and prevents the owner from fully enjoying the property and
the garden.

The tree restricts landscaping options within the garden.

6.2 Appraisal
Amenity considerations

Tree Preservation Orders are made by the City Council where it is considered expedient in
the interests of amenity under the powers of section 198 of the Town and Country Planning
Act 1990. Current Government guidance advises locat planning authorities that ‘Orders
should be used to protect selected trees and woodlands if their removal would have a
significant negative impact on the local environment’. The visibility of the tree, and its
individual, collective and wider impact are important considerations in assessing amenity,
and factors should be considered such as future potential as an amenity, rarity, culturat or
historic value, contribution to, and rd%ﬁtg&iﬁﬂith, the landscape; and contribution to the



et et

_Item No.

character or appearance of a conservation area.

The tree is visible in part from Burton Mews, and a large number of properties on Ebury
Street, Elizabeth Street, South Eaton Place and Gerald Road overlook the tree, such that
protection of the tree is justified in light of the public benefit it provides. This view is
supported by the value placed on the tree in the objections to tree loss received from local
residents and interested parties.

The tree is a mature specimen with a long life expectancy, and an attractive appearance
with no significant defects which would preclude the making of a TPO. If allowed to
remain it has a long future potential as an amenity.

With regard to the relationship of the tree with the landscape, whilst the tree is a large
specimen of a large species which has a significant presence in the garden, the form and
shape of the canopy, and the position of the tree in the garden are such that it is
considered to a suitable tree for the garden.

The tree is also considered to make a positive contribution to the character and
appearance of Belgravia conservation area. The Council's draft Conservation Area Audit
identifies that mature trees in private gardens which are visible through townscape gaps,
over wall or from mews add interest to the townscape and hint at the existence of a
private realm beyond the formal streetscape. The London plane conforms to this
description. The tree also enhances the rear garden views and softens the appearance of
the tall buildings, and provides a focal point in views from rear windows of the many
nearby properties which overlook 11 Gerald Road.

Technical and domestic reasons for tree removal

The tree is not considered to be over dominant, or to be the cause of excessive shade.
The garden is not especially small, in fact it is one of the larger gardens in the vicinity, and
the tree is located toward the south west boundary of the garden, about mid-way between
the rear elevation of 11 Gerald Road and 2 Burton Mews. It is not unusual to find trees of
a similar size in similar sized rear gardens in Westminster. The tree has relatively upright
form, and crown reduction has limited its spread, so a large part of the garden remains
outside the canopy spread of the tree. In addition the crown of the tree breaks at
approximately 7 m above ground level, and this too helps to limit its dominance. Whilst the
tree will cast shade across the garden at certain times of day, as will other trees and
adjacent buildings including 11 Gerald Road itself, it is not considered that the impact of
the tree is so great that that it merits removal on this basis.

With regard to pruning, regular reduction of the tree to the current reduction points is an
appropriate and common means of management, and is not considered to be unduly
onerous. The recent pruning has been carried out well, and the tree has an attractive
symmetrical canopy.

The removal of the tree on the ground that regular pruning would resuit in a loss of visual
amenity value is not considered to be justified. The loss of amenity through loss of foliage
associated with regular pruning is considered to be minor and temporary compared to the
loss of amenity which would ensue from the removal of the tree.

Leaf fall can be an inconvenience, especially in autumn. It can usually be dealt with by
regular garden maintenance. It is a seasonal problem of limited severity, and is not
considered sufficient reason to remove the tree. The regular reduction of the canopy of
the tree would help to limit the problem.

Page 25



tem No.
1

Whilst the issue of respiratory problems which are said to be caused to the owner by the
London plane are a serious consideration, no further information has been supplied
regarding the severity of the problem or the alternative actions taken to alleviate
symptoms. Leaf hairs are commonly shed from London planes in spring, and problems
can be exacerbated by dry and windy conditions, so the inconvenience is usually short
lived, and varies in severity from year to year. It is not considered that sufficient
information has been provided to justify the removal of the tree on this basis.

Landscaping options within the garden are likely to be restricted at least in part by the
presence of the London plane, and also by the presence of other trees, some of which
such as the southern beech, are of poorer form and condition than the London plane.
Whilst the presence of the tree is likely to require careful consideration of suitable species
in any new landscaping scheme, it is not considered that the tree precludes creating an
attractive garden landscape.

6.3  Tree replacement

The applicant suggests that either Amelanchier or Liquidambar would be suitable species
for replacement planting. Amelanchier are small trees typically reaching a height of up to
7m on maturity. Liquidambar is a larger tree capable of reaching 20m on maturity.

The removal of a tree on the grounds that a replacement will be planted is not considered
sufficient justification for the removal of this tree. The loss of character and amenity which
results from the removal of mature trees takes a considerable length of time to restore by
planting replacement trees. If the City Council were to accept proposals for removal of
mature trees on the sole basis of replacement trees being planted, this would quickly
result in erosion in public amenity, and would skew the age structure of the tree
population.

6.4 Policy considerations

The National Pianning Policy Framework (NPPF) sets out that the planning system should
contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by protecting and enhancing
valued landscapes, and minimising impacts on biodiversity and providing net gains in
biodiversity.

In addition local planning authorities should identify and assess the particular significance
of any heritage asset that may be affected by a proposal (including by development
affecting the setting of a heritage asset) taking account of the available evidence and any
necessary expertise. They should take this assessment into account when considering
the impact of a proposal on a heritage asset, to avoid or minimise conflict between the
heritage asset’s conservation and any aspect of the proposal.

Policy $25 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted in November 2013 aims
to conserve Westminster's extensive heritage assets inciuding listed buildings and
conservation areas.

Policy $38 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted in November 2013 aims
to protect and enhance biodiversity and green infrastructure.

UDP Policy DES 9 aims to preserve or enhance the character or appearance of
conservation areas and their settings.

UDP Policy ENV16 states that trees subject to Tree Preservation Orders will be
safeguarded unless dangerous to public safety or, in rare circumstances, when felling is

required as part of a replanting progg@‘@e26



[tem No.

1

The draft supplementary planning document the ‘Draft Belgravia Conservation Area Audit’
identifies the importance of rear garden trees in the consideration area.

Whilst there is no requirement to have regard to Development Plan policies when
determining Tree Preservation Order applications, special attention should be paid to the
desirability of preserving or enhancing the character and appearance of the conservation
area.

6.5 Legal and financial implications

Under the terms of regulations 24 of the Town and Country Planning (Tree Preservation)
(England) Regulations 2012 there are rights to claim compensation from the City Council.
These terms allow that should loss or damage be experienced as a result of refusal of
consent, or imposition of conditions, the applicant can claim compensation for loss or
damage incurred, within 12 months of the date of the decision.

CONCLUSION

In assessing the merits of the application, the main considerations are the loss of amenity
and the impact on the character and appearance of the conservation area which would
result from the proposal, balanced with the reasons put forward to justify tree removal.

The removal of the tree would result in harm to public amenity, and detriment to the
character and appearance of the conservation area. Strong opposition to the removal of
the tree has been received from seven local residents. The Grosvenor Estate, Belgravia
Society and Belgrave Garden Square Committee also support the retention of the tree.

The removal of the London plane tree is not considered to be justified on the basis of the
submitted information. Regular pruning of the tree to control its size and reduce crown
density is considered to be an appropriate means of management in response to the
problems and inconveniences which are highlighted by the applicant. It is recommended
that consent to remove the tree is refused.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

PCONDARWN

Application date 24 June 2015

Letter of consultation from Westminster City Council to local residents dated 14 May 2015
Email from owner/occupier of 1-5 Gerald Road dated 26 May 2015

Email from owner/occupier of 9 Gerald Road dated 27 May 2015

Email from The Belgravia Society dated 28 May 2015

Email from Grosvenor Estate dated 28 May 2015

Email from Belgrave Square Garden Committee dated 29 May 2015

Letter of consultation fram Westminster City Council to local residents dated 7 August 2015
Email from Grosvenor Estate dated 25 August 2015

10 Email from owner/occupier of 126 Ebury Street dated 27 August 2015

11. Letter from owner/occupier of 130 Ebury Street dated 28 August 2015

12. Letter from owner/occupier of property on Ebury Street dated 28 August 2015
13. Letter from unknown address dated 28 August 2015

iF YOU HAVE ANY QRUJERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT OR WISH TO INSPECT ANY OF THE
BACKGRQUND PAPERS PLEASE CONTACT TOM HOWGEGQO ON 020 7641 5380 OR BY E-MAIL -
thowgego@westminster.qov.uk

jW_wpdocsishort-tetsci2015-10-27\tem1.dec\0 15/10/2015

Page 27




DRAFT

John Walker

Director of Planning
Edward Buckton Please reply to: Tom Howgego (Tree Section)
ACS Consulting
Pilgrims Court Direct Line/Voicemail: 020 7641 5380
15-17 west Street Email: thowgego@westminster.gov.uk
Reigate
Surrey Your Ref:
RH2 9BL My Ref: PT/TH/TP/19396/PP04297596/15/05658/TPQO

Date:

Dear Sir/Madam

TOWN & COUNTRY PLANNING ACT 1990

TREE PRESERVATION ORDER WESTMINSTER NO. 628
11 GERALD ROAD LONDON SW1W SEH

| refer to your application for tree works at the above location.

You are advised that after careful consideration the City Council has determined to refuse
consent for the tree works referred to below

1 x London plane (rear): removal

Consent is refused for the following reasons:

1. The removal of the London plane tree which is protected by a Tree Preservation Order

would be detrimental to the public amenity, and would have an adverse effect on the

character and appearance of Belgravia Conservation Area, thereby contrary to policies
S25 and $38 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies which adopted in November

2013, and ENV 16 and DES 9 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in
January 2007.

2. The removal of the London plane tree on the grounds that it is not visible from a public
place is not considered to be justified. The tree is visible in part from Burton Mews. It is

also visible from a large number of properties and to a large number of residents,

including those overlooking from Ebury Street, Elizabeth Street, South Eaton Place and
Gerald Road. Objections received from local residents and amenity associations to the

loss of the tree in relation to this application and the previous notification of intent to
remove the tree (15/03391/TCA) indicate that the tree is valued for its appearance,
screening, providing a green and leafy outlook, and other environmental qualities.

Removal of the tree would have a significant negative impact on the local environment
and its enjoyment by the public, and this accords with the intention of the tree protection

legislation and current Government guidance (paragraph: 007 of Planning Practice
Guidance ‘Tree Preservation Orders and trees in conservation areas’).

Page 28



. The tree is considered to contribute to the character of Belgravia Conservation Area.
The species and size are in keeping with the scale and character of the properties in
the area. It enhances the rear garden views and softens architectural form and
appearance of the tall buildings. Trees such as this which are visible through
townscape gaps, from mews or over garden walls are considered to provide contrast
with the white stucco and formal layout of the conservation area, and to add interest
to the townscape by hinting the existence of the private realm, without compromising
the architectural form of the Belgravia terraces or obstructing footways.

. The removal of the London plane tree on the basis of leaf drop is not considered to be
justified. Whilst the issue of leaf drop is recognised as inconvenient to the owner, it is
not considered to be of such severity as to merit the removal of tree

. The removal of the London plane tree on the basis of its size/ overdominance and
unsuitability to its location is not considered to be justified. The tree has a significant
presence in the garden but it is located toward the south west boundary, so it does not
appear overbearing or inappropriate for the site. It is not unusual to find trees of a
similar size in similar sized rear gardens in Westminster. The tree has been subject to
regular crown reduction, such that it limits the size and dominance of the tree. London
plane is a species which responds well to pruning and is tolerant of pollution and
environmental pressures. It is a common species in this part of central London and is
well suited to the urban environment. As such it is considered to be an appropriate
species for this location.

. The removal of the London plane tree on the basis of shading to the garden is not
considered to be justified. Although the tree is a large specimen, it has been managed
through a regime of regular crown reduction to create a narrow upright canopy shape,
with a high crown break, which limits the shading effect. Although the tree does cause
some shading, the effect of this can be limited by pruning, and is not considered to be of
sufficient severity to merit the removal of the tree.

. The removal of the London plane tree on the grounds that it needs extensive pruning to
control its growth is not considered to be justified. The tree is an attractive individual
specimen of good form and in good condition, which has a long life expectancy if
allowed to remain. The majority of plane trees in private ownership in the area are
managed by periodic crown reduction and this is not considered to be of detriment to
their appearance nor is it considered to be an indication that the tree is overly dominant.
Tree management of this nature is not considered to be unduly onerous.

. The removal of the tree on the ground that regular pruning would result in a loss of
visual amenity value is not considered to be justified. The loss of amenity through loss
of foliage associated with regular pruning is considered to be minor and temporary
compared to the loss of amenity which would ensue from the removal of the tree.

. Insufficient information has been submitted to justify the removal of the tree on the
grounds of respiratory problems. No information has been supplied regarding the
severity of the problem or the alternative actions taken to alleviate symptoms. Leaf
hairs are commonly shed from London planes in spring, and problems can be

Page 29



exacerbated by dry and windy conditions, so the inconvenience is usually short lived,
and varies in severity from year to year.

10. The removal of the tree on the grounds that it restricts landscaping options is not
considered to be justified. Future landscaping options will require careful consideration
of suitable but it is not considered that the presence of the tree precludes creating an
attractive garden landscape.

11. The removal of the London plane tree on the basis of provision of a replacement tree
not considered to be adequate justification for its removal. The loss of character and
amenity which results from the removal of mature trees takes a considerable length of
time to restore by planting replacement trees. If the City Council were to accept
proposals for removal of mature trees on the sole basis of replacement trees being
planted, this would quickly result in erosion in public amenity, and would skew the age
structure of the tree population.

Informatives:

1.

Please see the City Council’s letter dated 18 September 2015, in response to your
objection to the making of Tree Preservation Order Westminster no. 628, for more
details relating to the reasons for refusal of this application.

If you disagree with this decision, you can appeal to the Planning Inspectorate, The
Environment Appeals Team, Room 4/04, Kite Wing, Temple Quay House, 2 The
Square, Bristol, BS1 6PN, in writing within 28 days of receipt of this decision, or any
such longer period as the Secretary of State may allow. The Planning Inspectorate
requires the completion of an appeals form available from the Planning Inspectorate
on 0117 372 8912 or via their website:
http://www.planningportal.gov.uk/planning/appeals/otherappealscasework

If you suffer loss or damage as a result of this refusal of consent, you may be
entitled to claim compensation from the City Council. If you wish to make a claim
you must do so within 12 months from the date of this decision (or, if you appeal to
the Secretary of State, within 12 months from the date of his decision).

Yours faithfully,

John Walker
Director of Planning

Page 30



Agenda Iterﬁ' 2

[tem No.
2

CITY OF WESTMINSTER

PLANNING APPLICATIONS
COMMITTEE

Date Classification

27 QOctober 2015 For General Release

Report of
Director of Planning

Wards involved
Regent's Park

Subject of Report

Lords Cricket Ground, St John's Wood Road, London, NW8 8QZ

Proposal

Demolition of the existing Tavern Stand, Allen Stand, Thomas Lord
Building, MCC Office Building and Scorer's Box and redevelopment
comprising the erection of new stand, new Thomas Lord Building with
an expanded basement and relocated public house, new Harris
Garden Building, new scorers Box, internal and external alterations to
the Pavilion, a new shop in the Bowlers' Annexe together with
relocation of the floodlight, hard and soft landscaping, servicing
facilities and all necessary ancillary and enabling works, plant and
equipment.

Agent

DP9

On behalf of

Marylebone Cricket Club

Registered Number

15/07111/FULL TP /PP No TP/2260

15/07112/1.BC

Date of Application

amended/
completed

28.07.2015

Category of Application

Major - Smallscale

Historic Building Grade

The Pavilion is Grade I* and the Grace Gages Grade | listed

Conservation Area

St John's Wood with the exception of the Thomas Lord Building which
is located outside the conservation area.

Development Plan Context

- London Plan July 2011

- Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies 2013

- Unitary Development Plan
(UDP) January 2007

Outside London Plan Central Activities Zone

Qutside Central Activities Zone

Stress Area

Qutside Stress Area

Current Licensing Position

Not Applicable

RECOMMENDATION

For Committee's Consideration:

1. Does Committee agree that the less than substantial harm to the setting of the listed pavilion
as a result of the proposed new stand is outweighed by the public benefits of the new stand and
other works to the Ground, and the heritage improvements to the setting of the Grace Gates.

2. If agree to 1. resolve to grant conditional permission subject to the concurrence of the Mayor of

London and subject to the satisfactory Jorag

f a legal agreement to secure the following:




ltem No.
2

a) Construction Monitoring Contribution and Site Environmental Management Plan (SEMP) and
adherence to the Construction Code of Practice.

3. Grant conditional listed building consent.

4. Agree the reasons for granting conditional listed building consent as set out in Informative 1 on
the draft decision letter.

Page 32



\ ).

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordnance
Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office.

20 Metres
Leiaslasal



Thomas Lord Building St John’s Wood Road NW8

SENERS
WU R

Existing Tavern and Allen Stand in relation to the listed pavilion

LORDS CRICKET GROUND, ST JONHN’S WOOD ROAD, NW8




Tavern Stand and scorer’'s box

View from Century Court of the rear of the listed pavilion, Allen and Tavern Stands

LORDS CRICKET GROUND, ST JONHN’S WOOD ROAD, NW8




Bridge link from Allen Stand to the Pavilion

LORDS CRICKET GROUND, ST JONHN’S WOOD ROAD, NW8




item No.
2

SUMMARY

This proposal known as the South Western Project (SWP) is the next phase of the Lords
Masterplan and comprises of six components:

i) a new stand to replace the existing Tavern and Allen Stands, which will increase the
capacity of the Ground by approximately 1082 additional seats and involves the re-
location of the temporary floodlight to inside the new stand;

i) a new four storey Thomas Lord building fronting on St John's Wood Road with a basement
which extends underneath the Harris Gardens. This scheme also involves the relocation of
the Thomas Lord public house at the rear of the new building;

i} anew 2 storey Harris Gardens building to replace the existing single storey building,

iv) works to refurbish the Bowlers' Annex building attached to the listed pavilion including a
retail shop and internal and external alterations to the Grade II* pavilion including a new
bridge link to the new stand,;

v) new Scorer's box located between the Mound Stand and the new stand,

vi) re-configuration of the entrance areas around the Grace Gates on St John's Wood Road.

The objections from local residents relate to the height and proximity of the new stand next to
the listed pavilion and its adverse impact on the setting of this heritage asset, and the
relationship of the proposed retractable seats and the scoreboard to the pavilion. The
proposed new Thomas Lord Building due to its increase in height and massing has attracted
strong objections from residents in Century Court on grounds of loss of light, increased sense
of enclosure, loss of privacy, and the loss of amenity as a result of the proposed relocation of
the Lords Tavern public house to the rear of this new building and increased use of the Harris
Gardens.

The application is supported in strategic planning terms by the Greater London Authority.
Historic England generally support the proposal but has requested more justification in respect
of the scoreboard and retractable seating to the new stand given their impact on the setting of
the listed pavilion. The St John's Wood Society request that the Council carefully considers
the loss of light and overbearing sense of enclosure for the lower level flats in Century Court
and the relocated Tavern public house on amenity , and query the long term maintenance of
the proposed green wall to the Thomas Lord Building and whether trees would be a better
solution.

The key issues are:

e The demolition of the Allen Stand (an unlisted building of merit) and Tavern Stand within
the St John's Wood Conservation Area.

« The impact of the new stand in terms of its architectural relationship, height and design on
the special architectural and historic interest of the Grade 1I* heritage asset, and whether
the less than substantial harm its setting is outweighed by the public benefits of the
improved facilities at the Ground.

» The impact of the new Thomas Lord Building on the setting of the listed pavilion, the
Grace Gates and on the character and appearance of the adjoining St John's Wood
Conservation Area.

« The impact of the proposed works to improve the entrance into the Ground on the setting
of the Grace Gates.

» The impact of the proposal on the amenities of adjoining residents in Century Court and
the relocation of the temporary floodlight in the new stand and the relocation of the public
house.

There are no objections to the new two storey MCC building at the end of the Harris Gardens,
the new scorer's box and the works toﬁg&gw%' Annex, and the internal and external



Itern No.

2

alterations to the listed pavilion. The provision of improved facilities at the Ground are
supported in land use terms, and it is recommended that an Operational Management Plan be
imposed to control the operation /hours of use of the relocated public house in order to
safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents. It is recognised that the new Thomas Lord
building and the new stand will affect daylight and increase sense of enclosure to
neighbouring properties, but for the reasons set out in Section 6.3 of this report, these losses
are not considered to be materially harmful to warrant refusal.

The Allen Stand is 80 years old and identified in the Conservation Area Audit as an unlisted
building of merit but not of sufficient architectural quality to warrant listing. The new stand is
generally considered to be a high quality replacement building, but the position of the
scoreboard and the retractable seating above next to the listed pavilion will affect the setting
of this heritage asset. Therefore Members views are sought as to whether the public benefits
associated with the proposal outweigh the less than substantial harm to the listed pavilion and
in the light of the welcome benefits to the setting of the Grace Gates and enhancements to
this part of the St John's Wood Conservation Area.

CONSULTATIONS

WARD COUNCILLORS
Councillor Gotz Molhera has requested to be kept informed of the Committee date.

HISTORIC ENGLAND

Minded to direct the granting of the listed building consent. The Allen Stand and bridge retain
some architectural and historic interest, but unlikely to meet the very high tests for statutory
listing and do not wish to resist the loss of this structure. The Allen Stand dates from the
1960s and whilst designed by a prominent architectural practice, the stand is not considered
of any great architectural or historic merit and its loss is not objectionable. The new stand
would comprise of a substantial curved structure taller than the existing stands with a
transtucent white canopy above. The design is not overbearing and is distant enough from the
pavilion not to intrude significantly on its setting. The roof structure has a family resemblance
with the existing and consented structures across the complex but is sufficiently distinct to
sustain the concept embedded in the Masterplan.

Views of the planning application -The size of the scoreboard along with the retractable raked
seating above it would be a distracting-feature within the setting of the Pavilion, diminishing its
dignified and imposing presence in the grounds. Request that the City Council is satisfied that
there is no other configuration of the seating across the new Allen Stand that might eliminate
the need for seating above the scoreboard, and that the dimensions of the scoreboard are the
minimum necessary for the club to function as it needs to urge that the City Council explore
with the applicant the necessity of illuminated advertising in this location, or whether this might
be limited or controlled in order that it does not visually compete with the Grade II* listed
building. Recommend that further amendments are sought that might further enhance the
setting of the pavilion. Where harm cannot be avoided, the City Council must weigh this
against the public benefits of the scheme, including securing the long term future of the
grounds as the home of cricket. In other respects, consider this scheme to be well conceived
and capable of delivering a much improved public realm and enhanced setting for the Grace
Gates, as well as the area to the rear of the Pavilion.

GREATER LONDON AUTHORITY (GLA)

Application is supported in strategic planning terms, but there are a number of outstanding
1Issues. Applicant needs to provide further information regarding the size and location of the
energy centre and the capacity of the proposed ground source heat pump and information on
the uses and heat demands throughout the year at the Ground, and on the heating systems
on site. The applicant should liaise with the Council to ensure that the short fall in carbon

Page 38

et s



Item No.
2

dioxide reductions is met off site. In respect of tfransport, further information requiredonany
changes to TfL's public highway, measures to encourage cycling, trip generation, the

submission of a coach management plan, and the Council securing a delivery and servicing

plan and a construction logistics plan.

TRANSPORT FOR LONDON (TfL)

The reduction in car parking is supported, any spaces modified as a result of this proposal
must be provided with Electric Vehicle Charging Points. Request a Coach Management Plan
is put in place and that additional coach parking is implemented on St John's Wood Road if
necessary due to demand. Applicant urged to review cycling trips and set how cycling is to be
actively encduraged through the Travel Plan. The moderate impact of additional trips arising is
not considered to be significant enough to warrant specific mitigation towards public transport
facilities or services in the vicinity of the site. Further information required in respect of any
changes to TfL highway. A Delivery and Servicing Plan and Construction Logistics Plan to be
secured by condition. Concerned that the proposed basement will be within the root protection
area of street tree 7 and applicant's mitigation to instail a timber fencing box around the tree is
clearly inadequate. Proposal will attract Mayoral CIL payment.

TWENTIETH CENTURY SOCIETY
No response received to date.

NATURAL ENGLAND
No response to date.

ENVIRONMENT AGENCY
No comments to make.

SPORTS ENGLAND
Holding response received requested more information. Later confirmed no objections, and
requested to be notified of the Committee report and Committee decision.

THAMES WATER

|dentified an inability for existing wastewater infrastructure to accommodate the needs of this
application and request that a Grampian condition is imposed to secure the submission of a
drainage strategy. Request that fat traps are installed on all catering establishments. No
impact piling shall take place until a piling method statement has been agreed in consultation
with Thames Water as concerned about the impact on their underground sewerage
infrastructure .Request a number of informatives.

BUILDING CONTROL

The structural method statement is considered acceptable .An investigation of existing
structures and geology have been undertaken and found to be of sufficient details .The
existence of ground water, including underground rivers has been researched and the
likelihood of local flooding or adverse effects on the water table have been found to be
neglible. The basement is to be constructed using piled walls with internal RC retaining walls
which is considered appropriate for this site. The proposals to safeguard adjacent properties
during construction are considered acceptable.

BUILDING CONTROL SUDS
To be reported verbally.

CRIME PREVENTION DESIGN OFFICER
To be reported verbally.

Page 39



Item No.

GO GREEN MANAGER
To be reported verbally.

SPORTS AND LEISURE
To be reported verbally.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH

Request that the cost of Environmental Monitoring during the demolition and construction of
the new stand, Thomas Lord building, MCC building and scorers box are secured by a legal
agreement - estimate yearly costs are £31,000 per annum. Request that a Site Environmental
Management Plan is covered by condition.

In respect of land contamination require Phase 3 (Remediation Strategy) and Phase 4
(Validation Strategy) to be controlled by condition. Request a condition to require the
submission of a supplementary acoustic report in respect of new plant. In respect of light
pollution from the relocated floodlight request that this is be controlled by conditions. The
existing PA system in the stand is not covered by specific decibel levels on the existing
Premises Licence and request a similar condition to that imposed on the Warner Stand. The
deveiopment of the Thomas Lord building and the Harris Gardens is likely to lead to the Harris
Gardens being utilised in conjunction with the public house and as part of any new licence
seek restrictions to limit hours of use, no amp lied music and limitations on capacity to control
any potential noise arising from the use of this external area.

HIGHWAYS PLANNING MANAGER
To be reported verbally.

ARBORICULTURAL MANAGER

The submitted tree report is inadequate, as it omits the trees in the rear gardens of Grove End
Road. It fails to assess the impact of the proposal on these trees and tree protection
measures are inadequate .Object, likely loss of trees 1 and 2 (Limes} which are protected by a
TPO as a result of the proposed basement likely loss of or damage to trees (3-8) London
Planes on St John's Wood Road, and request that TfL. be consulted in respect of the street
tree.

SPORTS AND LEISURE
No response to date.

LONDON FIRE BRIGADE
No response to date

ST JOHN'S WOOD SOCIETY

The St John's Wood Society's executive committee has carefully considered the proposals for
the south-western development project for Lords and we have also considered the comments
of neighbours. They have met with Robert Ebdon and the architects on a number of occasions
and significant amendments were made to the original design at pre planning stage.
Architects have responded and developed the design in a positive, flexible and exemplary way
and should be congratulated. if Lord's can continue to develop the design o ensure that
quality is maintained during the detailed design and construction, the buildings should be a
welcome addition to St John's Wood.

However the following concerns remain:

Page 40



ltem No.

2

» We request that the Council carefully considers loss of light and the pverbearing sense of
enclosure for the lower level flats in Century Court which has been created by the
increased height of the proposed Thomas Lord building. .

s The relocated Tavern with balcony and external terrace as well as the use of the Harris
Gardens will inevitably cause considerable noise nuisance for the residents of Century
Court because of their close proximity. We ask that the Council applies stringent
conditions to control the operational arrangements and use of this external space.

» There is a practical point about the green wall, its long term maintenance and whether
trees in front of the wall might be visually more pleasing and practical.

ST JOHN'S WOOD COURT RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION

Object- the plans submitted are in contradiction to the professed aim of ensuring that the
Lords Pavilion is not subservient to any of the proposed buildings. The proposed height of the
Tavern/Allen Stands will be the approximately same height as the top of the pavilion. In
approving the Warner Stand at a height of 57.3 metres understood that the GLA noted that the
new stand would be subordinate to the pavilion .This proposal at 59.4 m and the pavilion at
60.2 m and therefore cannot claim to be subservient, and as a result the appearance of the
listed pavilion will be harmed.

CENTRY COURT RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION
Obiject, loss of light to residents in terms of number of windows, and applicant's report does
not address that a number of balconies are winter gardens.

No need or adequate justification for the additional height to the Thomas Lord building which
is causing the loss of light, increased sense of enclosure and loss of privacy to residents .If
the offending floors were removed, it would reduce the loss of light, and if the MCC wish to
implement an office development it should be located elsewhere in the ground. Overbearing
impact and enclosure from the extended Tavern huilding. Adverse impact on emissions from
the proposed extended Tavern, in particular the use of the Harris Gardens as a Beer garden
and the external terraces and balconies . The current Tavern is closed on major match days
because of previous and repeated noise and anti-social behaviour after a day’s cricket.

Substantial harm to the setting of the Grade II* listed pavilion , as only 6.7 m away .The new
Warner Stand was judged on balance to be acceptable given its was subservient to the
pavilion and this new stand is much higher . The GLA advised in April 2014 and the City
Council concluded that the new Warner Stand would remain low enough to remain
subservient to the listed building . The new Tavern Stand at 59.4 m in height is significantly
taller than the new Warner Stand and cannot be described as being subservient .1t is located
18 metres from the edge of the pavilion whilst the new Warner Stand is 15.5m removed from it
Although the new stand has been lowered by 0.75 m this is not enough and the upper floors
accommodate hospitality and boxes and not spectator seats . The new Allen part of the stand
is only 6.7 m from the edge of the pavilion and 8.8 m closer than the new Warner Stand. The
proposal at a height of 53.2 m seems acceptable, but the proposal to increase the height of
the stand on major match days to 56.6m to accommaodate more seating will cause substantial
harm to the pavilion and its setting when the building is on greatest display .Request that it is
not elevated at all to respect the scale and setting of the pavilion.

ADJOINING OWNERS/OCCUPIERS AND OTHER REPRESENTATIONS
No. Consulted: 1299; Total No. of Replies: 28.
29 objections received to date from local residents raising the following:

Land Use
« Not convinced that Lords requires the extra capacity as many seats are empty on most
match days .The redevelopment is too extensive and will cause many years of interruption

Page 41



[ PR VIR [v—

ftem No.

LT B

to the daily life of residents and the MCC have failed to take into account residents’
suggestions and objections.

Design/Listed buildings

+ Object to the loss of the existing stands.

» No new building should be taller than the Tavern Stand. The current proposal will tower
over the Tavern Stand.

» Request a more appropriate form of development which is more in keeping with Lords.

¢ The potential substantial harm to the seiting of the Grade II* listed pavilion as a result of
the new stand, being only 6.7 m away. T

* The new Warner Stand was judged by the Council to be on balance acceptable because
amongst other things it was subservient to the pavilion .The new Warner Stand is 57.3m
high and the new stand is over two metres higher at 59.4m and higher than the pavilion,
will dwarf and overshadow this listed building.

+ Despite consulting extensively with local residents, the resultant minor amendments have
not reflected residents' comments and concerns.

* The retractable seating will be highly visible on major match days and for an extra 150
seats this does not justify the harm to the listed pavilion .Suggest that these retractable
seats be removed.

e There is only one drawing which shows the height and its relationship with the pavilion.

» New stand will be as high as the top of the pavilion turret and will dominate it.

Amenity

+ Loss of light to flats in Century Court as a result of the Thomas Lord Building. This
increase in height will result in many flats losing daylight and feeling more hemmed in by
the new huildings.

e Despite requests for additional visuals to show the view from the lower floor flats, none
have been submitted with the application.

» Loss of privacy to residents in Century Court - new Thomas Lord building will be used as
offices and be constantly occupied and overlook neighbours.

* Noise from the use of the open air garden of the public house causing nuisance and
disturbance to residents in Century Court during the day and late into the evening.

« Beer garden in the Harris Gardens will be open to the public all year round and result in
noise and disturbance to neighbours.
The Police were recently called out due to an incident at the public house.
Noise from corporate events.
Oppose the new bars and restaurants, especially the open air plans for drinking and
hospitality will create a great deal of noise and rowdiness.

e Lords brings disruption, noise and pollution on match days to St John's Wood and this
proposal will make matters worse.

+ Proposal offers nothing to the local neighbourhood when not in use for major match days.
Lords should create a sports facility which residents can get a discounted membership as
a way to acknowledge the local residents and thank them for their patience.

» The Harris Gardens should remain as the existing use as a ‘champagne and pimms bar’
on major matches only.

Transportation/Highways

« Increased traffic in a very crowded residential area with many schools and young and old
residents.

» Request that the bus stop on Grove End Road is not removed or moved as a result of the
proposal.

Page 42



Item No.

2

Other Matters

e Question Lords claim that it is big employer in the area as most of their staff are temporary
agency workers.

» Documents on line are unavailable and need to know how much higher the new stand is.

ADVERTISEMENT/SITE NOTICE: Yes
Six site notices have been erected on roads around the Ground.

Additional Information submitted regarding the scoreboard and the retractable seating, and
additional visuals to show views from Century Court.

HISTORIC ENGLAND
To be reported verbally.

ST JOHN'S WOOD SOCIETY
To be reported verbally.

ADJOINING OWNERS/OCCUPIERS AND OTHER REPRESENTATIONS
Residents in Century Court and the Century Court Residents Association consulted; Total No.
of Replies: 0. '

Any late responses received will be reported verbally to Members.
BACKGROUND INFORMATION
4.1 The Application Site

Lords Cricket Ground is approximately 6.9 hectares in area and is bounded by the north by
Wellington Place /Cavendish Close to the north, Wellington Road to the east, St John's Wood
Road to the south and Grove End Road to the west. The majority of the Ground is located
within the St Johr’s Wood Conservation Area, with the exception of the 1960’s Thomas Lord
Building which fronts onto St John’s Wood Road.

The Ground contains a number of historic buildings and structures namely ;the Grade 11* listed
pavilion designed by Thomas Verity in 1889-90, the Grade Il listed Grace Gates fronting St
John's Wood Road-(by Sir Herbert Baker 1923) and the Grade |l listed relief sculpture by
Gilbert Bayes on the corner of St John’s Wood Road and Wellington Road. The Ground also
contains modern iconic buildings such as the Mound Stand designed by Hopkins (1987), the
new Grandstand designed by Grimshaw(1998) and the Media Centre designed by Future
Systems (1990- a Stirling Prize winner).

The Tavern and the Allen Stands are two of the oldest stands in the Ground. The Allen Stand
was designed by Baker and Faber in 1935 and was originally known as the ‘Q' Stand. Part of
the roof of the stand was removed in 1999 fo accommodate a new electronic scoreboard.

The Tavern Stand and the Thomas Lord building were built together with Century Court in the
mid to late 1960s by Louis de Soissons Partnership and as a result the Grace Gates was
reconstructed 13 feet eastwards in 1966.

At the rear of the Thomas Lord building and at the end of the Harris Gardens, there is

currently a singte storey office building and shop serving the MCC. For the purpose of this
report, this building is known as the MCC Office Building.

Page 43



[tem No.

2

The Bowlers’ Annex was rebuilt by Frank Verity in 1906 and is listed by virtue of its
attachment to the main listed pavilion. The existing scorer's box is located in the gap between
the Mound and the Tavern Stand.

The designated heritage assets at the Ground affected by this proposal are the listed pavilion
and the Bowlers’ Annex attached to it, the Memorial Building and the Allen Stand. The St
John’s Wood Conservation Area is also a designated heritage asset.

" The application site lies outside the Central Activities Zone (CAZ) and the surrounding streets
are predominantly residential in character, varying from mansion blocks, modern blocks of
flats and houses. To the north of the Ground is Wellington Hospital and to the south east is
the Danibus Hotel. There is a synagogue opposite the site in Blazer Court, St John’s Wood
Road.

4.2 Relevant Planning History

There have been a large number of planning decisions at Lords Cricket Ground and the
following are relevant in the determination of this latest proposal.

Permission was granted in June 2014 for the redevelopment of the Warner Stand and works
are due to commence in September 2015 with a completion date spring 2017.

In respect of the floodlights within the Ground, planning permission was granted in 2009 for
the installation of four retractable floodfight masts {(maximum of 12 matches and four practice
matches per year) and the erection of a new substation. Although the applicant was seeking a
permanent permission, Sub-Committee agreed that this permission was limited for a five year
period in order to i} monitor their impact and ii) in the context of the forthcoming Masterplan.

20 May 2010 - Permission granted to vary Conditions 2 and 11 of the 2009 permission namely
to allow an additional 12 days of use of the floodlights (to permit use during the day in bad
light conditions) in addition to already consented 12 matches and four practice matches
allowed by the 2009 permission, and changes to when the floodlights are fully extended and
retracted to take account of the proposed additional use (Application under Section 73 of the
Town and Country Planning Act 1990).Sub-Committee agreed to allow 12 additional day use
rather than the 16 days originally requested by the applicant, and reduced the number of
evening matches to 10 and two evening practice matches from 1 April to 30 September in any
year.

21 March 2013 - Permission granted for variation of Condition 1 of permission dated 20 May
2010 (RN: 09/09775); namely, to retain the four retractable floodlights for another five year
temporary period from 2014 to 2019 and variation of Condition 2 to increase the number of
day cricket matches the floodlights can be used each season from 12 to 14 days. (Application
under Section 73 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990). These floodlights can only be
used to a certain number of days use per cricket season; namely maximum of 14 days, 10
Evenings and 2 Evening Practice matches per season and are limited until 22 January 2019.

THE PROPOSAL
This proposal is the next phase of the Lords Masterplan and comprises of six elements:

1) the redevelopment of the Tavern and Allen Stands to provide a new stand with an
increased capacity of the Ground by approximately 1082 additional seats;

ii) a new 4 storey Thomas Lord building fronting on St John's Wood Road with a basement
car park which extends underneath the Harris Gardens . This scheme also involves the
relocation of the Thomas Lord Fiﬂbﬁc hoas& at the rear of the new building;

age



Item No.

2

i) a new 2 storey Harris Gardens building to replace the existing single storey building;

iv) works to refurbish the Bowlers’ Annex including the creation of a retail shop in the
undercroft area and internal and external alterations to the Grade I1* pavilion,

V) new scorer's box located between the Mound Stand and the new stand,

vi) re-configuration of the entrance areas around the Grace Gates on St John's Wood Road
and new public realm.

The facades of the new buildings designed by Populous architects (the architects who
designed the new Warner Stand) and follow a common language to tie the buildings together.
The primary material pallete consists of white concrete and glass reinforced concrete as a
framing and cladding panel elements, aluminium framed glazing with bronze-finished
aluminium to the panelling and screening .A secondary pallete of brickwork, and render and
climbing plants are proposed to the side facades facing the adjoining residential properties.

The new stand

A single new stand is proposed to replace the Tavern and Allen Stands and its primary use is
to provide increased seating capacity, in addition to ancillary hospitality boxes and restaurants
which will be used on match days and for a variety of functions throughout the year. This will
be the first phase of the SW Project . The pitch side restaurant on the top level will
accommodate approximately 150 covers with associated kitchen facilities and this will be open
all year round. Another restaurant is proposed at level 02 to be used on match days. The new
stand will increase capacity and the number of seats with a good view of the cricket, and will
have a capacity of 5200 which represents an increase of 1080 seats. The design of the new
stand includes a new elevated bridge link to the listed pavilion to replace the existing link so
spectators and officials can move between both buildings. The new stand accommodates an
electronic scoreboard of approximately the same size and proportions as the existing cne in
the lower section of the new stand next to the pavilion with a row of retractable seats on the
flat roof above.

The existing floodlight mast at the rear of the Tavern Stand is proposed to be moved to a
position within the new stand. A basement is proposed under the new stand to provide waste
and storage facilities and this will be linked to the new basement car park under the new
Thomas Lord building.

Thomas Lord Building

It is proposed to redevelop the Thomas Lord building with a new four storey building with a
basement as the second phase of the SW Project. The applicant states that a key driver for
this is to improve security at the Ground with the upper levels providing offices for the MCC
and the Middlesex Cricket Club, and replacement hospitality and conference facilities for 300
people with independent catering facilities. The new building re-provides the Tavern Public
House which is shown to be located at rear ground floor level.

A new underground car parking and servicing area is proposed occupying a much larger
footprint extending beneath the Harris Gardens which will link up with the basement under the
new stand .The replacement Thomas Lord building is 5.7 m taller than the existing and set 0.5
m further east .The top floor is set 24 m away from the side fagade of Century Court.

MCC Harris Garden
It is proposed to demolish the existing single building and erect a 2 storey building to provide a
bar facility to eliminate the requirement for temporary buildings being sited on the Harris

Page 45



Item No.

2

Garden during the cricket season .Two additional dressing rooms are to be created to be
used for the Real Tennis and Squash courts and double header cricket matches.

Scorer’s Box

A new scorer's box is proposed, which is located between the end of the Mound Stand and
the existing Tavern Stand is required, as the existing facility is too smalf. This will also form
part of the Phase 1 works.

Listed Pavilion

Listed building consent is sought for works to refurbish the pavition to provide enlarged
dressing rcoms and bathrooms and improved facilities for team officials, physiotherapy and a
gymnasium. The existing MCC offices will move to the new Thomas Lord building.

Bowlers’ Annex

At the ground level of the Bowlers’ Annex a new shop is proposed to replace the existing shop
in the basement of the pavilion. It is also proposed to refurbish the annex to provide-a pitch
viewing dressing/room for the umpires to link through to the new match day control facility in
the new Warner Stand.

The Grace Gates

The proposal seeks to improve the setting of the Grace Gates by removing the majority of the
servicing to the new Thomas Lord building .New boundary treatment is proposed either side of

the Grace Gates and improving the public realm inside the Ground .

The applicant is seeking 5 year permission rather than the standard 3 year time limit.
DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS

6.1 Land Use

In 2013, the MCC developed its Masterplan for the Ground, and works are due to start on the

first phase with the redevelopment with the redevelopment of the Warner Stand. This proposal

for the second phase of the Masterplan.

6.1.2 Increase in the capacity of the Ground

Objections have been raised to the increase in the capacity of Ground and a number of
objectors question whether the relatively small increase in capacity justifies the harm to the
listed pavilion and to the amenities of residents.

The table below sets out the existing and proposed floor spaces:

Table 1: Floorspace Figures

Building Existing GEA M2 Proposed GEA M2 Difference
Tavern Stand 1173 New stand 4868 +2592
Allen Stand 543

Thomas L.ord 2938 4792 +1854
Building

Harris Building 204 486 +282
Bowlers Annex 57 +57

Total 4858 10202 +5344

Page 46



ltem No.

In respect of seating, the proposal will increase the capacity in these two stands from 4118 to
5200; an increase of 1,082 seats (26% increase). The overall capacity in the Ground will
increase by just over 3% to 30,530. It is not considered that this modest increase in capacity
represents an over-development of the Ground and is acceptable in land use terms.

The proposal is supported by the Mayor of London as it is consistent with the London Plan’s
vision to retain and extend London’s global role as an internationally competitive and
successful world city. The proposals to develop Lords and to ensure that it remains a
competitive choice for hosting major cricket matches is in accordance with London Plan
policies.

The main considerations of this proposal are i) the demolition of the existing buildings, the
impact of the new buildings and works on the historic pavilion and Grace Gates and this part
of the St John's Wood Conservation Area and i) on the amenities of neighbours .These
matters are dealt with in more detail in Sections 6.2 and 6.3 of this report.

6.1.3 Relocation of the existing public house

The existing public house (Class A4) in the Thomas Lord building fronts onto St John's Wood
Road and is approximately 244m2 in area (GIA) .The proposal is for a larger public house
380m2 in area located at the rear on the ground floor of the new Thomas Lord building with its
main entrance at the side of the new building and one of the key considerations is the impact
on residential amenity in the light of Policy TACE 9. Strong objections have been received
from the residents in Century Court on noise and disturbance grounds and cite a recent
disturbance which required the police to attend. The St John's Wood Society also raise that
the relocated Tavern with its balcony, external terrace and the use of the Harris Gardens will
inevitably cause noise and disturbance and request stringent controls to control operational
requirements and use of this space.

The existing public house has not been nominated as an Asset of Community Value (ACV),
and will be re-provided as part of the redevelopment. There will be a temporary loss of this
facility during the construction works, and given it will be reinstated in the new building and a
small increase in its size; there are no objections in land use terms.

The proposed new public house is approximately 55% larger in floor area compared to the
existing public house with an outdoor terrace at the rear. The design of the building
incorporates a wall to the side to act as a screen this outdoor seating for views within Century
Court. The MCC state that the control and management of customers will be easier when
located inside Lords rather than facing the street. Residents’ concerns about the
intensification of the public house in terms of noise and disturbance are well understood.
Whilst residents in St John's Wood Road may benefit from the relocation of the public house
from street level, moving to public house to the rear and inside the Ground does have
implications for other residents.

It is recommended that a condition be imposed to secure a detailed Operational Management
Plan of this public house and the use of the Harris Gardens for both match and non-match
days in order to safeguard the amenities of neighbouring residents . This will include the hours
of operation and to allow a review after 6 months of operation.

It is recommended that there is no use of the Harris Gardens after 21.00 at night.

6.1.4 Class A3 Restaurants

New restaurant is being proposed on level 04 of the new stand facing onto the pitch and will
cater for 150 covers and be open all yﬁérﬁéngw



ltem No.

2

In dealing with the new Warner Stand, conditions were imposed to limit the hours of the new
restaurant (08.00 -23.00 hours), to limit the number of days it could be used each year (100
days per calendar year) and no post function cleaning/waste disposal until after 10 a.m, the
next morning when no functions or cricket matches are taking place given its proximity to
residents in Elm Tree Road.

Given the location of this proposed restaurant on the top floor of the new stand which faces
onto the pitch, it is some distance away from nearby residents in St John’s Wood Road, and
its fairly modest size; it is not considered that its proposed use throughout the year will harm
the amenities of nearby residents. It is recommended to control its hours of use from 08.00 to
23 .00 hours.

A second restaurant and conferencing facilities are proposed at Level 02 to be used in
association with match days at the Ground.

In the new Thomas Lord building, the dining room on Level 01 will be continued to be used as
a dining room on match days and conferences, dinners and other events throughout the year
as per the existing building, and this is not considered to have an adverse impact on the
amenities of residents.

6.2 Townscape/Design

The proposals raise a number of issues in respect of the i) the demolition of an unlisted
building of merit , ii) the impact on the fabric and setting of listed buildings and unlisted
buildings of merit in the Ground and iii the impact on the character and appearance of the
conservation area and

6.21 Demolition of the existing Tavern and Allen Stands

The Allen and Tavern stands are unlisted buildings within the St John's Wood Conservation
Area. The Allen Stand is the second oldest stand in the Ground, and is designated in the
adopted Conservation Area Audit as an unlisted building of merit. The Tavern Stand which
dates from the 1960s is identified by the Audit as a 'neutral’ building.

It is accepted that the Allen Stand retains some architectural features associated with its
architect, but it is considered that its significance architecturally has been affected by the
scoreboard which resulted in the removal of much of its roof. It is recognised that the stand
does have historical significance and communal significance, but it is 80 years old and fails to
provide the modern standards and disabled access required for a major sporting venue.

The provision of the new stand is required to help secure the future of Lords as a host for
international test matches and this benefit has to be weighed against its loss. Historic England
advise that the Allen Stand and the bridge link to the pavilion retains some architectural and
historic interest, but does not meet the very high tests for statutory listing and therefore do not
wish to resist the loss of this building.

Therefore, the principle of the loss of this unlisted building of merit is considered acceptable,
subject to a high quality replacement building. Its proposed demolition is not considered to
cause harm to the setting to the listed pavilion or other unlisted buildings of merit and will
preserve the character and appearance of this part of the St John’s Wood Conservation Area.

The Tavern Stand dates from the 1960s and whilst designed by a prominent architectural
practice and engineer it has limited historic interest and is a ‘neutral ‘building. Historic England
advice that the stand is not considepag@rngreat architectural or historic merit and raises



Item No.

2

no objection to its loss. This stand is 50 years old with poor disabled access and again there
are no objections to the principle of its demolition.

Therefore the loss of these two existing stands is considered acceptable in the light of the
Council’s adopted design policies $25 and 828 in the City Plan and DES9 in the UDP and the
advice set out in the NPPF.

6.2.2 Height and Design of the New Stand, Scoreboard and retractable seating and the
impact on the setting of the listed pavilion and other designated heritage assets.

The new stand is of a substantial curved structure (taller than the existing two stands) with a
translucent white canopy above the majority of the new stand. The lowest section of the new
stand adjacent the pavilion is not covered by the canopy roof and accommodates a
replacement scoreboard with retractable seating above .The new stand lies adjacent to the
pavilion which is listed as Grade II* for its historical association with the game of cricket . The
building is brick with ornate pink terracotta facings and consists of a long , two storey centre
section with raked, covered seating above between two end pavilions with pyramidal roofs
with ornate wrought and cast iron lanterns. The Long Room occupying most of the ground
floor is of particular interest.

The footprint of the new stand respects the existing 6.7m gap between the existing pavilion
and the Allen Stand. The lower section of the new stand/ top of the new scoreboard will be
approximately 300mm lower than the terracotta parapet of the pavilion. The roof of the new
stand which is located 18 m away from the pavilion is 0.8 m lower than the pyramidal roof
fturret of the pavilion.

Objections have been raised that the new stand is too tall , it is overbearing and fails to
respect the setting of the listed pavilion .Residents in particular highlight the location and
height of the retractable seating so close to the pavifion which will be most visible when the
eyes of the world are looking at the Ground .

In dealing with this application regard has been had to Sections 66 and 72 of the Planning
(Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas } Act 1990, and the policies set out in $25 and S28
in the City Plan, and DES1, DES4, DES8 and DES10 and the relevant sections in the NPPF in
particular paragraphs 128,129,131,132,134 and 135.

This proposal affects two heritage assets in the Ground, the listed pavilion and the listed
Grace Gates. In respect of the listed pavilion, the main areas of concern are the retractable
seating and scoreboard in the lower section of the new stand and its relationship with the
pavilion and this is best appreciated in View 18 in the townscape analysis. This view tests the
most important setting of the pavilion, its primary fagade and focal point within the Ground
itself.

Historic England consider that the size of the scoreboard along with the retractable raked
seating above would be a distracting feature within the setting of the pavilion , diminishing its
dignified and imposing presence in the Ground .The applicant has submitted further
information to justify its location and size of the scoreboard .Historic England have raised the
necessity of illuminated advertising on the scoreboard and whether this can be limited or
controlled in order that it does not visually compete with the Grade II* listed building.

Officers consider that the existing scoreboard at the Tavern Stand because of its height and
location currently detracts from the setting of the pavilion and reads as an add on feature to
the Allen Stand Whilst officers recognise that the new scoreboard is an integrated within the
design of the new stand, rather than an add on feature but it is now closer to the pavilion.

Page 49



e e e,

ltem No.

2

It is accepted that scoreboards need to be provided and the design preserves the existing
townscape gap with the pavilion, therefore balance has to be made to between the setting of
the listed pavilion and the needs of spectators in the Ground. In respect of possible locations
for the new scoreboard, the architects investigated a number of alternatives .Option 1 on the
other side of the new stand does not provide a suitable field of vision and has been
discounted. Option 2 on the curved section of the new stand affects seating capacity of the
new stand and this wotkd result in the stand or the scoreboard being much higher and this
woulld be unacceptable from a townscape point of view. Option 3 indicates the scoreboard
being higher next to the pavilion, again undesirable in design terms.

Whilst it is accepted that the proposed location of the scoreboard next to the pavilion will
cause an element of harm to the setting of the listed pavilion, but it is considered the most
appropriate location compared to the other alternatives, and this less than substantial harm is
outweighed by the public benefits created by the new stand.

The proposed 8 rows of retractable seating (150 seats) above the scoreboard will extend
beyond the terracotta parapet of the pavilion, and again this is an aspect of the proposal which
is highly contentious. The removal of these seats has been discussed with the applicant both
at the pre-application and during the application, as officers that the removal of these seats
would be the preferred solution. The applicant states that the original intention of the
redevelopment of these stand was to create 2000 additional seats, but this number has been
significantly reduced as a result of changes to lower the massing of the new stand, and that
further reductions in capacity are being resisted and affect the viability of the scheme. The
applicant considers that the retractable seating to be an appropriate solution which will only be
used on major match days, and the rest of the year will not be visible.

Officers consider that the retractable seating will also cause less than substantial harm to the
setting of the pavilion on those days when in use, and the rest of the year will not be visible
Whilst this is not an ideal situation, again Members views are being sought as to whether the
public benefits outweigh the less than substantial harm.

in terms of the rest of the new stand, its footprint and scale are considered acceptable and
respects the existing gap with the Mound Stand and the Bicentenary Gates and ensures that
the Ground retains its character as a collection of stands rather than a unified stadium. The
canopy roof form is slim structure, which although different from the other roofs at the Mound
Stand and the new Warner Stand, is an appropriate design treatment. The detailed design
and use of materials employs materials used elsewhere in the ground and when viewed from
the pitch is predominantly a white colour. The main change is external rear facades, which
infroduces the use bronze aluminium panels above the colonnade arch. This material is
repeated in the new Thomas Lord building and the MCC office building. It is considered that
this material offers richness to the facade, but does not compete with the terracotta and brick
work of the listed pavilion.

Historic England considers that the design is not overbearing and is distant enough from the
pavilion not to intrude significantly on its setting. They advise that roof structure has a family
resemblance with the existing and consented structures across the complex but is sufficiently
distinct to sustain the concept embedded in the Master plan, and this roof form will provide a
light weight perimeter edge which follows the spirit of other lightweight roof structures within
the Ground.

In respect of the impact on the setting of the Grace Gates, it is considered that the new stand
and the alterations the entrance and the Thomas Lord will enhance the setting of the gates.

Page 50



Item No.

2

6.2.3 Impact on the character and appearance of the St John’s Wood and Regent’s
Park Conservation Areas

Regard has been made to Section 72 of the Act which requires special attention shall be paid
to the desirability of preserving or enhancing the character and appearance of conservation
areas.

The applicant’s townscape analysis demonstrates that the proposal will not be visible from
within Regents Park (Views 1 and 2), nor from Prince Albert Road in the background of the
setting of the St John's Church (View 3) .The impact from views from Grove End Road are
considered to be very limited and wili not resuit in any material harm.

The major change to the St John's Wood Conservation Area will be views along St John's
Wood Road and around the Grace Gates in relation to the new stand and the new Thomas
Lord building. It is considered that the proposal new buildings are high quality replacements
which together with the improvements to the main entrance will enhance the setting of the
Grace Gates will improve the overall appearance of this part of the Ground and will allow new
views of the Harris Memorial garden.

Although objections have been received on the grounds of harm to the conservation area the
proposal is considered to comply with the advice in the NPPF (paras 134 and 135) and
Policies DES1, DES4, DESS in the UDP and S25 and S28 in the City Plan.

6.2.4 Internal and External Alterations to the Listed Pavilion and Bowlers’ Annex.

The proposed internal alterations to refurbish the Grade II* listed building on the upper floors
will provide improved facilities, and will be sympathetic to the fabric and plan form of this
heritage asset.

The proposal includes the removal of the existing bridge link and its roof between the pavilion
and the Allen Stand. The modern glazed replacement is proposed and an existing window
opening will be altered to form a doorway and the drainage pipe work will be relocated. The
new bridge is a very modern addition is considered to be an appropriate form of intervention
and will provide greater visual separation between the pavilion and the new stand. There will
be a slight impact on the fabric of the building, but this is outweighed by the proposed
restoration works to the historic terracotta fagade.

The internal works to restore the original dressing room plan are welcomed and there are no
objections to replacing modern fittings to the players’ bathrooms, refurbishing management
rooms, inserting Ladies WC and blocking up and creating replacement openings to the
Bowler's Annex.

The works to the Bowlers’ Annex will involve the infilling of the rear undercroft to create a new
shop. The physical alterations to install new curtain wall giazing between the existing brick
columns is considered to be an appropriate treatment. The undercroft is currently used for
ground keeper’s storage and this will be re-provided in the space between the new Warner
Stand and the Bowlers’ Annex. The proposal also creates a new umpires office on Level 02 of
the Annex and the new openings in the party wall to the pavilion will not cause any harm to
the fabric of the building.

Historic England has raised no objections to the listed building consent application for the
works to the listed pavilion and Bowlers’ Annex and has issued their authorisation.

Page 51



Hem No.

6.2.5 Demolition of the Thomas Lord Building.

There are no design objections to the demolition of this 1960's building which is located just
outside the St John’s Wood Conservation Area and is of no architectural significance.

6.2.6 Height/Design of the Thomas Lord building

In townscape terms, the overall siting, footprint, massing of the replacement building is
considered appropriate, by reducing the footprint of the building to the west improves the
overall setting of the Grace Gates and opens up the entrance to the Ground.

The pallete of materials follows the materials to be used on the new Stand, and is considered
a high quality building which will enhance the appearance and character of the adjoining St
John's Wood Conservation Area and the Grace Gates.

6.2.7 Demolition of the MCC office /Harris Gardens Building and the
Replacement Building

This single storey building is a modern structure dating from 1996, and there are no objections
to the principle of its demaolition in terms of its impact on the setting of the listed pavilion and
the adjacent Memorial Building.

The new 2 storey building which follows the architectural language of the new stand and
Thomas Lord building is considered appropriate in terms of its height and detailed design .It
will continue to read as a subservient structure in relation to the side elevation of the Memorial
building and will respect the setting of the listed pavilion. The removal of the temporary
structures in the Harris Gardens is a benefit, and will allow this garden space to be
appreciated.

6.2.8 New scorer's box

A new scorer’s box is required as the existing facility is too small, cannot accommodate a
wheelchair and has poor climatic conditions. The new box will be able to accommodate 11
people with disabled access. A manual scoreboard is required to ensure that play can
continue if the electronic LED scoreboards fails .The new box infills the current gap between
the Mound Stand and the new stand, and its detailed design is considered acceptable. The
proposal will preserve the conservation area.

6.2.9 Alterations to the Front Boundary Treatment /Setting of the Listed Grace Gates

One of the main aims of this proposal is to improve the main entrance into the Ground and the
setting of the listed Grace Gates. The demolition of the existing stands, the Thomas Lord
building and the relocation of the floodlight mast together with the proposals to improve the
main entrance will enhance the setting of the Grace Gates and this is welcomed and a benefit.

The proposal to create a new reception in the Thomas Lord building, the works to the
boundary and removing the majority of servicing to basement level will create a more
welcoming pedestrian entrance into Grand.

The creation of a new shop in the new stand will eliminate the requirement for the temporary
buildings which currently clutter the forecourt area and this in turn will allow better crowd
circulation on match days. A new security line will be created set back from the main Grace
Gates which will allow visitors to en]grdbee@:g)znd.



Item No.

2

A new gateman’s lodge is proposed behind the Grace Gates but this will be a discreet glazed
box to sit behind the Grace Gates piers, and its detailed design can be reserved by condition.

The street facing fagade on the new stand extends out to the current boundary wall, and this
is treated to respond to the existing arches in the adjacent Mound Stand.

Historic England welcomes the proposals to deliver a much improved public realm and
enhanced setting of the Grace Gates. The new boundary treatment is now of sufficient solidity
to ensure that the listed piers of the Grace Gates to not appear as isolated relics and read as
an integral part of the new landscaping scheme. The detailed designs and materials will be
reserved by condition,

6.2.10 Public Art

The new boundary fturnstiles either side of the listed Grace Gates will be form the public art of
the development. It is proposed that the new entrance gates be designed to celebrate the
achievements of cricketers with decorative metal work. The exact design has yet to be
agreed, but this is considered to represent an appropriate approach to public art, and will be
reserved by condition.

6.3 Residential Amenity (Daylight, Sunlight and Enclosure}

The existing Thomas Lord building is approximately 9.3 m high and is set back 14.5 m away
from the side boundary with Century Court .The new building is effectively 2 storeys higher at
16.6 m high, although the top floor has been set back 24 m away it does have implications on
the daylight and outlook for a number of flats within this block.

The new stand will be higher than the existing stands and this also has implications for
daylight and outlook to the flats on the opposite side of St John's Wood Road. The new two
storey MCC office building affects light and enclosure to a house at No 4 Grove End Road. In
assessing the impact regard has been had to the advice set out in the BRE guidelines and
policies S29 in the City Plan and ENV13 in the UDP.

6.3.1 Century Court

The residents and the Century Court Resident’s Association object on the grounds of loss of
daylight to their fiats as a result of the proposed extended Thomas Lord building which is
immediately outside their windows. They disagree with the applicant’s daylight assessment
that the proposal will accord with BRE guidance as a number of windows will fail and request
that the City Council demand that the building is reduced in height. They cite in particular the
loss of light to the ground floor kitchen window to the porters flat, and to the living rooms in the
fiats above, The St John’s Wood Society request that the Council carefully consider the loss of
light and enclosure to the lower floor flats.

Century Court is a 13 storey block of flats located to the west of the Thomas Lord building,
and there are a number of windows in the east side facade which will be affected by the
replacement Thomas Lord building and to a lesser extent by the new stand .There are two
flats per floor and the windows which face onto the Ground serve living rooms and bedrooms
although there are a number of the rooms have been converted into dining rooms and study's.
At either end there are large projecting balconies and a number of these are enclosed in glass
to form winter gardens.

Page 53



item No.

2

The windows most affected are located a ground (a kitchen which serves the porters flat) and
windows, and those on the first to fourth floors. The flats above fifth floor have not been tested
as the proposal will have no appreciable impact on their daylight.

A number of flats in this block have been visited internally prior to the application being
submitted. As the affected window face east they have been tested in terms of their daylight A
number of the existing windows are affected by the existing projecting balconies above, and it
is recognised that these structures can iimit the amount of daylight entering info rooms as the
top of the balcony cuts out light from the top part of the window. .Therefore in accordance with
the advice in the BRE guidelines the applicant has carried out an analysis based on the
existing and proposed situations with and without out the balcony in place. The results from
the applicant’'s Daylight /Sunlight report are summarised in the table below.

Table 2: Loss of Daylight to Century Court.

Room/Window Existing Proposed |Loss of VSC | % Loss
VSC VSC

Ground Floor R2/400 20.22 16.01 -4.21 -20.82

Window W2/400

Kitchen to porters flat

First Floor R1/401 9.52 4 67 -4.85 -50.95

W2/401 Living Room (32.92) (28.03) {-4.89) (-14.85})

First Floor Room 8 11.15 7.02 -4.13 -37.04

W9/401 Living Room {35.98) (31.09) (-4.89) {-13.59)

Second Floor Room 12.78 7.89 -4.89 -38.26

17402 {35.98) (31.09) (-4.89) (-13.59)

Window W2/402 Living

Room

Second Floor Room 13.94 9.94 -4.00 -28.69

8/402 {36.24) (31.94) {-4.30) {-11.87)

WindowW9/402 Living

Room

Second Floor R1/403 14.47 11.39 -3.08 -21.29

Window W2/403 (36.95) (33.87) (-3.08) (-8.21)

assumed living room

These figures above are the loss of daylight that will occur to the rooms recessed behind the
balconies/winter gardens (Scenario 1 in black assumes that the winter gardens do not exist)
and Scenario 2 (in bold ) with the winter gardens and balconies removed. In respect of the
existing winter gardens, these have been tested by the applicant in Scenario 3, and the losses
of daylight are under 20% recommended in the BRE Guidelines and therefore the losses are
considered to fall within acceptable limits.

In terms of the loss of daylight, the loss of light to kitchen window serving the porters flat is just
breaching the BRE guidelines at a 21% reduction, but it is not considered that this impact wil
be so material to warrant refusal of permission.

In terms of the upper floors, the losses to the first and second floors do breach the BRE
guidelines in terms of the living rooms and whilst the losses are well in excess of the BRE
guidelines, these rooms are served by other mitigating windows either to the south or north.
The calculations undertaken with the balconies removed demonstrate that the losses would
be within the BRE guidelines .Therefore it is considered on these habitable rooms will
continue to receive adequate levels of daylight distribution and the objections on loss of
daylight grounds cannot be supportR¥age g54



ltem No.
2

The other windows in the side elevation will also losg daylight and these rooms do not have
mitigating windows .The worse affected windows are those of first floor level which wili
experiences losses between 15-17% of their daylight, but these losses are within the BRE
guidance and these rooms will remain adequately well lit . Again, it is considered that the
losses of light to these windows is acceptable.

6.3.2 Grove End Road houses

The applicant has tested the windows in the rear of Nos. 2, 2 a, 4, 6 and 10 Grove End Road
which back onto the application site .The majority of losses to these houses are within the
20% reduction of VSC, and therefore the losses are within acceptable limits .The worse
affected house is No 4 .Three windows in the rear elevation at ground floor level which will
experience losses in excess of the BRE guidelines which are set out in the table below:

Table 3: Loss of Daylight to No 4 Grove End Road

/Room /Window | Existing VSC Proposed VSC | Loss of VSC % Loss
Room1/310 19.54 12.55 -6.99 -35.77
W3/310

Room 3/310 16.37 9.95 -6.42 -39.22°
W1/310

Room 3/10 17.13 10.46 -6.67 -38.94
W2/310

It is not know which rooms are served by these three affected windows, and a further letter
has been sent to the owner of this house to arrange a site visit, but no response has been
received to date.

This house will be affected by the proposed 2 storey MCC Office building located adjacent the
garden wall .The ground floor window W3/310 will lose approximately 36% of its VSC but this
room has a mitigation window W4/310 which will altow this room to remain reasonably well

lit. The second ground floor room is served by windows W1/130 and W2/310 and will
experience losses in excess of 20% Whilst this loss is regrettable, the No Sky Line (NSL)
assessment demonstrates that the losses are largely concentrated to the rear of the room.
Whilst it is accepted that losses of light to this room although perceptible, it is considered not
to so material to warrant refusal of permission.

6.3.3 St John’s Wood Court

This eight storey mansion block located on the opposite side of St John's Wood Road will be
affected in terms of loss of light, 97% of the tested windows will meet the BRE guidance and
11 windows will experience losses beyond the guidance.

Five of the 11 windows (W8/500, W27/501, W31/501, W9/503 and W13/503) will experience
percentage losses between 20.1% to 27% of their former value and these losses are not
considered to be so significant to warrant refusal. The remaining 6 windows have existing low
levels of VSC between 8% and 1%, and four of these windows are located below existing
architectural overhangs/balconies, therefore small percentages losses will be expressed as a
high percentage figure. Again the losses are not so significant and it is understood that all the
affected windows serve rooms with at least one mitigating window.

6.3.4 Blazer Court/Liberal Jewish Synagogue

The synagogue occupies the ground and first floor of Blazer Court and given in non-residential
use have not been tested in terms of | f daylight .The upper residential windows have
PaYSHEY Ppe!



ltem No.

2

tested and 83 of the 85 tested windows will comply. Two windows (W3/602 and W6/202) will
experience percentage losses between 21.88% and 34.6% .However, these windows have
poor existing levels of light at 12.48 VSC and 5.95 VSC respectively therefore small losses of
light will be expressed as a higher percentage figure .However the affected room does have
five mitigating windows all of which will meet the BRE guidelines and therefore the losses are
daylight are considered acceptabie.

6.3.5 Pavilion Apartments

This 11 storey residential block which has existing projecting balconies and again
assessments have been made with the balconies in place and without. in terms of the 100
windows tested 88 will meet the BRE guidelines. The porter’s studio flat on the ground floor
will experience 25% loss in daylight, but the room has two mitigating windows and therefore
will retain an adequate level of daylight distribution over 99% of the room area. Six windows
between the ground and second floors will experience losses between 21% and 27% of
daylight .Five of these windows serve bedrooms which have a lower expectation of light
compared to living rooms and therefore these losses are considered acceptabie .The
remaining window has low level reducing from 8%VSC to 6%VSC and a mitigating window.
Again the losses of daylight are not considered to material to the occupants.

The proposal will not affect sunlight to the houses to the north in EIm Tree Road.
6.3.6 Sense of Enclosure

The Century Court Residents Association object to the height of the new Thomas Lord
building on increased sense of enclosure grounds. The applicant has submitted a number of
visuals taken from a number of flats in Century Court to show the new Thomas Lord bulilding
and the new stand from inside these flats.

The flats on the ground, first, second, third and fourth floors will experience an increase in
sense of enclosure as a result of the proposed new huilding, and again the worse affected
flats are those located at first and second floor levels It is recognised that the outlook from
these flats is already affected by the presence of the existing building , and this new building
will resutt in a number of flats experiencing a greater degree of enclosure .The proposal
increases the increase in height by 3 m from 9.3 m to 12.3 m adjacent the boundary which
equates to an additional floor albeit the new top floor has been set further away from this
sensitive boundary ..

After visiting a number of flats, it is accepted that there will be an increase in enclosure. The
proposed top floor this has been well set back by 24 m, which has mitigated the increase in
height (16.6 m) and whilst it is accepted that this additional floor will be clearly be visible for
residents in Century Court, the loss of amenity is considered to be a balance acceptable.

The new building and the stand will also affect the outlook of the flats to the south, but again
due to the distances involved, this is not considered to be harmful.

The two storey MCC office will result in an increased sense of enclosure to the rear No 4 and
its garden and to a lesser extent No 2 Grove End Road .It is accepted that the outlook from
the rear of this house and its rear garden will be affected the proposed two storey building, but
in the light of the public benefits, this loss of amenity is considered acceptable.

Overall, the proposal is considered to comply with policies $29 in the City Plan and ENV13 in
the UDP.

Page 56



[T IR PR

ltem No.

6.3.7 Overlooking /Loss of Privacy

Objections have been received from residents on loss of privacy from the new buildings and
also the use of the Harris Gardens by the public house and on match days.

The top floor of the new Thomas Lord Building is a glazed structure and in order to safeguard
the residents of Century Court, the glass is shown to be obscured, and be fixed shut on the
west facing side elevation. It is also recommended that the flat roof at this level is not used of
the flat roof as a terrace.

A terrace is proposed to the rear of the Thomas Lords building but is screened by the
proposed flank wall so not to afford views into Century Court. An Operational Management
Plan will also cover the use of the Harris Gardens a match and no match days.

The top floor of the new stand which has a glazed screen will be obscured to protect the flats
in the flats opposite and can be secured by condition.

6.4  Transport /Parking

The proposal will resuit increase in additional trips as a result of the increase in the capacity of
the new stand, its restaurant and the facilities in the new Thomas Lord building. The changes
in trips will result in an increase in walking, bus, rail and underground trips.

6.41 CarParking

There are currently 32 car parking spaces in the basement of the Thomas Lord Building for
players and staff, and there is no spectator parking provided at Lords .The larger basement
will provide 28 spaces and 2 wheelchair accessible spaces. This small reduction in parking is
considered acceptable in terms of the Council’s car parking policies.

The spaces should be provided with electric charging provision (active and passive) to meet

the London plan policy 6.13 and this can be secured by condition.
6.4.2 Coach Management Plan

The GLA have requested that a coach management plan should be provided and additional
coach parking should be implemented on St Johr's Wood Road if demand shows this is
necessary. There is no designated coach parking at Lords, and on major match days, there is
low potential demand, and it is considered that the proposed small increase in capacity is not
considered to justify the provision of such a plan.

6.4.3 Servicing

The existing car park entrance from St John's Wood Road will be marginally widened to
accommodate a 3.5 tonne vehicle so that large transit van vehicles can enter the new
basement car park to a pair of loading bays. The proposed larger basement beneath the new
Thomas Lord building will accommodate the majority of servicing trips , and when constructed
will remove a large number of vehicle movements through the existing Grace Gates, and this
is considered to be a benefit for neighbouring residents and to users of the Ground .

It is expected that larger vehicles will continue to enter the ground at the Nursery End from the
North and East Gates, until such time the East Gate service centre is constructed which will
form part of a later phase of the Masterplan.

Page 57

P



[tem No.

2

The new stand has its own basement and when the Thomas Lord building is built, both these
basements will be linked.

A Servicing and Delivery Plan as requested by Transport for London can be secured by
Condition if Members are minded to approve.

6.4.4 Pedestrian Movement within the Ground

The proposal includes the introduction pedestrian turnstiles either side of the listed Grace
Gates which improve flows into the ground on major match days. These will remain gated
during the rest of the year and the main Grace Gates will be used. The new public realm will
be created around the Grace Gates and be accessible space on- match and non-match days
with a new security line set back to the flanks of the new stand. This will represent a
significant improvement.

6.4.5 Cycle parking

The GLA state that conflicting information has been submitted regarding the existing and
proposed level of cycle parking for staff and visitors .The applicant has submitted additional
information on cycle parking within the Ground and Transport for London’s comments are
awaited and will be reported verbally to Committee .

6.4.6 Public Transport

The GLA/TTL confirm that the impact of the additional trips expected is not considered to be
significant to warrant any specific mitigation towards public transport facilities or services in
the vicinity of the site. The proposal does not involve any changes to the position of the bus
stops on Grove End Road which was raised by one of the consultee’s responses.

6.4.7 Traffic Generation

Whilst it is recognised that during construction there will be an increased number of traffic, but
the impact can be mitigated with a Construction Traffic Management Plan which can be
secured by condition . The impact of construction is dealt with in more detail in Section 6.12 of
this report.

The formal views of the Highways Planning Manager are awaited and will be reported verbally
to Members.

6.5 Economic Considerations

The MCC have commissioned a report from Sheffield University to ascertain the economic
impact of hosting cricket matches at Lords based on the 2013 Ashes Test matches and other
international matches held that summer .The report concluded that Lords Cricket Ground
contributes nearly £9million to Westminster's economy.

The proposed redevelopment will result in an increase in capacity and better views of the
pitch, increase accessibility and the number of wheelchair seats and result in improved
facilities which will help to support Lords future as the home of cricket.

6.6 Equalities and Diversities
One of the key aims of the proposal is to improve accessibility and the applicant has engaged

with the MCC Disabled Members Group. The new stand will have two lifts to all floors which
are large enough to accom modatelygdvéagghair users, together with a variety of accessible



Iltem No.

2

seating with associated companion seating is proposed both at pitch side and each level
above within acceptable distances of accessible WC facilities and this is most welcomed and
improve significantly inclusive access.

6.7 Other Westminster Policy Considerations
'6.7.1 Archaeology

This site is located outside an Area of Special Archaeological Priority and the applicant’s desk
top assessment concludes that potential for any archaeological remains is low.

6.7.2 Air Quality

The entire City of Westminster is within an Air Quality Management Area. Buring construction,
air quality will be monitored by the main contractor as part of the Considerate Contractors
Scheme. Methods of mitigation will focus on reducing the quantity of airborne particles and
ensuring that plant is not idling when not in use.

It is not considered that the plant associated with the new buildings will lead to an increase in
air pollution in accordance with policies $31 and ENVS.

6.7.3 Ground Contamination

Given the site’s history, it is a low probability of any localised contamination. Environmental
Health advise that the information submitted is sufficient to fulfil Phases 1 and 2 of the
Council’s land contamination condition, but Phases 3 and 4 need to be approved and this can
be reserved by condition.

6.7.4 Light Pollution /Relocation of Temporary Floodlight

The existing floodlight mast behind the existing Tavern Stand has a temporary permission
until 2019, and it is proposed to be removed and re-erected in a new position approximately
10.7 m east of its current position and be incorporated within the design of the new stand. The
floodlight which is currently 22.m to the north of the boundary will now be 18 m away, and this
may have implications on light pollution for residents opposite and on the views within the
conservation area.

In order to improve the visual appearance of the floodlight , the existing structure will be
modified to remove the section of mast from ground ievel to Level 01, with the mast fixed to
Level 02 slab .The upper retractable part of the mast will remain , and the lamps on the head
frame will need to be re-calibrated to ensure existing illumination measures are maintained
Although no specific objections have been raised to the floodlight element of the application ,
the erection of floodlights in the Ground has been a contentious issue for local residents in the
past.

Policy $29 states that the Council will resist proposals that result in an unacceptable loss of
residential amenity. Policy ENV10 seeks to reduce light pollution and requires that when
planning permission is granted for developments which include the installation of lighting
apparatus, conditions be attached to ensure: a) no glare or conflict with street or traffic
lighting’s) minimal upwards light spill; and c) that energy efficient lighting is used. Regard has
also been had to the guidance note produced by the Institute of Lighting Engineers (ILE) on
Reduction of Obtrusive Light (2005). The ILE designates four environmental zones:

E.1 Intrinsically dark landscapes: National Parks, Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty.

Page 59



P

ltem No.

2

E.2 Low district brightness areas: Rural, small village or fe[atively dark urban locations.
E.3 Medium district brightness areas: Small town centres or urban locations.

E.4 High district brightness area: Town /city centres with high levels of night time.

The guidance sets out maximum lux [evels before 23.00 hours and after 23.00 hours.

The City Council does not identify Environmental Zones for the City and in dealing with
previous applications for the floodlights, conditions were imposed to restrict light spill from the
floodlights to a maximum of 20 lux. Since their installation, regular monitoring has confirmed
that the floodlights are operating below the originally predicted lux levels and in fact have
reduced over time.

The applicant’s submitted vertical ill luminance report concludes that moving the floodlight
within the new stand will not have an adverse impact on the lux levels to adjacent flats on the
other side of 8t John's Wood Road. Environmental Health raises no objections subject to the
same conditions imposed on the previous approvals.

In design terms, removing the lower section of the mast will help to screen its visual
appearance, and overall is an improvement in townscape terms. Given the limited number of
times each year the floodlight is used, it is not considered to result in harm to the conservation
area.

It is noted that if permission is granted implementation of this permission may not start until
Autumn 2019, and the current temporary permission for the floodlights will expire on 22
January 2019 .1t is therefore recommended that the same time limit condition be imposed, and
if the applicant wishes to retain these structures for a fonger period, this will have to be the
subject of a separate planning application.

6.7.5 Noise

The majority of objections relating to noise relate to the relocation of the existing public house
to the rear and the resultant noise and disturbance caused to residents in Century Court and
this is dealt with in Section 6.1 of this report, and can be addressed via an Operational
Management Plan.

In respect of plant, it is recommended to impose the standard noise conditions to safeguard
the amenities of surrounding residents and the submission of a supplementary noise report in
respect of the plant associated with each phase to ensure compliance in order to address the
comments made by Environmental Health.

It is proposed to reserve details of the new PA system in the new stand (as per the Warner
Stand) in order to protect the amenities of residents.

6.7.6 Refuse /waste storage

The creation of dedicated waste and storage facilities in the basement and this is in
accordance with policy ENV10.

6.7.7 Plant/kitchen extract serving restaurants/public house
The applicant has submitted a report on the odour risk assessment for the kitchen facilities

proposed in the new Thomas Lord building and the new stand which recommends that a high
level of odour control is included in Fha@@i@'olt is recommended that the design of these



Item No.

2

ducts be reserved by condition in order to safeguard the amenities of nearby residents and to
ensure their design is acceptable if Members are minded to approve.

6.7.8 Security /Crime Prevention

The applicant advises that the proposal incorporates Secured by Design principles and the
design has been discussed with representatives of the Metropolitan Police given it is a
crowded place.

The Designing Out Crime officer has submitted minutes of his meeting with the architects. The
new stand and Thomas Lord building are at high risk due to their location on the perimeter of
the Ground and the Police have suggested defensive barriers in the kerb line, use of
laminated safety glass , vehicle proof turnstiles and gates(to be crash tested and security
rated) and CCTV /security access .

Retractable bollards are being proposed behind the Grace Gates and their detailed design
can be reserved by condition .This proposal does not include any kerb line barriers, and any
such proposal would require a fresh planning application.

6.7.9 Sustainable Urban Drainage (SuD)

The applicant’s report concludes that the following SuD’s management train is proposed: |}
rainwater harvesting and the re-use of grey water and pitch irrigation: iy green roofs to reduce
runoff and provide treatment of pollutants iii). attenuation by pipes and subsurface storage and
iv) discharge to the combined sewer. There is also the potential that pervious paving could be
provided subject to further development on the landscaping .Overall, it is considered that this
strategy will provide a significant reduction in surface water runoff and therefore a reduction in
localised flooding. Thames Water has requested that a condition be imposed to reserve the
submission of a Drainage Strategy and to reserve details of piling in relation to water
infrastructure.

In respect of their comments in respect of water discharge for surface water and its impact on
the local sewerage network that this will be the subject of a separate condition to ensure that
the foul water and storm drainage design be submitted to the City Council and further
consultation will take place with Thames Water.

6.8 The London Plan

This application is referabie to the Mayor of London as the relocated floodlight is over 30 m in
height. The Mayor's stage 1 response (which is set out in the background papers and
summarised in the Consultations section of this report) supports the proposal in strategic
planning terms but has raised a number of issues regarding cycle parking and energy which
the applicant has responded to.

if the Council resolves to make a draft decision , the Mayor needs to be consulted again under
Article 5 and to allow him 14 days to decide to allow the draft decision to proceed unchanged
or to direct the Council to refuse the application , or to issue a direction for the GLA to
determine the application .

6.9 Central Government Guidance

In dealing with these applications regard has been had to the advice set out in the NPPF, in
particular to Section 12 which deals with the historic environment, and the impact on heritage
assets.

Page 61



ltem No.

6.10 Planning Obligations

Given the scale of the proposal and the close proximity to adjoining residents , it is considered
that a legal agreement to secure construction monitoring , adherence to the Code of
Construction and the submission of a SEMP in order to mitigate the environmental impacts
during construction. Environmental Health indicate that the construction monitoring costs will

be in the region of £31,000 per annum and this will need to be secured by a legal agreement.

The proposal will be liable to pay the Major's CIL and the applicant is being advised by way of
an informative.

6.11 Environmental Assessment, Sustainability and Biodiversity
6.11.1 Environmental Assessment

This scheme is not considered to require an Environmental Impact Assessment, and this was
confirmed by the City Council in a screening opinion dated 27 August 2014(Ref:
14/078395/EIAQOP).

6.11.2 Sustainability

The new buildings are being designed to target BREEAM ‘Excellent’ and the design
incorporate ground source heat pumps, sofar thermal and photovoltaic panels. Because of the
white fabric roof, it is not possible to add PV panels to the new stand .The GLA advise that on
site carbon dioxide savings fall short of the London Plan target, and they recognise that there
is littie further potential for carbon dioxide reductions on site, and recommend that the
applicant should liaise with the City Council to ensure that the shortfall (equivalent to 33
tonnes per annumy) is met off-site.

The applicant has submitted an Addendum to the Energy Statement to provide the additional
information to the GLA regarding the solar thermal panels on the roof of the Thomas Lord
Building and the Harris Buildings and the capacity of the heat pump to address the points
raised by the GLA.

In respect of carbon off setting, it is not possible to achieve this off site and it is not considered
reasonable to require a carbon off setting payment as requested by the GLA.

6.11.3 Biodiversity /Trees

Both the Thomas Lord Building and the Harris Garden building will have areas of green roofs
and green facades which are welcomed in biodiversity terms .The facade planting to the west
side of the Thomas Lords building facing onto Century Court will use a mix of both evergreen
and flowering plants to act as green screen on a tensile steel structure. It is anticipated that
the facade will be fully screened within 5-7 years of planting. The St John's Wood Society
have queried the practicality of this green wall, its long term maintenance and raise whether
trees in front of the building be more pleasing and practical.

It is considered that a green wall is a suitable architectural approach, and its maintenance will
be secured by condition. The pianting of mature trees along this boundary will be problematic
given the basement below, and raised planters do limit the size and type of tree which can be
planted.

The trees within the Ground are subject of a Tree Preservation Order. The proposed
excavation of the basement under the Harris Gardens as part of the new Thomas Lord
building has the potential to affect two mature Limes trees 1 and 2 which are 5.5 m away. The

Page 62



[tem No.

2

applicant states that careful and controlied working practices in and around their root
protection zones during the construction phase will ensure their retention.

The Council’s Arboricuttural Officer has raised objections to the inadequacy of the applicant’s
arboricultural report, and is of the opinion that the basement is likely to result in the loss of
these Lime trees (1 and 2) and the trees in the adjoining rear gardens.

The new stand has potential to affect the row on London Plane trees (trees 3 to 8) in St John's
Wood Road in terms of the erection of the new stand and basement. One tree (3) leans
towards and overhangs the existing boundary wall and will require pruning in order to allow
the new stand to be constructed .The Arboricultural Officer considers that the applicant’s
report has not fully addressed this and TFL has also raised concerns ( as this street tree is
their responsibility) .

The applicant has been requested to address these matters with a revised arboricultural
report and an update will be reported verbally to Committee.

New planting is proposed to the Harris Gardens and the existing flint boundary wall will be
largely retained (a section will need to be taken down and rebuilt). New hard landscaping is
proposed behind the Grace Gates, and at the entrance of the Grace Gates, the existing
cobble setts which form the crossover are uneven and the applicant is proposing to relay the
existing cobbles or replace with a new level granite sett surface. It is considered that relaying
the existing cobbles would be the preferred solution and again this can be controlled by
condition if Members minded to approve. Bird and bat boxes are proposed and these can be
reserved by condition.

6.12 Other Matters
6.12.1 Five Year Permission

The applicant is applying for 5 year permission and listed building consent. The applicant
states that this is a complex phased development, and there is uncertainty regarding the
allocation of international cricket matches beyond 2019 and request a longer period than the
standard three year time limit. The focus on Lords for the ICC Cricket World Cup Final in 2019
means that the Ground must be free of building works that summer and therefore the earliest
the SWP could commence is Autumn 2019 .In the light of the applicant’s case, it is considered
that a case has been made for a longer permission if Members are minded to approve.

6.12.2 Basement Excavation

The proposal involves the excavation of a basement under part of the new stand, and
enlarging the existing basement under the existing Thomas Lord building and under the Harris
Gardens. Building Control is satisfied with the structural approach taken to construct the
basement, (which will be two phases) which will not affect the structural integrity of existing
historic buildings in the ground or those adjoining.

Subject to the submission of a Site Environmental Management Plan (SEMP) and
construction monitoring contribution and adherence to the Code of Construction to be
secured in the legal agreement, it is considered that the impacts of construction can be
adequately mitigated .The applicant in dealing with the construction of the new Warner Stand
has actively engaged with neighbouring residents regarding the construction programme, angd
the same approach will be adopted with this project.

Page 63



Item No.

' 6.12.3 Stakeholder Engagement

A considerable number of meetings have been held with local stakeholder groups and public
exhibitions held on 11.2 2015 and 22.4.2015 .In addition the proposal has been presented at
three Lords Community Group meetings in 2014 and 2015 and full details are set out in the
applicant's Statement of Community Involvement . As a result of these meetings a number of
changes have taken place , namely to reduce the height of the new stand, changes to the
Thomas Lord building and alterations to the design of the front boundary treatment either side
of the Grace Gates .

6.13 Conclusions

In assessing this proposal, considerable importance and weight has been given to the
desirability of preserving the setting of the heritage assets (the Grade [1* listed pavilion, the
listed Grace Gates and the St John's Wood Conservation Area. The report sets out the
justification for the demolition of the Allen Stand (an unlisted building of merit) and the less
than substantial harm caused to the setting to the pavilion by the proposed scoreboard and
retractable seating in the new stand. However, officers consider that the public benefits
associated with this proposal together with the benefits to the setting of the listed Grace Gates
outweigh this less than substantial harm. Members’ views are therefore sought.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

WONOORWN =

14.
15,
16.
17.
18.
19.
20.

21.
22.

23.

Application forms

Stage 1 response from the Greater London Authority dated 28.9.2015.
| etters from Historic England dated 3.9.2015,

Email from Transport for London dated 27.8.2015.

Email from Building Control dated 18.8.2015.

Emails from Sports England dated 14.8.2015 and 3.9.2015.

Email from Environment Agency dated 17.8.2015

Email from Thames Water dated 21.8.2015

Comments from the Designing Out Crime Officer dated 25.8.2015,

_Memorandum from Environmental Health dated 26.8.2015.

. Memorandum from Arboricultural Officer dated 28.9.2015.

. Memorandum from Environmental Health dated 7.10.2015.

_ Letter from Brunel Planning on behalf of the Century Court Residents Association sent to Historic

England dated 22.7.2015.

Email from the St John's Wood Court Residents Association, c/o 77 St John's Wood Court,
London NW8 dated 14.9.2015.

Letter from 31 Century Court Grove End Road London NW8 dated 21.8.2015

Email from Mr and Mrs Brodie (no address given) dated 23.8.2015

Response via public access from Flat 6r Grove End House Grove End Road London NW8 dated
23.8.2015

Response via public access from Flat 2H Grove End House Grove End Road London NW8 dated
24.8.2015

Response via public access from Flat 75 Century Court 2B Grove End Road London NW8 dated
24.8.2015. _
Response via public access from Flat 8d Grove End House Grove End Road London NW8 dated
24.8.2015.

Response via public access from 22 EIm Tree Road London NW8 dated 24.8.2015.

Response via public access from Flat 94 Century Court 2B Grove End Road London NW8 dated
24.8.2015.

Response via public access from 22 Blfgrg‘gee j_{oad London NW8 dated 24.8.2015



24.

25.

26.
27.

28.
29.
30.
31.
32.
33.
34.
35.
36.
37.
38.
39.
40.
41.
42.
43.

44,
45,

48

[tem No.

Response via public access from Flat 1 Pavilion Apartments 34 St John's Wood Road London
NW8 dated 29.8.2015

Response via public access from 104 Century Court Grove End Road London NW8 dated
31.8.2015

Response via public access from 55 Century Court Grove End Road London NW8 dated 1.9.2015
Response via public access from 106 Lords View St John's Wood Road London NW8 dated
6.9.2015.

Response via public access from 122 Lords View St John's Wood Road London NW8 dated
5.9.2015

Response via public access from Flat 3.1 Grove End Road London NW8 dated 7.9.2015.
Response via public access from 1 Century Court Grove End Road London NW8 dated 9.9.2015.
Response via public access from 11 Century Court Grove End Road London NW8 dated
9.9.2015.

Response via public access from 64 Century Court Grove End Road London NW8 dated
8.9.2015.

Response via public access from 111 Century Court Grove End Road London NW8 dated
9.9.2015.

Response via public access from 22 Century Court Grove End Road [London NW8 dated
9.9.2015.

Response via public access from 93 Century Court Grove End Road London NW8 dated
9.9.2015.

Response via public access from 105 Century Court Grove End Road London NW8 dated
11.9.2015.

Response via public access from 119 Lords View St John's Wood Road London NW8 dated
17.9.2015

Response via public access from 115 Century Court Grove End Road London NW8 dated
11.9.2015

Email from Brunel Planning on behalf of the Century Court Residents Association dated
22.9.2015.

Response via public access from 65 Century Court Grove End Road London NW8 dated
23.9.2015

Response via public access from 5 Carlton Close West Heath Road London dated 24.9.2015.
Letter from JPC Law on behalf of the owners of Flats 81 and 82 Century Court dated 24.9.2015.
Email from a resident in Century Court Grove End Road London NW8 dated 4.10.2015.
4esponse from the MCC dated 5.10.2015.

Email from Century Court Grove End Road London NW8 dated 9.10.2015.

. Email from the St John's Wood Society dated 9.10.2015.

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT OR WISH TO INSPECT ANY OF THE
BACKGROUND PAPERS PLEASE CONTACT SARAH WHITNALL ON 020 7641 2929 OR BY
E-MAIL - swhitnall@westminster.gov.uk

jWd_wpdocsishort-teisci2015-10-27item2 doci0
1890102015

Page 65



15/07111/FULL

DRAFT DECISION LETTER
Address: Lords Cricket Ground, St John's Wood Road, London, NW8 8QZ

Proposal: Demolition of the existing Tavern Stand, Allen Stand, Thomas Lord Building, MCC
Office Building and Scorer's Box and redevelopment comprising the erection of new
stand, new Thomas Lord Building with an expanded basement and relocated public
house, new Harris Garden Building, new scorers Box, internal and external
alterations to the Pavilion, a new shop in the Bowlers' Annexe together with
relocation of the floodlight, hard and soft landscaping, servicing facilities and all
necessary ancillary and enabling works, plant and equipment.

Plan Nos: Planning Statement and draft Heads of Terms , Design and Access Statement
.Statement of Community Involvement , Energy Strategy , Construction
Management Plan , Transport Statement , Travel Plan, Delivery and Servicing
Management Plan; Daylight, sunlight and Overshadowing Report, Historic Buildings
and Townscape Assessment ; Preliminary Site Waste Management Plan;
Operational Waste Management Plan ; Environmental Performance Statement ,
Sustainability Appraisal ; Structural Impact Appraisal , Sustainable Urban Drainage
Plan; Ventilation and Extraction Statement ; Lords Cricket Ground Economic Impact
Assessment ; Light Impact Statement , Arboricultural Report; Heritage Appraisai
:Historic Spectator Roof Seating ; Design and Access Statement Addendum
Electronic Display Board and Retractable Seating Design Note; Design and Access
Statement Addendum: Views Analysis Study.
4669-POP-PL-DSP-0010 ; 4663-POP-PL-DGA-0100 ; 0101, 0102,0103, 0104,0105,
200, 0201, 0202, 0203,0204, 0205, 1100; 1101, 1102, 1103, 1104, 1106, 2200,
2201, 2202,2203, 2204, 2205, 2206, 2210, 3100, 3101, 3102, 3103, 3104, 3105,
3200, 3201, 3202, 3203.
4669-POP-PL-DSE-0200 ; 0201, 0202, 0210, 0400,0402, 0404, 0600,
4669-POP-PL-ELE-0001 ;0100, 0101, 0102, 0103, 0104, 0105; 0002; 0200; 0201;
0202; 0003;0300;0301;0302;0303,0400;0401;1300;
9810849-P-10-01.

Case Officer: Amanda Coulson Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 2875

Recommended Condition{s) and Reason(s):

N

'_ ant_ hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the drawings and
mer ts listed on this decision letter, and any drawings approved subsequently by the
il as Iocai lanning authority pursuant to any conditions on this decision letter.

S y - (R
: Y

/a’éce of dqllubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Excé -:for basgteﬁ{ ex

2 tion work, you must carry out any building work which can be heard
at the boundary of the site ©
* between /68 00 a Q0 Monday to Friday,
* between 08,00 ¢ d} .on Saturday; and
* not atallon § { -bank holidays and public holidays.

You must carry ou basement exci vat|o; _
* between 08.00 angi/la BQ

\ P%g 6\66 \'}

o '““x,
"
W



15/07111/FULL

* not at all on Saturdays, Sundays, bank holidays and public holidays.
Noisy work must not take place outside these hours. (C11BA)

Reason:

To protect the environment of neighbouring residents. This is as set out in $29 and S32 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 6 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R11AC)

You must apply to us for approval of samples of the facing materials you will use, including
glazing, and elevations and roof plans annotated to show where the materials are to be located
for:
i} new stand
i} Thomas Lord building
i} MCC office building
iv) scorer's box
v) new shopfront to the Bowlers' Annex and the bridge link from the main pavilion to the new
stand.
vi) gatehouse to the Grace Gates and boundary wall treatment

You must not start any work on these parts of the development until we have approved what
you have sent us. You must then carry out the work using the approved materials. (C26BC)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitabie and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the St John's Wood Conservation Area. This is as set
out in $25 and S$28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007. {R26BE}

You must apply to us for approval of detailed drawings at a scale of 1:50 of the following parts
of the development -

i) retractable seating and scoreboard to the new stand

You must not start any work on these parts of the development until we have approved what
you have sent us.

You must then carry out the work according to these approved drawings. (C26DB})

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the St John's Wood Conservation Area. This is as set
out in $25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26BE)

Pre Commencement Condition. No development shall take place on each Phase of the
development as shown on the indicative Phasing Plan, including any works of demolition, until a
construction management plan for the proposed development has been submitted to and
approved in writing by the City Council as local planning authority. The plan shall provide the
foliowing detaiis:

{i) a construction programme including a 24 hour emergency contact number;

{ii) parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors (including measures taken to ensure

Page 67



15/071119/FULL

satisfactory access and movement for existing occupiers of neighbouring properties during
construction);

(iii} locations for loading/unloading and storage of plant and materials used in constructing
the development;

(iv) erection and maintenance of security hoardings (including decorative displays and
facilities for public viewing, where appropriate);

(v) wheel washing facilities and measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during
construction; and

{vi) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and construction
WOorks.

You must not start work until we have approved what you have sent us. You must then carry
out the development in accordance with the approved details.

Reason:

To protect the environment of residents and the area generally as set out in S29 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and STRA 25, TRANS 23,
ENV 5 and ENV 6 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

Pre Commencement Condition : No impact piling shail take place on site , until a piling method
statement ( detailing the depth and type of piling to be undertaken and the methodology by
which such piling will be carried out , including measures to prevent and minimise the potential
for damage to subsurface sewerage infrastructure, and the programme for the works) has been
submitted to and approved by the City Council in consultation with Thames Water .Any piling
must be undertaken in accordance with the terms of the approved piling method statement .

Reason:
The proposed works will be in close proximity to underground sewerage utility infrastructure and
the proposed piling has the potential to impact on that infrastructure.

Pre-Commencement Condition : Details of the foul storm and drainage design shall be
submitted to and approved by the City Council as local planning authority in consultation with
Thames Water. :

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved design.

Reason:

Since the site falls within the highly sensitive Counters Creek Catchment where flooding is a
serious concern, Thames Water have require surface water attenuation to Greenfield runoff
rates.

Pre Commencement Condition. You must not start any demolition work on the Allen and
Tavern Stands until we have approved either:

(a) a construction contract with the builder to complete the redevelopment work for which
we have given planning permission on the same date as this consent, or

{b) an alternative means of ensuring we are satisfied that demolition on the site wili only
occur immediately prior to development of the new building.

You must only carry out the demolition and development according to the approved
arrangements, (C29AC)

Page 68



R A AT, s L 1.

10

11

15/07111/FULL

Reason:

To maintain the character of the St John's Wood Conservation Area as set out in $25 and 528
of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and DES 1 and DES 9

(B) of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007 and Section 74(3) of the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. (R29AC)

You must apply to us for approval of detailed drawings at a scale of 1:50 including samples of
materials and details of the artwork of the of the following parts of the development - new front
boundary entrance gates/screens. You must not start any work on these parts of the
development until we have approved what you have sent us.

You must then carry out the work according to these approved details . (C26DB)

Reason:

To protect the special architectural or historic interest of the listed Grace Gates and to make
sure the development contributes to the character and appearance of the St John's Wood
Conservation Area. This is as set out in $25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic
Policies adopted November 2013 and DES 1, DES 10 (A) and paras 10.108 to 10.146 of our
Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26FD)

The floodlight being reiocated within the proposed new stand shall be limited until 22 January
2019, On or before the expiry of this date , the floodlight and mast shall be removed from the
stand .

Reason:

The City Council granted permission on 12 March 2013 for a further temporary permission of
the four floodlights in the Ground until 22 January 2019 , in order to review the floodlights in the
light of any forthcoming proposals for the Lords Masterplan and to assess the impact upon the
amenities of surrounding residents and this part of the St John's Wood Conservation Area as
set out in S11, S25, $28, $29, $32,538 in the Westminster City Plan : Strategic Policies
adopted November 2013 and DES1, DES3, DES9, DES10, ENVS, ENV7, ENV10, ENV16 of
our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

(a) The retractable floodlight hereby approved in the new stand shall only be used for the
illumination of Lord's Ground for the playing of cricket (and not for any other purpose) for a
maximum of 14 Days, 10 Evenings and 2 Evening practice matches throughout a period
commencing on 1 April and expiring on (but including) 30 September in any year and not at all
outside this period.

(b) Where the floodlights are used during an Evening, the operating capacity of the floodlights
shall be reduced by 50% from 21.50 hours, and be further reduced to 10% of their operating
capacity from 22.30 hours and be turned off by 23.00 hours.

(c) Where the floodlights are used on any Day they shall be switched off no later than 19.30
hours.

{d) No spectators shall attend Evening practice matches.

For the purpose of this Condition :

Day means a period commencing at 10.00 and ending at 19.30 hours. The
daytime use of the floodlights shall only be used when there are bad light conditions (as agreed
by the Head of Cricket and the umpire) and in connection with existing Test Matches, One Day
Internationals and domestic finals.

Evening means an occasion when a match takes place that it is scheduled to be played
wholly or partly in the evening under floodlights and covers the period from the start of the

Page 69



12

13

14

15/07111/FULL

match until 23.00 hours.

If the masts are erected for a Day match, this will be counted as one of the permitted 14
Days whether or not the floodlights are switched on.

The applicant under the terms of this condition is not permitted to swap between the Day
and Evening permitted number of matches, and any un-used Day or Evening matches from one
season cannot be carried forward to the next.

Reason:

To protect the amenities of neighbouring residents and the environment in general and to
ensure that the floodlight is only used for cricket matches and for no other purposes as set out
in 829 and S32 of our Westminster City Plan: Strategic Policies that we adopted in November
2013 and ENV13, ENV10, ENV6 and ENV7 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted
in January 2007.

The maximum vertical illuminate into windows outside the Ground from the relocated floodlight
shall no exceed the lux values identified in the Technical Note on Light Pollution for the Tavern
and Allen Stand mast relocation. If lux values exceed this figure, a scheme of mitigation shall be
prepared and submitted to the City Council as local planning authority to identify the measures
to be taken to address the light spilf .Other than for testing under Condition 14, the floodlight
shall not be used if these lux levels are exceeded until the appropriate mitigation measures and
a scheme of implementation has been approved by the City Council.

Reason:

To ensure that the relocated floodlight does not cause unacceptable levels of light pollution to
nearby residents as set out in $29 of our Westminster City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted
November 2013 and ENV10 of cur Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

The floodlight mast (except the moving parts) shall be painted light grey and maintained in that
colour unless otherwise agreed in writing by the City Council as local planning authority.

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the St John's Wood Conservation Area. This is as set
out in 825 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan; Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007. {R26BE)

Prior to the commencement of use of the floodlight {for competitive games and practice
sessions), the applicant shall submit a scheme for the testing, commissioning, monitoring and
evaluation to demonstrate that the floodlights are compliant with the maximum vertical
illuminate values as identified in the Technical Note on Light Pollution for the Tavern and Allen
Stand mast relocation dated 24 July 2015.

The scheme shall be approved in writing by the City Council as local planning authority
and will consist of the following:-

Identification of monitoring points;

The regularity of monitoring and reporting to the Council;

Means of enabling local residents to register a complaint and a process for assessing
and evaluating that complaint.

The date(s) of testing /fcommissioning prior to use of the floodlights for the first floodlit
match each season which shall be agreed in writing with the City Council as local planning
authority.

Page 70



et L sk B il et

15

16

17

15/07111/FULL

Details of the consultation with local residents to investigate ways of further reducing
light spill levels within the lifetime of this permission in relation to the temporary fioodlight.

The applicant will take appropriate mitigation action under the terms of Condition 12if in
the event that the agreed lux leveis are exceeded.

The development hereby approved shall take place in accordance with these approved
details.

Reason:

To ensure that the relocated temporary floodlight does not cause unacceptable levels of light
pollution to nearby residents as set out in $29 of Westminster City Plan: Strategic Policies
adopted November 2013 and ENV10 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in
January 2007.

Except for the commissioning and testing approved under Condition 14, the floodlight hereby
approved shall only be extended on the Day or Evening of intended use .Prior notification of
intended Day and Evening use each season shall be given in writing to the Local Planning
Authority before the start of each season. Any alterations to such intended use in a season shall
be notified to the Council as soon as reasonably practicable.

The floodlight in respect Day use shall be lowered to their retractable positions at the end of
each day of play and no later than 20.00 hours.

The floodlight in respect of Evening Use, the floodlight must not be lowered after 23.00 hours
and no later than 09.00 hours on the following morning after use.

Reason:

To protect the environment of neighbouring residents, as set out in S29 of the Westminster City
Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV8 of our Unitary Development Plan
that we adopted January 2007.

The head frame to the retractable floodlight in the new stand shall be removed and stored no
later than two weeks after the close of each season and re-erected no earlier than two weeks
prior to the start of each cricket season .Details of the storage of the head frame shall be
submitted to and approved in writing by the City Council as local planning authority prior to the
use of the floadlight.

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the St John's Wood Conservation Area. This is as set
out in $25 and $28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1, DES 4 and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in
January 2007. (R26DD)

You must apply to us for approval of detailed drawings at scale of 1:50 of the following parts of
the development retractable seating including details of mechanism. You must not start work
until we have approved what you have sent us.

You must then carry out the work according to these approved drawings. (C26CB)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the St John's Wood Conservation Area. This is as set
out in $25 and $28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development

Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26BE)
Page 71



18

19

20

21

15/07111/FULL

You must apply to us for approval of detailed drawings of a hard and soft landscaping scheme
which forms part of Phase 2 works which includes the number, size, species and position of
trees and shrubs. You must not start work on the relevant part of the development until we have
approved what you have sent us. You must then carry out the landscaping and planting within
one planting season of compieting the development (or within any other time limit we agree to in
writing).

Reason:

To improve the appearance of the development, to make sure that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the St John's Wood Conservation Area, and to improve
its contribution to biodiversity and the local environment. This is as set out in 825, 828 and S38
of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 16, ENV 17,
DES 1 (A) and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in
January 2007. (R30CD)

Pre Commencement Condition. You must apply to us for approval of the ways in which you
will protect the trees which you are keeping, as shown on drawing 4669-POP-PL-DGA-2200.
You must not start any demolition, site clearance or building work, and you must not take any
equipment, machinery or materials for the development onto the site, until we have approved
what you have sent us. The tree protection must follow the recommendations in section 7 of
British Standard BS5837: 2005. You must then carry out the work according to the approved
details. (C31AC)

Reason:

To make sure that the trees on the site are adequately protected during building works. This is
as set out in $38 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 (A), ENV 16 and ENV 17 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January
2007. (R31AC)

The green roof and the green facades to the Thomas Lord Building and the Harris Garden
Building as shown on the drawings hereby approved must be provided prior to the occupation of
these buildings.

Details of the facade planting and depth of planter and the planting to the green roofs include
species, maintenance and irrigation shall be submitted to and approved by the City Council as
local planning authority .And the development shall be carried out in accordance with the
agreed details.

The approved green roofs and facade planting shall not be removed unless authorised by the
City Council as local planning authority.

Reason:

To reduce the effect the development has on the bio diversity of the environment and also to
improve the outlook for residents in Century Court and Grove End Road as set out in 538 and
$29 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 17 and
ENV13 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

You must apply to us for approval of a scheme of public art as described in your Design and
Access Statement.

You must not start work on the public art until we have approved what you have sent us.

Page 72



22

23

24

25

15/07111/FULL

Before anyone moves into the Thomas Lord building you must carry out the scheme according
to the approved details.

You must maintain the approved public art and keep it on this site. You must not move or
remove it.

Reason:

To make sure the art is provided for the public and to make sure that the appearance of the
building is suitable. This is as set out in DES 7 (A} of our Unitary Development Plan that we
adopted in January 2007. (R37AB)

You must hang all doors or gates so that they do not open over or across the road or pavement.
(C24AA)

Reason:

In the interests of public safety and to avoid blocking the road as set out in S41 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and TRANS 2 and TRANS
3 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R24AC)

You must provide each car parking space shown on the approved drawings and each car
parking space shall only be used for the parking of vehicles of people working in the building or
calling there for business purposes. (C22AA)

Reason:
To provide parking spaces for people using the development as set out in STRA 25 and TRANS
22 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R22AB)

At least 20% of the car parking spaces be provided with active Electronic Charging Points prior
to the occupation of the Thomas Lord Building.

Reason:
To ensure that adequate electric charging points are provided in the basement car park.

(1) Where noise emitted from the proposed plant and machinery will not contain tones or will not
be intermittent, the 'A' weighted sound pressure level from the plant and machinery (including
non-emergency auxiliary plant and generators) hereby permitted, when operating at its noisiest,
shall not at any time exceed a value of 5 dB below the minimum external background noise, at
a point 1 metre outside any window of any residential and other noise sensitive property, unless
and until a fixed maximum noise level is approved by the City Council. The background level
should be expressed in terms of the lowest LAS0, 15 mins during the proposed hours of
operation. The plant-specific noise level should be expressed as LAeqTm, and shall be
representative of the plant operating at its maximum.

(2) Where noise emitted from the proposed plant and machinery will contain tones or will be
intermittent, the 'A’ weighted sound pressure level from the plant and machinery (including non-
emergency auxiliary plant and generators) hereby permitted, when operating at its noisiest,
shall not at any time exceed a value of 10 dB betow the minimum external background noise, at
a point 1 metre outside any window of any residential and other noise sensitive property, uniess
and until a fixed maximum noise level is approved by the City Council. The background level
should be expressed in terms of the lowest LAS0, 15 mins during the proposed hours of
operation. The plant-specific noise level should be expressed as LAeqTm, and shalt be

Page 73

et s pEmomm are,—



26

27

15/07111/FULL

representative of the plant operating at its maximum.

(3) Following installation of the plant and equipment, you may apply in writing to the City
Council for a fixed maximum noise level to be approved. This is to be done by submitting a
further noise report confirming previous details and subsequent measurement data of the
installed plant, including a proposed fixed noise level for approval by the City Council. Your
submission of a noise report must include:

(a) A schedule of all ptant and equipment that formed part of this application;

{b) Locations of the plant and machinery and associated: ducting; attenuation and damping
equipment;

(c) Manufacturer specifications of sound emissions in octave or third octave detail;

{d) The location of most affected noise sensitive receptor location and the most affected window
of it;

(e) Distances between plant & equipment and receptor location/s and any mitigating features
that may attenuate the sound level received at the most affected receptor location;

{f} Measurements of existing LAS0, 15 mins levels recorded one metre outside and in front of
the window referred to in (d) above (or a suitable representative position), at times when
background noise is at its lowest during hours when the plant and equipment will operate. This
acoustic survey to be conducted in conformity to BS 7445 in respect of measurement
methodology and procedures;

{g) The lowest existing L AS0, 15 mins measurement recorded under (f) above;

(h) Measurement evidence and any calculations demonstrating that plant and equipment
complies with the planning condition;

(i) The proposed maximum noise level to be emitted by the plant and equipment.

Reason:

As set outin ENV 6 (1), () and (8) and ENV 7 (A)(2) of our Unitary Development Plan that we
adopted in January 2007 (UDP), so that the noise environment of people in noise sensitive
properties is protected, including the intrusiveness of tonal and impulsive sounds, and as set
out in 832 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013, by
contributing to reducing excessive ambient noise levels. Part (3) is included so that applicants
may ask subsequently for a fixed maximum noise level to be approved in case ambient noise
levels reduce at any time after implementation of the planning permission.

No vibration shall be transmitted to adjoining or other premises and structures through the
building structure and fabric of this development as to cause a vibration dose value of greater
than 0.4m/s (1.75) 16 hour day-time nor 0.26 m/s (1.75) 8 hour night-time as defined by BS
6472 (2008) in any part of a residential and other noise sensitive property.

Reason:

As set out in ENVB (2} and (8) of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January
2007, to ensure that the development is designed to prevent structural transmission of noise or
vibration.

The plant/machinery hereby permitted shall not be operated except between 07.00 hours and
23.00 hours daily.

Reason:

To safeguard the amenity of occupiers of noise sensitive properties and the area generally by
ensuring that the plant/machinery hereby permitted is not operated at hours when external
background noise levels are guietest thereby preventing noise and vibration nuisance as set out

in 832 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 6 and

Page 74



- rhigen

28

30

31

32

15/07111/FULL
ENV 7 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

You must apply to us for approval of detailed drawings and manufacturer's specification at a
scale of 1:50 of the following parts of the development -

i) kitchen extract ducts in the Thomas Lord Building

i) kitchen extract ducts to the restaurant in the new stand

You must not start any work on these parts of the development until we have approved what
you have sent us.

You must then carry out the work according to these approved drawings. (C26DB)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the ducts are suitable and preserves the character and
appearance of this part of the St John's Wood Conservation Area and to safeguard the
amenities of nearby residents. This is as set out in $25,528, 529 and S31 of Westminster's
City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and DES 1, DES 4, ENV6, ENV13 and
paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.
(R26DD)

You must provide the access for people with disabilities as shown on the approved drawing(s)
and as outlined in the Design and Access Statement dated July 2015 before you use the new
stand, the Thomas Lord building and the Scorer's Box.

Reason:

To make sure that there is reasonable access for people with disabilities and to make sure that
the access does not harm the appearance of the building, as set out in 528 of Westminster's
City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and DES 1 (B) of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R20AC)

Details of the new PA system (including fixing maximum decibel levels) to the new Stand shall
be submitted to and approved by the City Council as local planning authority before works start
on this part of the development .The works shall be carried out in accordance with the approved
details.

Reason:

To safeguard the amenity of occupiers of noise sensitive properties and the area generally as
set out in $32 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV
6 and ENV 7 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

You must provide the waste stores at basement level as shown on drawing 4669-
POP_PL_DGA-2206 before the new stand and the Thomas Lords building is occupied .You
must clearly mark the waste stores and use the stores and only place the waste outside prior to
collection .You must not use the waste stores for any other purpose.

Reason:
To protect the environment and provide suitable storage for waste as set out in 544 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 12 of our Unitary

Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R14BD)

Page 75



33

34

35

36

37

15/07111/FULL

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the Sustainable Urban Drainage Plan
dated July 2015, the features set out in this SuD's Plan shall be provided and shall not be
removed unless authorised by the City Council as local planning authority.

Reason:
To ensure the development complies with policy 5.13 in the London Plan (March 2015) in
respect of sustainable urban drainage/design.

The development shall in carried out in accordance with the submitted reports Phase 1.
Desktop study - full site history and environmental information from the public records and
Phase 2: Site investigation - to assess the contamination and the possible effect it could have
on human health, poliution and damage to property.

The following reports shall be submitted to and approved by the City Council.

Phase 3: Remediation strategy - details of this, including maintenance and monitoring to
protect human health and prevent pollution.

Phase 4: Validation report - summarises the action you have taken during the development and
what action you will take in the future, if appropriate.

Phase 3 must be submitted 3 before any demolition or excavation work starts, and for phase 4
when the development has been completed.

Reason:

To make sure that any contamination under the site is identified and treated so that it does not
harm anyone who uses the site in the future. This is as set out in STRA 34 and ENV 8 of our
Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R18AA)

The restaurant on the top floor (Level) 4) of the new stand shall only be open from 08.00 to
23.00 hours daily.

Reason:

To protect the environment of people in neighbouring properties as set out in $24, §29 and $32
of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 6, ENV 7 and
TACE 9 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R12AC)

Three months prior to the commencement of the public house use in the new Thomas Lord
Building, a detailed Operational Management Plan shall be submitted to and approved by the
City Council as local planning authority.

This Operational Management Plan shall include the hours of use, measures to mitigate noise
disturbance to local residents, both on match and non match day's .The Class A 4 use shall be
carried out in accordance with the approved Plan.

The review of the Operational Management Plan shall be submitted to the City Council which
will allow of review of the hours of use and use of the outdoor space in the light of experience.

Reason:

To protect the environment of people in neighbouring properties as set out in $24, $29 and $32
of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 6, ENV 7 and
TACE 9 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R12AC)

You must apply to us for approval of details of a security scheme for the entrance into the

Page 76



38

39

40

41

15/07111/FULL

Ground You must not start work on this part of the works until the City Council in consultation
with the Metropolitan Police have approved what you have sent us. You must then carry out the
work according to the approved details before the new entrance is used.

Reason:

To reduce the chances of crime without harming the appearance of the buildings, the setting of
the Grace Gates and the character of the St John's Wood Conservation Area as set out in $29
of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and DES 1 (B) and
paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

The new buildings hereby approved shall achieve Building Research Establishment methods
(BREEAM) "excellent’ rating, or if you use another method, you must achieve an equally high
standard.

Reason:

To make sure that the development affects the environment as little as possible, as set out in
S28 or $40, or both, of Westminster's City Plan; Strategic Policies adopted November 2013.
(R44BC)

You must not use the roof of the new Thomas Lord building at Level 03 for sitting out or for any
other purpose. You can however use the roof to escape in an emergency and for maintenance
puUrposes.

Reason:

To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring properties. This is as set out
in $29 and §32 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
ENV 6 and ENV 13 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.
(R21BC)

You must put a copy of this planning permission and all its conditions at street level outside the
building for as long as the work continues on site.

You must highlight on the copy of the planning permission any condition that restricts the hours
of building work. (C21KA)

Reason:
To make sure people in neighbouring properties are fully aware of the conditions and to protect
their rights and safety. (R21GA)

The glazing in the side elevation of the Thomas Lord Building at Level 03 must only ¢ontain
obscure glass and be kept permanently fixed shut A sample of this obscure glazing shall be
submitted to and approved by the City Council as local planning authority before works start on
this part of the development .

The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved sample, and this glazing
shall not be removed unless authorised by the City Council.

Reason:
To protect the privacy and environment of peopie in neighbouring properties. This is as set out
in $29 and 832 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and

Page 77



42

43

15/07111/FULL

ENV 6 and ENV 13 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. |
(R21BC)

The glazing in top floor of the new stand at Level 04 must only contain obscure glass. A sample
of this obscure glazing shall be submitted to and approved by the City Council as local planning
authority before works start on this part of the development.
The development shall be carried out in accordance with the approved sample, and this glazing
shall not be removed unless authorised by the City Council.

Reason:

To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring properties. This is as set out
in 529 and $32 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
ENV 6 and ENV 13 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.
(R21BC)

Prior to the demolition of the Allen Stand , a detailed photographic record shall be undertaken
and submitted to the City Council .Features such as the Q Stand and the MCC logo on the rear
elevation shall be carefully removed and be stored.

Informative(s):

in dealing with this application the City Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We have
made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies in Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies adopted November 2013, Unitary Development Plan, Supplementary
Planning documents, planning briefs and other informal written guidance, as well as offering a
full pre application advice service, in order to ensure that applicant has been given every
opportunity to submit an application which is likely to be considered favourably. In addition,
where appropriate, further guidance was offered to the applicant at the validation stage.

You are encouraged to join the nationally recognised Considerate Constructors Scheme. This
commits those sites registered with the Scheme to be considerate and good neighbours, as well
as clean, respectful, safe, environmentally conscious, responsible and accountable. For more
information please contact the Considerate Constructors Scheme directly on 0800 783 1423,
siteenquiries@ccscheme.org.uk or visit www.ccscheme.org.uk.

This permission is governed by a legal agreement between the applicant and us under Section
106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990. The agreement relates to construction
monitoring costs, adherence to the Code of. {I55AA)

This development has been identified as potentially liable for payment of the Mayor of London's
Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). Responsibility for paying the levy runs with the ownership
of the land, unless another party has assumed liability. We will issue a CIL Liability Notice to the
landowner or the party that has assumed liability with a copy to the planning applicant as soon
as practicable setting out the estimated CIL charge.

Page 78



A b W R e 3

15/07111/FULL

If you have not already done so you must submit an Assumption of Liability Form to ensure
that the CIL liability notice is issued to the correct party. This form is available on the planning
portal at hitp:/ivww. planningportal.gov. uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whattosubmit/cil
Further details on the Mayor of London's Community Infrastructure Levy can be found on our
website at: http://www. westminster.gov. uk/services/environment/planning/apply/mayoral-cil/.
You are reminded that payment of the CIL charge is mandatory and there are strong
enforcement powers and penalties for failure to pay.

5  Asbestos is the largest single cause of work-related death. People most at risk are those
working in the construction industry who may inadvertently disturb asbestos containing
materials (ACM; s). Where building work is planned it is essential that building owners or
occupiers, who have relevant information about the location of ACM s, supply this information
to the main contractor (or the co-ordinator if a CDM project) prior to work commencing. For
more information, visit the Health and Safety Executive website at
www.hse.gov.uk/asbestos/regulations.htm (I80AB)

6 In premises that are to be used for entertainment purposes, where there may be a risk to
employees from their exposure to high noise levels, the design and layout must seek to
minimise such exposure so far as is reasonably practicable. For further information and
guidance, please see: www.hse.gov.uk/noise/musicsound.htm,

7 Every year in the UK, about 70 people are killed and around 4,000 are seriously injured as a
result of falling from height. You should carefully consider the following.

* Window cleaning - where possible, install windows that can be cleaned safely from
within the building.

* Interna! atria - design these spaces so that glazing can be safely cleaned and
maintained.

* Lighting - ensure luminaires can be safely accessed for replacement.

* Roof plant - provide safe access including walkways and roof edge protection where

necessary {but these may need further planning permission).
More guidance can be found on the Health and Safety Executive website at
www.hse. gov.uk/falls/index.htm.

Note: Window cleaning cradles and tracking should blend in as much as possible with the
appearance of the building when not in use. If you decide to use equipment not shown in your
drawings which will affect the appearance of the building, you will need to apply separately for
planning permission. (180CB)

8 Under the Construction {Design and Management} Regulations 2007, clients, the CDM
Coordinator, designers and contractors must plan, ¢o-ordinate and manage health and safety
throughout all stages of a building project. By law, designers must consider the following:

* Hazards to safety must be avoided if it is reasonably practicable to do so or the risks of the
hazard arising be reduced to a safe level if avoidance is not possible;

* This not only relates to the building project itself but also to all aspects of the use of the
completed building: any fixed workplaces (for exampie offices, shops, factories, schools etc)
which are to be constructed must comply, in respect of their design and the materials used, with
any requirements of the Workplace (Health, Safety and Welfare} Regulations 1992. At the

Page 79



10

11

12

13

14

15/07111/FULL

design stage particular attention must be given to incorporate safe schemes for the methods of
cleaning windows and for preventing falls during maintenance such as for any high ievel plant.

Preparing a health and safety file is an important part of the regulations. This is a record of
information for the client or person using the building, and tells them about the risks that have to
be managed during future maintenance, repairs or renovation. For more information, visit the
Health and Safety Executive website at www.hse.gov.uk/risk/index.htm.

It is now possible for local authorities to prosecute any of the relevant parties with respect to
non compliance with the CDM Regulations after the completion of a building project, particularly
if such non compliance has resulted in a death or major injury.

You must ensure that the environment within a workplace meets the minimum standard set out
in the Workplace (Health, Safety and Welfare) Regulations 1992 with respect to lighting, heating
and ventilation. Detailed information about these regulations can be found at
www.hse.gov.uk/pubns/indg244.pdf. (180DB)

You may need to get separate permission under the Town and Country Planning (Control of
Advertisements) (England) Regulations 2007 if you want to put up an advertisement at the
property. {I03AA)

You will need to re-apply for planning permission if another authority or council department asks
you to make changes that will affect the outside appearance of the building or the purpose it is
used for. {I23AA)

All the trees on the site are protected by a Tree Preservation Order. You must get our
permission before you do anything to them. You may want to discuss this first with our Tree
Officer on 020 7641 6096 or 020 7641 2922. (I31AA)

Thames Water recommends the installation of a properly maintained fat trap to all catering
establishments.

In respect of Condition 6 you are advised to contact Thames Water Developer Services on
0800 009 3921 to discuss the details of the piling method statement.

A Groundwater Risk Management Permit from Thames Water will be required to discharging
ground water into a public sewer .Any discharge made without a permit is deemed illegal and
may result in prosecution under the provisions of the Water Industry 1991 .Permit enquiries
should be directed to Thames Water's Risk Management Team on 0203 577 9483 or emailing
wwqgriskmanagement@thameswater.co.uk .Application forms should be completed on line via
www.thameswater.co.uk/wastewaterquality.

Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum pressure of 10m head (approx 1
bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the point where it leaves Thames Water pipes. The
developer should take into account of this minimum pressure in the design of the development.

Page 80



Address:

Proposal:

Plan Nos:

Case Officer:

15/07112/L.BC
DRAFT DECISION LETTER
Lords Cricket Ground, St John's Wood Road, London, NW8 8QZ2

Internal and external alterations to the Pavilion, a new shop in the Bowlers' Annexe
together and the formation of a bridge link from the listed pavilion to the new stand
which replaces the Tavern and Allen Stands .Alterations to the front boundary
treatment either side of the listed Grace Gates in connection with the redevelopment
of the Thomas Lord building and the construction of the new stand.

Planning Statement and draft Heads of Terms , Design and Access Statement
.Statement of Community Involvement , Energy Strategy , Construction
Management Plan , Transport Statement , Travel Plan, Delivery and Servicing
Management Plan; Daylight, sunlight and Overshadowing Repont, Historic Buildings
and Townscape Assessment ; Preliminary Site Waste Management Plan;
Operational Waste Management Plan ; Environmental Performance Statement ,
Sustainability Appraisal ; Structural Impact Appraisal , Sustainable Urban Drainage
Plan: Ventilation and Extraction Statement ; Lords Cricket Ground Economic Impact
Assessment ; Light Impact Statement , Arboricultural Report; Heritage Appraisal
-Historic Spectator Roof Seating ; Design and Access Statement Addendum .
Electronic Display Board and Retractable Seating Design Note; Design and Access
Statement Addendum: Views Analysis Study.
4669-POP-PL-DSP-0010 ; 4669-POP-PL-DGA-0100 ; 0101, 0102,0103, 0104,0105,
200, 0201, 0202, 0203,0204, 0205, 1100; 1101, 1102, 1103, 1104, 11086, 2200,
2201, 2202,2203, 2204, 2205, 22086, 2210, 3100, 3101, 3102, 3103, 3104, 3105,
3200, 3201, 3202, 3203.
4669-POP-PL-DSE-0200 ; 0201, 0202, 0210, 0400,0402, 0404, 0600,
4669-POP-PL-ELE-0001 ;0100, 0101, 0102, 0103, 0104, 0105; 0002; 0200; 0201,
0202; 0003;0300;0301;0302;0303;0400;0401;1300;
9810849-P-10-01 .

Amanda Couison Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 2875

Recommended Condition(s) and Reason(s):

glazing, and slevations'

on the following : 7 .+
i) new shopfrof
ii) new bridge Tk
iii) gateman's o !




15/07112/LBC
the character and appearance of the St John's Wood Conservation Area. This is as set out in
$25 and $28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and DES 1
and paras 10.108 to 10.146 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.
(R27AC)

All new work and improvements inside and outside the building must match existing original
adjacent work in terms of the choice of materials, method of construction and finished
appearance. This applies unless differences are shown on the approved drawings or are
required in conditions to this permission. (C27AA)

Reason:

To protect the special architectural or historic interest of the Grade Il * listed pavilion, Bowler's
Annex and the Grade [l Listed Grace Gates. This is as set out in $25 and 528 of Westminster's
City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and DES 1 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007, and paragraph 5.4 of our Supplementary Planning
Guidance: Repairs and Alterations to Listed Buildings. (R27BC)

The new joinery work must exactly match the existing original work unless differences are
shown on the drawings we have approved. (C27EA)

Reason:

To protect the special architectural or historic interest of this listed building. This is as set out in
S25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and DES 1
of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007, and paragraph 5.4 of our
Supplementary Planning Guidance: Repairs and Alterations to Listed Buildings. (R27BC)

You must scribe all new partitions around the existing ornamental plaster mouldings. (C27JA)

Reason:

To protect the special architectural or historic interest of this listed building. This is as set out in
S25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and DES 1
of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007, and paragraph 5.4 of our
Supplementary Planning Guidance: Repairs and Alterations to Listed Buildings. (R27BC)

You must not disturb existing ornamental features including chimney pieces, plasterwork,
architraves, panelling, doors and staircase balustrades. You must leave them in their present
position uniess changes are shown on the approved drawings or are required by conditions to
this permission. You must protect those features properly during work on site. (C27KA)

Reason:

To protect the special architectural or historic interest of this listed building. This is as set out in
$25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and DES 1
of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007, and paragraph 5.4 of our
Supplementary Planning Guidance: Repairs and Alterations to Listed Buildings. (R27BC)

You must apply to us for approval of detailed drawings at a scale of 1:50 including samples of
materials and details of the artwork of the ; of the following parts of the development -

iynew front boundary entrance gates/screens.

You must not start any work on these parts of the development untit we have approved what
you have sent us.

You must then carry out the work according to these approved details. (C26DB)

Reason:
To protect the special architectural orlﬂ@@ﬁ“c ﬁgrest of the listed Grace Gates and to make



15/07112/LBC
sure the development contributes to the character and appearance of the 8t John's Wood
Conservation Area. This is as set out in $25 and $28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic
Policies adopted November 2013 and DES 1, DES 10 (A) and paras 10.108 to 10.146 of our
Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26FD)

You must apply to us for approval of detailed drawings at a scale of 1:50 of the following parts
of the development - new bridge link and shopfront to Bowlers Annex. You must not start any
work on these parts of the development until we have approved what you have sent us.

You must then carry out the work according to these approved drawings. (C26DB)

Reason:

To protect the special architectural or historic interest of this listed building. This is as set out in
$25 and $28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and DES 1
of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007, and paragraph of our
Supplementary Planning Guidance: Repairs and Alterations to Listed Buildings. (R27BC)

You must apply to us for approval of detailed drawings at a scale of 1:20 of the following parts
of the development - retractable bollards behind the Grace Gates and Gatehouse. You must not
start any work on these parts of the development until we have approved what you have sent
us.

You must then carry out the work according to these approved drawings. (C26DB)

Reason:

To protect the special architectural or historic interest of this listed building. This is as set out in
825 and 528 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and DES 1
of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007, and paragraph 5.4 of our
Supplementary Planning Guidance: Repairs and Alterations to Listed Buildings. (R27BC)

Informative(s):

SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR GRANTING CONDITIONAL LISTED BUILDING CONSENT -
In reaching the decision to grant listed building consent with conditions, the City Council has
had regard to the relevant policies in the National Planning Policy Framework March 2012, the
Londen Plan July 2011, Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013,
and the City of Westminster Unitary Development Plan adopted January 2007, as well as
relevant supplementary planning guidance, representations received and all other material
considerations.

The City Council decided that the proposed works would not harm the character of this building
of special architectural or historic interest.

In reaching this decision the following were of particular relevance:

$25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies and DES 10 including paras 10.130
to 10.146 of the Unitary Development Plan, and paragraph 5.4 of our Supplementary Planning
Guidance: Repairs and Alterations to Listed Buildings.

You will need to contact us again if you want to carry out work on the listed building which is not
referred to in your plans. This includes:

* any extra work which is necessary after further assessments of the building's condition;
* stripping out or structural investigationq:)@ge 83



15/07112/LBC
* any work needed to meet the building regulations or other forms of statutory control.

Please quote any 'TP" and 'RN' reference numbers shown on this consent when you send us
further documents.

It is a criminal offence to carry out work on a listed building without our consent. Please remind
your client, consultants, contractors and subcontractors of the terms and conditions of this
consent. (I59AA)

You will need to re-apply for planning permission if another authority or council department asks
you to make changes that will affect the outside appearance of the building or the purpose it is
used for. (I123AA)

Under Section 8(2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990, you
cannot demolish a listed building unless you have given Historic England the opportunity to
make a record of the building. You must give Historic England at least 30 days’ notice before
you start demolition work to remove the bridge link between the pavilion and the Allen Stand.
And within that period you must allow its officers reasonable access to the building. Historic
England's address is:

Historic England , Architectural investigations Section
1 Waterhouse Square

138-142 Holborn

London

EC12ST

Page 84



"IV 008k S10Z°20°LT

Wibow | wm| o awos|

0010-v920-1d-dOd-699%

WA SRV

ONINNYId

BMIYLE

ONLLSIX3

00 1BATTNYId ILIS |

L THWH

103royd Ny3LsamHLInos [
ANNOYD LIHOD S,aH07

AT

N7 L3X3J1YO INOEITAHYIN

B

Auvonnos Inn oau dams [ ]

QIHSINONE0 38 0L s3unonus [7777]

w ™ 3
o B 000k S @ oogii

"ENIMYED SIHL ITWIS 10N 00




POPULOUS"

b o[ B A | b | A e § TR
im0 e P FALS 1t 108 T

LOCATION PLAN
PROPOSED

DRAWING TITLE

5
PLANNING

4669-POP-PL-DSP-0020
DaTE -

JEED T e R msnsi
& e

LA = o B
P
— = r'__'___ —

=y







ANVLS NITTV ¥ NMIAVL

NOTHAV] SHIBWIW

e |

e

R e i
I

o S . A, |

Sl &
Pl e |







i 5
g

i

—wa—




ke TR (E W71 L [ Ly %

aVOU GOOM S.NHOT ‘LS
o
- -
ki 4
‘
| i ﬁk«l\l(r]t/a
@) o
d 5 4 ) ;
=4 _u 2
X
¢

v

\ \
\
1
|
“dl
]
[ ]

4

| =

— s
Hodaddd0

EEIEE & =
| BE| &8 .
|sg' == L7 L &
oA -y
I I < &
| - = - pomciiaeen - poacbecs - pos e [
e e e e e e e e e e ! //
: A 72
/.../. )
5
5 N
o
i
ANVLS aNNOW 2 ——
i = ;“
N — o
W 5 o}
L) s
N\
\
|

ANVLS NITTV 7 NHIAVL

_____

_____
_____

NOTIAV SUIEWIW g
[ L)
NEE U




:
3

%
o l -
b,
- AATA
I E:f kL

LI
[

__J i3
ﬂ].l_

&8 (B&HT & mu_.m,.

| T T T T T T T T 1Tk













F
&
F
=
=
x
k-
g
L]
=
=
g
@
=
L]
=
&
-
(=
3
=
o
=
]
o
3
=
cl
o
o
=
=
5
=
E
£
=




zet
SIOZ AR WRWSieS ssay pue ulisaq | Joefald Wwaisam LINeS | punes) 1B4R) SO

W’i'i!im
s opeg o1 PUBIS BTy ¥ |
weni) pesodosd uo ujod 15as0) Jo auy giﬂ

1wz
_ '
! e
i e _ T
- e ~
_ . _ L (®))
— v .} = o
_ | . ] >
wg'es /A ; wets 1 M
. : v'6G
0 98pa apis-ymyd o yurod 15amoq s o) s1ajoy wo'es | - A |
! wg'si wgl _
i I
i |
Jooy jung | Jooy puels US|
oy d o 30 su)) woy p " » weae) pesodoid uo ujed ysesop Jo eul| ol painseayy|

ONILLIS NOITIAV - ONVLS 3HL



St. John's Wood Road outside No 28

ek T ST RN A

July 2015 Townscape and Visual Impact Assessment  Lord's Cricket Ground [South Westem Project] 23



St. John's Wood Road outside Pavilion Apartments [B]

&
Ih r
e
i

]
L

.!.:I.::siﬁ.-‘. L

July 2015 Townscape and Visual Impact Assessment  Lord's Cricket Ground [South Westem Project]







-

)

o
1
i

j Wqu,:! iy
i

il

i

i
/i

/i

1
I
i

!
i
il

7
1

/

i

g

7

i

&'4{

I

?’

)

i

EHI
/i :"ﬁ 1)

i

'v,;

—
==

i
/
I

a4,

,"t' f ;l 127’!




This page is intentionally left blank



J T

e A AN e e T AR 1S

Agenda Item '3 -

ltem No.
3

CITY OF WESTMINSTER

PLANNING APPLICATIONS | Date Classification
COMMITTEE 27 Octaber 2015 For General Release
Report of Wards involved
Director of Planning Knightsbridge And Belgravia
Subject of Report 12 Trevor Square, London, SW7 1DT
Proposal Excavation works into garden for extension of the existing lower ground
floor level including the demolition of existing rear single storey
extension. Use of the proposed extension roof as a terrace. Erection of a
third floor mansard roof extension.
Agent Holden Harper
On behalf of Mr Geoffrey Bell
Registered Number 15/05331/FULL TP /PP No TP/18183
15/05332/LBC
Date of Application 15.06.2015 Date 15.06.2015
amended/
completed
Category of Application Minor
Historic Building Grade Grade |l Listed Building
Conservation Area Knightsbridge

Development Plan Context

- London Plan July 2011

- Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies 2013

- Unitary Development Plan
(UDP) January 2007

Within London Plan Central Activit

Qutside Centrai Activities Zone

ies Zone

Stress Area

Outside Stress Area

Current Licensing Position

Not Applicable

RECOMMENDATION

1. Grant conditional permission and conditional listed building consent.
2. Agree the reasons for granting listed building consent as set out in Informative 1 of the draft

decision letter.

Page 103




20 Metres

0 510

Data Source:

:
:
i
!

i
1

s
&
£
2
]
5
:
:
8
:
o

]
‘%
;
3
;
F
g
| 8
14
g
B
:
£

City of Westminster




dld

I’ ’IHIIHHH #?

Ilmf:

l ‘
QAR My m\v "

12 TREVOR SQUARE, SW7




S S R N

Item No.

SUMMARY

No. 12 Trevor Square is a single-family dwelling which is a Grade li listed building and within
the Knightsbridge Conservation Area, The building is located on the east side of Trevor
Square and comprises lower ground, ground and two upper floors. Permission and consent is
sought for excavation works into garden for extension of the existing lower ground floor level
with terrace above and the erection of a mansard roof extension. Associated internal
alterations are also proposed.

The key issues for consideration are:

« The impact of the alterations on the character and appearance of the listed building and
the Knightsbridge Conservation Area;
» The impact of the extensions and terrace on residential amenity.

The proposal is considered acceptable in land use, amenity, design and conservation grounds
and complies with the policies set out in the Unitary Development Plan (UDP) and
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies {City Plan) and is therefore recommended for
approval.

CONSULTATIONS

KNIGHTSBRIDGE ASSOCIATION
Object on the grounds that basement extensions should not exceed 50% of the garden and
the increase in glazing would be a source of light pollution.

HIGHWAYS PLANNING
Undesirable on transportation grounds but could be considered acceptable.

BUILDING CONTROL
The structural method statement is considered to be acceptable.

ARBORICULTURAL OFFICER (verbally)
No concerns.

ADJOINING OWNERS/OCCUPIERS:
No. consulted: 14
No. of responses: 2

Two letters of objection have heen received on the following grounds:

Design

+ Size of the basement is disproportionate to the size of the listed building;

+ [If existing roof structure is original the roof extension is not acceptable in historic building
terms;
Upper ground floor extension is out of character;
Loss of the rear garden would impact on the character of the listed building and garden
square.

Other
» Concerns for trees in proximity of site.

ADVERTISEMENT/SITE NOTICE - Yes

Page 106



iterm No,
3

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
41 The Application Site

12 Trevor Square is a single-family dwelling which is a Grade |l listed building and within the
Knightsbridge Conservation Area. The building is located on the east side of Trevor Square,
which is one of the older squares in the city and forms part of a wider terrace of mid-
nineteenth century terraced houses of comparable architectural style. Consistent with the
character of the square, it is a quite modest home laid over three floors (plus lower ground
floor). Consistent with its earlier date than many terraces, it has a flat rear elevation rather
than including a closet wing, although other houses on the row have received later additions
of varying forms. The building remains internally essentially intact and externally little has
been altered.

4.2 Relevant History

11 Trevor Square — Permission and consent granted on 20 November 2012 for the demolition
of the existing ground floor extension and excavation work to create a new basement level
beneath the existing garden with the formation of a lightwell and terrace at rear ground floor
level.

10 Trevor Square — Permission and consent granted on 24 April 2012 for the demolition of
existing rear ground floor extension, excavation of rear garden and erection of extension at
rear basement level with roof terrace and associated railings above; alterations to fenestration
including new doors for roof terrace at ground floor level.

THE PROPOSAL

Planning permission and listed building consent are sought to excavate into garden for the
extension of the existing lower ground floor level including the demolition of the existing rear
single storey extension. The roof of the lower ground floor extension is sought to be used as a
terrace and a mansard roof extension is proposed at third floor level. Internal alterations in
association with the works are also proposed.

The scheme has been revised during the course of the application to omit the erection of a
single storey extension at upper ground floor level. The depth of the lower ground floor
extension has also been reduced, setting it back from the rear boundary wall.

DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 Land Use

The extended lower ground floor and roof extension would create additional residential
accommodation for this single-dwelling property. The proposed residential floorspace increase
is welcomed under Policy H3 of the UDP and Policy S14 of the City Plan, so the scheme is
acceptable in land use terms.

In terms of standard of accommodation, the proposed basement extension is considered

acceptable on the basis that a high proportion of habitable rooms within the dwelling receive
good levels of light.

Page 107



crar pmpe o L e e ek . s A A A

ltem No.
3

6.2 Townscape and Design

The application site is a remarkably intact early 19th century mid-terrace house on one of
Westminster's more modest and quiet squares. Internally the building remains substantially
intact and externailly little has been altered.

The demolition of the existing rear bathroom extension at lower ground floor level is to be
welcomed. However its impact is mitigated in part by its small scale and only partial width
across the rear fagade.

In relation to the basement extension two letters of objection from neighbours have been
received on the following grounds, the disproportionate size of the basement, the upper
ground floor extension which is not in keeping with the terrace character, and the loss of rear
garden. The Knightsbridge Association also objected on the grounds that the proposed
extension will exceed 50% of the garden and the fack of 1.2m of soil for planting.

Upon officer’s recommendation, the application has been revised during the course of the
application. The revisions include the omission of the single-storey extension at upper ground
floor level and the reduction of the depth of the basement from the rear boundary wali. The
floor to ceiling height is now similar to the basement extension at No 11 Trevor Square
adjacent. Additionally, the proposed balustrade to the upper ground floor terrace has been
changed from glazing to metal.

The proposed design changes to the building, in combination with the knowledge of what has
been approved to the adjacent property, means that the application is considered acceptable
in design terms.

The Knightsbridge Association refers to policy CM28.1 and states that the proposed scheme
is contrary to this. Whilst acknowledging the increasing trends towards basement excavation
and extension and the potential need to tighten requirements for applications and to introduce
limits on new basement development, there are no current policies in the City Plan that
specifically refers to basement extension. To this end, part of the revisions of the City Plan
which is currently being reviewed includes policy on basements. From the 18" of July to the
9" of September 2015 the Councii consulted on those revisions. This application was
submitted on the 15" of June 2015 prior to the consultation, therefore to apply this emerging
policy would be premature and unreasonable. Consequently, the application must be tested
against current development plan policies.

In these circumstances, whilst the size of the basement and the consequent reduction of the
rear outdoor space are regrettable, it is not considered reasonable to refuse permission on
this ground. The existing amenity space is only a courtyard with limited bed planting along the
rear and side walls. The proposed size of space for outdoor space at this level is similar to No
11 Trevor Square. The proposals will retain a small element of garden which following
revisions provide 1.2m of soil in accordance with the supplementary planning document
Basement development in Westminster

The two letters of objection from neighbouring residents stated that the remodelling of the roof
should not be supported if it is an original structure. The proposed roof extension is
acceptable in principle due to the now almost universal precedents set on this side of the
square. The design is also generally acceptable. During the course of the application the
proposed mansard roof has been amended to overcome discrepancies.

The proposed internal alterations shown are considered acceptable, limited to those works
associated with the extension proposals and for the fixing shut of one door at second floor

level. Page 108



Item No.

Following amendments the proposals are considered acceptable on listed building and
townscape grounds in accordance with DES1, DESS, DES6, DES10, $25 and $28 and the
guidance contained within our SPG 'Roofs' and 'Repairs and Alterations to Listed Buildings'.

6.3 Amenity

Policies 529 of the City Plan and ENV13 of the UDP seek to protect the amenity of existing
residents from the effects of new development.

The Knightsbridge Association objection letter expresses concerns about light pollution due to
the introduction of glazing to the rear of the basement extension. The proposed window will
face a wall of approximately 3.9m in height. It is considered that the introduction of glazing at
this level will not create an unacceptable level of light pollution to neighbouring residents
including those within Nos. 9 and 11 Lancelot Place.

The proposed terrace at upper ground floor level does not raise concerns as it is in line with
adjoining properties in terms of depth. The rear of the flat roof will not be accessible because
of the installation of a balustrade. This is considered to be an appropriate mitigation measure
to prevent overlooking for the adjoining properties in Trevor Square and Lancelot Place.

As mentioned in the design section it is regrettable that the proposed development occupies
the only available open space, but the creation of a first floor terrace will provide expected
outdoor amenity space for a family dwelling.

Regarding the impact of the construction works, a construction management plan (CMP) has
been submitted with the application. There are no objections to the scope of the CMP from the
Highways Planning Manager. A condition is recommended to limit the hours when noisy works
are permitted to Monday to Friday 08.00 to 18.00 and Saturdays 08.00 to 13.00 with not
excavation works on a Saturday.

Subject to recommended conditions the proposal is therefore considered acceptable in
amenity terms.

6.4  Transportation/Parking

The proposal does not raise any significant highway issues.
6.5 Economic Considerations

The economic benefits generated are welcome.

6.6 Other UDP/Westminster Policy Considerations

Central Government’s National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) came into effect on 27
March 2012. It sets out the Government's planning policies and how they are expected to be
applied. The NPPF has replaced almost ali of the Government’s existing published planning
policy statements/guidance as well as the circulars on planning obligations and strategic
planning in London. It is a material consideration in determining planning applications.

Until 27 March 2013, the City Council was able to give full weight to relevant policies in the
Core Strategy and London Plan, even if there was a limited degree of conflict with the
framework. The City Council is now required to give due weight to relevant policies in existing
plans “according to their degree of consistency” with the NPPF. Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies was adopted by Fullﬁgwil fbé’i November 2013 and is fully compliant



AT AN AR s e ot s R R R Lt i e e A i S S s

Item No.
3

with the NPPF. For the UDP, due weight should be given to relevant policies according to their
degree of consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies in the plan to the NPPF, the
greater the weight that may be given).

The UDP policies referred to in the consideration of these applications are considered to be
consistent with the NPPF unless stated otherwise.

6.7 London Plan

The proposal does not raise strategic issues.

6.8 Planning Obligations

The proposal does not trigger any requirement for Planning Obligations.

6.9 Environmental Assessment including Sustainability and Biodiversity lssues

The existing rear courtyard is already paved, therefore the basement will not result in the loss
of any garden space.

6.10 OtherlIssues
Structural issues relating to basement excavation

Studies have been undertaken which advise that subterranean development in a dense urban
environment, especially basements built under existing vulnerable structures is a challenging
engineering endeavour and that in particular it carries a potential risk of damage to both the
existing and neighbouring structures and infrastructure if the subterranean development is ill-
planned, poorly constructed and does not properly consider geology and hydrology.

While the Building Regulations determine whether the detailed design of buildings and their
foundations wil! allow the buildings to be constructed and used safely, the National Planning
Policy Framework March 2012 states that the planning system should contribute to and
enhance the natural and local environment by preventing both new and existing development
from contributing to or being put at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by land
instability.

The NPPF goes on to state that in order to prevent unacceptable risks from land instability,
planning decisions should ensure that new development is appropriate for its location. 1t
advises that where a site is affected by land stability issues, responsibility for securing a safe
development rests with the developer and/or landowner.

The NPPF advises that planning decisions should ensure that a site is suitable for its new use
taking account of ground conditions and land instability and any proposals for mitigation, and
that adequate site investigation information, prepared by a competent person, is presented.

Officers consider that in the light of the above it would be justifiable to adopt a precautionary
approach to these types of development where there is a potential to cause damage to
adjoining structures. To address this, the applicant has provided a structural engineer's report
axplaining the likely methodology of excavation. Any report by a member of the relevant
professional institution carries a duty of care which should be sufficient to demonstrate that
the matter has been properly considered at this early stage.

The purpose of such a report at the planning application stage is to demonstrate that a
subterranean development can hig aaétricﬁjl on the particular site having regard to the site,



s S ot A A LA <« U S . B T T RS

ltem No.
K]

existing structural conditions and geology. It does not prescribe the engineering technigues
that must be used during construction which may need to be altered once the excavation has
occurred. The structural integrity of the development during the construction is not controlled
through the planning system but through Building Regulations and the Party Wall Act.

The submitted structural report has been considered by our Building Control officers who
advised that the structural approach appears satisfactory. We are not approving this report or
conditioning that the works shall necessarily be carried out in accordance with the report. Iis
purpose is to show, with the integral professional duty of care, that there is no reasonable
impediment foreseeable at this stage to the scheme satisfying the Building Regulations in due
course. This report will be attached for information purposes to the decision letter. It is
considered that this is as far as we can reasonably take this matter under the planning
considerations of the proposal as matters of detailed engineering techniques and whether
they secure the structural integrity of the development and neighbouring buildings during
construction is not controlled through the planning regime but through other statutory codes
and regulations as cited above. To go further would be to act beyond the bounds of planning
control.

Trees

Two respondents expressed concerns about the impact of the excavation works on the trees
in the vicinity of the site. However, there are no trees in the properties immediately adjoining
the application site. The Council’s tree officer verbally confirmed that the proposal raises no

concerns.

Conclusion

Following revisions to the scheme and subject to appropriate conditions, it is not considered
that the objections can be sustained to warrant refusing the application. The proposal is
considered acceptable in design and amenity terms subject to the conditions set out in the
draft decision letters.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

QoA W=

Application form

Email from the Knightsbridge Association dated 28.07.2015
Memo from the Highways Planning Manager dated 13.07.2015
Memo from Building Control dated 24.07.2015

Email from occupier at 10 Trevor Square dated 31.07.2015
Email from occupier at 11 Trevor Square dated 31.07.2015

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT OR WISH TO INSPECT ANY OF THE
BACKGROUND PAPERS PLEASE CONTACT VINCENT NALLY ON 020 7641 5947 OR BY
E-MAIL — vnally@westminster.gov.uk

[d_wpdoesishort-te\sci2015-10-2Ritem 14.doci0
18/10/2015

Page 111



15/056331/FULL

DRAFT DECISION LETTER

Address: 12 Trevor Square, London, SW7 1DT

Proposal: Excavation works into garden for extension of the existing lower ground floor level

including the demolition of existing rear single storey extension. Use of the proposed
extension roof as a terrace. Erection of a third floor mansard roof extension.

Plan Nos: Site location plan; 596/P01 B; 596/P02 C; 596/P03 B; 596/P04 B; 779TV200;

779TV300; Design, access, and heritage statement dated 12 June 2015;
Construction and traffic management plan dated 12 June 2015.

For information only - Basement impact assessment and basement construction
statement dated 12 June 2015.

Case Officer: Aurore Manceau Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 7013

Recommended Condition{s) and Reason(s}):

1

2

: _ hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the drawings and
isted on this decision letter, and any drawings approved subsequently by the
"I Iannlng authority pursuant to any conditions on this decision letter.

> betweeryﬁfs 00:and 48.00 Monday to Friday;
* between 08.00:and 13.00.0n Saturday; and

* not atall on S 'da}\ bark holidays and public holidays.

You must carryMasement exca atlwtt::nly

" between 08.00 and18:00 Mondayto Friday; and
* not at all on Saturidj' undays, bairk holidays and public holidays.
g :
Noisy work must not take pl\xe cg{csﬁ‘e\these ho‘urs (C11BA)

S e _..H_\
Reason: e i
To protect the environment of nelg ou_r_ln' fesidents. Thls isas et out in S$29 and 832 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Po and ENV 8 of our Unitary

i€s adopted Nove’m 61207
Development Plan that we adopted in Januay 07 (31 1AL )
\/ s /\/m

oy

/
- “‘-;
All new work to the outside of the building muét\match existirg ori¢ I ork in terms of the
choice of materials, method of construction and finished appe .- Mis applies unless
by conditions to this

differences are shown on the drawings we have appm)éd 'o'r"'arer@%
permission. (C26AA) /

Reason:

To protect the special architectural or historic interest of this ted building and to make sure the
development contributes to the character and appearance of the Knightsbridge Conservation
Area. This is as set out in 25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted
November 2013 and DES 1, DES 10 (A} and paras 10.108 to 10.146 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26FD)

Page 112



15/05331/FULL
You must apply to us for approval of details of the following parts of the development -

a} new windows, doors, and rooflights (scale 1:5);
b) new balustrade/railings (scale 1:5);
¢) overall external profiles of extension (scale 1:20).

You must not start any work on these parts of the development until we have approved what
you have sent us.

You must then carry out the work according to these details. (C26DB)

Reason:

To protect the special architectural or historic interest of this listed building and to make sure the
development contributes to the character and appearance of the Knightsbridge Conservation
Area. This is as set out in 525 and 528 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted
November 2013 and DES 1, DES 10 {A) and paras 10.108 to 10.146 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26FD)

You must paint all new outside rainwater and soil pipes black and keep them that colour.
(C2BEA)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Knightsbridge Conservation Area. This is as set
out in 525 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26BE)

You must not put structures such as canopies, fences, loggias, trellises or satellite or radio
antennae on the roof terrace. (C26NA)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Knightshridge Conservation Area. This is as set
out in 825 and 528 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26BE)

The balustrade on the upper ground floor terrace must be installed prior to the use of the flat
roof as a terrace. You must then retain and maintain the balustrade for as long as part of the
roof is used a terrace.

Reason:

To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring properties, as set out in $29
of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 13 of our
Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R21AC)

Informative(s):

In dealing with this application the City Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We have
made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies in Westminster's City Plan;
Strategic Policies adopted November 2(pég+git111§evelopment Plan, Supplementary



BN T

: 15/05331/FULL
Planning documents, planning briefs and other informal written guidance, as well as offering a
full pre application advice service, in order to ensure that applicant has been given every
opportunity to submit an application which is likely to be considered favourably. In addition,
where appropriate, further guidance was offered to the applicant at the validation stage.

A Groundwater Risk Management Permit from Thames Water will be required for discharging
groundwater into a public sewer. Any discharge made without a permit is deemed illegal and
may result in prosecution under the provisions of the Water Industry Act 1991. We would expect
the developer to demonstrate what measures he will undertake to minimise groundwater
discharges inta the public sewer. Permit enguiries should be directed to Thames Water's Risk
Management Team by telephoning 02035779483 or by emailing
wwgriskmanagement@thameswater.co.uk. Application forms should be completed on line via
www.thameswater.co.uk/wastewaterquality.

We recommend you speak to the Head of the District Surveyors' Services about the stability
and condition of the walls to be preserved. He may ask you to carry out other works to secure
the walls. Please phone 020 7641 7240 or 020 7641 7230. (122AA)

The construction manager should keep residents and others informed about unavoidable
disturbance such as noise, dust and extended working hours, and disruption of traffic. Site
neighbours should be given clear information well in advance, preferably in writing, perhaps by
issuing regular bulletins about site progress.

Under the Highways Act 1980 you must get a licence from us before you put skips or
scaffolding on the road or pavement. It is an offence to break the conditions of that licence. You
may also have to send us a programme of work so that we can tell your neighbours the likely
timing of building activities. For more advice, please phone our Highways Licensing Team on
020 7641 2560. (I35AA)

Please make sure that the lighting is designed so that it does not cause any nuisance for
neighbours at night. If a neighbour considers that the lighting is causing them a nuisance, they
can ask us to take action to stop the nuisance (under section 102 of the Clean Neighbourhoods
and Environment Act 2005). (I39AA)

You are encouraged to join the nationally recognised Considerate Constructors Scheme. This
commits those sites registered with the Scheme to be considerate and good neighbours, as well
as clean, respectful, safe, environmentally conscious, responsible and accountable. For more
information please contact the Considerate Constructors Scheme directly on 0800 783 1423,
siteenquiries@ccscheme.org.uk or visit www.ccscheme.org.uk.

Page 114



15/05332/LBC
DRAFT DECISION LETTER

Address: 12 Trevor Square, London, SW7 1DT
Proposal: Excavation works into garden for extension of the existing lower ground floor level
including the demolition of existing rear single storey extension. Use of the proposed

extension roof as a terrace. Erection of a third floocr mansard roof extension.
Associated internal alterations.

Plan Nos: Site location plan; 596/P01 B; 596/P02 C; 596/P03 B; 596/P04 B; 779TV200;
779TV300; Design, access, and heritage statement dated 12 June 2015.

Case Officer: Aurore Manceau Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 7013

Recommended Condition(s) and Reason{s):

 hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the drawings and
ted on this decision letter, and any drawings approved subsequently by the
olanning authority pursuant to any conditions on this decision letter.

., L - ;
Reason: g
fo?ﬁ&avopance'of dg:ubt and in the interests of proper planning.

[ /
2 E%:(for base et e;;c&v%n work, you must carry out any building work which can be heard

£ 1! 18,00 Monday to Friday;
* between O 00:_and 13.00.0n Saturday; and

Lha holidays and public holidays.

You must carry ouf basement excf'a;{ia ork only:
* between 08.00 and48 nday\o Friday; and
* not at all on Satundays Su aﬁ\ha holidays and public holidays.

Noisy work must not take p\:a%m{tsud%these ho}.lrs (C11BA)

-,

"‘x,
// ,/\' /

Reason: T L _
To protect the environment of nelghbourln ’e5|d;nts Thl' ,
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Polig doptéd Novemker20
Development Plan that we adopted in Januap;/pBOT ( 11AC)

3 Al new work and improvements inside and oaTsicéthe builgi g T tch existing original
adjacent work in terms of the choice of materials, method of cor 0 and finished

appearance. This applies unless differences are showryon the: a [ ved drawings or are
required in conditions to this permission. (C27AA) ,

Reason; \ S

To protect the special architectural or historic interest of thls\ll’éted building and to make sure the
development contributes to the character and appearance of the Knightsbridge Conservation
Area. This is as set out in 525 and 528 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted
November 2013 and DES 1, DES 10 (A) and paras 10.108 to 10.148 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26FD)

s set out in S29 and S32 of
and ENV 6 of our Unitary

4 You must apply to us for approval of detditag) @elfdibwing parts of the development -



15/056332/LBC

a) new windows, doors, and rooflights (scale 1:5);
b} new balustrade/railings (scale 1:5};
c) overall external profiles of extension {(scale 1:20).

You must not start any work on these parts of the development untit we have approved what
you have sent us.

You must then carry out the work according to these details. (C26DB)

Reason:

To protect the special architectural or historic interest of this listed building and to make sure the
development contributes to the character and appearance of the Knightsbridge Conservation
Area. This is as set out in S25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan; Strategic Policies adopted
November 2013 and DES 1, DES 10 (A} and paras 10.108 to 10.146 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26FD)

You must paint all new outside rainwater and scil pipes black and keep them that colour.
(C26EA)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Knightsbridge Conservation Area. This is as set
out in 525 and 528 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26BE)

You must not put structures such as canopies, fences, loggias, trellises or satellite or radio
antennae on the roof terrace. (C26NA)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Knightsbridge Conservation Area. This is as set
out in 5§25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan; Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 8 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26BE)

Informative(s):

SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR GRANTING CONDITIONAL LISTED BUILDING CONSENT -
In reaching the decision to grant listed building consent with conditions, the City Council has
had regard to the relevant policies in the National Planning Policy Framework March 2012, the
London Plan July 2011, Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013,
and the City of Westminster Unitary Development Plan adopted January 2007, as well as
relevant supplementary planning guidance, representations received and all other material
considerations.

The City Council decided that the proposed works would not harm the character of this building
of special architectural or historic interest.

In reaching this decision the following were of particular relevance:

$25 and $28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies and DES 10 including paras 10.130
to 10.146 of the Unitary Development Plan, and paragraph 2.3 and 2.4 of our Supplementary
Planning Guidance: Repairs and Alterations to Li6sted Buitdings.

Page 1



15/05332/LBC

You will need to contact us again if you want to carry out work on the listed building which is not
referred to in your plans. This includes:

* any extra work which is necessary after further assessments of the building's condition;
* stripping out or structural investigations; and
* any work needed to meet the building regulations or other forms of statutory control,

Please quote any 'TP' and 'RN' reference numbers shown on this consent when you send us
further documents.

itis a criminal offence to carry out work on a listed building without our consent. Please remind

your client, consultants, contractors and subcontractors of the terms and conditions of this
consent. (I59AA)

Page 117



i
o~ ‘ g
& = k)
= =
© i (]
; >
3 0
— T foi L
. Bt
' i
5 —\-|1 E}J__'”-_.—

i

| H
— ™
c =
= (=
=] =
@© ©

} I|
@ D
L Ll

il

Page 118




danng il
T e a5
ang S0 Wiy
Ty Guma) —1—]#-.!.{!'
™ WALIEE § SNV HOOT
== Lol
soonEELEn
ey TVIOS HONINE &
] TR AT
-
o
LU
"
e

Ueld J0o|4
pu02sg

ue|d Jooj4
punois

ue|d J1oo|4
Jsii4

ueld 1004
Juswaseg

Page 119

o
= S
L7
sdpaps.  tm
k] . - el
vy ey .
ol By -
i
[ ooy - -h
) fup -
wlii fogey- o
[ ]
B ]
mpeg- W
nfmpmiceg- @
e poay O ]+ el
B T
b L PR
ke bopir’ -
SUIRTHLY




W1 DT D P RO

T R " T B
i 8 g E z L

SHY14 HOOW OISCHONE oo

evies v

)

NI IEY e D
W OALNEN Tang TTEN

EV I 001 FVOS

B LT R g

I¥Ie QS WIS

o

&

40074 ANOD3S

E
woouasg

€L '©°N

(quwsNYIW MIN)
40074 Q¥IHL

.
_
__.!!_._E-E.i i
o Juayxs “xosddy T

WNOO¥a38 M3N

1
(paysep) plesuep
10 waxa ‘xouddy

ad

Bugsixa yajew
0] SIS JIqUIN MBN

€L ON

a

&
1
i
|
[l

Amv

HOOTd 154

NOIL43D3H 378n0a

duiey

0014 ANNO¥D ¥IMOT &v

¥OOTd ONNOYD #3ddn RS Bl 5] Joop SEURD
2 il paEIsul 0G 01
m - paEsuB g 0] W p Saley U MoN
> sl y g pw o {
i I
I i \nﬂiy
]
" TIVH
i “IN3
i ONINIO €1 'ON
€LON ; ’ LL'©N
- NaWomy |
poysjowsp
0 o) Buim jesop
Bugsixa jo sury
ERLELET
Ipem dpsed Bupsixg
BEIPUTH
T VIV
i NIQHYD
Wiy jooy il joon
1081 paruvld
sawsm
anoge ylny Wy Iem
w'| §o yidap oy
Ias am Bugueg
MV T
Auwpunog Apedosg
) / ___ “1d LOT3ONYT LL
v 757 | |
1d 1OTIONVT 6 | | /

Lo
— ]

LL "ON

Page 120



1 SO 1 A

EVIE0DLL FTVOS
s ¥ € z L 0
Wi 0§ IS
[ S S .
5 v £ 4 ] L}

JUVNOS YOAJNL LL

wg'y ja yidap
o 1S yin Bugueld

g o9 Bupm

(15v3) NOLLYAITT ¥VIN

ww JYVNDS YOAJNL TL JYVNDS YOAI¥L EL

1@sopa Bupsixa jo auy

Heipury

(e Aywdd Bupsixg |

din payapg eq o e
Uy mepup Bugs)xg

100y Bupsies jo aury

LAImEEEEY ST VT
034N T TGN

EALON

o
a

‘ad
i

TINAA0FR00YE 421 Buuusg
PEIUMLILOD 13K J0U UOINEU0S -
£1"ON I pIRSURY panosdde jo sup)

(153M) NOILYAZI3 INOY4
JUVNOS YOAFYLEL JYVNDOS YOAINL ZL @v JUVNOS YOAINL LL
‘@d ad
b
pEmEAGs 6q
o Sjed) P RIS U0 mEN

Page 121




EY IR 0011 W. oS5

[ == s . e R
s L 4 2 3 o

YOS WIS

V-¥ NOILO3S

FUVNDS HOAINLZL

Bugsxe sl 30V1d 10T3ONVT 14

Y2IEW O SIEIS G} MIN

ANNNDS AOATHL _—
™ oy o .
| eSiame [anly) w R SR — 088
.. Tt gt e ot | GLADE | § | $

+a3s

NOILd3D23H
3nanoa

uy
g1 "ou) Aiepunoq Asedeold

e Aused Buujolpy r’

Bugsins
YIEW 0} SARIE J8GUIR MEN o
amnoaddy
AL wooua3as
o} joap Bunsixy = Mopuis
Bujpuey |ass) moj map
- ~
(pausep] 9-8 NOILD3S
Jo0u Bunsixe jo aur -~ ..n Ifi m
Woodas i = UMBYS JsaARd
M3N .M m. sapun ynes Buysing
“
e s PE
st | 2 m
= i
~

PRIEISU|8L B 6]
ayefl g samys uos) may



»»»» e

u’B.Su-l"h.wv!..uﬂ £¥ I 00iF VWIS
O O E O
- Jedio H 5 v € z F 0
| C@UmO—I_ Lvie0sE IWIS
s | N O O O
| CE R e T e
[ e ewiows |
¥ T e | 2-D NOILD3S
[ Ve |
s e
SR T JUVNDS MOAIMLZL
L] s Lt
i e 39¥1d LOT3ONYT 1E

LMENOONDT
| WVNOSAOAIM EL oy |
e — gl
_{m ey | mw [ |
| 4 gt o | G RERET

TE NN T |

Bunsixa
YW OF SHEIS JIGUIN MIN

MOpu|M
Bupue) |aaa) me| maN

hl
| (paysep)
m 1 o 000 Busixe jo sury
~ . Wooxa3s
| 33 ManN {14 "ou)
3 m puokeq joos presuey
] z Bupsixa jo supy
vz e, R 8 m
4 o - m. ‘
]
& § (14 "ou)
~ e Aued Bugsixe jo aupq
bl i e

Page 123



This page is intentionally left blank



; et

= A Sl

Agenda“ Ite m4 |

item No.
4

CITY OF WESTMINSTER

PLANNING APPLICATIONS
COMMITTEE

Date
27 October 2015

Classification
For General Release

Report of
Director of Planning

Wards involved
Regent's Park

Subject of Report 5 Denning Close, London, NW8 9PJ
Proposal Creation of new basement storey with two front lightwells, one rear
lightwell and one rear glazed rooflight.

Agent The Basement Design Studio

On behalf of Mrs Sally Kattan

Registered Number 15/01829/FULL TP / PP No TP/10352

Date of Application 02.03.2015 Date 11.06.2015
amended/
completed

Category of Application Minor

Historic Building Grade Unlisted

Conservation Area St John's Wood

Development Plan Context

- London Plan July 2011

- Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies 2013

- Unitary Development Plan
(UDP) January 2007

QOutside London Plan Central Activities Zone

Outside Central Activities Zone

Stress Area

Qutside Stress Area

Current Licensing Position

Not Applicable

1. RECOMMENDATION

Grant conditional permission.

Page 125



Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's

m This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordnance

Stationery Office. Data Source;

" 0 510 20Metres
Citv of Westminster | S Crown copyright andlor database right 2013,

Ligalaal

Mata: 19/M40/0N0N1 E



5 DENNING CLOSE, NW8




ey

Item No.

4

SUMMARY

Permission is sought for the excavation of a basement with two front lightwells, one rear
lightwell and one rear glazed rooflight and follows permission granted in 2013 for a smaller
basement. The proposal has attracted a number of objections from neighbouring residents on
the grounds of the impact of construction works on their amenities, especially regarding the
potential access issues generated by construction vehicles attending the site.

The key issues are:

+ The impact of the proposal upon the character and appearance of this house, and this part
of the St John's Wood Conservation Area.
s The impact on the amenities of neighbours.

The proposal once built would preserve the character and appearance of this part of the St
John’s Wood Conservation Area. Conditions are recommended to secure an updated
Construction Management Plan and limit the hours of building work to seek to address
neighbours concerns as far as practicabie. Subject to these conditions the proposal would
accord with the UDP and City Plan policies and a favourable recommendation is made.

CONSULTATIONS
ORIGINAL CONSULTATION

ST JOHNS WOOD SOCIETY

Basements in locations such as this result in a significant loss of amenlty for other residents.
Access to 5 Denning Close is severely restricted via a narrow private road and we request
that the case officer carefully considers the construction management plan and the access
issues raised by the residents of Denning Close.

BUILDING CONTROL

The structural method statement is considered to be acceptable. An investigation of existing
structures and geclogy has been undertaken and found to be of sufficient detail. The
existence of groundwater, including underground rivers, has been researched and the
likelihood of local flooding or adverse effects on the water table has been found to be
negligible. The basement is to be constructed using RC underpinning which is considered to
be appropriate for this site. The proposals to safeguard adjacent properties during
construction are considered to be acceptable.

ARBORICULTURAL OFFICER
Concern regarding the birch tree in the front garden and incursions to its root protection area.

HIGHWAYS PLANNING MANAGER
Acceptable on transportation grounds.

ADJOINING OWNERS/OCCUPIERS AND OTHER REPRESENTATIONS

No. Consulted: 13: Total No. of Replies: 7.

Objections from five neighbours, from an architect making representations on behalf of one of
those neighbours and the Directors of the Management Company for Denning Close on one
or all of the following grounds,

Townscape /Design
« Bulk of property disproportionate to surroundings.

Amenity
» Noise and fumes from basen*gg&%leiﬁréjld disturb neighbours.



Item No.
4

QOther Matters

Management Company of Denning Close states each shareholder in the company has
rights of way over the entire private road. Skip and other construction facilities are
proposed outside the curtitage of no 5 therefore Certificate B on planning application
should have been signed.

Denning Close a narrow private road where access for large construction vehicles would
be impossible.

Safety problem during construction because of construction vehicles.

Concerns regarding access of vehicles including emergency vehicles specifically Fire
Engines to No.4

Congestion on Hall Road which will be caused during construction adding to current
problem.

Denning Close a private road which cannot prevent visitors and tradesmen parking along
length. '

A parking audit of Denning Close has been submitted by residents in support of their
objections. They cite this as demonstrating the access problems which would be
encountered by construction vehicles and the access and safety issues that would result
for pedestrians and cyclists. The applicants construction management plan does not
adequately address these issues.

Skip would restrict the width of the road and grab lorry would not he able to fit alongside
the skip to empty it.

One skip does not allow segregation of waste as detailed in Site Waste Management
Report

Dwell time stated in Construction Management Plan is unrealistic and optimistic but would
block access to No 4, for that time in any case.

3m hoarding around the skip would not enable grab lorry operation.

Conflict with refuse collection.

No permission for use of road or loss of right of way from Management Company of
Denning Close.

Failure of applicant to consult with neighbours.

Amendment to CMP should require withdrawal of current application and new application.
Number of basement applications in Denning Close

Not enough road width to facilitate vehicles passing by skip.

A hoarding around the skip is the only appropriate method. The use of a tarpaulin covering
it is insufficient, unsafe and impractical. A report on the safety and risk of injury of using a
tarpaulin by Cooper Safety Associates has been submitted along with the objection.
Insufficient care put into CMP

Tracking diagram shown in CMP not possible and submitted assessment by Atkins shows
this.

At least three times a day when vehicles attend the site access to the road will be limited.
Pedestrian access to No. 4 would be difficult when road occupied by vehicles because it is
narrow and has trees and a lamppost on it.

Surface water would be pushed to neighbouring gardens

Disturbance during construction.

Structural stability put at risk.

ADVERTISEMENT/SITE NOTICE: Yes

REVISED CONSULTATION (Amendment to Construction Management Plan and alteration to
form of basement to move basement excavation away from tree in front garden),

ST JOHN'S WOOD SOCIETY
Any response to be reported verbally.

Page 129



Item No.

4

HIGHWAYS PLANNING MANAGER

The Construction Management Plan appears to cover all the issues we would usually expect
to be covered, Given the historical nature of Westminster streets, it is not uncommon for large
construction vehicles to need to manoeuvre backwards and forwards to be able to turn
corners or gain access to mews type locations. Alternatively, smaller vehicles could be used,
particularly relating to removal of spoil. These might be able to make the turn/reverse with
fewer forward and reversing movements, but may increase the number of trips to and from the
site required as they can carry less material. Suggests the CMP.could do with some very
minor updating. '

ARBORICULTURAL OFFICER

No objection to current proposal. Scheme amended to move basement excavation away from
tree and retain existing wall and foundations to the car pont. For clarity recommended
condition requiring submission of new protection plan and method statement.

ADJOINING OWNERS/OCCUPIERS AND OTHER REPRESENTATIONS

No. Consulted: 13; Total No. of Replies: 3.

Letters from two neighbours who had also replied to the first consultation and from a
representative of ocne of those neighbours maintaining their objections on all of the grounds
stated in the original consultation above.

ADVERTISEMENT/SITE NOTICE: Yes

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

4.1 The Application Site

5 Denning Close is a two storey unlisted building located within the St John’s Wood
Conservation Area located within a private close. The property is in use as a single family
dwellinghouse.

4.2  Planning History

Permission was granted on 25.09.2013 for the creation of new basement storey with two front
lightwells and one rear glazed roof 13/07524/FULL. This has not been implemented.

THE PROPOSAL

Planning permission is sought for the excavation of a new basement with two front lightwells
and one rear glazed roof.

The propesal has been amended during the course of its consideration. These amendments
have involved changes to the area of excavation to ensure the protection of a tree in the front
garden and changes to the Construction Management Plan including removing a compressor
and materials store from Denning Close so that only a skip was located on the close itself as
in the Construction Management Plan for the approved basement scheme. These
amendments have all been subject to consultation.

DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 Land Use

The principle of additional residential floorspace in land use terms is supported by Policy H3 of
the UDP.

Page 130



ltem No.

6.2 Townscape and Design

An objection has been made to the proposal on grounds that the bulk of proposal is
disproportionate to surroundings. However as this is a basement excavation it is largely
subterranean and therefore has limited impact in design terms on this modern building or on
the wider St John's Wood Conservation Area. The lightwells are not overly large and are
located at the front and side of the house covered with metal grilles. All of the lightwells and
the ground floor rooflight are discreetly located and the rear and sidefrear ightwell are not
visible from any surrounding properties. The use of timber sash windows to match the
remainder of the property is considered appropriate. The proposals are considered acceptable
in design terms and would preserve the character and appearance of the St John's Wocod
Conservation Area.

The proposal would be consistent with Policies DES1, DES5 and DES9 of the UDP and
Palicies 525 and 528 in the City Plan.

6.3 Residential Amenity

The proposed development, once complete and by reason of its subterranean nature and the
small scale and location of the above ground works, would not result in unacceptable loss of
amenity. An objection has been received regarding potential noise and fumes generated by
the boiler proposed in the basement however boilers are standard small scale domestic
equipment that would not generate unreasonable amenity issues. Accordingly, the proposal
woulld be consistent with Policy ENV13 of the UDP and Policy S29 of the City Plan.

6.4  Transportation/Highways

One off street car parking space exists at the premises and this is maintained as a result of
the proposal. On this basis the Highways Planning Manager has no objection to the proposal
on transportation grounds. A number of objections have been received relating to access and
transportation but these relate to temporary issues during the eonstruction and are dealt with
in section 6.11 below.

6.5 Equalities and Diversities

No change to access arrangementé into this house.

6.6 Economic Considerations

Not relevant in the determination of this householder application.

6.7 The London Plan

This proposal raises no strategic issues.

6.8 Central Government Advice

Central Government’s National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF} came into effect on 27
March 2012. [t sets out the Government’s planning policies and how they are expected to be
applied. The NPPF has replaced almost all of the Government’s existing published planning
policy statements/guidance as well as the circulars on planning obligations and strategic

planning in London. It is a material consideration in determining planning applications.

Until 27 March 2013, the City Council was able to give full weight to relevant policies in the
Core Strategy and London Plan, evenl.gthere \ﬂ_ﬁf limited degree of conflict with the
age



m e i e i euremEE A

Item No.
4

framework. The City Council is now required to give due weight to relevant policies in existing
plans “according to their degree of consistency” with the NPPF. Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies was adopted by Full Council on 13 November 2013 and is fully compliant
with the NPPF. For the UDP, due weight should be given to relevant policies according to their
degree of consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies in the plan to the NPPF, the
greater the weight that may be given).

The UDP policies referred to in the consideration of this application are considered to be
consistent with the NPPF unless stated otherwise.

6.9 Planning Obligations
Not relevant in the determination of this householder application.
6.10 Environmental Assessment including Sustainability and Biodiversity Issues

The City Council’'s Arboricultural Officer has no objection to the current proposal. The scheme
has been amended to move the proposed basement excavation away from the silver birch
tree in the front garden and to retain the existing wall and foundations to the car port. This is
considered sufficient to ensure the protection of the tree. To further safeguard this tree a
condition is recommended requiring the submission of a new tree protection plan and method
statement. :

6.11 Other Matters
Basement Excavation

In terms of the progression of our policy towards basements, the City Council recently
adopted its Supplementary Pianning Document (SPD} ‘Basement Development in
Westminster’ on 24 October 2014. The SPD provides detailed advice and clarification on how
current policy is implemented in relation to basement development. It does not introduce any
additional restrictions on basement development above and beyond the precautionary
approach that the City Council had already adopted in response to such development.

The Draft Basements Policy remains the subject of consultation and has not yet been
adopted. It is this document which will provide a specific basement policy and it will form part
of the local plan (replacing the UDP) in due course. It has some, but only very limited, legal
weight (known as material weight or a material consideration). It will not gain more legal
weight until after consultation and amendment and will need to be tested at an independent
examination before formal legal adoption.

The new basements policy may introduce restrictions on basement excavations provided
there is a valid planning reason for doing so, but, as explained above, it has to go through a
formal process including an examination in public by an independent Inspector and then legal
adoption and it is not, therefore, likely to be formally adopted until early 2018.

In this case concern has been raised by residential occupiers of neighbouring properties over
the potential impact of the basement excavation on the structure and foundations on adjoining
Grade |l listed properties in this terrace. While the Building Regulations determine whether the
detailed design of buildings and their foundations will allow the buildings to be constructed and
used safely, the National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) March 2012 states that the
planning system should contribute to and enhance the natural and local environment by
preventing both new and existing development from contributing to or being put at
unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by land instability.

Page 132



item No.

4

Studies have been undertaken which advise that subterranean development in a dense urban
environment, especially basements built under existing vulnerable structures, is a challenging
engineering endeavor and that in particular it carries a potential risk of damage to both the
existing and neighbouring structures and infrastructure if the subterranean development is ill-
planned, poorly constructed and does not properly consider geology and hydrology.

While the Building Regulations determine whether the detailed design of buildings and their
foundations will allow the buildings to be constructed and used safely, the NPPF March 2012
states that the planning system should contribute to and enhance the natural and local
environment by preventing both new and existing development from contributing to or being
put at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by land instability.

The NPPF goes on to state that in order to prevent unacceptable risks from land instability,
planning decisions should ensure that new development is appropriate for its location. It
advises that where a site is affected by land stability issues, responsibility for securing a safe
development rests with the developer and/or landowner.

The NPPF advises that planning decisions should ensure that a site is suitable for its new use
taking account of ground conditions and land instability and any proposals for mitigation, and
that adequate site investigation information, prepared by a competent person, is presented.

Officers consider that in the light of the ahove it would be justifiable to adopt a precautionary
approach to these types of development where there is a potential to cause damage to
adjoining structures, particularly where the buildings in question are heritage assets, as is the
case with this site. To seek to address this, the applicant has provided a structural engineer’s
report explaining the likely methodology of excavation. Any report by a member of the relevant
professional institution carries a duty of care which should be sufficient to demonstrate that
the matter has been properly considered at this early stage.

The purpose of such a report at the planning application stage is to demonstrate that a
subterranean development can be constructed on the particular site having regard to the site,
existing structural conditions and geology. It does not prescribe the engineering technigues
that must be used during construction which may need te be altered once the excavation has
occurred. The structural integrity of the development during the construction is not controlled
through the planning system but through Building Regulations and the Party Wall Act.

An objection has been received from a neighbour concerned about the structural implications
of the proposed basement on the foundations of neighbouring buildings and on the potential
for surface water to be pushed to surrounding gardens. Building Control advise that the
structural approach for the construction of the proposed basement is acceptable. The
existence of groundwater has been researched and the likelihood of local flooding or adverse
effects on the water table has been found to be negligible.

We are not approving this report or conditioning that the works shall necessarily be carried out
in accordance with the report. Its purpose is to show, with the integral professional duty of
care, that there is no reasonable impediment foreseeable at this stage to the scheme
satisfying the Building Regulations in due course. This report will be attached for information
purposes to the decision letter. It is considered that this is as far as we can reasonably take
this matter under the planning considerations of the proposal as matters of detailed
engineering techniques and whether they secure the structural integrity of the development
and neighbouring buildings during construction is not controlled through the planning regime
but through other statutory codes and reguiations as cited above. To go further would be to
act beyond the bounds of planning control.

Page 133



[tem No.

Construction Management

The Construction Management Plan (CMP) has been altered a number of times during the
consideration of the application largely in response to neighbours congerns.-Only a skip is
proposed on the carriageway of the close itself and tracking diagrams demonstrate the ability
of construction vehicles to manoceuvring.

The Management Company of Denning Close state each shareholder in the company has
rights of way over the entire private road. As skip and other construction facilities are
proposed outside the curtilage of no 5 they claim Certificate of ownership B should have been
signed. However as all of the proposed development is taking place within the freehold of
No.5 the correct ownership certificate, (Certificate A) has been submitted.

The majority of objections relate to Denning Close being a narrow private road where access
for large construction vehicles would be difficult or impossible. Although it is acknowledged
that access is likely to be challenging for large vehicles given the historical nature of
Westminster streets, it is not uncommon for larger construction vehicles to need to manoeuvre
backwards and forwards to be able to turn corners or gain access to mews type locations. The
CMP includes tracking diagrams demonstrating such manoeuvres are possible and although
these are disputed by objectors and they have submitted opinions from Atkins in support of
their claims these have been assessed by the Highways Planning Manager who has raised no
objection. The alternative to using the vehicles shown in the CMP would be using smaller
vehicles, particularly relating to removal of spoit. These might be able to make the
turn/reverse with fewer forward and reversing movements, but is likely to increase the number
of trips.

Objections have also been raised regarding the safety of pedestrians and cyclists as a result
of construction vehicles. It is considered that reasonable steps to ensure safety are contained
in the CMP. The plan states that at least 2 banksmen will be in position for all collections
/deliveries. The CMP also states that safe pedestrian access will be maintained at all times
and the right of way regularly cleaned and inspected for hazards.

Further concerns have been raised regarding vehicle access to No.4, especially emergency
vehicles. Even with the skip in place sufficient room is available on the carriageway for
emergency vehicles to pass. When a grab lorry is alongside the skip this would indeed block
access to No.4 but the CMP states that traffic management will be in operation and banksmen
in attendance to give priority to emergency vehicles and to minimise disruption to residents.
The safety report submitted by an objector states that delivery vehicles are not controlled by
London Basements and that the independent contractors providing them would not supply
them because of cost implications. it therefore concludes that there is a considerable risk that
a resident or child would be struck by a manoeuvring vehicle. This appears to be suggesting
that delivery vehicles would actively ignore the banksmen that London Basements state will
be provided on site which would be unlikely.

Objections have been made regarding potential congestion on Hall Road which will be adding
to an existing problem partly created by existing developments on that road. The applicant has
detailed a call off procedure in their CMP which is considered a reasonable plan to help
mitigate any such problem.

It has been claimed that the dwell time stated in the Construction Management is unrealistic
and optimistic. There is no reason to doubt the specified estimated dwell times of 30-45
minutes for concrete, 15-20 minutes for deliveries and 20-25 minutes for grab lorries. However
it is also stated that bankmen will also be in attendance during those times to avoid disruption.

Objections are also raised to the potential confiict between refuse collection vehicles and
construction vehicles. However ttpaflg@dfgc& of banksmen would limit such conflict.



Item No.

An objection has been made on the grounds that no permission for the use of road or the loss
of right of way has been gained from the Management Company of Denning Close. This is a
private matter between the applicant and the management company and planning permission
would not remove the need for the applicant to gain any other relevant consents.

Concern is raised that a number of planning applications for hasements are being made in
Denning Close. Although neighbours concerns are acknowledged it would not be reasonable
to refuse permission on this basis.

Objections have also been received to the use of tarpaulin to cover the skip rather than
hoarding used to surround it. A report from Cooper Safety Associates has been submitted by
an objector to support this claim. The concern being that tarpaulin would be unsafe for
passing pedestrians. Such Heaith and safety issues lie outside the planning acts. However
tarpaulin are commonly used for such situations and the use of hoardings would further
reduce the width of the available carriageway so would generate its own problems.

The residents’ concerns about the impact of the construction works on their amenities are well
understood. However it is considered that the Construction Management Plan is reasonable
and seeks to mitigate the impact of the works on neighbours. The Highways Planning
Manager has assessed the CMP and the report by Atkins submitted by an objector and
considers that the CMP is acceptable although suggests that it would be helpful to be updated
to make minor aiterations to remove reference to meeting with Westminster's highways
officers as this is a private road and to consider the use of smaller vehicles. A condition is
therefore recommended to require submission of an updated Censtruction Management Plan.

Conclusion

For the reasons set out in this report it is therefore recommended that conditional permission
is granted.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

SPoNORwN~

11.

Application forms.

Email from St Johns Wood Society dated 7.04.15

Email from Building Control undated.

Memorandum from Arboricultural Officer dated 7.08.15

Memorandum from Highways Planning Manager dated 20.3.2015 and email dated 24.09.15
Email from Chartered Surveyors instructed by 3 Hall Road Management Company dated 1.04.15
Letter from Owner/Occupier of 11 Denning Close dated 30.3.2015.

Letter from Qwner/Qccupier of 2 Denning Close dated 30.3.2015

Letter from Owner/Occupier of 10 Denning Close dated 25.3.2015 with attachment

. Letters and Emails from Owner/Occupier of 9 Denning Close dated 24.03.15 (including Technical

Note from Atkins dated 22.12.14), 21.04.15, 21.04.15, 1.05.15, 12.05.15, 2.06.15; 12.06.15,
4.09.15 (including a Health and Safety Report by Neil Cooper Safety Associates dated
25.5.20015 and e-mail from Atkins dated 24th June 2015).

Letters from Owner/Occupier of 4 Denning Close dated 18.03.15, 30.03.15, 7.04.15, 20.04.15,
21.04.15, 05.05.15, 03.07.15 (including letter from GAK Consultancy dated 2.09.13) 07.08.15,
27.08.15,

12. Letter from Peter French representing owner of 9 Denning Close dated 13.05.15

(F YOU HAVE ANY QUERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT OR WISH TO INSPECT ANY OF THE
BACKGROUND PAPERS PLEASE CONTACT SARAH WHITNALL ON 020 7641 2929 OR BY
E-MAIL — swhitnall@westminster.gov.uk

™ -~ el aY e
| pd dg e 1oo j\d_wpdocsishort-te\sch2015-10-27\itemn4..doch0
19/10/2015



15/01829/FULL

DRAFT DECISION LETTER
Address: 5 Denning Close, London, NW8 8PJ

Proposal: Creation of new basement storey with two front lightwells, one rear lightwell and one
rear glazed rooflight.

Plan Nos: 13-018-01A (Sheet 10of 4); 13-018-01A (Sheet 20f 4); 13-018-01A (Sheet 30f 4); 13-
018-01A (Sheet 4of 4); 13-018-02E (Sheet 1of 4); 13-018-02E (Sheet 2of 4); 13-
018-02E (Sheet 3of 4); 13-018-02E (Sheet 4of 4); Design and Access Statement,
Photographs: Construction Management Plan Revision D(for information only);
Environmental Performance Statement; Tree Report; Construction Method
Statement (for information only);

Case Officer: Richard Langston Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 7923

Recommended Condition(s) and Reason(s}:

tupme hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the drawings and
' ts 11 ed on thls demsuon letter, and any drawmgs approved subsequently by the

Re" :on /

e avmgance of déubt and in the interests of proper planning.
' s

? EMO'rfb‘ége-. i

at the bolindary of the

* between 08.00 and~
* not at all on Satunds

Noisy work must not take p\qce cg@e;these hours (C11BA)}

- ey

:/ o :
Reason: - \/" ™

To protect the environment of neigh joun / side ts T['us |s a\a t out in S29 and 532 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Po lgs} adopté Nove,m_,’\@j and ENV 6 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in Januar; 2007, (B\M

e

1al Work in terms of the
_,__is applies unless
ed by conditions to this

3 All new work to the outside of the building must
choice of materials, method of construction and finished ¢
differences are shown on the drawings we have approved of are s
permission. (C26AA) \

AN
Reason: \a/
To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the St John's Wood Conservation Area. This is as set
out in 825 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and

Page 136



15/01829/FULL

DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development
Pian that we adopted in January 2007. (R26BE)

Notwithstanding the documents submitted you must apply to us for approval of the ways in
which you will protect the trees on and close to the site. You must not start any demolition, site
clearance or building work, and you must not take any equipment, machinery or materials for
the development onto the site, until we have approved what you have sent us. You must then
carry out the work according to the approved details.

Reason:

To make sure that the trees on the site are adequately protected during building works. This is
as set out in $38 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 (A), ENV 16 and ENV 17 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January
2007. {(R31AC)

Pre Commencement Condition.

Notwithstanding the Construction Management Plan submitted no development shall take
place, including any works of demolition, until a construction management plan for the proposed
development has been submitted to and approved in writing by the City Council as local
planning authority. The plan shall provide the following details:

(N a construction programme including a 24 hour emergency contact number;

(i) parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors (including measures taken to ensure
satisfactory access and movement for existing occupiers of neighbouring properties during
construction);

(i) locations for loading/unloading and storage of plant and materials used in constructing
the development;

(iv)  erection and maintenance of security hoardings (including decorative displays and
facilities for public viewing, where appropriate);

(v) wheel washing facilities and measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during
construction; and

{vi) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and construction
works.

You must not start work until we have approved what you have sent us. You must then carry
out the development in accordance with the approved details.

Reason:

To protect the environment of residents and the area generally as set out in 529 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and STRA 25, TRANS 23,
ENV 5 and ENV 6 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

Informative(s):

In dealing with this application the City Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We have
made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies in Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies adopted November 2013, Unitary Development Plan, Supplementary
Planning documents, planning briefs and other informal written guidance, as well as offering a
full pre application advice service, in order to ensure that applicant has been given every
opportunity to submit an application which is likely to be considered favourably. In addition,
where appropriate, further guidance was offered to the applicant at the validation stage.

- Page 137



15/01829/FULL.

Condition 5 requires the submission of a revised Construction Management Plan. You are
advised to remove reference to meeting with the Local Highways Enforcement Officer as
Denning Close is a private road which the Highway Authority has no control over. You should
also consider the impact of using smaller vehicles for each stage of the construction process.

The application does not indicate the installation of plant. It should be noted that the proposed
installation of any plant/machinery with external manifestations will require the submission of
acoustical information that demonstrates that the plant/machinery meets the Council’s noise
criteria.

Page 138



-ubjSap [oIMON}S [oulj BY} UL paJnbes 99 Aow sessEsNg
o sysod ‘sisd ‘soddng [BUONIPPD 10U} PISKPD BID SJUIID

l3s0dodd s¥1 NY1d 400714 INIWISVE
“BIGUEDAD JOU SOM 5SBO0D BBYM BDRJD U] PEIDEID BG
oo pejosipu| 930ds [DUORIPPD [0 JOU} SSIUDIDND JOULDD B

‘uodn pE(RS 89 10U PINOYS BUOEUSLIIP PajDIE

pun mowxesddo sxsey] B0 SRS Wooy “suopsefoud
Ja/pus om upad jo juncsoo

30} Ajuosseceu jou seop Bupmoup siy) esusnbesucs D By

1
— 9 ou i
fioyouoidee Jeylo Jo 88j0y D)} JO JYSURG BUY JNOYIM | |
ABAINE [DUDEUBWAP © UG PEEDG USSq DY BURDJP BlU| i
—_———ee
“SASUWIYO JO [BAOWSR 34} Jo/pub s|Emiyb) jouoiippD : _ﬂ_. <
o pebiOjus 'UOjBADOXS [DUS[YIPPD SO LINS YOS [BIjU| ¥ Ll
B} U| JO) PAMOIID LS BADY JOU ADWI YD} SHIOM §300IPU| T e et 5y mTIII IIIIIIII =i
Aow gpsodoud SWoaUdeE 2SIYY J0U} SIOAD DG PROYE BIUS|D P ======= el | n |||||||| g
“suojjounbyuos M b s — Buayaimn e
4 mopus yses Bugis
wool eiqissod 9103ipU| 0} LR 0} pING D D e

] b sawss puD Psodoxd SURUDS O SO PIPUSIU S| BUNO SIL It i o
£102 6 S7 I ully

Nry|AS Lo SR i
. J ) | | b & G Ao

s

i

HE
]

, &

E

-t
|
|
i

| i |

Ll E:ﬁﬂﬂma ] oo IMETITA
Il paos
(' 'bs pEL) ZwGzL. i ; fue]
‘(umeup se) wawesegq pasodoid _m i i .
| 4 ) .

(lewssyuj ss046) ___
‘SY3IYY 40 3TNA3HOS : :

TEETEETTTTTETTET
i + 1 n i w ._:4. .m




AN DN LS UGG M SPGTHETOL0 B
MIE 315 WM S "R BACID ‘LoD Sde L)L SIng

olpnis ubisap

AN

Juswiaseq ay} A

SHL0IB0 SININONIWY LNIITD W ATY
SHSE SANINONINY INSITO H3HLHNY  BATY
SHI0Z . SINGNONINY NSO ¥3HINNG  DASM
SHINE SINIWONINY LNSITD HIHIHAY  OASY
SLvOro ¥d¥ ITML MO 0ISIAFH ILNSNT INOHS  IA3Y

wbsep jumongs ouy sy Uy pasnbe Bg ADw SoESBRING
40 5150d ‘sueyd ‘S10ddng POUCIIPPO JOU PESAPD WO EJUSID
“RQO|IDAD JOU EOM EESI30 SUSUM OSSO W PEjDGUD B

una tpul @30ds o joy) 6 jouuea By

‘uodn payR) B9 JOU PINGUS BUDEURLIP PejDOE

Pus #jouwposddo BJ0EsRY] BUD BRI|S Wooy suopdelosd
UOROPUNG) JO/PUD SESERUNRIWL (DK sBjewyad Jo JunoooD
oxe) A|oseeseu Jou seop BuNOUD Syl BouBNbESUGD D BY

‘EoM
-Kiojouopdxs saylo 0 SRIOY (094 JO IYIUS BUY INOWRA
Asing jouoBLEWIP 0 LD pesDq useq soy Bukosp spy)

SABUWD O [DAOWES BY) Jo/PuD S|BRIUBY JoUoRPPO
s pabious RIPPO SO YonE LC ]
L Ul o) paND|D Useq BADY jou ADW JOU) SWsoM @j0pu|
Aow sposodosd BWBLIS 363U) JOY) GIOND 9 PROYS S1USYD

“suafjeinbyuan
woos syqEsod 9jo3pU| 0 SjueyS o] epnb o Eo
EBAJBS PUD DSOd0JY BWEYIS D SO papuNY &) Bukosmp sy

‘SALON

("4 "bs pggL) zwes),
(umeup se) juswaseg pasodoid

(jews)u) ssoub)

'SY3YY 40 371NA3HIOS

G e T B m.._._}

{alentanl Eadmiestt Friigy it ARl & dreadcny il L)
PP T Vet [ P s W b LI DV S e v e et ]

(740 Z188US) 320-8LO-E) “nowwea

SNOISIA AWIHDS  mowea

Buyyspa wajeu
1] 8} S400p JuEESED

il S Gan g Aa

€l sunp sea

£V D 0011 s

- 'd6 8MN
- uopuon
as0|D Bujuuag g e

03sodoud S¥) NY1d 40074 LNIW3ISVE

L

Lol

[] 1

P

o W WooJppq

aneaisnien Lm b=
e

! 3o quA juauaseq
I wnJy esElNES ABU

]

fqge

aum
oM
[ . eWwaup
34045
fqued

| I

euseyd

Uepey ‘Q U e

\Al_....i. unoys (Vg

Y UBIR0Nd 8y

Buyisjes

jem o) Si00p juaweses
pum Aopus yses Bupns
LIERTEL R L T

Page 140



ANTE 5715 WA B, g BACUE) LG B L RS
olpnis ubisap
Juswiaseq ay}

SHHED

(40 Z190Us) VL0-BLOEL o

N

0300V Nvd ¥2078 0051

TN TR TR T TN T Ty YWy W —— W RN

UL R T R i S B *..w.._L_

¥

L L] L
| PP PPPPT PPver] O] e |

£ 14
P U e I |

gl sunp  mea | ﬂn—mmgz
ol Sihen s i RN Lo ~uopuo :
SASINTH ONILSIXT oo VD 0okt s ~ asojpBuuuag g e  uepey QU e
(BNILSIX3 S¥I N 1d 40074 ONNOYY
g ou
{_
24045 " W uwﬁ n\.\:n..m .
1
A -
an.ﬁ
i : AL,
@ E“H__n__mu_n | ﬂ.WM«. i
. . m
H L] I
3 |_ : 5o8
i
S8 S5l
G dsejieaig uayayy
3 .
4 ._LJ B \.___.——UNM_ o
I I
.Jl_ § [
o uxﬂ U ey
| q_l.J/A_
;
& i .2
Lluw_:_;a
~EE
"
§ ou

Page 141



M BB ig_iggﬁdrﬁ \ 3
olpnis ubisep Z
Jusweseq ay) #

GLiL0M0 O300Y NY"id D018 005: 1 W A3y

N PN w.._._m

i (] § v £ T
{FPPT PP PPP IRV PP PRI POTH DI TOTY PP PP |

aw O
it

JO ¢ 189Us) v : ‘o By ;
(740 ¥193US) V10-810-EL  nsama gLounr e Fd6 BMN
: _ ‘uopuor]
SASINIHd ONILSIXT o tumwma €Y @ ooLiL s aso|D Bujuuag g ™ ueney ‘g N o

[OMILsIX3 sY) NOILJ3S SSO0YD

{ONILSIX3 SY)

"NOILI3S TTVNIONLIONOT

uayafiy .

Page 142



e Sk s (% Jo £188US) V1 o zzia gLeunt oea
olpnis ubissp Z uopuo]
H.C@_.memﬂ mp._“_. “ S3SINIHd ONILSIXT  cutumea £V @ 00):L #s . aso0|D m_..__:r_mn_ g ey ueney ‘q IN e
SHLE0 Q300Y NYId X078 0051 ¥ A3

FMILSD SYNOLLVAST 301S

laniLsixa sv) NOILY AIT3 LNOYS

IREENE

o —

| I_ul

Page 143

(ONILSIX3 5¥)

fonusixa svi NOILYAITI ¥V . uoljeAs|a anJy Ul NOILYAIT3 LNOYS

HERERN

i m
L~ o

YT FFTTIT T

& [Tt
PR |

N

LIRS S M A N S S S
&L ] S ¥ 1 z —-v-v“u
(PO PPN TPOVE PPIRTOPF FUPVOPA FOVC PP VPP FRoR Fevs ool iR




Ao oSBT upLeERY BSORERIRI0 W T
AVTE 515 "SR SHipn Nt an0uE) ‘Hinag sgdey"LL eing

SH0E0
SIS
SHONE
SHLGLE
SLFL0

olpn}s ubisep

@ |

Juswaseq 8y} 2
SLNINONIWY LNIND YAy
SANINONINY LNIITO Y3HLENS aA3
SANINONIWY LNIMD H3HLHNS 2 ATH
SLNIWANIWY LNIMD U3HLHENS an3y
Wi 334U HO4 O38IATH ILNSNI LNOHS I A3H

YZ T 2% 16 OZ ) 8) L3 8 S YIS 2 A OL6 8 L B S w»

L
1

-
B PG A T A o

(40 1 199YS) 320-8L0-E}  Now=o

SNOISIA INTHOS s

gLeunp o

€Y @ 0041 =S

rd6 SMN
uopuo]
aso|p Bujuuag g #ee

fo350d084 5) NY1d Y0014 ONNOYY

uepey ‘d I e

Bupjuepd

prip wnes
puna. aerea
JUREASEY AAU |5 !I\

ysejyeadg

sjana] paaa R
auna D 0] 335
qiﬁk joyuEn AR
i - B 2ot BIELT
Bioys . - g St o -
. T
\ Z
I — -
BUTH S
: LETIITL) - .:2_
s [N e T
woosked 1 R M 2 Lyl
= g & yyim yam)
[mae it sy
L__pam __ ¥ - -
il H daa
s G 1 B3
I| &
wonpeen A~
" '
_ s smen nmi— » sv9ze sote

hﬁz; m

pa|w30jas 3q 3)
#jesurn beyysina

_|||
B

|||||||||||||||
apesjanes
1ey pazefl 4 sprasy
uadn yym jususses
u0J) BRENIRS AR

Pa4op umeys
],
Jumwaseq A jo s

\AI!.: wrans (Vo)

LY uDIneLg joay

SYRLr & SYRLe
Buian E Bujup
—I das
- - T
Z _
pusedb yym g3 % ou

san0 i agENEA
i TRRyEn Asu

Page 144



e e s T (40 £198US) 3Z0-8L0-EL oo gk ounp £46.8MN
oprys ubisep | 2 : i 5
Jjusweseq ay} @ SNOIS3A INIHDS mutume=a EV.D 0011 e aso[Q Bujuueg g P UBjIEY "a N e

S0 SAINIWONINY LNIITD VA3

SLLEE SLNINONSWY LNIITD H3HLHNA A3
SHL00E SANINONINY LNIITD H3H1uEN J A3
SHIE SININANIWY LNIMD H3H1HNd an3 (0350408d SV} ZD:.d:ful_m ._.zom&
SHFOL0 Vel 3341 ¥04 O3SIATH SLINSNE LNCHL ERE ]

i
aapuad pajoed ays

{o3sodosd sY1 NOILY AT 30IS o sy s

saquiy pajuped Bjjyn

punef s iy

40 A1 BIGEHER l
yam gy A yaim emayb meu i [ =__

jdod
Jea

Page 145

JrTp—— (03504084 Y] NOILVAITI dV3IY

(03S0d0Yd S¥)

uoljeas)e andy ul NOILVYAITI LNOYd

..........................

vRE TR ANG BN N0 s 8L ed ez le

L * L q L _ﬂ aalis _' | 4 1 % i ” !_n-_ld




VESZIZIEGES W ARSI MBI DI B0 S § LSS VT

miSadged:3Y) NOLEI IS PSSEY)

(03504084 S¥)
NOIL33S TVNIONLIONOT

Page 146



e ONDIOVMLO-BLO/EL  vewnea siken o g e . e
olpnjs ubBisep Z NVd ONMOVAHL esoig Buusgg e A
Juswieseq ayy | =

ANNOZLNO ‘*utmsa ev @ 00z s uepey " N peed JUSLIBSE] UOPUO| k0

:

4D|\._l I.__H g
RTRE 3

AHY07 8vd9

3S07T0 ONINN3A

Page 147

diis

(Vg sliejap
Buipaeoy ._aﬁ ued _

dn jas pyis ass
4 NSY
_ aday woyy hu:.__fu_.
unogino UIWWEI
04 Auu0) qeg

_ _

ISHIATY  —

ONNOEN| — —

o .

vsrzziEoEs B OB NG T NG 68 Lo b T L

g ¥ [ ]
A e e e T = [

°
(]
J




I

I

3 |y - 3
! =

— J g

approx 3.0m high _hadirding to front garden

E_ forming site compgund

I

-co_n_vsﬁbelt over—a— : ]

existing bounday
wall to remain

7

temporary timber chute to —
direct spoll into skip

skip

welfare

1
g ST T T

DENNING CLOSE

3300 min. clear roadway for
access to no 4 Denning Close

ke

PLAN AT PAVEMENT LEVEL

conveyor belt
hazzard tape
conveyor set back min.
300mm from face of kerb
00, lighting
porary chute to ’| ’|
direct spoil into skip

temporary tarpaulin
dust sheet as req'd.

-
b

N s
N ;
. « g
conveyor angle subject
in 2.3m clear ’\\ ~ to site contraints
| s Z
: - N /
»
N

N
ELEVATION >

N
)

Page 1438 .

o= london basement ~aes Mr, D, Kattan 1100 @ Ad anrens  SITE SET-UP ’; ~1 the basement

ﬁ e e L oA g 5 Denning Close - | design studio
O MY BAT wvlsndanhisamen o ik Lﬂl’ldoﬂ
et Nwa gPJ owe Feb15 omge. 13-018-SPB ?ﬁ S 1 ot i e 3



et A e n s . S e T

Item No.
5

CITY OF WESTMINSTER

PLANNING APPLICATIONS Date Classification

COMMITTEE 27 October 2015 For General Release

Report of Wards invoived

Director of Planning Bayswater

Subject of Report 1. 98 Westbhourne Grove, London, W2
2. 43 Hereford Road, 2 - 6 Botts Mews, 2 Chepstow Road, 104 -

106 Westbourne Grove, 98 - 112 Westbourne Grove, W2

Proposal 1. Use of the public highway (10.5m x 0.75m) for the placing of three
tables and six chairs on the Westbourne Grove frontage.
2. Variation of Condition 13 (tables and chairs) of planning permission
dated 7 February 2003 (RN 02/03540) for part
demolition/redevelopment to provide new buildings, part
alterations/extensions (including listed building) to provide 36 flats, 2
live-work units, retail, restaurant facilities and 34 parking spaces in
basement with associated works; namely to remove restrictions
outside of No. 98 Westbourne Grove (Cote restaurant) only.

Agent Poppleston Allen Solicitors

On behalf of Cote Restaurants Limited

Registered Number 15/01715/TCH TP /PP No TP/10490
15/04113/FULL

Date of Application 25.02.2015 Date 25.02.2015
28.05.2015 amended/

completed

Category of Application Minor

Historic Building Grade Unlisted

Conservation Area Westbourne

Development Plan Context

- London Plan July 2011

- Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies 2013

- Unitary Development Plan
(UDP) January 2007

QOutside London Plan Central Activities Zone
Outside Central Activities Zone
District Shopping Centre

Stress Area

Within Stress Area

Current Licensing Position

Not Applicable

1. RECOMMENDATION

1. Grant conditional permission.
2. Grant conditional permission.

Page 149




City of Westminster

¥

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordnance

Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's

Stationery Office. - 12M

© Crown copyright and/or database right 2013, Data Source: 2Metres
All rinhte recaruad | irence numhar | 4 1NNN1QRAT MNata: 1210016




Application 1:
98 WESTBOURNE GROVE, W2

Application 2:
43 HEREFORD ROAD, 2 - 6 BOTTS MEWS,

2 CHEPSTOW ROAD, 104 - 106 WESTBOURNE GROVE,
98 - 112 WESTBOURNE GROVE, W2

Page 151



Iterm No.

5

SUMMARY
Planning permission is sought for:

1. The use of the public highway {10.5m x 0.75m) for the placing of three tables and six chairs
on the Westbourne Grove frontage. {15/01715/TCH)

2. Variation of Condition 13 of planning permission dated 07 February 2003 (RN:02/03540), to
remove 'Westhourne Grove' from the Condition 13 so that it would read:

"No planters, tubs, tables or chairs, freestanding advertisements or any other items shall be
placed on either the private forecourt or adjoining public highway along the Hereford
Road/Chepstow Road frontages of the application site." (15/04113/FULL}

The key issues are:

+ The impact of the tables and chairs upon pedestrian safety,
+ The impact of the use of external tables and chairs on residential amenity.

Both applications accord with current Unitary Development Plan (UDP) and City Plan policies
relating to pedestrian safety and amenity and are recommended for approval.

CONSULTATIONS
Application 1- Ref 15/01715/TCH

SOUTH EAST BAYSWATER RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION
Any response to be reported verbally.

BAYSWATER RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION
Pavement is too narrow in this very busy section of Westbourne Grove.

NOTTING HILL EAST NEIGHBOURHOOD FORUM (Previously WNA)
Pavements are public space and not for private sale.

HIGHWAYS PLANNING MANAGER
No objection to proposals.

Submitted revised Drawing shows the area proposed for placing tables and chairs to measure
approximately 2.8m from building line {pinch point) to the closest item of street furniture; the
area proposed for placing tables and chairs is approximately 0.8m, leaving approximately 2m
as a pedestrian clearway. This measure accords with the City of Westminster public realm
strategy, Westminster Way, minimum requirement of 2m for pedestrian movement. The
proposal accords with the aims of the City Council's Policy TRANS 3.

CLEANSING MANAGERA
No objection.

ADJOINING OWNERS/OCCUPIERS AND OTHER REPRESENTATIONS
No. Consulted: 89; Total No. of Replies: 8.
Eight objections.

Transportation
+ Tables and chairs will cause congestion on busy pedestrian crossing outside of restaurant.

Page 152



Item No.

5

» Congestion caused would be amplified by single yellow line ocutside restaurant which is
often used for deliveries.
Tables and chairs would obstruct smooth flow of deliveries to 8 adjoining retail units.
Allowing tables and chairs would obstruct free flow of pedestrians along a busy road which
is too narrow to accommodate this, and would set precedent for other restaurants on the
street.

» Proposal does not take into account the additional 0.75 - 1m of pavement width for staff to
serve tables, nor the addition of another chair.

Amenity

» Restaurant already has problems associated with staff and visitors smoking outside,
causing a noise nuisance and not closing on time. Placing of tables and chairs would
worsen situation.

o New application does not address any of the concerns previously raised.

» People waiting at the pedestrian crossing will be exposed to cigarette smoke.

ADVERTISEMENT/SITE NOTICE: Yes

Application 2- Ref. 15/04113/FULL

SOUTH EAST BAYSWATER RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION
Object to removal of condition.

- Removing condition would effect not only restaurant use at No. 98 but would apply to the
whole development.

- Condition was originally agreed by all parties.

- All tenants who occupy the premises are aware of this restriction.

- Condition was originally justified owing to the constrained conditions of the site,
particularly narrow pavement on Chepstow and Hereford Road.

- Westbourne Grove should be retained for pedestrian use only owing to high footfall, and
two heavily used crossings adjacent to site.

NOTTING HILL EAST NEIGHBOURHOOD FORUM
Condition 13 is imposed for good public reasons.

BRA
Any response to be reported verbally.

HIGHWAYS PLANNING MANAGER
No objection to proposals

ADJOINING OWNER/OCCUPIERS
No. consulted: 89; Total No of Replies: 0.

ADVERTISEMENT/SITE NOTICE: Yes

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

4.1 The Application Site

The application relates to the Cote Restaurant at 98 Westbourne Grove. It is located within the

Westbourne Conservation Area. This part of Westbourne Grove is identified as a District
Centre and is located within in the Queensway/Bayswater Stress Area.

Page 153



o R : e Lt ENE PR

item No.

5

4.2 Relevant History

13 August 2001 - Planning permission, listed building consent and conservation area consent
was granted by the Planning Applications Sub-Committee under references 00/00824/FULL,
00/00825/L.BC, 00/00826/CAC at site comprising 98 - 112 Westbourne Grove, 43 Hereford
Road, 2 - 6 Botts Mews, 2 Chepstow Road and 112A - 112B Westbourne Grove for the part
demolition/redevelopment to provide new buildings providing 36 flats 2 "live-work” units,
ground floor retail and restaurant uses and 35 parking spaces in the basement.

07 February 2003 - Resubmission of previous consent granted in 2001, this time around
including 106 and 108 Westbourne Grove which were not available at the time of the 2001
permission, providing an enlarged ground floor A1 unit (No. 7) and enlarged A3 unit (No. 4).
(02/03540/FULL).

Condition 16 of the 2001 permission prohibited the placement of street furniture, inciuding
tables and chairs, either on the private forecourt or adjoining public highway along the
Westbourne Grove/Mereford Road/Chepstow Road frontages of the application site. The
reasoning for the imposition of this condition was related to pedestrian safety. The condition is
referred to in full in the ‘proposal’ section of this report above. This condition was also
imposed in the latter resubmission in 2003 (subsequently numbered condition 13), which is
the subject of this application.

In the original 2001 application, SEBRA had expressed concerns that that the private
forecourts should be dedicated as public highway to address long term traffic management
and pedestrian safety. The report detailed that the applicant had declined to dedicate the
private forecourts outside the premises. Officers however recommended the inclusion of the
said condition to the same effect which consequentially appeared on the decision notice and
the 2003 decision notice which followed.

1 January 2015 - Planning permission refused for Use of the public highway for the placing of
six tables and 12 chairs in two areas measuring 10.5m x 0.75m on Westbourne Grove and 6m
x 0.75 on Hereford Road elevation in connection with associated restaurant. The application
was refused on highways grounds due to the restricted pavement width on Hereford Road
only as a result of the existing bicycle parking stands. An informative was attached to that
decision notice advising that tables and chairs on the Westhourne Park Road only were likely
to be considered favorably.

THE PROPOSAL
Planning permission is sought for:

Application 1 — Ref 15/01715/TCH
1. Use of the public highway (10.5m x 0.75m) for the placing of three tables and six chairs on
the Westbourne Grove frontage.

Application 2 — Ref 15/04113/FULL
Variation of Condition 13 of planning permission dated 07 February 2003 (RN:02/03540), to
remove ‘Westbourne Grove’ from condition 13, so that the condition would read;

“No planters, tubs, tables or chairs, freestanding advertisements or any other items shall be

ptaced on either the private forecourt or adjoining public highway along the Hereford
Road/Chepstow Road frontages of the application site”

Page 154



i e i Pk e T M B 7L 1y i ot e e A K s o e e menme we aae e e

Item No.

DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 Land use

The proposed external tables and chairs would be associated with the existing lawful
restaurant (Class A3) and would not change the use of the site.

6.2 Townscape
The tables and chairs do not raise design and townscape issues.
6.2 Highways

Policy TACE 11 of the UDP states that permission for tables and chairs on the public footway
will only be granted where such proposals will not cause an obstruction, endanger pedestrians
and wheelchair users or cause or exacerbate a problem with refuse storage or street
cleansing. Condition 13 of the 2003 permission for the redevelopment of the block prevented
external tables and chairs being placed on the private forecourt of the public highway in the
interest of public safety.

Permission is sought to allow 3 tables and 6 chairs to be placed outside of Cote restaurant on
Westbourne Grove. The submitted drawing shows the area proposed for placing tables and
chairs measures 2.8m from building line {pinch point) to the closest item of street furniture.
The area proposed for placing tables and chairs is 0.8m, leaving 2m as a pedestrian clearway
at its narrowest point. The tables and chairs are also positioned either side of the frontage,
away from the pedestrian crossing ramp.

Objections have been received from the SEBRA and BRA and local residents on the grounds
that the tables and chairs would obstruct the highway, with particular regard for the busy
pedestrian crossing outside the restaurant on Westbourne Grove. These objections were
initially put forward by SEBRA at the time of the original grant of permission.

The City of Westminster's public realm strategy, ‘Westminster Way’, was adopted September
2011 and is a material factor in considering applications for street furniture. It sets out that in
the holistic management of the street environment, the space required for people should come
first with other obstructions, where permissible, placed to minimise the intrusion into that
space. Pursuant to this it requires that a minimum pavement width of 2m must remain un
obstructed for pedestrian movement. It states that this clear zone may have to be widened in
some busy places.

This is a busy location, given it is designated as a stress area and District Centre.
Notwithstanding this, a depth of 3m between the seating area and kerb is maintained at its
widest points, dropping to 2m at pinch points. Moreover the number of tables and chairs is
limited to 3 tables and six chairs only and located away from the pedestrian crossing. The City
Council’s Highway's Manager has accordingly not objected to the proposal. It is therefore
considered that the impact upon pedestrian movement is uniikely to be obstructive and
therefore accords with the aims of the City Council's Policy TRANS 3.

As highlighted by SEBRA the wording of the proposed variation of condition 13 of the 2003
permission would apply to the whole Westbourne Grove frontage of the development, from
No. 98 to 112, with the effect of allowing premises to place tables and chairs within their
private forecourts without having to apply for planning permission. The number of premises
that retain a private forecourt is not known to the Council and has not been supplied with the
variation of condition application. It is clear however that other premises, between 100 —112

Page 155



Item No.

5

Westbourne Grove, have various items of street furniture in front of them. It is therefore
recommended that the condition be re worded to exclude the frontage to 98 Westbourne
Grove only, as it has been demonstrated in this application that sufficient pavement width can
be maintained. Any future application at other premises would therefore be considered on
their individual merits.

With regard to street cleansing and continued servicing provisions, neighbours have pointed
out that the tables and chairs are likely to interfere with this operation, whereby servicing from
the dedicated bay on Hereford Road could be obstructed. However, the City Councils
Cleansing Manager has not objected to the proposal.

6.3 Amenity

Policy TACE 11 states that permission for tables and chairs on the public footway will only be
granted where such proposals would not unacceptably intensify an existing use, cause a
nuisance to residents, harm the amenity of the area or create opportunities for crime.
Westbourne Grove is a busy road with active ground floor commercial uses and residential
generally on upper floors. Objections have been received from local neighbours and
residential occupiers of flats above the restaurant relating to potential noise nuisances from
the proposed external seating area.

The proposed hours within which the tables and chairs are sought to be placed outside of the
restaurant are between 08:00 - 23:00 on any day and falls within the lawful operating hours of
the premises. Moreover TACE11 sets out that tables and chairs will not normally be permitted
outside premises after 22.00 which is consistent with what is proposed. There are no
registered noise complaints on the planning record for these premises. It is acknowledged that
there may be some audible activity from the restaurant and other commercial uses nearby at
upper floor level. The street however has an established ground floor active frontage,
conducive to its mixed commercial and residential character and subject to the removal of
tables and chairs from the public highway at 22.00 as proposed, the amenity of adjoining
occupiers is unlikely to be adversely affected.

6.3 Other

Neighbours are concerned that the proposed tables and chairs would require more space than
that shown on the drawings. The permission would be based on the approved plans which
propose three tables and six chairs, in the locations specified. In terms of serving space, it is
acknowledged that waiters would be likely to stray outside of the seating area to get to tables.
However given that only three tables and six chairs are proposed, it is not considered that the
volume of service would be such that it would represent an obstruction to pedestrians and
form grounds to withhold planning permission.

This variation of condition permission constitutes a fresh planning permission. The planning
conditions have therefore been updated to have regard to current poiicy, and where
necessary has incorporated subsequent approval of details and variation of condition

applications that have been granted planning permission since the original permission in
2003.

6.4 Economic Considerations
Not applicable.
6.5  Other UDP/Westminster Policy Considerations

Not applicable.
Page 156



ltem No.

5

6.6 London Plan

The proposal does not raise strategic issues.

6.7 National Policy/Guidance considerations
Not applicable

6.8  Planning Obligations

Not applicable.

6.9 Environmental Assessment including Sustainability and Biodiversity Issues

Not applicable.
7 Conclusion

The application is recommended for approval because it is considered that it meets the
requirements of UDP Policies TRANS3 and TACE11.

BACKGROUND PAPERS
Application 1 - Ref 15/01715/TCH

Memo from Bayswater Residents Association dated 3 April 2015.

Memo from Highways Planning Manager dated 17 March 2015.

Memo from Notting Hill East Neighbourhood Forum dated 8 April 2015,
Email from the occupier of 8c Hereford Mews dated 23 March 2015.

Email from the occupier of Flat B, 8 Hereford Mews dated 23 March 2015.
Email from the owner of 2 Hereford Mews dated 24 March 2015.

Email from the occupier of Flat 3, 43 Hereford Road dated 25 March 2015.
Email from the occupier of Flat 1, Opal Apartments, 43 Hereford Road dated 25 March 2015.
Email from the occupier of Flat 10, 43 Hereford Road dated 25 March 2015.
10 Email from the occupier of Flat 1, 28A Hereford Road dated 25 March 2015.
11. Email from the occupier of Flat 6 43 Hereford Road dated 25 March 2015.

Co~NOA~WN=

Application 2 - Ref 15/04113/FULL

Memo from South East Bayswater Residents Association dated 31 July 2015.

Memo from Notting Hill East Neighbourhood Forum dated 25 June 2015.

Memo from Highways Planning Manager dated 9 June 2015.

Decision Ref: 02/03540/FULL dated 7 February 2003 for 'Part demolition / redevelopment to
provide new buildings, part alterations/extensions (including listed building) to provide 36 flats, 2
live-work units, retail, restaurant facilities and 34 parking spaces in basement with associated
works' at Site At 43 Hereford Road, 2 - 6 Botts Mews,2 Chepstow Road, 104 - 106 Westbourne
Grove, 112a/B, 98 - 112 Westbourne Grove, London, W2 5RU

PN -

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT OR WISH TO INSPECT ANY OF THE
BACKGROUND PAPERS PLEASE CONTACT SARAH WHITNALL ON 020 7641 2929 OR BY
E-MAIL —~ swhitnall@westminster.gov.uk

agt-—1o7



e s e o R AR

15/01715/TCH

DRAFT DECISION LETTER
Address: 98 Westbourne Grove, London, W2 5RU
Proposal: Use of the public highway {10.5m x 0.75m) for the placing of three tables and six
chairs on the Westbourne Grove frontage.
Plan Nos: OS map, Exterior Bamboo Dining Chair specification, 2 Top Marble Round Table
specification, A.01 rev A

Case Officer: Samuel Gerstein Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 4273

Recommended Condition{s) and Reason(s):

2 The tabies anﬁ bhalrs/ must orly be used by customers of the ground floor premise, 98
Westbourne Grou 2 5RUZ BN

\/\

Reason:

3 This use of the pavement
tables and chairs.

Reason:

highway for which they are the highway authq
activity regularly to make sure it meets S41 of

adopted November 2013 and TACE 11 of our Unitary D
January 2007. For the above reasons, and not because thi
can therefore only grant a temporary permission. l\-'

) '”"trategic Policies
an that we adopted in

4 You can cnly put the tables and chairs on the pavement be . en the hours of 08:00 and 23:00

on any day.

Page 158



15/01715/TCH

Reason:
To protect neighbouring residents from noise and disturbance as set out in $29 and S32 of

Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 6 and TACE 11
of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

You can only put out on the pavement the tables and chairs shown in the Furniture Schedule
approved as part of the current application.

Reason:
To make sure that the type and appearance of the tables and chairs (and where appropriate

other furniture or equipment) is suitable and that no additional furniture, equipment or screening
is placed on the pavement to the detriment of the character and appearance of the area. This is
as set out in TACE 11 and DES 7 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January

2007,

Informative(s):

In dealing with this application the City Council has implemented the requirement in the Nationa!
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We have
made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies in Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies adopted November 2013, Unitary Development Plan, Supplementary
Planning documents, planning briefs and other informal written guidance, as well as offering a
full pre application advice service, in order to ensure that applicant has been given every
opportunity to submit an application which is likely to be considered favourably. In addition,
where appropriate, further guidance was offered to the applicant at the validation stage.

Page 159



15/04113/FULL
DRAFT DECISION LETTER

Address: Site At 43 Hereford Road, 2 - 6 Botts Mews,2 Chepstow Road, 104 - 106
Westbourne Grove, 112a/B, 98 - 112 Westbourne Grove, London, W2 5RU

Proposal: Variation of Condition 13 ({tables and chairs} of planning permission dated 07
February 2003 (RN:02/03540) for Part demolition / redevelopment to provide new
buildings, part alterations/extensions (including listed building) to provide 36 flats, 2
live-wark units, retail, restaurant facilities and 34 parking spaces in basement with
associated works; namely to remove restrictions outside of No. 98 Westbourne
Grove (Cote restaurant) only.

Plan Nos: Original approved documents dated 7 February 2003 (RN:02/03540/FULL);
A139/000,001A,002C ,003B,004A,005,006, 007A,008,009,011A,
012A,013B,014,015, 016,017B,018A,019, 020,A239/001A,002C,
003,004A,005,006,007 ,008,009,010,011,012, 013,014,015,016A,017, 018, SKO-
P1A,{SK)2V-01, (SK)2V-02,SK(B}06 and SK(B)07.

Approved documents of variation dated 20 August 2004(RN:04/05232/FULL);
A239/003A,004B,009A and site location plan.
Approved documents of variation dated 10 March 2005 (RN:04/08845/FULL),
Letter dated 28th January, Planning Statement dated 21st October 2004, Drwgs
A239/001 Rev C, 002 Rev E, 1201/001 Rev D amd 002 Rev C. (sl)2-10 Rev A,
A138/000, 1202/001 Option 1, Photographs and planning statement.
Approved documents of variation dated 10 March 2005 (RN:05/00486/FULL);
A139/000, CCD 021 GATEO1 rev A.
Approved documents of variation dated 12 May 2005 (RN: 04/08483/FULL);
A239/001 Rev C, 002 Rev E, 1201/001 Rev F and 002 Rev C. {(si)2-10 Rev A
Case Officer:  Samuel Gerstein Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 4273

Recommended Condition(s) and Reason(s):

accommodation as defined in Section 25 of the Greater London Council
1 973 as amended by the Greater London Council (General Powers) Act

Reason: .

To ensure the progo es permanent domestic residential accommodation in accordance
with Policies S#4. 5 of Westminster City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013
and policies H2. f oummww Development Plan that we adopted 24 January 2007.

T
Ss /ﬂg\;ﬂ@ Town and Country Planning (Use Classes)
SR\




15/04113/FULL
Order 1987 (or in any provision equivalent to that Class in any statutory instrument revoking or
re-enacting that Order) no food or drink of any kind shall be sold on the premises for
consumption off the premises, other than at 108 Westbourne Grove, London W2 5RU in
accordance with Variation of condition permission granted 15/09/2004 under reference
04/05705/FULL.

Reason:

In granting this permission the City Council has had regard to policies $13 and S29 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and policies $S56, TACE9
and ENV13 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted 24 January 2007.

You must anly use the Class A3 restaurants as sit down-waiter service -restaurants. You must
not use any part of the Class A3 premises as a bar, ancillary bar area, or for any other purpose
within Class A3 of the Town and Country Planning Use Order 1987 (or any order that may
replace it).

Reason:

To protect the environment of people in neighbouring properties, as set out in S29 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 13 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R21AC)

You must not use the Class A3 restaurants hereby permitted for playing live or recorded music
or of any amplified sound that can be heard outside the property.

Reason:

To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring properties, as set out in $29
of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 13 of our
Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R21AC)

The Class A3 restaurant uses hereby permitted shall not be carried on except hetween the
hours of 08.00 hours to 24.00 hours midnight on Monday to Saturday excluding Bank Holidays
and 08.00 hours to 23.00 hours on Sundays and Bank Holidays.

This is apart from Unit 3 108 Westbourne Grove may be open from 08:00 - 00:30 hours (Mon. -
Sat) and from to 08:00 - 24:00 hours midnight (Sun. & Bank Holidays) as permitted by variation
application ref: 06/00320/FULL dated 06.03.2006.

Reason:

To protect the environment of people in neighbouring properties, as set out in policies $13 and
529 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and policies S58,
TACES and ENV13 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted 24 January 2007.

You must provide the waste store shown on drawing A239/002C before anyone moves into the
property. You must clearly mark it and make it availabie at all times to everyone using the
building. You must store waste inside the property and only put it outside just before it is to be
collected. (C14DA)

Reason:

To protect the environment and provide suitable storage for waste as set out in S44 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 12 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R14BD)

The Class A1 retail accommodation herqua?j)érqtfg(ﬂ_shall at no time be occupied in less than



10

11

12

15/04113/FULL
the five self-contained units as shown on Drawing No. A238/002C hereby approved.

Reason:

To ensure the retention of shop units of the size permitted which are compatible with the needs
of retail trades appropriate to this area, and to ensure compliance with the City Council's
policies as set out in $13 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November
2013 and SS6 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted January 2007.

The means of access and egress suitable for people with disabilities which is shown in drawing
no(s). A239/002C hereby approved shall be provided prior to the occupation of the development
and permanently retained unless otherwise approved in writing by the City Council as local
planning authority. (C20A)

Reason:

To make sure that there is reasonable access for people with disabilities and to make sure that
the access does not harm the appearance of the building, as set out in 528 of Westminster's
City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and DES 1 (B) of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R20AC)

At least one car parking space shall be provided for each of the residential flats (excluding the
affordable units located at 6 Botts Mews) and the two 'live work' units within the redevelopment
hereby approved. The parking spaces to be reserved for the use of residents shall be
separately identified and thereafter permanently maintained to the satisfaction of the City

Reason:
To provide parking spaces for people using the development as set out in STRA 25 and
TRANS23 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R22AB)

The whole of the cycle store shown on the drawings shall be provided and retained permanently
for the accommodation of bicycles of the occupiers of residential accommodation in this
development,

Reason:
To provide cycle parking spaces for people using the development as set out in TRANS 10 of
our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

The delivery bay in the basement car park shown on Drawing No. A239/001A shall be clearly
and separately identified and thereafter permanently retained in perpetuity for the use of service
vehicles visiting any part of the application site.

Reason:

To avoid blocking the surrounding streets and to protect the environment of people in
neighbouring properties as set out in 542 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies
adopted November 2013 and STRA 25, TRANS 20 and TRANS 21 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

You must hang all doors or gates so that they do not open over or across the road or pavement.
{C24AA)

Reason:

In the interests of public safety and to avoid blocking the road as set out in 541 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and TRANS 2 and TRANS
3 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

Page 162



T P WV

15/04113/FULL -
13 No planters, tubs, tables or chairs, freestanding advertisements or any other items shall be
placed on either the private forecourt or adjoining public highway along frontages of the
application site along Hereford Road, Chepstow Road and Westbourne Grove, apart from the
temporary tables and chairs outside No..98 Westbourne Grove, approved under planning
permission granted under 15/01715/TCH, or any subsequent permission.

Reason:

In the interests of public safety and to avoid blocking the road as set out in 541 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and TACE 11 of our
Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. :

14  All new work to the outside of the building must match existing original work in terms of the
choice of materials, method of construction and finished appearance. This applies unless
differences are shown on the drawings we have approved or are required by conditions to this
permission. (C26AA)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Westbourne Conservation Area. This is as set out
in 825 and $28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

15 Detailed drawings as appropriate of the following part(s) of the development shall be submitted
to and approved by the City Council as local planning authority before any work is commenced
on the relevant part of the development:-

i) all new shopfronts;

ii) the set-back frontage between the upper floors of 104-106 Westbourne Grove and 108-110
Westbourne Grove, including the glass railing to the roof terrace;

iii) typical windows and surrounds of the upper floors of 43 Hereford Road/98-104 Westbourne
Grove,

This part of the development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the
details thus approved. (C26D)

This is unless the development is carried out in accordance with the details approved under
references; 04/08131/ADFULL dated 14/05/2005, 04/06874/ADFULL dated 09/09/2004,
04/02052/ADFULL dated 27/07/2004.

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Westbourne Conservation Area. This is as set out
in S25 and $28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

16  Full particulars/detailed drawings as appropriate of the following part(s) of the development
shall be submitted to and approved by the City Council as local planning authority before any
work is commenced on the relevant part of the development:-

i) details of how overlooking of the side window of residential Unit 5 from the roof terrace of
residential Unit 4 will be prevented,

ii) screening to the roof terraces serving the residential units the 'live work' units and affordable
units in Bott's Mews.

This part of the development shall not bd?ag & 2@ 3therwise than in accordance with the



17

18

19

20

15/04113/FULL
details thus approved.

This is unless the development in carried out in accordance with the details approved under
references: 04/05915/ADFULL dated 19/08/2004, 04/05922/ADFULL dated 19/08/2004.

Reason:

To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring properties. This is as set out™
in $29 and S32 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
ENV 6 and ENV 13 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

You must paint all new outside rainwater and soil pipes black and keep them that colour.
(C2BEA)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Westbourne Conservation Area. This is as set out
in 825 and $28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 fo 10.128 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

You must not attach flues, ducts, soil stacks, soil vent pipes, or any other pipework other than
rainwater pipes to the outside of the building unless they are shown on the approved drawings.
(C26KA)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Westbourne Conservation Area. This is as set out
in 525 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

You must not put any machinery or associated equipment, ducts, tanks, satellite or radio aerials
on the roof, except those shown on the approved drawings. (C26PA)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Westbourne Conservation Area. This is as set out
in $25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan; Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 and DES 5 or DES B or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

The combined residential and workshop space hereby approved in 4 and 5 Bott's Mews shali
not be sub-let, sub-divided or used or occupied other than as a single livefwork unit. These
premises shall only be used for purposes within Class C3 or Class B1 as defined by the Town
and Country Planning (use Classes) Order 1995 (as amended), and the proportion of Class C3
and Class B1 accommodation shown on the approved plans shall not be amended without the
prior approval of the Council as local planning authority.

Reason:

To enable the City Council to review the position in the light of experience and the prevailing
circumstances and make sure it is in line with Policies $14 and S15 of Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies adopted November 2013, and policy H3 of our Unitary Development that we
adopted in January 2007,

Page 164



21

22

23

24

25

15/04113/FULL

The new windows on the upper floors of 43 Hereford Road/98-104 Westbourne Grove shall be
double-hung timber sliding sash windows.

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Westbourne Conservation Area. This is as set out
in $25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

The set back link at roof level between the mansard roofs of 112 and 112a Westbourne Grove
{shown on Drawing No. A239/010) shall be faced with lead rather than slate.

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Westbourne Conservation Area. This is as set out
in 525 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007

The windows to the first floor on the Chepstow Road frontage of 2 Chepstow Road (labelled 2-3
Bott's Mews on Drawing No. A239/010) shall be retained as 12 pane timber sash windows.

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Westhourne Conservation Area. This is as set out
in $25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007

The flats hereby approved shall not be occupied until those flats above or adjacent to any of the
commercial premises on the site have been insulated to minimise noise transmission between
them, in accordance with details which shall be submitted to and approved by the City Council
as local planning authority.

This part of the development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the
details thus approved, uniess constructed in accordance with details approved under reference
04/05943/ADFULL dated 20/09/2004.

Reason: '

To protect neighbouring residents from noise and disturbance as set out in 529 and 832 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 6 and TACE 11
of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

Detailed drawings showing the design, construction and insulation of the entire ventilation
system and any associated plant, including the air intake, shall be submitted to and approved
by the City Council as local planning authority before any work is commenced on the relevant
part of the development,

Provision in accordance with the detaits thus approved shall be made prior to the
commencement of the use and shall thereafter be permanently retained to the satisfaction of
the City Council as local planning authority. (C13B)

This is unless the development is carried out in accordance with the details approved under
reference 04/05103/ADFULL dated 06/0PP g at@Bereafter be permanently retained to the



et At A

26

27

28

15/04113/FULL
satisfaction of the City Council as local planning authority,

Reason:

To protect neighbouring residents from noise nuisance, as set out in $24, 529 and S32 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 6 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

Details of a scheme of public art shall be submitted to and approved by the City Council as local
planning authority. Further, the approved scheme shall be implemented prior to the occupation
of the building and thereafter it shall be retained and maintained on site unless its removal
and/or relocation has been approved in writing, in advance, by the City Council as local
planning authority. This is unless the development is carried out in accordance with details
approved under reference 04/10201/ADFULL dated 10/03/2005, ref: 04/06789/FULL dated
12/10/2004)

" Reason:

To ensure the provision of public art, in accordance with Policy 528 of Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and DES 7 of our Unitary Development Plan that we
adopted in January 2007.

Prior to the occupation of the development hereby permitted, a scheme of security measures to
improve the access arrangements in respect of the rear refuse store accessed from Botts Mews
shall be implemented in accordance with details to be submitted to and approved in writing by
the City Council as local planning authority, in consultation with the Metropolitan Police Crime
Prevention Design Adviser,

The development shall not be carried out otherwise than in accordance with the details thus
approved. This is unless the development is carried out in accordance with the details
approved under reference 04/07498/ADFULL dated 02/12/2004.

Reason:

To reduce the vulnerability of the development to crime, and to ensure that such provision is
made in a manner that does not detract from the external appearance of the building, as set out
in policies S29 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and DES
1 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the drawings and
other documents listed on this decision letter, and any drawings approved subsequently by the
City Council as local planning authority pursuant to any conditions on this decision letter.

Reason:
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

Informative(s):

This variation of condition permission constitutes a fresh planning permission. The planning
conditions have therefore been updated to have regard to current policy, and where necessary
has incorporated subsequent approval of details and variation of condition applications that
have been granted planning permission since the original permission in 2003.

In dealing with this application the Ciﬂ% Ec:#rv_gbgﬂas implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work e cant in a positive and proactive way. We have



15/04113/FULL

made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory pélicies in Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies adopted November 2013, Unitary Development Plan, Supplementary
Planning documents, planning briefs and other informat written guidance, as well as offering a
full pre application advice service, in order to ensure that applicant has been given every
opportunity to submit an application which is likely to be considered favourably. In addition,
where appropriate, further guidance was offered to the applicant at the validation stage.

Page 167



305l IWIS WEOIOH Nvld

WS Wi 0

e i A —— - s
HvE 3OS e, P ézsszitxeh“ .,m tvBos: mﬁ (v)
. ! - — e e S ——
NY'd JHNLINSNG HOIH3LX3 " 7Y S e |
term e ..\....! — — e
NS ZM uopuo™] Sl | = =W iR | LD
_ eacigelin
(=] L
| -
_ SINVMNVISZY 310D L 1 f e s £
LOT SI3)SBLLLIOJUED MMM T Y&
woo'siajsewojues@oju; ‘e » T, @Hﬁm@.@_m:
YEYS L0VL 0Z(0)pp+ 8L R i e _ \/. i
VNE L3S Uopuo I ¢ |J s
sMap preA fleg L et e g
8Snop N7 el LoN i P
NODIS3a HOI¥ILNI R,
SUYHLSYWYOLNYD
e AN B HORILNG INVENYLSIY

T NOLYITY

Page 168

B 5 ewee § B @

LNIWADONVHYEY JUNLINENS HOMALXE WOldAL F.,m.... HOIWALXI ONILSIT ¢ !

(TN u]
ANNLNENS OVOM OHOSINI 12020

v
NOLLGINOS3Q  31v0  NOISIATY




O e A D e ) e | T

Agenda ltem 6

ltem No.
6
CITY OF WESTMINSTER
PLANNING APPLICATIONS Date Classification
COMMITTEE 27 October 2015 For General Release
Report of Wards involved
Director of Planning Regent's Park
Subject of Report 3 Hall Gate, L.ondon, NW8 9PG
Proposal Details of a construction management plan pursuant to Condition 3 of
planning permission dated 06 January 2015 (RN: 14/10072).
Agent Savills
On behalf of Mr T Gousgounis
Registered Number 15/05588/ADFULL TP/ PP No TP/11208
Date of Application 22.06.2015 Date 24.06.2015
amended!
completed
Category of Application Non DCLG
Historic Building Grade Unlisted

Conservation Area

Development Plan Context

- London Plan July 2011

- Westminster’'s City Plan:
Strategic Policies 2013

- Unitary Development Plan
{UDP) January 2007

Stress Area Qutside Stress Area

QOutside London Plan Central Activities Zone

Qutside Central Activities Zone

Current Licensing Position Not Applicable

1. RECOMMENDATION

Approve details.

Page 169



i
\‘ 1
g ",
=y »

AN
Fir . P \

:.':!"'. A \

~ :;
P

4%

City of Westminster

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordnance

Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s

Stationery Office. ’

@ Crown copyright and/or database right 2013, Data Source: Q&8 20 Metres
1 1080 L|-|-|-|-|-|-|-|

Al rinhte recaruad |irence number | & 1000 7

Nata: 12MNMIN4E



3 HALL GATE, NW8




Itern No.

6

SUMMARY

The application seeks approval of a Construction Management Plan (CMP) pursuant to
Condition 3 of the planning permission for excavation of a basement floor below the existing
dwellinghouse with lightwells to front and rear elevations, as well as alterations at roof level
and to the front and rear elevations, which was granted permission by the Planning
Applications Committee on 6 January 2015.

The key issue in this case is the compliance of the CMP that has been submitted with the
requirements of Condition 3 (a full copy of the submitted CMP is provided in the background
papers). Condition 3 states that:

‘Notwithstanding the construction management plan submitted with the application, no
development shall take place, including any works of demolition, until a construction
management pian for the proposed development has been submitted to and approved in
writing by the City Council as local planning authority. The plan shall provide the following
details:

i. a construction programme inciuding a 24 hour emergency contact number;

ji. parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors (including measures taken to ensure
satisfactory access and movement for existing occupiers of heighbouring properties during
construction);

jii. locations for loading/unioading and storage of plant and materials used in constructing the
development;

iv. erection and maintenance of security hoardings (including decorative displays and
facilities for public viewing, where appropriate);

v. wheel washing facilities and measures to conirol the emission of dust and dirt during
construction; and

vi. a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resuiting from demolition and construction
works.

You must not start work until we have approved what you have sent us. You must then carry
out the development in accordance with the approved details.’

The CMP that has been submitted does not provide a 24 hour emergency contact number as
the contractor has yet to be finalised; however, it does undertake to provide a 24 hour
emergency contact number on the hoarding around the site for the duration of the construction
works. This is considered to be an acceptable undertaking in response to (i) above. The
construction programme is projected to be 47 weeks, of which the excavation of the basement
and construction of the basement shell wili take 21 weeks. These timescales are considered
to be reasonable given the scope of the proposed works and the need to comply with the
restrictions on hours of works imposed by Condition 2 of the 6 January 2015 permission. A
monthly progress report is to be published to allow neighbouring residents to understand
where in the construction programme the development has reached.

There is to be no on-site parking for site operatives and site operatives will be expected to
access the site by public transport. The tracking diagram appended to the CMP demonstrates
that construction vehicles of the size required to carry out the development will not obstruct
vehicular access once they have been reversed into the site from Hall Road. Accordingly (ii)
above has been satisfactorily addressed.

Materials are to be loaded and unloaded in the location shown on the tracking diagram
appended to the CMP. As per the previous paragraph, in this location the loading and
unloading of construction vehicles would not obstruct vehicular access to neighbouring
properties for neighbouring residents. It is expected that 1 or 2 lorry movements per day will
be required during the basement cig%fﬁéctf? Qhase of the development (up to 21 weeks),



ltem No.

6

with the vehicles almost entirely being 8 metre long rigid lorries (as shown in the submitted
tracking diagram). The applicant suggests that only a 'handful’ of longer 10 metre lorries wil!
be required for particular deliveries and that these will not occur before 10.00 to limit the
impact on access for neighbouring residents. A banksman will be on hand to assist drivers of
construction vehicles with their manoeuvres into and out of Hall Gate. Deliveries are to be
timetabled to ensure only one vehicle is on-site at anyone time and construction vehicle
drivers will be instructed not to wait in Hall Road if they need to wait to access the site for a
scheduled delivery. The CMP confirms that deliveries will not be scheduled when householder
waste and recycling collections in Hall Gate are carried out. Plant and materials to be used to
construct the development are to be stored in the applicant's garage (also shown on the
tracking diagram appended to the CMP). These measures are considered to be sufficient to
address part (iii} of the condition.

Hoardings are to be erected around the front forecourt to contain debris and ensure the site
remains safe. The spoil skip for excavated material will be located within the hoarded area.
The skip is to be emptied by a grab lorry. The hoarding is to be alarmed to prevent
unauthorised access to the site. In this case, given the small scale of the development, there
is not a requirement for a decorative display or a viewing facility. The heardings proposed
accord with point (iv).

The front and rear elevations are to be covered in a sheeted scaffold and a 2.5 metre high
sheeting screen is to be erected around the rear garden and these measures, in tandem with
the proposed hoarding, will lessen dust dispersal to neighbouring buiidings and gardens.
Wheel washing is not proposed and is not necessary given that construction vehicles will not
ieave the paved surface within Hall Gate. The applicant has confirmed that the contractor will
be required to clear up any debris from the development that may be dropped in Hall Gate.
The contractor is to be required to be a member of the Considerate Contractors scheme and
this will compel the contractor to comply with good construction practice. Accordingly it is
considered that the requirements of part (v) of the condition have been met.

Given the limited space available on site, the waste from the site is to be removed from site
and disaggregated off site into different waste and recycling streams by a registered waste
management contractor. Given the constraints of the site, this approach is considered to be
acceptable and the requirements of (iv) have been met.

A number of the objections received question who is responsible for any future damage to the
road surface and other communal parts of Hall Gate. As Hall Gate is a private road and not
part of the public highway this is a private legal matter between the applicant and the owners
of Hall Gate and not a matter that is relevant to the CMP, which deals with the impact of the
carrying out of the development on the amenity of neighbouring residents and the operation of
the local public highway network.

One objector queries the definition of what constitutes a 'large vehicle' and this is a legitimate
concern given that vehicles over 8 metres in length may obstruct vehicular access for
neighbouring residents. The applicant has clarified this section of the CMP to confirm that a
‘large vehicle' (in Section 2 of the CMP) refers to vehicles over 8 metres in length. Given this
clarification by the applicant, the CMP would prevent vehicular obstruction for neighbouring
residents prior to 10.00am throughout the construction period as larger vehicles which may
block the private road within Hall Gate would only be permitted to visit the site after 10.00am.
In light of this, it is not considered that the request for construction vehicles to be banned from
visiting the site prior te 10.00 is reasonable.

Concern has been expressed regarding noise disturbance from the proposed construction
works. Noise disturbance from construction works cannot be wholly avoided; however, the
applicant has committed to appointing a contractor who is a member of the Considerate
Constructors Scheme and therefore the contractor would be compelled to seek to minimise
noise pollution during construction worliggg%aip}igﬁnt has confirmed that measures will be



ftem No.

6

taken, such as use of noise suppression devices on power tools, to minimise noise
disturbance. Furthermore, the hours of noisy basement excavation and construction works
would be limited to between 08.00 and 18.30 Monday to Friday and not at all at weekends.

Significant concern has also been expressed by one neighbour in terms of dust suppression.
However given the scale of the development, it is considered that the measures proposed,
which are described earlier in this report, are sufficient in combination with on site dust
suppression techniques such as damping down, to prevent the spread of a significant
proportion of the dust generated by carrying out the development.

in conclusion, having regard to the size of the proposed basement development, for the
reasons set out in this report, the proposed CMP is considered to be acceptable and
addresses the requirements of Condition 3 of the planning permission dated 6 January 2015.
It is therefore recommended that the approval of details application is approved.

CONSULTATIONS

COUNCILLOR RIGBY
Any response to be reported verbally.

HIGHWAYS PLANNING MANAGER
No objection, provided the applicant works with Highways Licensing to obtain the requisite
highways licenses.

ADJOINING OWNERS/OCCUPIERS AND OTHER REPRESENTATIONS
No. Consulted: 14; Total No. of Replies: 3.
Three email raising objection on all or some of the following grounds:

- No reference in the CMP to common property or insurance (note that pots along shared
entrance driveway may be damaged).

- Works to implement 'ill conceived project’ will cause noise and disruption to neighbours.

- CMP does not specify what constitutes a 'large vehicle’ and this could result in vehicles
blocking Hall Gate early in the morning when vehicular access is required.

- CMP should prevent construction vehicles from visiting the site prior to 10.00am.

- Dust spread prevention should be guaranteed and measures proposed are not considered
to be adequate.

- Dust spread could harm the health of neighbouring residents.

- Applicant should undertake to clean Hall Gate.

- Maximum noise levels should be quantified and limited.

- 11 month construction programme seems ambitious.

- Appended drawing does not show larger lorries, grabbers and skip lorries in and out of
Hall Gate.

- Dirt and noise will be difficult for neighbours to cope with.

- The general traffic jams for this do seem to need a timetable.

- Lorries will damage kerb stones and not clear who will repair this damage.

ADVERTISEMENT/ SITE NOTICE: Yes.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

1. Application form.

2. Copy of Construction Management Plan dated May 2015 (as amended on 16 October 2015).
3. Memo from the Highways Planning Manager dated 15 July 2015.

4. Email from the occupier of 6 Hall Gate dated 26 July 2015.

5. Email from the occupier of 4 Hall Gate paéegle"; &upast 2015.



i b e et o ATy A

6. Email from the occupier of 10 Hall Gate dated 4 August 2015.

ltem No.

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT OR WISH TO INSPECT ANY OF THE

BACKGROUND PAPERS PLEASE CONTACT SARAH WHITNALL ON 020 7641 2929 OR BY E-MAIL —

swhitnall@westminster.gov.uk.

Page 175



Item No.

6
DRAFT DECISION LETTER

Address: 3 Hall Gate, London, NW8 9PG

Proposal: Details of a construction management plan pursuant to Condition 3 of planning
permission dated 6 January 2015 (RN: 14/10072).

Plan Nos: Construction Management Plan dated May 2015 (as amended on 16 October 2015
by email from Joe Haines - Savills).

Case Officer: Oliver Gibson Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 2680

Recommended Condition(s) and Reason(s) or Reason(s) for Refusal:

need to comply with the Construction Management Plan throughout
articular, you have undertaken to display a 24 hour emergency
ding at all times and provided a monthly update to neighbours,
ress on the development. You have also undertaken to
ppointed to carry out the development is a member of the

contact number gl
which provides: :
ensure that th ictor tha
Considerate Cornitraptors scheme._

Page 176



X
] T &
nee /-
39V01S T\
=
Zou
e T g
—ONUIIHS WS- 3ive uinoas _ﬁ?: Ld
....... ;. : R iy \

ONIOVS GUVMO4
VI ONY N
ISUANTY ‘STAOT

BRoPOEd (&NSTRUCTION SITE <t U

Page 177



vi0z38d | eV @SLT
:aeg 13|eas

Judwaseq
8 100|4 punous) pasodoud
iuoisivad £ Suimesg

9d6 8MN ‘Uopuo]
‘21e9 ||eH £
28lolg

NOILYINddY ONINNY1d
:aseyq

siunodsnog sewouy ] Jiy
BUE]»]

01aN1s SOYADYY YNILSIHX
:laudisag

POWONED DRAWINEA

38 0L SNOISKImId T

\gtﬁmbgﬁ

q
SIUYONNCE IHL NIHLM NWAEY 0L TTMLHIN

/ TV ALMVS 40 INTTALNID

Y Sl
J | Wit . \ s
i \ 1 I/
» \ OIEL A S
WOOH ABONFYT .\ 2y
;i =N
| .F.,. \\m W
VY ONILLS
)
s S Sa L7
I
/ |
e Avd 40 0N
W5 NO 03I
TV MO INGHS JO
g
& oeee—— BEVL | A
%
£\
. NOOH INITY3Y LHONS
ad - ;
1 Z

TTvM ALV 40 INTIHIIND

NI0UYD W3

VLS ONY TISMLHIN GNNOYY SNy
i

0975

Page 178




¥10Z 230 £V @SLT
93eq 19825

suouana|3
Jeay g Juoi4 pasodoigd
uoisinal zo Suimelg

9d6 BMN 'UopUO]
‘e ||leH €
afoid

NOILYAITI dv3d 03S0d0dd

NOLLYDNddY ONINNY T
:as5eyd

siunodsnon sewoy| JN
RC (]

Frrrrrrrrrrrrr-._._iﬁ&auiﬁbﬂ

OIanNLS SOYADHY WNLLSIHX
audisaq

HO0 ONNOYD

APPROVED Dem\i@l

TIIMLHON ONNOYY ONTIVY

'IEHSIENNAIY SHINEOD DNIISKG

LI i .__

- Epet Tk r o

T T = T

- o st
| .
| = /Bi«hx.—oox
Lo L T TIL A0 SNLSHT
e T T
- .__. L - - T P p b ik L L |

1
e e LHOGH TN MaN

RN

= I [INVLEY 4004
== EE _./u._z 1D SNLSHa
T

SMOONIM LHOMANS XTT3A MM
SMOONIM ANNIANTY HLM

Page 179




YI0ZP0 | eY @siT

aeg -ajeag
VY uonaas pasodoug
150 Buimeig

9d6 BMN ‘Uopuo]
‘aeg ey €
3foug

NOLLYDMddV ONINNY1d
@seyd

SIUNoFsNoD seWoy] Jw
auaD

OIANLS SOYADHY WNILSIHX
sJaudisag

APROVED  DRAW WG,

LaiChE:]

........

HIMIANS TIBVATVR M3

J0N34 000M QELYTS

Paage 180

by A g




‘Agenda ltem 7

Item No. -
7
CITY OF WESTMINSTER
PLANNING APPLICATIONS | Date Classification
COMMITTEE 27 October 2015 For General Release
Report of Wards involved
Director of Planning West End
Subject of Report 31 Eastcastle Street, .ondon, W1W 8DL
Proposal Use of the lower ground and ground floors as a restaurant (Class A3);

installation of a high level extract duct to rear; new access to front;
replacement balustrade to front lightwell and alterations to the shopfront.
Installation of plant within an enclosure in the rear lightwell at lower
ground floor level.

Agent Clifford Rance Associates
On behalf of Shelana Investments Ltd
Registered Number 15/04232/FULL TP /PP No TP/6186
Date of Application 13.05.2015 Date 13.05.2015
amended/
completed

Category of Application Other

Historic Building Grade Unlisted

Conservation Area East Marylebone

Development Plan Context

- London Plan July 2011

- Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies 2013

- Unitary Development Plan
(UDP} January 2007

Within London Plan Central Activities Zone
Within Central Activities Zone

Stress Area Outside Stress Area

Current Licensing Position | Not Applicable

|

1. RECOMMENDATION

Grant conditional permission.

Page 181



P

rFal

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordnance N
Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's |

0 510 20Metres
Losalsaal

Stationery Office. :
© Crown copyright and/or database right Data Source:
el s g Patar 12/10/904 6

2013,

NN



31 EASTCASTLE STREET, W1




ltem No.

SUMMARY

The application premises is located on the northern side of Eastcastle Street. The building
which comprises basement, ground and four upper floors is in commercial use. The basement
is occupied by a post production media company (Class B1), the ground floor is a clothing
showroom (Sui Generis). Permission is sought for the use of the basement and ground floors
as a restaurant use (Class A3). External alterations include the installation of a new shopfront,
plant and a rear high level rear extraction duct.

The key issues in this case are:

« The impact in land use terms, of the loss of the existing uses and proposed restaurant on
the character and function of the area;

» The impact on residential amenity;

+ The impact in design terms.

Subject to appropriate conditions, the proposal is considered acceptable in land use,
transport, design and amenity terms. The application is therefore recommended for approval
being in compliance with the retevant Unitary Development Plan (UDP) and City Plan policies.

CONSULTATIONS

FITZROVIA NEIGHBOURHQOD ASSOCIATION
Any response to be reported verbally.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH
Acceptable subject to conditions.

HIGHWAYS
Acceptable subject to conditions.

ADJOINING OWNERS/OCCUPIERS AND OTHER REPRESENTATIONS

No. Consulted: 62; Total No. of Replies: 2.

Two objections received (from the same agent on behalf of the occupants of the basement
and grounds) on the following grounds:

Land Use

» Loss of the showroom at ground floor level.

s Loss of the light industrial use at basement level.
» Proposed restaurant is unacceptable.

Design
« Alterations would be detrimental to the appearance of the building, and would adversely
impact the character and appearance of the East Marylebone Conservation Area.

Amenity:
« Noise nuisance.
+ QOdour nuisance.

Other Issues:

s Partial implementation would result in noise nuisance to the occupant of the basement.

« The freeholder has not consulted with existing tenants. The application is 'premature’
taking into account the remaining length of the iease for the basement occupier.

¢ Insufficient information has been provided to determine the application which includes
errors and omissions.

o Lack of cycle parking. Page 184



ot v 2

Item No.

7

« Disabled access provision is not sufficient.
ADVERTISEMENT/SITE NOTICE: Yes
BACKGROUND INFORMATION

4.1 The Application Site

31 Eastcastle Street is an unlisted building located within the East Marylebone Conservation
Area and the Core Central Activities Zone but outside of any designated Stress Area. The
building comprises of basement, ground and four upper floors. The ground floor is in use as a
clothing showroom (Sui Generis), the basement floor is occupied by a post-production media
company (Class B1), whilst the lawful use of the upper floors of the property appears to be a
mix of offices and showrooms.

4.2 Relevant History

Planning permission was granted on the 27" June 1980 for the ‘demolition of 31 and 32
Eastcastle Street, W1 and erection of a basement, ground and four upper storey building
comprising showrooms at basement, ground and first floor levels, light industrial use at
second and third floors and offices on the fourth floor.

Planning permission was subsequently granted on the 20™ July 1984 for the ‘use of basement
as light industrial accommodation and second and third floors as offices’ It shouid be noted
there was a condition attached to this permission stating ‘this permission shall be personal to
Shelana Fashions Ltd and shall not endure for the benefit of the land’.

Planning permission was granted on the 10" December 2012 for the ‘replacement of the
existing ground level fagade’.

THE PROPOSAL

Permission is sought for the use of the basement and ground floors as a restaurant premises
(Class A3). Alterations are also proposed to the front which include the instaltation of a new
shopfront and a new balustrade to the front lightwell. It i$ also proposed to install plant with an
enclosure in a rear lightwell at lower ground floor level and a full high level extract duct
terminating at main roof level.

The total floorspace of the proposed restaurant would be 441 m?.

Proposed restaurant incorporating basement
and ground floor level

Total A3 Floorspace (m2) 441m?

No. of covers in restaurant 146

Hours of Operation 08.00 - 00.00 Monday to Thursday, 08.00 —~00.30 on
Friday and Saturday and 08.00 - 23.00 on Sundays

Ventitation arrangements Full height kitchen extract duct and air conditioning
units.

Refuse Storage arrangements | To be stored within separate refuse and recycling
storage areas at basement level.

Page 185



[P ———

ltem No.

7

DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS

Detailed objections have been received on behalf of the occupiers of the ground and
basement raising primarily land use, design and amenity issues.

6.1 Land Use
6.1.1 Loss of showroom

Ground Floor: -

The ground floor is currently in use as a wholesale showroom (Sui generis) UDP policy
COM12 seeks to retain wholesale showrooms at ground and basement level within the East
Marylebone Special Policy Area (SPA). The adopted City Plan; Strategic policies reduce the
size of the East Marylebone Special Policy Area (SPA). The site now lies outside the SPA.
Accordingly the application needs to be assessed against policy which deals with the loss of
showrooms outside the SPA.

UDP Policy COM 12 B is relevant. The policy states that ‘permission for change of use from a
wholesale showroom at ground floor will not normally be granted where the showroom
contributes to the character and function of the area. In other cases, planning permission will
be granted where the proposed use is as a retail shop, or a use appropriate for a street level
location, generating passing trade and providing a direct service to customers, if the proposed
use is within an area which would benefit from its introduction.’

Since 2012 permission has been granted for the loss of showrooms at four separate locations
on Eastcastle street namely at 34-35 Eastcastle Street, 16-19 Eastcastle Street, 51 Eastcastle
Street and 36 Eastcastle Street. The principle of loss of showrooms outside the East
Marylebone SPA has therefore been firmly established. As the proposal will retain a ‘service
use’ on site the loss of the ground floor showroom use is considered acceptable.

6.1.2 Loss of light Industrial use

Basemenit:

Planning permission was granted on the 20 July 1984 for the use of the basement as light
industrial accommaodation which was made personal to Shelana Fashions Limited. This
permission was implemented and there have been no subsequent permissions relating to the
use of the basement.

The basement is currently occupied by Jumbuck Limited as a mix of office accommodation
and audio post-production facilities. Upon vacation of the premises by Shelana Fashions the
basement would have had a nil planning use.

As already stated objections have been received on behalf of the current occupants of the
basement and ground floors. One of the grounds for objection is that the proposal would result
in the loss of a light industrial use, within the Creative Industry SPA. The objection refers to
this being contrary to UDP policies COM 8 and COM 10. Policy COM 8 seeks to retain light
industrial floorspace within the Creative Industries Special Policy Area. UDP Policy COM 10
seeks to retain light industrial floorspace outside the SPA where the existing use meets local
service and employment needs and has no adverse impact on residential amenity.

The Creative Industries Spegial Policy Area is not carried forward into the adopted City Plan:
Strategic Policies, furthermore given that the basement would have had a nil planning use
when Shelana Fashions Ltd vacated in 1984, and there are no planning controls which would
prevent the loss of the light industrial use. In the circumstances permission could not
reasonably be withheld on the grounds that light industrial floorspace should be retained.

Page 186



Item No.

7

The objector makes reference to the noise sensitive nature of the current basement occupier,
being an audio post-production facility. They advise that there is an informal agreement
between the ground floor and the basement occupier to ensure the ground floor is operated in
a manner considerate of the noise sensitive work of the basement occupier. An objection is
magde on the basis that partial implementation of permission would result in noise from a
ground floor restaurant detrimentally affecting the operation of the audio post-production
company in the basement. Whilst these concerns are noted it the layout of the proposed
restaurant would preclude its partial implementation. Plant equipment is shown in the
basement lightwell and the cycle parking and waste storage are also shown internally within
the basement. A condition is recommended which requires their provision before the
restaurant use can be implemented. This objection is not therefore considered to be
sustainable.

6.1.3 New restaurant use:

City Plan Policy 524 and UDP Policies TACE 8-10 deal with entertainment uses. City Plan
Policy $24 requires proposals for new and extension to existing entertainment uses to
demonstrate that they are appropriate in terms of type and size of use, scale of activity, and
relationship to any existing concentrations of entertainment uses.

The policies aim to control the location, size and activities of entertainment uses in order to
safeguard residential amenity, local environmental quality and the established character and
function of the various parts of the City, while acknowledging that they provide important
services in the City and contribute to its role as an entertainment centre of national and
international importance.

As the proposal is for a new restaurant comprising 441m2 outside a stress area and needs to
be considered against UDP Policy TACES8. The policy presumption where TACE 8 is
applicable is that restaurants will generally be permissible, where the proposal will have no
adverse impact on residential amenity or local environmental quality, and no adverse effect on
the character or function of its area.

impact on amenity

Whilst the application is purely speculative at this stage, the applicant confirms that given the
size of the premises, the restaurant capacity would be limited to 146 covers. The proposed
opening hours of the premises are 08.00 to 00.00 Monday to Thursday, 08.00 to 00.30 Friday
and Saturday (the following morning) and 08.00 to 23.00 on Sundays.

The nearest residential units are located at second and third floor levels within the demise of
the Weish Baptist Chapel, which is the adjoining building to the east. There is also an extant
permission for residential flats on the upper floors of 34-35 Eastcastle Street approximately
17m to the west of the proposed restaurant.

Objections have been received that the proposed restaurant would result in noise nuisance,
including noise emanating from music that may be played within the premises. Given the
intended capacity and opening hours proposed, it is considered that any activity associated
with the restaurant would not be harmful to residential amenity. Both the capacity and opening
hours can be controlled through the imposition of conditions. Conditions are also
recommended which would:

i) prevent music being played within the restaurant being audible outside the premises
and requiring windows to be fixed shut;

i) restrict any bar area to a maximum of 15% of the total bar area and require that drinks
can only be served to customers dinning;

jii} require the use to be carried out in accordance with an Operational Management Plan.

Page 187



ftem No.

The objections received also refer to potential nuisance from cooking odours.

A high level extract duct is proposed which will disperse of cooking smells from the premises.
Environmental Health consider raise no objection to this advising that the proposed duct is
suitable to enable the discharge of cooking odours without detriment to neighbouring
residential amenity. This aspect of the application is considered acceptable.

Subject to the imposition of conditions referred to it is considered that the restaurant would not
adversely impact on residential amenity and the proposal would comply with Policy $24 of the
City Plan and Policies TACES8, ENV6 and ENV13 of the UDP.

impact on character and function of the area

The area is mixed use in character comprising commercial offices and entertainment uses and
a significant number of residential properties. There are some licensed premises in the vicinity
although it is not considered that the area is ‘saturated’ with such uses. The nearest licensed
premises are restaurants at 10-12 Winsley Street and 48 Eastcastle Street. The terminal hour
of these premises is 00.30 the following morning on Saturdays (as proposed at the application
site). It is considered that the provision of a new restaurant would not be harmful to the
character and function of this part of the East Marylebone Conservation Area

6.2 Townscape and Design

No.31 Eastcastle Street is a red-brick structure of modest architectural ambition which makes
a neutral contribution to the street and surrounding conservation area, and its role is also
neutral in forming part of the setting of the neighbouring Grade Il listed Welsh Chapel. The
street fagade is of harsh and uniform colour only moderately relived by basic detailing and the
shopfronts are quite unremarkable and partly set behind crudely supported glass balustrading.
The rear facade is similarly dreary.

Objections to the proposal have been received relating to the design of the shopfront, railings,
and plant installation, and to the use as being out of character with the conservation area.

The existing shopfront is of no particular merit, and neither is the entrance to the building
which has been altered in recent years. In design and heritage asset terms there is no
objection in principle to the shopfront alterations, although the glass screen should be omitted
as this is incongruous in the street and out of character with the conservation area which is
not noted for glass balustrades. Black-painted metal railings are considered to be more
appropriate to the character and appearance of the conservation area. This may be dealt with
by condition. This would accord with UDP policy DES 5 and the City Council’'s supplementary
planning guidance ‘Shopfronts, Blinds and Signs’, and the proposed advertisement’s location
accords with the advice given in the ‘Advertisement Design Guidelines’ SPG. There is a wide
variety of signage in the street and conservation area, and the proposal in its current form (a
modest fascia logo) is acceptable in principle. Any incoming tenant would be required to
obtain ‘express consent’ for illuminated advertisement and any such application would be
considered on its merits. Therefore, the objection to these aspects of the proposal is not
considered sustainable.

At the rear, there is no objection in principle to the proposed plant which has been sited to
minimise its visual impact and is acceptable subject to suitable visual screening. In particular,
the duct must be clad to match the brickwork in order to maintain the setting of the
neighbouring Grade I listed chapel when seen from the upper floors of surrounding
properties. This may be dealt with by condition.

Mechanical ptant can be found on many buildings in the conservation area and UDP polices
set out the requirements for plant installations (DES 5), maintaining the character and
appearance of conservation areaP%éQ]_@@ the setting of listed buildings (DES10}. In this



[tem No.

7

case, subject to visual screening, the new rear duct would maintain the appearance of the
building and the character and appearance of the conservation area as well as the setting of
the neighbouring listed building. Therefore the objection is not considered sustainable.

6.3  Amenity (Daylight’ Sunlight/ Sense of Enclosure/ Privacy)

The proposal does not involve any extensions to the building other than the full height rear
extract duct which would not impact on the amenity of occupants of surrounding properties.

6.4 Transportation / Servicing

Policy TRANS 20 states that the City Council will require convenient access to premises for
service vehicles and will normally require that ‘vehicular servicing needs of developments are
fully accommodated on-site and off street ... sufficient to cater for the size, type and frequency
of arrival of the vehicles likely to be servicing the development’. No off street servicing is
proposed for the proposed use and the site is located within a Controlled Parking Zone, where
single yellow lines allow for the loading and unloading of vehicles.

There is no opportunity for off street servicing in this location, however, it is common for
premises within this area to be serviced on-street. The application site is within a Controlled
Parking Zone (Monday to Friday 08.30 to 18.30) and directly outside the site there are single
yellow fines which will allow for loading and there is pay and display parking on the opposite
side of the street. The site is also well served by public transport. No objections have been
raised by the Highways Planning Manager in relation to impact on parking levels.

In order for the development to accord with the requirements of FALP three cycle parking
spaces are required within the demise of the premises. Whilst originally no cycle parking was
shown on the drawings, the application has been amended to show cycle parking provision. A
condition is proposed to ensure these cycle parking spaces are provided and retained. An
objection was received to the lack of cycle parking but as detailed this issue was resolved
during the course of the application.

The Highways Planning Manager has expressed concern with regard home deliveries from
the proposed restaurant use which can reduce the availability of parking in the locality and
increase noise and fumes. Therefore a condition is proposed to ensure no delivery service or
any hot food takeaway provision is provided.

The drawings have been amended during the course of the application to include the
provision of waste and recycling storage facilities. This is considered acceptable and is
secured by condition.

The Highways Planning Officer sought confirmation that the lightwell at the front of the
premises is not to be increased in size and the applicant has confirmed this is the case.

6.5 Economic Considerations
Any economic benefits generated are welcome.
6.6 Access

Level access will be provided to the ground floor of the premises (via a new ramp) and a
disabled access toilet is shown on the submitted drawings within the restaurant premises at
ground floor level. The objector has queried whether the proposed disabled access provision
could be improved upon but any implemented proposal would have to be DDA compliant and
taking into account the proposed improvements it is not considered permission could be
reasonably withheld on these groundsPage 189



Item No.

7

6.7  Other UDP/Westminster Policy Considerations
6.7.1 Noise
6.7.2 Plant

The application has been considered in the context of Policies ENV6 and ENV7 of the UDP
and S32 of the City Plan. These policies seek to protect nearby occupiers of noise sensitive
properties and the area generally from excessive noise and disturbance,

The acoustic report states the plant will be in operation between the hours of 08:00 and 00:30
daily, which accords with the opening hours of the restaurant.

The area has been identified in the Acoustic Report as having background noise levels which
are above WHO guideline levels during the daytime and nightime. To accord with Policy ENV7
of the UDP the noise levels emitted by the plant will have to be 10dB below background at the
nearest noise sensitive windows. The report identified a design level criteria of 36dB which is
10dB below the lowest recorded background noise level over the proposed operational period.

The residential windows within the Welsh Baptist Chapel at 30 Eastcastle Street are 18m
distant from the plant in the rear lightwell, 6m distant from the fan in the rear extract duct and
12m distant from the grilles in the front basement elevation.

In order to ensure the plant noise is compliant with the City Council criteria, Environmental
Health require that certain mitigation measures are installed as detailed within the submitted
acoustic report. This includes acoustic screening for the units located on the rear lightwell and
the installation of ‘in-duct attenuators’ to the ductwork. With these acoustic mitigation
measures in place Environmental Health have confirmed that the application will be compliant
with the Council noise criteria and have raised no objection to the proposal subject to
conditions.

The objector is concerned that there was no consultation between the freeholder and the
leaseholders before the submission of the application. However, there is no statutory
requirement for the freeholder to notify the leaseholders unless they have in excess of seven
years remaining on their leases which is not the case in this instance.

The objector has picked up on a number of minor errors and omissions within the
documentation submitted by the applicant as part of the planning application. Whilst it is
acknowledged that there are some errors in the application such as the suggestion that the
ground and basement floors are currently vacant, the application has been determined on its
own merits and there is no justification for refusing the application due to some minor errors in
the submission which have not materially impacted upon the determination of this application.

Concern is also raised by the objector that the lease for the basement does not expire until
2019. They therefore consider the application to be ‘premature’ as any consent would only be
extant for three years. Whilst this is noted this is a private matter between the freeholder and
the leasehold and does not materially impact upon the acceptability of the application.

6.8 London Plan

The proposal does not raise strategic issues and does not have significant implications for the
London Plan.

Page 190



Item No,

7

6.9 National Policy/Guidance Considerations

Central Government’s National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) came into effect on 27
March 2012. it sets out the Government’s planning policies and how they are expected to be
applied. The NPPF has replaced almost all of the Government's existing published planning
policy statements/guidance as well as the circulars on planning obligations and strategic
planning in London. It is a material consideration in determining planning applications.

Until 27 March 2013, the City Council was able to give full weight to relevant policies in the
Core Strategy and London Plan, even if there was a limited degree of conflict with the
framework. The City Council is now required to give due weight to relevant policies in existing
plans “according to their degree of consistency” with the NPPF. Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies was adopted by Full Council on 13 November 2013 and is fully compliant
with the NPPF. For the UDP, due weight should be given to relevant policies according to their
degree of consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies in the plan to the NPPF, the
greater the weight that may be given).

The UDP policies referred to in the consideration of this application are considered to be
consistent with the NPPF unless stated otherwise.

6.10 Planning Obligations
The application does not raise a requirement for a planning obligation.
6.11 Environmental Assessment including Sustainability and Biodiversity Issues

The scale of the proposed development does not require the submission of an Environmental
Impact Assessment or provide opportunities for additional sustainability measures,

Conclusion
The proposals are considered acceptable in land use, transport, amenity and design terms

and accord with the relevant UDP and City Plan policies. The application is therefore
recommended for conditional planning approval.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

QR wnN -

Application forms.

Memorandum from Environmental Health dated 17 September 2015

Memorandum from the Highways Planning Manager dated 7 October 2015

Letter from the representative of the commercial occupier of the basement dated 18 June 2015.
Letter from the representative of the commercial occupier of the ground floor dated 18 June 2015,

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT OR WISH TO INSPECT ANY OF THE
BACKGROUND PAPERS PLEASE CONTACT MIKE WALTON ON 020 7641 2521 OR BY E-
MAIL — mwalton@westminster.gov.uk

\d wpdocsishor-teisci2016-10-27item7 dociQ
19/10/2045

Page 191



o o

15/04232/FULL

DRAFT DECISION LETTER

Address: 31 Eastcastle Street, London, W1W 8DL

Proposal: Use of the lower ground and ground floors as a restaurant (Class A3); installation
of a high level extract duct to rear; new access to front; replacement balustrade to
front lightwell and alterations to the shopfront. Installation of plant within an
enclosure in the rear lightwell at lower ground floor level.

Plan Nos:

Case Officer: Matthew Giles Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 5942

Recommended Condition(s) and Reason(s}):

n S holidays and public holidays.

,/ -

Noisy work must not take place o§t§ide ese hours. (C11AA)
N

Reason: -

To protect the environment of nej ing residents. This is as set out in $29 and S32 of
Westminster's City Plan: St tegk‘&t.d es: adop_ed November 2013 and ENV 6 of our
Unitary Development Plan thatiwe Néted in Janu%og?. (R11AC)

o

YR |
3 You must hang all doors or gates so}h{;}ﬁey d})%ot ope'r'i égél\or cross the road or

pavement. (C24AA) Ve L
< - . /_,/\/ AV
In the interests of public safety and to avoid b\ock/g the roa}
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 an
TRANS 3 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adq ted,n_JamQr/y 2007. (R24AC)
I : :

Reason:

4 You must provide each cycle parking space shown on th p}ved drawings prior to
occupation. Thereafter the cycle spaces must be retained and the space used for no other
purpose without the prior written consent of the local planning authority.

Reason:

To provide cycle parking spaces for people using the development as set out in TRANS 10
of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

Page 192



10

15/04232/FULL

You must not sell any hot-food take-away or drink on the premises, nor operate a delivery
service, even as an ancillary part of the primary Class A3 use.

Reason:

We cannot grant planning permission for unrestricted use within Class A3 because it would
not meet TACES of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007, and
because of the special circumstances of this case.

Before anyone moves into the property, you must provide the separate stores for waste and
materials for recycling shown on drawing number 3058/101 RevA. You must clearly mark
them and make them available at all times to everyone using the premises. (C14FB)

Reason:

To protect the environment and provide suitable storage for waste as set out in 844 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 12 of our
Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R14BD)

If you choose to provide the bar and bar seating as shown on the submitted drawings, it
must not take up more than 15% of the floor area of the property, or more than 15% of each
unit if you let the property as more than one unit. You must use the bar to serve restaurant
customers only, before, during or after their meals.

Reason:
We cannot grant planning permission for unrestricted use in this case because it wouid not
meet TACES of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R0O5AB)

You must not allow more than 146 customers into the property at any one time. (CO5HA)

Reason:
We cannot grant planning permission for unrestricted use in this case because it would not
meet TACES of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (RO5AB)

Customers shall not be permitted within the restaurant premises before 08.00 or after 00.00
(midnight) on Mondays to Thursdays (not including bank holidays and public holidays),
before 08.00 or after 00.30 on Fridays and Saturdays (not including bank holidays and public
holidays) and before 08.00 or after 23.00 on Sundays and bank holidays.

Reason:

To protect the environment of people in neighbouring properties as set out in $24, $S29 and
832 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 8, ENV
7 and TACES of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R12AC)

Prior to the occupation of the premises for restaurant purposes, you shall submit and have
approved in writing by the local planning authority a management plan to show how you will
prevent customers who are leaving the building from causing nuisance for people in the
area, including people who live in nearby buildings. You must not start the restaurant use
until we have approved what you have sent us. You must then carry out the measures
included in the management plan at all times that the restaurant is in use.

Reason:

Page 193



11

12

13

14

15/04232/FULL

We cannot grant planning permission for unrestricted use in this case because it would not
meet TACES of our Unitary Development Pian that we adopted in January 2007. (RO5AB)

The high level extract duct hereby approved must be installed before the restaurant use
commences, it shall thereafter be permanently retained in situ and maintained for as long as
the restaurant is in use.

Reason:

To protect the environment of people in neighbouring properties as set out in $29 and 332 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 6, ENV 7 and
DES 5 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. {R14AC)

All new work to the outside of the building must match existing original work in terms of the
choice of materials, method of construction and finished appearance. This applies unless
differences are shown on the drawings we have approved or are required by conditions to
this permission. (C26AA)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the East Marylebone Conservation Area. This is as
set out in $25 and 528 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November
2013 and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26BE)

You must apply to us for approval of a sample of the GRP cladding for the ductwork (as
required to be installed by Condition 14 of this permission). You must not start any work on
these parts of the development untif we have approved what you have sent us.

You must then carry out the work according to these approved details.

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the East Marylebone Conservation Area. This is as
set out in S25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan; Strategic Policies adopted November
2013 and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26BE)

You must apply to us for approval of detailed drawings showing the following alteration(s) to
the scheme (1} Installation of black painted metal railings to the front lightwell instead of a
glass balustrade. (2) The new rear duct to be clad in GRP to match the adjacent brickwork.
You must not start on these parts of the work until we have approved what you have sent us.
You must then carry out the work according to the approved drawings.

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the East Marylebone Conservation Area. This is as
set out in $25 and 528 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November
2013 and DES 1 and DES 6 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26BE)

Page 194



15

16

15/04232/FULL

No vibration shall be transmitted to adjoining or other premises and structures through the
building structure and fabric of this development as to cause a vibration dose value of
greater than 0.4m/s (1.75) 16 hour day-time nor 0.26 m/s (1.75) 8 hour night-time as defined
by BS 6472 (2008) in any part of a residential and other noise sensitive property.

Reason: ,

As set out in ENV6 (2) and (6) of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January
2007, to ensure that the development is designed to prevent structural transmission of noise
or vibration.

(1) Where noise emitted from the proposed plant and machinery will not contain tones or will
not be intermittent, the 'A' weighted sound pressure level from the plant and machinery
(including non-emergency auxiliary plant and generators) hereby permitted, when operating
at its noisiest, shall not at any time exceed a value of 10 dB below the minimum external
background noise, at a point 1 metre outside any window of any residential and other noise
sensitive property, unless and until a fixed maximum noise level is approved by the City
Council. The background level should be expressed in terms of the lowest LA90, 15 mins
during the proposed hours of operation. The plant-specific noise level should be expressed
as LAeqTm, and shall be representative of the plant operating at its maximum.

(2) Where noise emitted from the proposed plant and machinery will contain tones or will be
intermittent, the 'A' weighted sound pressure level from the plant and machinery (including
non-emergency auxiliary plant and generators) hereby permitted, when operating at its
noisiest, shall not at any time exceed a value of 15 dB below the minimum external
background noise, at a point 1 metre outside any window of any residential and other noise
sensitive property, unless and until a fixed maximum noise level is approved by the City
Council. The background level should be expressed in terms of the lowest LAS0, 15 mins
during the proposed hours of operation. The plant-specific noise level should be expressed
as LAeqTm, and shall be representative of the plant operating at its maximum.

(3) Following installation of the plant and equipment, you may apply in writing to the City
Council for a fixed maximum noise level to be approved. This is to be done by submitting a
further noise report confirming previous details and subsequent measurement data of the
installed plant, including a proposed fixed noise levet for approval by the City Council. Your
submission of a noise report must include:

{a) A schedule of all plant and equipment that formed part of this application;

{(b) Locations of the plant and machinery and associated: ducting; attenuation and damping
equipment;

(c) Manufacturer specifications of sound emissions in octave or third octave detail,

(d) The location of most affected noise sensitive receptor location and the most affected
window of it;

(e) Distances between plant & equipment and receptor location/s and any mitigating features
that may attenuate the sound level received at the most affected receptor location;

(f) Measurements of existing LAS0, 15 mins levels recorded one metre outside and in front of
the window referred to in (d) above (or a suitable representative position), at times when
background noise is at its lowest during hours when the plant and equipment will operate.
This acoustic survey to be conducted in conformity to BS 7445 in respect of measurement
methodology and procedures,

(g) The lowest existing L AS0, 15 mins measurement recorded under (f) above;

(h) Measurement evidence and any calculations demonstrating that plant and equipment
complies with the planning condition;

(i) The proposed maximum noise level to be emitted by the plant and equipment.

Page 195



15/04232/FULL

Reason:

Because existing external ambient noise levels exceed WHO Guideline Levels, and as set
out in ENV 6 (1), (6) and (8) and ENV 7 (A)(1) of our Unitary Development Plan that we
adopted in January 2007, so that the noise environment of people in noise sensitive
properties is protected, including the intrusiveness of tonal and impulsive sounds; and as set
out in 832 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013, by
contributing to reducing excessive ambient noise levels. Part (3) is included so that
applicants may ask subsequently for a fixed maximum noise level to be approved in case
ambient noise levels reduce at any time after implementation of the planning permission.

The plant/machinery hereby permitted shall not be operated except between 08:00 hours
and 00:30 hours daily.

Reason:

To safeguard the amenity of occupiers of noise sensitive properties and the area generally
by ensuring that the plant/machinery hereby permitted is not operated at hours when
external background noise levels are quietest thereby preventing noise and vibration
nuisance as set out in $S32 of Westminster's City Pian: Strategic Policies adopted November
2013 and ENV 6 and ENV 7 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January
2007.

You must install the acoustic mitigation measures as detailed in the approved acoustic report
at the same time as the plant is installed. These measures must be retained in the approved
form for as long as the plant remains in place.

Reason:

To protect neighbouring residents from noise and vibration nuisance, as set out in 29 and
832 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 6 and
ENV 7 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R13AC)

Informative(s):

In dealing with this application the City Council has implemented the requirement in the Nation:
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We have
made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies in Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies adopted November 2013, Unitary Development Plan, Supplementary
Planning documents, planning briefs and other informal written guidance, as well as offering a
full pre application advice service, in order to ensure that applicant has been given every
opportunity to submit an application which is likely to be considered favourably. In addition,
where appropriate, further guidance was offered to the applicant at the validation stage.

Please contact our District Surveyors' Services to discuss how you can design for the inclusion
of disabled people. Email: districtsurveyors@westminster.gov.uk. Phone 020 7641 7240 or 02C
7641 7230. if you make a further planning application or a building regulations application whicl
relates solely to providing access or facilities for people with disabilities, our normal planning
and building control fees do not apply.

Page 196



15/04232/FULL

The Equality and Human Rights Commission has a range of publications to assist you, see
www.equalityhumanrights.com. The Centre for Accessible Environment’s 'Designing for
Accessibility', 2004, price £22.50 is a useful guide, visit www.cae.org.uk.

If you are building new homes you must provide features which make them suitable for people
with disabilities. For advice see www.habinteg.org.uk

It is your responsibility under the law to provide good access to your buildings. An appropriate
and complete Access Statement as one of the documents on hand-over, will provide you and

the end user with the basis of a defence should an access issue be raised under the Disability
Discrimination Acts.

Please make sure that the street number and building name (if applicable) are clearly displayec
on the building. This is a condition of the London Building Acts {Amendments) Act 1939, and
there are regulations that specify the exact requirements. If you would like more information,
you can contact Ray Gangadeen on 020 7641 7064. (I54AA)

Please contact our Cleansing section on 020 7641 7962 about your arrangements for storing
and collecting waste. (I08AA)

The term 'clearly mark' in condition means marked by a permanent wall notice or floor
markings, or both. (I8BAA)

Regulation 12 of the Workplace (Health, Safety and Welfare) Regulations 1992 requires that
every floor in a workplace shall be constructed in such a way which makes it suitable for use.
Floors which are likely to get wet or to be subject to spiltages must be of a type which does not
become unduly slippery. A slip-resistant coating must be applied where necessary. You must
also ensure that floors have effective means of drainage where necessary. The flooring must b
fitted correctly and properly maintained.

Regulation 6 (4)(a) Schedule 1(d) states that a place of work should possess suitable and
sufficient means for preventing a fall. You must therefore ensure the following:

* Stairs are constructed to help prevent a fall on the staircase; you must consider stair rises anc
treads as well as any landings;

* Stairs have appropriately highlighted grip nosing so as to differentiate each step and provide
sufficient grip to help prevent a fall on the staircase;

* Any changes of level, such as a step between floors, which are not obvious, are marked to
make them conspicuous. The markings must be fitted correctly and properly maintained,;

* Any staircases are constructed so that they are wide enough in order to provide sufficient
handrails, and that these are installed correctly and properly maintained. Additional handrails
sheuld be provided down the centre of particularly wide staircases where necessary;

* Stairs are suitably and sufficiently lit, and lit in such a way that shadows are not cast over the
main part of the treads.

You are advised to permanently mark the plant/ machinery hereby approved with the details of
this permission (date of grant, registered number). This will assist in future monitoring of the
equipment by the City Council if and when complaints are received.

Page 197



10

15/04232/FULL

Buildings must be provided with appropriate welfare facilities for staff who work in them and for
visiting members of the public.

Detailed advice on the provision of sanitary conveniences, washing facilities and the provision
of drinking water can be found in guidance attached to the Workplace (Health, Safety and
Welfare) Regulations 1992. www.opsi.gov.uk/SI/si1992/Uksi_19923004_en_1.htm

The following are available from the British Standards Institute - see http://shop.bsigroup.com/:

BS 6465-1:20086: Sanitary installations. Code of practice for the design of sanitary facilities and
scales of provision of sanitary and associated appliances

BS 6465-3:20086: Sanitary installations. Code of practice for the selection, installation and
maintenance of sanitary and associated appliances. (I80HA)

Please contact our Environmental Health Service (020 7641 2971) to register your food
business and to make sure that all ventilation and other equipment will meet our standards.
Under environmental health law we may ask you to carry out other work if your business cause
noise, smells or other types of nuisance. (I06AA)

All kitchen extract ducts must be fitted with doors/hatches for cleaning, at 3 metre intervals,
complying with the H&S safe access standards.

Page 198



IEI L] wo _v\wmom [ ] m—.ONMON_. m.ﬂ_@cc_.—( m-_i_uw lzopi}mlnm .—..Z_Om“_n_ . Qmwomomn_ SHINDISIA HOIHALNI ONY SLO3LIHIHY

UOPUOT '10211S o[1SE0JSET | € * 9SNOL] BUB[RYS dIHSHINL YV d° N

nels

NOILYAZN3 133418 TIIMLHOIM HONOYHL NOILD3S \mcwm_xm s1eaojey

S
Lt | i = R *JOo0oL o3 E
Ao J = A|a.m.” sLﬁ. ._M_u_hna-_w.m
apessnjeq T= | SSE|D Jes|D

BB Wnwup

i pejuied
JoOop aJuenuUa
0} sS9008
padwes ypm
juoydoys manN

BIOSE}
lapual map

Page 199




SYHNDISIA YONALNI ANY SLOZLIHOHY

¥ A3d * 601/850€ * G10Z' 2080 EY@00L: L 37VIS * NOILYATTI HY3Y * 03S0d0Hd
UOPUOT 19911S 9|}SED)SET |.¢ * oSNOH BUR[RYS _ .

'|]||||1

daif pajuod
€H— DOGX008 13Np 1304)x8 BN

s1s0ddns  joo)
Byg, wo joou uo pEYDDDRS
=

oy bunexy "oup

dIHSYINLIIV ¥

Page 200




YV A3d ® 011/850€ * 51022080 | EY@00L:L TTYS * VY NOILOIS * 03S0d0Hd SMENOISIQ YORALNT ANV SIOLLIHONV
UOpUOT] ‘198.1G 8|1SEDISe] |.E * 9SNOH BUB[RYS JIHSYAN LIV YN

uaaag Moy WWOOE ¥ Mopus
ED p|s SWDg
BUAND| 1D00KE DM

/
1jun bususp JHA MEN p—— \
= —\ 1NINGSYE
1poid mapy
puncdwos m 4 =
juoid UD pij JIENOID MBN
T.ﬂ = i =r
g _..
M Jon Bty NaIHOL annosn
10 QUANG| JDYIDOM MAN l%;
% o g |-|_ —— =
"I W0OFX009
- ‘ } janp jacaxe may = — 51
. *fndadm ”. 1
wt ! N
Buipjing yusoefpy 4 1_ : e = ©
g e
[T ——
[al-1y ﬂ
sjoddns 300}
Big, ue joos uo pajooojas| é
sasuspuod oy Buexy oug
L o =

Buppoz juscolpo B jedound
Bupsxe yajow o Aoub
pejued Jonp JO0U3xE ME

LTI
-
| S—|
ey

ANVId LNYd

MOpUN (5308
M0G0 WE'| W [DUULR]




¥ A34 * £01/8S0€ *® §102°20°80

SYANOISTA HOMILNI ANV SLOZLIHOUY

UOPUOT 19811S 8|1S0ISE] |€ * SN0 BUB[RYS

EY@004:1 3TYS * YOO QYIHL * 03S0d0Yd

wwnoHe0g 190p Z
1904)%3 M3U

=

suoddns joey Big, M
" uo o0t uD pPRIDIOES
sjun o0 Bupsie oup
E«Emh

14

THIRD FLOOR

dIHSYANLIEVd 4N

Page 202




SHINDISIA HORALNI ONY SLO3LIHOYY

¥ A3Y * L01/8S0E ® GL0Z'E0°LL o
EVYO001:1 31vIS * INIWISVE * a3S0d0Yd JIHSYINLEVd o

UOPUOT '19ei]S 9[1Se0ISe] ¢ * @SNOH Bue[dyS

FIUCUSUDOW
0) @An0| 3|gOIUNDLIAQ

S9L X OFZ1Pojunow
100|4 "JUBIND}SE.
4o} Jun BUSUSPUST JuA —

sjeyacsg SBUD uD junow
llow wood pes /o)es
oM Joy yun Bususpuol

SuaLVM 14
= 0og 4 Sl
* mopu so uip swos | | anno W savous U
-
2

BNOjUl JB ysay
usa 3 o) @8
Lo ybjy 30 jiow u asno

DD Sy 9B0xE OM <
10} MOPUIM IAOGD SUARCT 8000

§
Page 203

Jus|oanba
40 wwggg % HWWOoDL ouy
“JODNHD JUBLUSEDY

304 AR YBIY 30 DM Uy SuAnO]



T WSS —

-A\3d * 201/850€ ® GLOT'E0 L) . eY@00L:L 3TVIS © HO0TH ANNOHY *03S040Hd S¥INDISIA HORIILNI ONV SIOILIHOYY
UOpUOT ‘198.1S 8|1SedISeT |E * 9SNOH BUB[QYS dIHSYHINL NV M-I\

Apowsiuy @ad) ybry
10 UD) JP0ANE BN

/
00O X D0 190 10euxT MmN
T _l_(l e i 0 u
b g ¥ . o i v
i ik saauvm ubger e \ /
s R > b <
g ST Q
win - MR n N
ma@) yBly 10 BUAno| MeN uve = e
sbrioig g f I uoﬂwu.n i_ g
Bl s [ ©000000000 m.a
ﬁ g x 133WIS TUSVILSYI
. () Oy Uhd)
oD 8
09 79 dup &
A4 CK) TR) SIS E 7

I —




- A3H * 800 /8S0€ * 61022060 EY@00L:F 37¥IS * NOILYATTI LNOHA * ONILSIX3 SHINIISIA HOIILNI ANV SLO3LIHOHY
UOPUGT 'J88I]S S[ISBOISET | £ * 9SNOJ] BUB[eyS : : dIHSHANLEYd oW

1BA8] 19845

Page 205




- A34 * 010/8S0€ * 51022090

EV@00L:+ 3T¥IS * NOILIIS * ONILSIXI

SYIANDISIA HOIMILNI ANV S1O3LIHOMY

UOpUOT ‘}e81iS 8[1Se0ISe] |E * aSNOH BuePyS

dIHSHANLYVYd H=W

Ananasve

ONNDED

13341S FUSYILSYI

ane

e

Page 206

LT

L

ANYd

/-




- A3H * 600/850€ ® G10Z2'20°90 EY@001:1 3T¥IS * NOILYAITI HY3Y ® DNILSIXT SHINDISIA HOWIALNI ONY SLOILIHONY

UOpUOT 188/iS 8|ISBOISE] | € * 9SNOH BUBRYS dIHSYHANLI YV S SN

l

|
ol

[

Page 207

[ -
1=

|

o
i)




"3 * L00/8S0€ * S102'20'60 EY®004: ITVOS * INIWISYE * ONILSDA SHINOIS30 HORILNI ONY SLOZLIKOUY
UOpUOT 198.1S 9|ISEOISET | € * 9SNOH BUR[AYS y TS ENIR AR

TEM LHON

KJan
anl> H L

[V

L

L?ﬁ

L
Page 208

301440 /HOOY MOHS DNILSHGE

e — ——|




- A\34 * 200/8S0€ * S102'¢0°60 . EV@001:1 31¥IS * 10014 ANNOYD * ONILSIX3 SYINOIS3Q HORIALNI NV SLOILIHONY
UOPUOT 188.1G BISEDISET |€ * 9SNOH BUB[aYS JdIHSYINLYVYd SN

=

GROUND FLOOR

= 32VdE 301440 NYd N3O

| /] I

Page 209

13341S FUSYILSYI

-
| N L
: — - —— . E— i
_
i

whsgst

HENNNENANNRNNEN

B -

Wi 3¥0LS WOOY
SNEDNYHD

KIIIIHIIIII

L




This page is intentionally left blank



[ ) x [ R - L iy B e BN

Item No.
8

CITY OF WESTMINSTER
PLANNING APPLICATIONS Date Classification
COMMITTEE 27 October 2015 For General Release
Report of Wards involved
Director of Planning West End
Subject of Report 41 Farm Street, London, W1J 5RP
Proposal Retention and relocation of plant and installation of associated

acoustic enclosures on the rear second floor level
Agent Waisingham Planning
On behalf of Cirrus Inns Ltd
Registered Number 15/01607/FULL TP /PP No TP/2730

15/01608/LBC
Date of Application 23.02.2015 Date 23.02.2015

amended/
completed
Category of Application Minor
Historic Building Grade Grade Il Listed Building
Conservation Area Mayfair
Development Plan Context
_ London Plan July 2011 Within London Plan Central Activities Zone
] ‘é‘{fﬁf&ﬂ?ﬁi’.}iﬁf‘éﬂi"z Within Central Activities Zone
- Unitary Development Plan
(UDP) January 2007

Stress Area Outside Stress Area
Current Licensing Position Not Applicable

RECOMMENDATION

Had an appeal not been lodged against non-determination, planning permission and listed
building consent would have been refused on the grounds that the proposed plant installation and
associated screening would harm the appearance of this listed building and detrimentally impact
upon the character and appearance of the Mayfair Conservation Area.

Page 211




o
- A l! { \’

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordnance
Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office. Data Source: 0 510 20Metres
- H ®Ci ight right 2013. 3
City of Westminster | $,Crown copyright andor database righ

Al rinhte raearued | iranre numbar | A 1000105407 MNata: 12/M100N41E Leealsssl




41 FARM STREET, W1




Item No.

8

SUMMARY

No. 41 Farm Street is a Grade |l listed public house located within the Mayfair Conservation
Area and the Core Central Activities Zone. Five air conditioning units and a chiller unit have
been installed unlawfully on the rear first floor flat roof. Planning permission is sought for the
retention of the five air conditioning units in their current location and relocation of the chiller
unit within new acoustic enclosures.

The key issues in this case are:

e The impact of the proposed works on the character and appearance of this part of the
Mayfair Conservation Area.

+ The impact of the plant operation upon the amenity of neighbouring residents in terms of
noise disturbance.

Subject to appropriate conditions, controlling noise emissions the scheme is considered
acceptable on amenity grounds. The proposal is however considered unacceptable in design
terms as the screening to the plant is extremely large and bulky. It is considered that this
proposal would harm the appearance of the listed building and detrimentaliy affect the
character and appearance of the Mayfair Conservation Area. The applications are the subject
of appeals for non-determination. Had the appeals not been lodged, the applications would

" have been recommended for refusal for the reason outlined above.

CONSULTATIONS

RESIDENTS' SOCIETY OF MAYFAIR AND ST. JAMES'S
No objection.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH
No objection subject to conditions.

ADJOINING OWNERS/OCCUPIERS AND OTHER REPRESENTATIONS
No. Consulted: 69; Total No. of Replies: 5.
Five objections were received on some or all of the following grounds:

Amenity:
* Noise nuisance from the operation of the plant.
= Odour nuisance.

Other Issues:

Works are unauthorised.

Structural implications for the property

Unacceptable design

Discrepancies between the acoustic reports.

The information provided on the drawings is inadequate.

The installation of air conditioning is not considered necessary.

" & = & & B

ADVERTISEMENT/SITE NOTICE: Yes

Page 214



s e -

ltem No.

8

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
4.1 The Application Site

41 Farm Street is a Grade |l listed property located within the Mayfair Conservation Area and
the Core Central Activities Zone as defined by the City Plan. It stands on the north side of the
street at the junction of Archibald Mews and Chesterfield Hill. A public house has been on this
site since approximately 1750 and the whole of the property is still considered to be a public
house (Class A4). The site is abutted to the rear by a large telephone exchange and there is a
much taller block of residential flats to the west on the opposite side of Archibald Mews which
overlook the property.

4.2 Relevant History

14/03702/FULL / 14/03703/LBC — Applications for planning permission and listed building
consent for: ‘Installation of plant, ductwork and extraction equipment on a flat roof at rear
second floor level and associated internal alterations.’ These applications were refused on the
8 August 2014 due to noise nuisance, odour nuisance and design concerns. An appeal
against the refusal was dismissed on the 26 March 2015 and all three reasons for refusal
were upheld.

This appeal was in relation to the proposed installation of extraction ducting and associated
equipment on the rear second floor flat roof. These works are not the subject of this
application which relates to the retention and relocation of existing, untawful equipment and
the installation of associated screening.

THE PROPOSAL

Permission and listed building consent is sought for the installation of plant items on the rear
first floor flat roof area with associated acoustic screening. The plant comprises air
conditioning units and a chiller unit to provide refrigeration.

There is on-going planning enforcement action relating to the plant which is the subject of
these applications. A planning enforcement notice and a listed building enforcement notice
have been issued seeking the removal of the unlawful plant and appeals have been lodged by
the applicant against these notices.

Appeals have also been made against non determination of these applications for planning
permission and listed building consent.

DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS

6.1 Land Use

The proposal raises no land use issues.

6.2 Townscape and Design

The building was listed on 15 July 1987, and dates from circa 1750. it is a small scale
structure of stuccoed brickwork with a roof of slate and pantiles. The rear of the building is

lower and there is evidence on the form of scarring on the walls of there having been shallow
pitched roof over part of what is all now covered by a flat roof.

Page 215



item No.
8

The application seeks approval to partially retain and partially relocate existing unlawful plant
and to provide new visual and acoustic screening.

An appeal against refusal for the installation of plant, ductwork and extraction equipment on -
the flat roof at rear second floor level was dismissed on 26 March 2015. The Inspector
advised that:

“The proposal would replace existing equipment on the flat roof but would extend over a
substantially larger footprint and spread over much of the roof. Parts would also project well
above the flat roof fevel. Due to the parapet surrounding the roof and the taller neighbouring
sections of building, the plant would not be evident in views from the front in Farm Street or
from the passage way of Archibald Mews which runs alongside. However, it would be clearly
seen from residential windows at a number of levels in the taller residential apariment building
of 51 South Street which abuts the other side of the Mews and therefore is very close by.
Although these are private views, such vistas of roofscape are a material aspect of the
Conservation Area and, in this case, the roof forms part of the fabric of the listed building.

it might be that screening of the plant in some way could reduce its visual impact, but none is
included in the current scheme. With the size, extent and appearance of the plant it would be
an obtrusive and incongruous feature on the flat roof area. It would detract from the
architectural quality of the building and the contribution this makes to the Conservation Area.
The result would be a degree of harm fo the significance of the heritage assets, albeit less
than substantial. The proposal does not meet the design requirements of policies S25 of the
Westminster City Plan: Strategic Policies 2013 or of policies DES 1, DES 5, DES 6, DES 9
and DES 10 of the Westminster Unitary Development Plan 2007 in terms of a respect for
context.”

A key issue in the appeal scheme, and in this case, is the impact the plant will have on the
special architectural interest of the building and on the character and appearance of the
surrounding conservation area.

The area of the building on which the equipment is to be located is a later addition and the
principle of installing equipment here is considered acceptable, However, the current proposal
does not provide a suitable design for the visual screening; neither does it contain the plant
within a suitable area of the roof.

The proposed plant is considered far worse in design terms than the existing arrangement. It
is incongruous, creates clutter on the roof, and it is entirely alien to the architecture of the
building. Furthermore, the detrimental effect of the plant is exacerbated by the proposed crude
industrial screening which does absolutely nothing to ameliorating its visual impact.

The plant should be contained in one area to the rear of the roof with appropriate screening to
ensure its visual impact is minimized and acceptable. If this is not possible, then the amount of
plant should be reduced until it can be suitably screened.

For the reasons set out above, the proposal is contrary to UDP policy DES 6 which requires
the highest standard of design in roof level alterations.

The scheme would not provide a suitable design and/or location of plant, and is therefore also
contrary to UDP policies DES 9 and DES 10 which require at the least that proposals maintain
the character and appearance of conservation areas and the special architectural and historic
interest off listed buildings.

With regard to listed buildings, the City Council’'s '‘Repairs and Alterations to Listed Buildings’
supplementary planning guidance is also relevant and makes clear the importance of carefully
locating plant and providing suitable screeging. It states in paragraph 6.17 that:

ap P g ltfl’eag eeﬁi% paragrap

R



Item No.

8

‘External services or fittings will require listed building consent where they affect the
character of a listed building. These include satellite dishes, burglar alarms, meter boxes,
securily cameras, light fittings, flues and trunking. The City Council will need to be satisfied
that such additions are necessary, and have been designed and located to minimise their
impact. Where such proposals are considered to harm the appearance or character of a listed
building, consent will be refused.”

In this case, in design and heritage asset term, the proposed alterations are contrary to the
City Council’'s development plan polices and supplementary planning guidance and have no
public benefits to outweigh the harm as set out in the NPPF.

6.3 Amenity

The application has been considered in the context of Policies ENV6 and ENV7 of the UDP
and Policy §32 of the adopted City Plan. These policies seek to protect the amenity of nearby
noise sensitive properties,

There is a residential building housing a number of flats at 51 South Street, approximately 5m
distant from the proposed plant across a small alley (Archibald Mews) to the west of the
application site. This neighbouring property is significantly taller than the pub and a number of
the residential flats have windows overlooking the flat roof area where it is proposed to install
the plant. Objections have been received from occupants of these flats with regard the
potential noise nuisance from the plant operation.

The application has been considered in the context of Policies ENVE and ENV7 of the UDP
and 532 of the City Plan. These policies seek to protect nearby occupiers of noise sensitive
properties and the area generally from excessive noise and disturbance.

Some of the proposed plant will provide refrigeration for the restaurant unit and would need to
operate on a 24 hour basis. The submitted acoustic report has therefore tested the ability of all
of the proposed plant to operate within the stipulated City Council noise levels over 24 hours.

To accord with Policy ENV7 of the UDP the noise levels emitted by the plant will have to be
10dB below background noise levels at the nearest noise sensitive windows. The report
identified a noise level criteria of 34dB, which is 10dB below the lowest recorded background
noise level over the entire 24 hour period.

The nearest noise sensitive window was identified as being a residential window 8m distant
from the air conditioning plant and 5m distant from the refrigeration pfant serving a flat within
51 South Street.

In order to ensure the plant noise is compliant with the City Council criteria the Environmental
Health Officer requires that acoustic screening is installed around all of the plant, as detailed
within the acoustic report. With these acoustic mitigation measures in place calculations
demonstrate the resultant noise level at the nearest sensitive window will be 32dB which is
2dB below the design criteria and 12dB below the lowest recorded background noise level.

Subject to appropriate conditions the Environmental Health Officer has raised no objection to
the proposal. Whilst the objections with regard potential noise disturbance from the plant are
noted, these objections are not considered sustainable given the conclusions of the acoustic
report and the assessment by Environmental Health.

One objection refers to discrepancies between the acoustic reports submitted. It is noted that
in the ‘supporting information’ it does say there is uncertainty as to whether the ‘100’ or the
150" version of the refrigeration unit haﬁ)%eﬁairffl?ed, but concludes there is no difference in



ltem No.

8

the noise output. The objector also noted that in the ‘supporting documentation’ it concludes
the refrigeration unit should be located closer to the parapet wall and includes a drawing to
show this location. The location of the refrigeration unit in the acoustic report accords with that
shown on the submitted proposed drawings. The acoustic report also measures the distance
to the nearest residential window from the chiller unit as being 5m which accords with the
drawings.

It should also be noted that the plant installation will have to comply with the proposed
condition ensuring the plant noise is 10dB below the background noise level. It is therefore
considered that sufficient acoustic information has been provided to enable determination of
the application.

An objector is concerned that some of the plant has already been installed on the roof without
consent. Whilst this is regrettable, retrospective consent can be sought and is done so at the
risk the City Council will refuse the application and proceed with enforcement action against
the applicant.

An objector has gqueried the section of the acoustic report which refers to the noise attenuation
provided by a standard window. However, this part of the report is an assessment of whether
the plant installation complies with British Standard 8233:2014, having already determined it
complies with the Westminster City Council requirements. The report concludes the
installation would accord with the noise guidelines set out in the relevant British Standard.

6.4 Transportation/Servicing

Not applicable.

6.5 Economic Considerations

Any economic benefits generated by the proposals are welcomed.
6.6 Access

Not applicable.

6.7  Other UDP/Westminster Policy Considerations

An objector has commented on the potential for an increase in odour nuisance resulting from
the proposal. However, this application is solely for the installation of air conditioning and
refrigeration plant and there would be no odour output associated with their operation.
Comments have also been made with regard the structural capacity of the roof to support the
weight of the plant and equipment. This is not however considered a planning matter and the
application could not be refused on these grounds.

An objection queries why air conditioning is required on a property which has been without air
conditioning since the 1750's. The application could not be reasonably refused on these
grounds and it is considered reasonable that a public house may want to install air
conditioning to ensure the comfort of its patrons.

An objection also refers to the poor quality of the drawings and the lack of relevant annotated
dimensions and a scale. However, the proposed drawing includes a scale and relevant
dimensions. It is considered sufficient information has been included on the drawings to show
exact what is being applied for and permission could not be withheld on the grounds of this
objection.

Page 218

in ey bt e e



Item No.

8

6.8 London Plan

The proposal does not raise strategic issues and does not have significant implications for the
London Plan.

6.9 National Policy/Guidance Considerations

Central Government's National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) came into effect on 27
March 2012. It sets out the Government's planning policies and how they are expected to be
applied. The NPPF has replaced almost all of the Government’s existing published planning
policy statements/guidance as well as the circulars on planning obligations and strategic
planning in London. It is a material consideration in determining planning applications.

Until 27 March 2013, the City Council was able to give full weight to relevant policies in the
Core Strategy and London Plan, even if there was a limited degree of conflict with the
framework. The City Council is now required to give due weight to relevant policies in existing
plans “according to their degree of consistency” with the NPPF. Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies was adopted by Full Council on 13 November 2013 and is fully compliant
with the NPPF. For the UDP, due weight should be given to relevant policies according to their
degree of consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies in the plan to the NPPF, the
greater the weight that may be given).

The UDP policies referred to in the consideration of this application are considered to be
consistent with the NPPF unless stated otherwise.

6.10 Planning Obligations

Not applicahle.

6.11 Environmental Assessment including Sustainability and Biodiversity Issues
The proposal is of an insufficient scale to require an environmental assessment.
Conclusion

The proposed works would harm the appearance of the Grade I listed public house and
detrimentally impact upon the character and appearance of the wider Mayfair Conservation

Area. It is therefore recommended that had appeals not been lodged, permission and listed
building consent would have been refused.

Page 219



Item No.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

1. Application form.

2. Memorandum from the Residents’ Society of Mayfair and St. James's dated 16 March 2015.

3. Memorandum from Environmental Sciences dated 18 May 2015.

4. Email from the Planning Enforcement Team undated.

5. Letter from J&P Badham on behalf of occupiers of 24 Farm Street and a flat in 51 South Street
dated 10 March 2015

6. Email from an occupier of a flat in 51 South Street, London dated 11 March 2015.

7. Email from Portrait Solicitors on behalf of the occupier of Flat 24, 51 South Street, London dated

19 March 2015.
8. Email from an occupier of a flat in 51 South Street, London dated 23 March 2015.
9. Email from the occupier of Flat 12a, 51 South Street, London dated 23 March 2015,

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT OR WISH TO INSPECT ANY OF THE
BACKGROUND PAPERS PLEASE CONTACT MIKE WALTON ON 020 7641 2521 OR BY E-
MAIL — mwalton@westminster.gov.uk

Jd_wpdocsishort-teisci2015-10-27itern8.doct0
18M10/2015

Page 220

e e A = L e eme A b P i g g, S e P S —



15/01607/FULL

DRAFT DECISION LETTER
Address: 41 Farm Street, London, W1J 5RP

Proposal: Retention and relocation of plant and installation of associated acoustic enclosures
on the rear second floor level

Plan Nos: Site Location Plan, Acoustic Report dated 9th February 2015, Supplementary
Acoustic Information dated 2nd February 2015, Drawing: 102.

Case Officer: Matthew Giles Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 5942

Recommended Reason for Refusal:

r and appearance of the Mayfair Conservation Area. This would not
of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 10 (A) and paras 10.108 to 10.146 of our Unitary Development

: th\@rty Council has implemented the requirement in the National

swork to Work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way so far as
ilable detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies in

ic Rolicies~adopted November 2013, Unitary Development

pl nning briefs and other informal written guidance,

applicant during the processing'? :
elements of the scheme considere

proposal. They would require further ¢ Wsulta ifs]3 : n prior to determination,
i ' ation‘period _ecified by the

Required amendments: : --/\/

The plant should be located in a more suitable Iocation%n the;mf with appropriate screening.

AN

Page 221



15/01608/LBC
DRAFT DECISION LETTER

Address: 41 Farm Street, London, W1J 5RP

Proposal: Installation of plant within associated acoustic enclosures on the rear second floor
flat roof.

Plan Nos: Site Location Plan, Acoustic Report dated 9th February 2015, Supplementary

Acoustic Information dated 2nd February 2015, Drawing: 102.
Case Officer: Matthew Giles Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 5942

Recommended Reason for Refusal:

Reason:

Because of its location and detailed design the mechanical plant installation would harm the
appearance and special architectural interest of this grade |l listed building. It would also fail to
maintain or improve (preserve or enhance) the character and appearance of the Mayfair
Conservation Area. This would not meet S25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic
Policies adopted November 2013 and DES 1 and paras 10.108 to 10.146 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

Informative(s):

1 In dealing with this application the City Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way so far as
practicable. We have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies in
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013, Unitary Development
Plan, Supplementary Planning documents, planning briefs and other informal written guidance,
as well as offering a full pre application advice service, in order to ensure that the applicant has
been given every opportunity to submit an application which is likely to be considered
favourably.

You are advised that the reasons for refusal relate to the proposed installation of plant with
associated screening on the rear roof of the property. A revised listed building consent
application for the plant in a more suitable location with appropriate screening may be
considered more favourably.

Page 222



s 5 5 |k 0+

L) el weodysuaLRUechus LsBeus LUBESPEIELL 3
0L E.__.u_u.:E_uJ ey » e o LESP PO0E B20IL+ <
pnoqUEUnG S iraim | 528t re0E B2+ L
= O PG O L40 'HIPUED Heans apen g
ﬂravmsm.“. T T N =0 e diysaaugaediueusbeueLuubisap
vl | o emam | e e e | = p— foea
Zv © 053} 8jeos Zv @ 05 eess Zv@ 06| efeas
(1004 114 8p|s Buided) ¥¥ NOILO3AS (100 1e|4 JBEY BujPEd) NOILVYATTI WYY NY1d

3 008z
oo

||||||||||
il T = | . I jadused yopg y
|
4 |
. —H 528.958_23%2““. | * ] I T
1

jﬁ
|J A o i ! —y e =

Jaana|
18j000 8D 1

¥ *J00p $50208 yym sjaued

i
Jaddn m ap|S SISNCOE PHOS YIM JOoI
1 =l Jaypds SASNODE PUE SAUAND|

‘asnsopua Sihooe

- IMI PERUEG 8jSNop JO 3 _a_s._ |5 pesjueapB pajuled
aq
T

payueg Bjgnop jo Guispduics

RS .- - [] L

t anajeg apsnooe paunbal BUOT 5B WIWIGDE

pajujed [pas pas|uBA| \sﬂ 7 L - L

—=) saLAND|

n

-

)
=

ALd3d0odd ONINIOray |

|iem jadeied

[ a-— weA

I
I

2 FEHE o lH—

L 0

000 Vi (e Asuwys
Aeuwiya nJU__). o=
ALld3d0OHd ONINIOrayY

HI000 ¥YT13D

PYALLYMZNG B8P0 - § O
PASEVH-ZNS [BpoW - ¢ DI
PYALLYMZNS Bpow - £ 2 |
PYASEVHZNS [BpOW - Z DY
PYASEIEZNS PPOW - | D
21103 IHSIANSLIN
ATH HINOLLIONOD HIY

Jopeiodeas aifiugs Ui 001 WNWiald PIRGGNH Bpow




SR - LI Mty il i s 1
e S P i) s S o
LopLcT opEn - s ESBr 202 520t + L
o 4 ) Loﬂn_uMw S e = PG 0140 'HPue0 esns spen g
v | wiiae Ecarme! w D _T_\E..“ o5t |- T P s e djysJyauguediuswusteuswuubisap
A _ o it et Rl s Ev O e D O
Zv @ 0g:| efeas Zv @ 0s:| eeas ZvD 05} Bjeas
(Jooy jei4 epis Buied) NOILYAZT3 3AIS (jo0Y je|4 Jeay Buped) NOILYATTI dv3d NY1d
— SR _ e |odeied waug
rl._ NEX | B wn R— —rn atnd
— 1 | z:a@ o
ﬁ u_ S o - ﬁlon__(ltu.. " _|_ M
H oo
7«9& 7 ﬁu,a. L fo_« 7 L g (Q\
| H [ L ALY34OYTE
0 il - - ONINION Y’
= H00¥ 1v74 1734 wana ]
“ g
£
I L i -
— i Jamo|
— B ..
X Jaddn
B =
HE E _ odd| oy
Jamoy
. : q i Jjun Bujoos sejjen
L] = mam.lﬁ HH_ O ! OO L W H
{ i 000 Kﬂﬁ fauwyo ﬁ_hﬂ add —
Aauwo il oo LT ]
Lo T

AL"3d0Odd ONINIOray

_ PYALLYYZNS PPOW -G O |
PYASEVH-ZNS [BpOw - ¥ O
FYALLYY-ZNS 1990 - € DY i
PYASEWI-ZNS 18P0 - Z DY
PYASEYH-ZNG [Bpow - | O
DIHLD373 IHSIBNSLIN
AT HINOILIONOD HIY




N Agenda Item 9

ltem No.
9

CITY OF WESTMINSTER

PLANNING APPLICATIONS
COMMITTEE

Date
27 Qctober 2015

Classification
For General Release

Report of
Director of Planning

Wards involved
Bryanston And Dorset Square

Subject of Report 32 Harcourt Street, London, W1H 4HX
Proposal Erection of a single storey rear extension at lower ground floor level and
alterations to the front elevation including the removal of redundant
advertising. Installation of a new rear high level extract duct in
connection with the existing public house and internal alterations at all
floor levels
Agent Stuart Loxton Ltd
On behalf of HARCOURT PUB PLC
Registered Number 15/04723/FULL TP /PP No TP/3575
15/04724/LBC
Date of Application 27.05.2015 Date 22.06.2015
amended/
completed
Category of Application Minor

Historic Building Grade

Grade |I Listed Building

Conservation Area

Portman Estate

Development Plan Context

- London Plan July 2011

- Westminster’s City Plan:
Strategic Policies 2013

- Unitary Development Plan
(UDP) January 2007

Within London Plan Centrat Activities Zone

QOutside Central Activities Zone

Stress Area

QOutside Stress Area

Current Licensing Position

11.00-11.30 Monday to Saturday

12.00-11 Sundays

RECOMMENDATION

1. Grant conditional permission and conditional listed building consent.
2. Agree the reasons for granting listed building consent as set out in Informative 1 of the draft

decision letter.

Page 225



This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordnance
Survey with the pemmission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s
L Stationery Office.

(‘iw nf Wminqter @ C_rown copyright apdlor database right 2013.




32 HARCOURT STREET, W1

age 227



Item No.

9

SUMMARY

The application site comprises a Grade |l listed building situated within the Portman Estate
Conservation Area. The property is a Public House (Class A4) which has been vacant since
the end of 2014. The building comprises lower ground, ground and three floors. Permission is
sought for the erection of a single storey rear lower ground floor extension and full height
extract duct, to the front of the building redundant advertising. will be removed. internat
alterations are proposed at all floor levels

The key issues for consideration are:

+ The impact of the proposals upon the amenities of neighbouring residents.
» The impact of the works upon both the special interest of the listed building and the
character and appearance of the conservation area.

The proposals which includes a small rear extension is considered acceptable in land use,
amenity, design, conservation and listed building terms and comply with the policies set out in
the Unitary Development Plan (UDP) and Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies.

CONSULTATIONS

MARYLEBONE ASSOCIATION
Any response to be reported verbally.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH
No objection subject to the imposition of relevant noise conditions.

THAMES WATER
No objection.

ADJOINING OWNERS/OCCUPIERS AND OTHER REPRESENTATIONS
No. Consulted: 81; Total No. of Replies: 10.
10 letters of objection received on some or all of the fellowing grounds:

Amenity

» Loss of daylight/sunlight/ privacy.

* Noise nuisance from use of the courtyard/ doors being left open/plant {recent history
complaints have been made to the City Council's Nose Team and to the Police).

s Noise report incorrectly refers to Crawford Buildings rather than Cranfield Court as the
nearest neighbouring residential properties.

e Odours/ pollution from smoke/ kitchen extract.

Highways
* Increased pressure on parking.

Other

+ The Pub is of local social importance.

+ The existing open space provides peace and tranquillity.
« Consultation period is insufficient.

ADVERTISEMENT/SITE NOTICE: YES

Page 228



ltem No.

9

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
4.1 The Application Site

No. 32 is a Grade |l listed property located on the south western side of Harcourt Street,
comprising lower ground, ground and three upper floors. Whilst currently vacant, the lawful
use of the premises is a public house (Class A4) throughout.

The site is located outside the Core Central Activities Zone, within the Portman Estate
Conservation Area,

4.2 Relevant History

In 2007, planning permission and listed building consent were granted for the retention of a
timber frame shelter in the rear beer garden.

THE PROPOSAL

Permission and listed building consent are sought for the erection of a singie storey rear
extension at lower ground floor level and erection of a full height rear extract duct. Alterations
to the front elevation include the removal of redundant advertising. Internal alterations are
proposed to all floors.

The works are in connection with the continued use of the property as a public house (Class
A4). The public house’s licensed hours are 10.00am-23.30 Monday to Saturday and 12.00-
22.00 on Sundays. These hours are unchanged by the application.

DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 Land Use

The entire property is in lawful use as a public house. The proposed rear extension would
provide approximately 75m2 of additional floorspace; this would result in an enlarged
entertainment use with a gross floorspace of 391m2.

Westminster's City Plan Policy $24 and UDP Policies TACE 8-10 deal with entertainment
uses. City Plan Policy $24 requires proposals for new and extension to existing entertainment
uses to demonstrate that they are appropriate in terms of type and size of use, scale of
activity, and relationship to any existing concentrations of entertainment uses. The TACE
policies are on a sliding scale in which developments where TACE 8 i1s applicable would be
generally permissible and where TACE10 is applied (where the gross floorspace exceeds
500m2) only in exceptional circumstances.

The policies aim to control the location, size and activities of entertainment uses in order to
safeguard residential amenity, local environmental quality and the established character and
function of the various parts of the City, while acknowledging that they provide important
services in the City and contribute to its role as an entertainment centre of national and
international importance.

As the site lies outside of the core CAZ, UDP Policy TACE 9 applies.

The policy states that permission will only be granted where the City Council is satisfied that
the proposed development has no adverse effect upon residential amenity or local
environmental quality as a result of noise, vibration, smells, increased late night activity,

increased parking and traffic. Page 229



item No.
9

The proposals have garnered strong objections from neighbouring residents within Cranfield
Court, a residential property which is located directly to the rear of the application site and
shares a party wall which runs along the pub’s rear courtyard area. Many of the objections
express dissatisfaction with the management of the public house over recent years, and state
that as a result the City Council's Noise Team have made numerous visits to the pub and on
occasion the Police have attended.

Initially, the proposed extension covered part of the courtyard leaving a small open area
directly adjoining the party wall with Cranfield Court.

This could have been used as an external smoking area. Many of the objections from
Cranfield Court residents are to this original design. The objectors considered that retaining a
small external smoking area, would serve to ‘funnel’ patrons of the pub to the rear of the
property closest to Cranfield Court. They object that this would exacerbate existing problems
of noise disturbance and cigarette smoke pollution to neighbouring residents.

The application has been amended and the entire courtyard is to be infilled and there is no
external space remaining. The area to the rear of the courtyard will be covered by a glazed
roof. To protect the amenity of neighbouring residents, conditions are recommended which
would require the extension to be constructed in its entirety and prevent the glazed roof from
being openable. '

At present, there are no planning controls to restrict the number of patrons using the courtyard
for smoking and drinking, and its hours of use are only restricted in line with the pub's licensed
hours. Therefore, the public house could re-open at any time without the requirement for
planning permission and unrestricted numbers of patrons could again use the rear courtyard
area for smoking and drinking. Under the current proposals the rear courtyard area will be
fully enclosed and this will prevent smoking and outdoor drinking to the rear of the pub, thus
reducing noise transmission to Cranfield Court. It is therefore considered that the proposal is
acceptable in amenity terms.

6.2 Townscape and Design

The proposed enclosure of the whole of the rear area to this building must be set against its
historical context. Historic maps from the earliest date of construction show multiple structures
on this area of land. The area itself is large and as the property was purpose built as a public
house this rear area would have been extensively used and huiit upon, in fact, the entire area
is at present hard standing, and clearly demarcates the footings of earlier structures.

The current proposals take a solid single storey structure from the rear of the main property
almost up to the rear boundary wall. The rear section near the wall, whilst fully enclosed, will
be covered with patent glazed roofing and leave at least an impression of open space.

It is also worth noting that the single storey extension leaves the majority of the rear elevation
of the pub with its historic pattern of development and fenestration intact, which is to be
welcomed and would not be the case should the proposed floorspace be accommodated in
extensions over more than one storey. The harm of this element of the proposals is minimal,
and offset by sympathetic alterations elsewhere in the scheme.

The presence of the large steel duct on the rear of the property is not an uncommon sight on
urban pubs such as this, and whilst utilitarian in appearance, its installation is acceptable in
design and conservation terms. In order to minimise its visual impact a condition requiring that
it be painted black is proposed.

Page 230

A M AL



[tem No.
]

Internally, the main bar area has previously seén significant alteration with no fixtures or
fittings of any interest remaining. The relatively open plan form which is probably close to
original is being maintained. The new decorative scheme, timber and partitioning is all
acceptable in heritage terms. The new decorative partition at the main entrance will maintain
the detailing of the pub frontage. Works to the basement and first floor are relatively minor and
non-contentious. The use of panelling at first floor level is acceptable subject to a sensitive
junction with the existing skirting board which is considered to be original. It is proposed that
conditions will be imposed to require the submission of details of any uncovered historic
features under the existing front elevation sign and details of the patent glazed roof to the rear
of the new extension.

6.3  Amenity {Daylight/Sunlight/Overlooking)

The rear extension is below a rear party wall and therefore would have no impact to Cranfield
Court residents to the rear in terms of loss of light, increased enclosure or loss of privacy.

6.4  Transportation/Servicing

It is not considered that the relatively small floorspace increase to the existing public house
will have any material impact on the highways and servicing requirements for the premises.

6.5 Economic Considerations
Any economic benefits generated by the scheme are welcome,

6.6  Access

As existing, level access will be provided to the ground floor of the premises.
6.7 Other UDP/Westminster Policy Considerations

6.7.1 Plant

Several of the objections refer to past problems with existing plant equipment creating
excessive noise whilst in operation, and concerns that additional plant will exacerbate these
noise problems. The proposal involves installation of a full height extract duct. This aspect of
the scheme has been considered in the context of Policies ENV6 and ENV7 of the UDP and
532 of the City Plan. These policies seek to protect nearby occupiers of noise sensitive
properties and the area generally from excessive noise and disturbance.

The area has been identified in the applicant’'s Acoustic Report as having background noise
tevels which are ahove WHO guideline levels during the daytime and nighttime. To accord
with Policy ENV7 of the UDP the noise levels emitted by the plant will have to be 10dB below
background at the nearest noise sensitive windows, which have been identified as being 7.5m
frem the plant installation.

The Environmental Health officer has reviewed the Acoustic Report and considers that the
duct and associated plant is likely to comply with design noise level criteria, subject to the
kitchen extract system being fitted with a suitable in-line silencer. However, given that strong
objection have been received on noise grounds the Environmental Health Officer advises the
imposition of a planning condition which requires a supplementary noise report to demonstrate
after completion of the works to demonstrate that sufficient attenuation is realised.

Objectors also refer to the potential for cooking odours to harm residential amenity. The
scheme also involves the installation of a full height kitchen extract duct. The full height duct is
an improvement on the existing extraction system and will be sufficient to allow cooking
odours to be dispersed without affectirp ﬁ@é”?gﬁ_es of existing occupiers.

S et e e et i sl



[ P S A U

[tem No.

9

6.7.2 Refuse storage

Subject to the imposition of a condition requiring full details of the waste and recycling storage
this is considered to be acceptable.

6.8 London Plan

The proposal does not raise strategic issues and does not have significant implications for the
London Plan.

6.9  National Policy/Guidance Considerations

Central Government’s National Planning Policy Framework {(NPPF) came into effect on 27
March 2012. It sets out the Government’s planning policies and how they are expected to be
applied. The NPPF has replaced almost all of the Government’s existing published planning
policy statements/guidance as well as the circulars on planning obligations and strategic
planning in London. It is a material consideration in determining planning applications.

Until 27 March 2013, the City Council was able to give full weight to relevant policies in the
Core Strategy and London Plan, even if there was a limited degree of conflict with the
framework. The City Council is now required to give due weight to relevant policies in existing
plans “according to their degree of consistency” with the NPPF. Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies was adopted by Full Council on 13 November 2013 and is fully compliant
with the NPPF. For the UDP, due weight should be given to relevant policies according to their
degree of consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies in the plan to the NPPF, the
greater the weight that may be given).

The UDP policies referred to in the consideration of these applications are considered to be
consistent with the NPPF unless stated otherwise.

6.10 Planning Obligations
The application does not trigger a requirement for planning obligations.
6.11 Environmental Assessment including Sustainability and Biodiversity Issues

The scale of the proposed development does not require the submission of an Environmental
Impact Assessment.

6.12 OtherIssues

None relevant

6.13 Conclusion

The proposals is considered acceptable in land use, amenity and design and conservation

terms and accord with the relevant City Council UDP and City Plan policies. The applications
are therefore recommended for conditional approval.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

1. Application forms
2. Memorandum from Environmental H@g]gletegggl\ugust 2015



ltem No.

9

3. Letter from Marylebone Association dated

4. Letter from Thames Water dated 16 July 2015

5. Letters from the occupier of 28 Cranfield Court dated 8, 9, 16 July 2015
6. Letter from the occupier of Flat 2, 31A Harcourt Street dated 9 July 2015
7. Letter from the occupier of 27 Cranfield Court dated 14 July 2015

8. Letter from the occupier of 11 Cranfield Court dated 14 July 2015

9. Letter from the occupier of 20 Cranfield Court dated 14 July 2013

10. Letters from the occupier of 22 Cranfield Court dated 17 July 2015

11. Letter from the occupier of 21 Cranfield Court dated 14 July 2015

12. Letter from the occupier of 17 Cranfield Court dated 19 July 2015

13. Letter from the occupier of 45 Cranfield Court dated 20 July 2015

14. Letter from the occupier of 30 Cranfield Court dated 27 July 2015

iIF YOU HAVE ANY QUERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT OR WISH TO INSPECT ANY OF THE
BACKGROUND PAPERS PLEASE CONTACT MIKE WALTON ON 020 7641 2521 OR BY E-
MAIL — mwalton@westminster.gov.uk

j\d_wpdocsishort-tetsci2015-10-27itemB. docy0

Page 233

197102015




15/04723/FULL

DRAFT DECISION LETTER
Address: 32 Harcourt Street, London, W1H 4HX
Proposal: Erection of a single storey rear extension at lower ground floor level and alterations
to the front elevation including the removal of redundant advertising. Installation of a
new rear high level extract duct in connection with the existing public house and
internal alterations at all floor levels
Plan Nos:

Case Officer:  Billy Pattison Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 3267

Recommended Condition(s) and Reason(s}):

hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the drawings and
Isted on this decision letter, and any drawings approved subsequently by

permission. {C26AA)

Reason:
To make sure that the appearance of the building is suit
character and appearance of this part of the Conservat
S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopte
DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of o
adopted in January 2007. (R26BE)

d tfhiq ntributes to the

. Thig is as set outin 825 and
_:ember 2013 and DES 1 and
Unjtary Development Plan that we

4 {1) Where noise emitted from the proposed plant and machinery will not contain tones or will
not be intermittent, the 'A’ weighted sound pressure level from the plant and machinery
(including non-emergency auxiliary plant and generators) hereby permitted, when operating at
its noisiest, shall not at any time exceed a value of 10 dB below the minimum external

Page 234



15/04723/FULL

background noise, at a point 1 metre outside any window of any residential and other noise
sensitive property, unless and until a fixed maximum noise level is approved by the City
Council. The background level should be expressed in terms of the lowest LAS0, 15 mins
during the proposed hours of operation. The plant-specific noise level should be expressed as
LAegqTm, and shall be representative of the plant operating at its maximum.

(2) Where noise emitted from the proposed plant and machinery will contain tones or will be
intermittent, the 'A’ weighted sound pressure level from the plant and machinery (including
non-emergency auxiliary piant and generators) hereby permitted, when operating at its
noisiest, shall not at any time exceed a value of 15 dB below the minimum external
background noise, at a point 1 metre outside any window of any residential and other noise
sensitive property, unless and until a fixed maximum noise level is approved by the City
Council. The background level should be expressed in terms of the lowest LAS0, 15 mins
during the proposed hours of operation. The plant-specific noise level should be expressed as
LAeqTm, and shall be representative of the plant operating at its maximum.

(3) Following installation of the plant and equipment, you may apply in writing to the City
Council for a fixed maximum noise level to be approved. This is to be done by submitting a
further noise report confirming previous details and subsequent measurement data of the
installed plant, including a proposed fixed noise level for approval by the City Council. Your
submission of a noise report must include:

(a) A schedule of all plant and equipment that formed part of this application;

(b) Locations of the plant and machinery and associated: ducting; attenuation and damping
equipment;

(c) Manufacturer specifications of sound emissicns in octave or third octave detail;

(d) The location of most affected noise sensitive receptor location and the most affected
window of it;

(e) Distances between plant & equipment and receptor location/s and any mitigating features
that may attenuate the sound level received at the most affected receptor location;

(f) Measurements of existing LAS0, 15 mins levels recorded one metre outside and in front of
the window referred to in (d) above (or a suitable representative position), at times when
background noise is at its lowest during hours when the plant and equipment will operate. This
acoustic survey to be conducted in conformity to BS 7445 in respect of measurement
methodology and procedures;

(@) The towest existing L A90, 15 mins measurement recorded under (f} above,

(h) Measurement evidence and any calculations demonstrating that plant and equipment
complies with the planning condition;

{i) The proposed maximum noise level to be emitted by the plant and equipment.

Reason:

Because existing external ambient noise levels exceed WHO Guideline Levels, and as set out
in ENV 8 (1), (6) and (8) and ENV 7 (A){1} of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted
in January 2007, so that the noise environment of people in noise sensitive properties is
protected, including the intrusiveness of tonal and impulsive sounds; and as set out in 532 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013, by contributing to
reducing excessive ambient noise levels. Part (3} is included so that applicants may ask
subsequently for a fixed maximum noise level to be approved in case ambient noise levels
reduce at any time after implementation of the planning permission.

The plant/machinery hereby permitted shall not be operated except between 11.00 hours and
"+ 23.30 hours daily.

Reason:
To safeguard the amenity of occupiers of noise sensitive properties and the area generally by

Page 235



10

15/04723/FULL

ensuring that the plant/machinery hereby permitted is not operated at hours when external
background noise levels are quietest thereby preventing noise and vibration nuisance as set
out in $32 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 6
and ENV 7 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

No vibration shall be transmitted to adjoining or other premises and structures through the
building structure and fabric of this development as to cause a vibration dose value of greater
than 0.4m/s (1.75) 16 hour day-time nor 0.26 m/s (1.75) 8 hour night-time as defined by BS
6472 (2008) in any part of a residential and other noise sensitive property.

Reason:

As set out in ENVE (2) and (6) of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January
2007, to ensure that the development is designed to prevent structural transmission of noise
or vibration.

All new external ducting must be made out of metal and painted black and retained in that
colour. (C27HA)

Reason: :

To protect the special architectural or historic interest of this listed building. This is as set out
in 525 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan; Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1, DES 10 (A) and paras 10.129 to 10.146 of our Unitary Development Plan that we
adopted in January 2007. (R26ED)

You must apply to us for approval of details of a supplementary acoustic report demonstrating
that the plant will comply with the Council's noise criteria as set out in Condition 4 of this
permission. You must not start work on this part of the development until we have approved
what you have sent us.

Reason:

Because existing external ambient noise levels exceed WHO Guideline Levels, and as set out
in ENV 6 (1), (8) and (8) and ENV 7 (A)}{1} of our Unitary Development Pian that we adopted
in January 2007, so that the noise environment of people in noise sensitive properties is
protected, including the intrusiveness of tonal and impulsive sounds; and as set out in $32 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013, by contributing to
reducing excessive ambient noise lavels,

The glazed roof over the rear extension at lower ground floor level must not be openable and
must remain closed at all times.

Reason:

To protect the environment of residents and the area generally as set out in $29 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 5 and ENV 6 of
our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R22CC})

The development must be included in its entirety before the rear extension hereby approved is
used by customers of the public house.

Page 236



15/04723/FULL

Reason:

To protect the environment of residents and the area generally as set out in 529 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 5 and ENV 6 of
our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R22CC)

Informative(s):

In dealing with this application the City Council has implemented the requirement in the
National Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive
way. We have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies in
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013, Unitary Development
Pian, Supplementary Planning documents, planning briefs and other informal written
guidance, as well as offering a full pre application advice service, in order to ensure that
applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an application which is likely to be
considered favourably. In addition, where appropriate, further guidance was offered to the
applicant at the validation stage.

Page 237



......

: 15/04724/LBC
DRAFT DECISION LETTER

Address: 32 Harcourt Street, London, W1H 4HX
Proposal: Erection of a single storey rear extension at lower ground floor level and alterations
to the front elevation including the removal of redundant advertising. Installation of a

new high level extract duct on the rear elevation and internal alterations at all floor
levels.

Plan Nos: 15/356/01/A; 15/356/04/F; 15/356/05/H; 15/356/06/F; 15/356/07/E; 15/356/08/C;
13/356/13/B; 15/356/14/C; 15/356/15/D; 15/356/16/B; 15/356/17/A; 32

Case Officer:  Billy Pattison Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 3267

Recommended Condition{s} and Reason(s):

ent hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the drawings and
s listed on this decision letter, and any drawings approved subsequently by the
‘planning authority pursuant to any conditions on this decision letter.

oubt and in the interests of proper planning.

éiments inside and outside the building must match existing original
hechoice of materials, method of construction and finished
dlfferences are shown on the approved drawings or are

1, DES 10 (A) and paras 10,12
January 2007. (R26ED)

3 Any historic detailing uncovered T prmg

recorded and reported to the City Council, f;m in in place subject to a new
scheme of alteration being submittedto and apprbv Council
Reason. S AN T
To protect the special arch:tectural or hlstorl -mter ' isYis! bwidtn This is as set out in
i " Ngvember 2013 and DES
lan that we adopted in

January 2007. (R26ED) 7 /\ P

4 You must apply to us for approval of sections and elevations (;f a scale of 1.5) of the following
parts of the development:
the new panelling and how it will relate to the existing historic skirting at first floor level. You

must not start work until we have approved what you have sent us. You must then carry out the

work according to these detailed drawings. (C26CB)

Reason:

To protect the special architectural or historic interest of this listed building. This is as set out in
525 and $28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and DES
1, DES 10 (A) and paras 10.129 to |50'146 oé% Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in
January 2007. (R26ED) age -



15/04724/L.BC

You must apply to us for approval of plans and elevations (at a scale of 1:20) and detailed
sections (at a scale of 1:5) of the following parts of the development - the patent glazed roof in
the new rear extension.

You must not start any work on these parts of the development until we have approved what
you have sent us. You must then carry out the work according to these detailed drawings.
(C26DB)

Reason:

To protect the special architectural or historic interest of this listed building. This is as set out in
$25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and DES
1, DES 10 (A) and paras 10.129 to 10.146 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in
January 2007. (R26ED)

Informative(s):

SUMMARY OF REASONS FOR GRANTING CONDITIONAL LISTED BUILDING CONSENT -
In reaching the decision to grant listed building consent with conditions, the City Council has
had regard to the relevant policies in the National Planning Policy Framework March 2012, the
London Plan July 2011, Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013,
and the City of Westminster Unitary Development Plan adopted January 2007, as well as
relevant supplementary planning guidance, representations received and all other material
considerations.

The City Council decided that the proposed works would not harm the character of this building
of special architectural or historic interest.

In reaching this decision the following were of particular relevance:;

525 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies and DES 10 including paras 10.130
to 10.146 of the Unitary Development Plan, and paragraph 2.3 and 2.4 of our Supplementary
Ptanning Guidance: Repairs and Alterations to Listed Buildings.

Page 239



uoneAs|3 Juol
v LLI9GEIS) “woo'Ge ‘wneq

iy "o “Baug
= way
L - E
uopOT MENIS . _ SILOZ WIEN 0

WD 0511 g

NSS! ONINNYTd oo |

awaYIs MOed
Ayuabias e w abejuoy) gnd
PUE SAOPUIM 34EI003P3.

opeAd[a uosq pasodoig s P
oL Cumaig o a_.ﬂ_‘n”ﬂh_ﬂ_“ﬁh.—.__“w / ﬂ“u_u___ Jaop Buysixy
; = — ——t ! —
XHY HIM i 0C
QONOOOAG0
}9al1g HNodlieY ZE |

T T
o el L H
- +09M BLECEH
¥ L L 11
wmBempu VB SR ]
ELRLLR 26040 e 0]
4 BEERDP ZRTL0 L 11
Lt H: i
] L | e
a5

e s N
P Em.mﬂﬂ_ i L¥00JUVH HHL

NOIO] 14un.s e

ucrawaL weq iy _u 90M S04M FOAM
‘PASAL SN0 LCNESDBS | SLOZSOGE ¥ m m

Jeq ajels

e

rf!tl.. ...... _Z:_«téa
w..c_ w3y

H
/0,

T P —— — DR,
£ 4 I wy ]
M @35 Jnojed Kauab:
U] SROpUIM 3jEl033paY
e ~
_ J-..rr.lr
— lf:r‘f\( paATEAL
/,. saje | Jurpunpay
Juasasd
11 mopuis fwanp Gusy s
Sim vmc: v-aaaxu jpue Buisijianpe
Buysie aaoway
- W _
[m]
- ! _|rJ|rJL uuuuu 1]
o = Do 4B 2000pad pue Bussijaaap
ISEE.!E-.!G!L Buiysing aacL; o
oo a1 g o4 e 5 oy
L T
” Ao oy 3 o gy '
b O DENDNT ] X "L
ALON

Page 240




) v1/98€E/S L

“nay o “Beug

: T e
r e 1

G102 yuel

UG WEMS :l.a_ aeg

WD 051 o

ANSSI ONINNYId g

uopeAs|3 Jeay pasodolg
ol Bupsi

XHY HEM

uopuo-

}93i)g Unodiey zg
o pokig

e e e
IET BB S 1P

Cimiiw paOLo e
EEEEOY LD L

uosiwey | eeg “ng
Pas{EUaL
aleurip wa: pue pass) Bupsasad 0ol 19 | GLOZSOSH ¥
parsai snou Buzog sedy albeusip
= P v e a
pepoe weishs Guged eed | §LOZEOOE 2
Jeq ajeas
[ ¥ 1 ? ) 3 |
E Z I wy
¥
TR U UMOUS BUORIED [y L
0 24 0 0 Busedip Sn L
0 O sudmriday
o
e gy 5
FUMADRALTIN (Ul SURNLAT TR L
B sl wain
iy T T
WY T
Ll Lt o 3

qiomynaq pasadea
se 4y jjem kjsed Buysixg

Buippng Buiysixa yajew o)
sadyd Jajemuled pue ssagng

awayss snajed Kauabas
ey pajueid ense) Jaqu)

wayshs

2 04 buwade soop Buigsig

Hanagie Bugysina

vu.lnu.l\
g 0} joos 3jeys Buiysxy

4np Buiysina
SE 3U|| IWES 3§ uo
49 o) |30 JIR1XR AN

uonens|y jeay

e

6ulj002 Je1} panajod Juiz
% ﬁui\

o

-afiejuosy gng ujew Yagew o) 3))yoid awely pue
Buize|f ‘smopuis pazeb ajgnop saquy may

Junaydoys ujew yiyew
oy buize) s0ep proj-1q Busis Jaquiy

L

‘woo's6 -wnieqg

HJ0m¥I1Jg pasodua 58
4591 1pem dyaed Buysicg

Buiysma yijew o)
sJomyalig Buie; may

‘e furpunog Jead bu)psia of juadefpe sayynd
X0 yjim 5234 jed saquy uo washs Buizein uajeg

Juawynge ge dedy Ajaed pue Buysey pes) 4 apo])

|quesydoys uew
yajew oy Bupze|B) SMOpUIm Aay [EA AR MBU {INJ§SU0T pUE
aaa) Buize)b asseJ aunjonys o Buize|f Buiysina anoway

linkEnni

N8/ MIL'D 40 INRA 1), € 3AAGE o

L

==

sJade) omy ul vopjensul S3EBAIG) WWS) T (SAI4URD W]y
— @ Jaquy apeali g3 wwpgy x (4 g 04 ysiof Buya] saupues
wagy B saquiy apesb 913 wugpL x Ly 39 o) saey

\l 54 w00t JM J0) Juan jedueyIaw Bugsix

=

/._Eus 3 04 sadid __.__.@n
sadid (105 pue Jagemue. Bugsics asieucjey

st

Page 241




scale bar

Erunes0n sl iy Oher TeCt WRoU St | cxton Cesgn Limied wites conse,

NOTES

G screpancy i i e oo o e Al BeANS ConstTUCan.
2, A8 work

LT INs¥UChon and rcammand s

. This drinetng b not 50 B scaled.

7. M dimersions showe in milmeties.

. drawang

88 wooy
wy Jajog

g4 wooy

wooy uojIund

£S5 wooy
ango

£] wooy
RNy

Buiwesy saquig pue preogsase)d
4ji u) paxoq 8 ) Mopulm Buiysixy

Zlg wooy

Jajie) sape] Y
oM
8180

20 wooy

105M

LOiM

“sysjof Joo)) uBIMERY HaIY4
wugs) 0141 Joo)jeulay) vedsbury

s)jen Jedeu)s ue saljue
wwggy §& 55)0] Joojy ms wEggL X
ool we Buipseog saoyy poosd)d wug)

00 uopoag [euipnybuo

‘woQ g6 -wnjeqg
uejyeanads pue ulisap saeaubus
TRANINIYS 0 SWEIG PUNSID
paekjinoa
paned auogs yio ), Buysixa uelyeaynads pue
Jakn Jooyy papuadsns Jaqu)| ufjsap siaaubus o) ubisap woijepunay

1243 puneub aaoqe

\.,.__am_ unw ag o 3dg

8ig wooy
wooy voluny

6lg wooy
Bady padanc]

'S4y
9ls
MS1

- usyye
ueds|

uay waggy @ apesd

‘poomild Jgm wwg, uo Jede) josued Jnodes audyjakiod Byggy vo spieog

N o

‘|1em Lsepunag Jess Buiysixa of juase(pe sagnb
%0 Yim SIA44RS Jaquy uo waysks Buizeln juajey

a0l JooJ ye1; wwQOZ X Ly 04 PAxly PUB PIE) 0% I | 11} 04 403 sBupyy
Ap|M WS UOLEIYRAYS TI3UN40 NURW Yy FIURPIOIIE W) 39 0} SBunny

n rsodwad poomAld wug [RINJINIEE Y WL/ DT LEHL joodewsayy
fupy warg)) uo Jade] (0aju0d Jnodea wo w3 sAs Buyjoos jey paunojod mug

Page 242

20042015 | Panent glaring systern added and roof light
005015 | Roof Bght revised.
Rz

stuarT LOXTON

Desigrmn Limited

0 e MO £

§
&
£

rera

Project Titke.

@
8 RN
m =
= 3
g &
3 i
£ w s ©
§ 2 |3 P
& S ol I}
; = m = 14 ™
= ¢ - Z||®| & -
mﬂH @ m o B wn
=2 mm. s 1 5 -—
H.MAHI L2 o - = 3
32 Ie i s !




¥ Z0/9S€/S 1 ue)q 100} juawaseg E, \

—

d J00)4 punoJy

; I wz
_ _

uaixo] WEMS _.,l.n_ gL0z Aenuer poes

v @ 00L:L

ue)d Jooj4 4sdi4 uejd Jooj4 puolas

aeg

it 3NSS| ONINNYTd e |

103.16 +

sue|d J00]4 Bups|xg

oL Bumag

+ 10517

XHY HIM
uopuo
192.)g {NOJJEH ZE

oL ek

LBy p e Oy AN IR, n
| e LlARUSTRO SO m a =" |

ELBL L ESOLO T

BRERDT Z¥T L0 B

iy
& msf@#w“

R 6151 3
gy <t
paauu ubisaa 2
S o
S
o - ey o Elevatfon 2.
B A_m DI
FU ue
Id J00]4 pdiy 1
Jeq 3jess
e i
5 ug 7] L )
_ o B3 ,
AL
E”si“il”bilaglﬂﬂh!}g%“l S RO Y

AR ALUOR [T SUCIEITUTT S|
i

U 1 1 UL B S04 S (s 1k D
A0 019 T e ] S0 R TS TETL XA [ LRI ITY T

A o iy T
", 4

mcinmn;

e s L
FALON




Existing party wall.
brickwork to be cleaned
and painted with masanry
paint

Banquette seaking Timber sliding bi-fold doors

glazing to match main Pub
Covered Area frontage
Existing York stone
re-used for covered area Room B19
flaar

New timber double glazed
windows, glazing and frame
prafile to match main Pub
Fating brickwork to match frontage
existing

Existing party wall
brickwork to be cleaned
and painted with masanry
paint

Banguette seating

Existing York stene to.
remain in place with timber E

suspended floor over.

Steel beams, columns and

foundation design to E E:mmb::.:md
Structural Engineers and painted with masonry
design and specification int
Function Room u i

Room B18

Existing window ho be boxed in with
Ir‘ plasterboard and timber framing

Banquette seating

Dummy boking to conceal
_vents frop Ladies and Gents Tolets

_Shul beam over

Boxing around kitchen
extract duct

Store Room

Room B20"

Fartition to hide kitchen
extract duct

For details of Hens Todet
refer te WC's specification

Existing vent pipe ta be
fitted with an autematic air

admittance valve DBO9 Store Room

Re position existing cublele Room B13
streen to allow for Kitchen
extract duct

For details of Ladies Toilet-
refer to WC's specification

jujod

uoiesyy

Kitchen extract duct to
pass underneath dumb
waiter

Mew Dumb waiter

Room B15

Kitchen extract duct

extract to pass through wall alongside
door opening. Area above extract duct
to be constructed out of plasterboard
and shudwark.

Kitchen fit out by
specialist contracter

Kitchen
Room Bé

Fit double sealed
screwed manhale cover

Waterproof tanking by
specialist contractor

julod
uaIasU

Room B4

Room B1

Waterpreof tanking by
specialist contractor

Keg Store

Keg Store
Room B3

Basement Floor Plan
Phase 1

NOTES
1 [ i o ek and arry
2 P}

Y o

4. AN marerials are m te wsed and insabed In STkl Complance Wi e ket
Instnuctions and recommendations.

S Allmories on g, managed i

respect of ste

and Satoy COM
abe

unerizken ¥
& This dewwing Is nat 10 be scaled.
7,48 inmi

. shown in miliseres.
B, Tris crawing B the copyeight of Sasan Lovion Design Limied must nol &4 wsed in
e 3 St

All new electrical works to be carried out by a Part P
registered compitent person.

Provide at least one low energy light fitting with a
luminous efficacy greater than 40 lumens/circult
watt,

All new radiaters to be fitted with Thermostatic
Valves.

FEOUL WATER DRAINAGE

All waste pipes to be formed in PVC with redding
eyes at all changes of direction and be fitted with
75mm deep seal anti-vac traps to CP 304 and BS
5572. WC pans fo be fitted with Multi quick sutlets,
Waste pipe sizes [diameter]

WC = 100mm

Basin = 40mm

Sink = &0mm

If waste pipes exceed 3m in length a separate 25mm
branch ventilating pipe should be pravided and
connected to the SVP above spillover level of
appliance.

SVP's to be formed in 100mm diameter PVC pipework,
to terminate with a roof tile vent minimum 300mm
above windew apenings.

Stub stack, to terminate above spillover level of
highest cannection.

om 1 'y 3
L L 1 L 1 L ]
scale bar
H 2MMB2015  Covered Area saating and paving nate
revised
G 20082015 Room St to oom B18 revised ta Coversd
Area
F ZROS2015  Boiler and A nole added.
E 20052015 Tallet mech vent note added,
o 15057015 | Specifcation notes sdded. kitchen exract
duct revised
[+ CSMS2015 | Specification notes added
B W15 | Rear screen wal revised
A 432015 | Ravised 1o suit maasuned survay and drawing
rrimbes revised
R, D FRavision

sTuaRT LOKTON

Desigr Lirmitec
17 Cryharn Road
Stockion on Tees

Clewetars

Tit% A (i
Toh 01647 B04344

Ve Q092 81872

i el g e
e DAt Sig £

Project Thia
32 Harcourt Street
Condon
W1H 4HX

Drarwing Titke

Proposed Basement Plan

| ™ PLANNING ISSUE

Sk 1:50 @ A2

January 2015 [ ’

L AT NSO e

Drwg, Mo Rev.

15/356/05 H




| Agenda ltem 10

ltem No.
10
CITY OF WESTMINSTER
PLANNING APPLICATIONS | Date Classification
COMMITTEE 27 October 2015 For General Release
Report of Wards involved
Director of Planning Marylebone High Street
Subject of Report 5 Bingham Place, London, W1U S5AT
Proposal Demolition of the existing dwelling behind the retained front facade.

Excavation beneath site and erection of replacement dwelling (Class C3)
over two basement storeys, ground, first and new mansard second
storey. Use of Part of 21 Nottingham Place to form part of replacement
dwelling (Class C3).

Agent Montagu Evans LLP

On behalf of Latitude Investments Limited

Registered Number 15/02805/FULL TP/ PP No TP/23545

Date of Application 30.03.2015 Date 09.04.2015
amended/
completed

Category of Application Minor

Historic Building Grade Unlisted

Conservation Area Harley Street

Development Plan Context

- London Plan July 2011

- Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies 2013

- Unitary Development Plan
(UDP) January 2007

Within London Plan Central Activities Zone

Outside Central Activities Zone

Stress Area Qutside Stress Area

Current Licensing Position | Not Applicable

1. RECOMMENDATION

Grant conditional planning permission.

Page 245



MANTLEL =~

20 Metres

0 510

8
3
a
©
a

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordnance
Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's

Stationery Office.

® Crown copyright and/or database right 2013,




-
<
"
(&)
<
o
o
=
<
e
o)
<
(11]
0




[tem No.

10

SUMMARY

The application site comprises 5 Bingham Place, an unlisted mews building situated within the
Harley Street Conservation Area and in use as a single family dwelling (Class C3). Permission
is sought for extensive works, including a mansard roof extension and the excavation of a new
double basement to form a larger single family dwelling.

The key issues for consideration are:

s The impact of the proposals upon the amenities of neighbouring residents.
» The impact of the works, in design terms, on the application property and the character
and appearance of the wider conservation area.

Permission was previously refused in 2001 for a scheme which involved a mansard roof
extension and larger rear extension. However, since this refusal permission has been granted
for mansard roof extensions at several other properties along Bingham Place. Given these
circumstances, it is now considered that the proposed mansard roof extension, which takes a
traditional design, is considered to be acceptable.

The proposals are considered acceptable in amenity, design and conservation grounds and
comply with the policies set out in the Unitary Development Plan (UDP) and Westminster's
City Plan; Strategic Policies.

CONSULTATIONS

MARYLEBONE ASSOCIATION
Request conditions to reduce that noise and disturbance from the basement construction work
including an exemplary Construction Management Pian.

BUILDING CONTROL
No objection.

HIGHWAYS PLANNING MANAGER
No objection subject to condition requiring cycle and waste storage.

THAMES WATER
Request that the applicant incorporates a non-return valve or other suitable device to avoid
backflow problems during storm conditions.

ADJOINING OWNERS/OCCUPIERS AND OTHER REPRESENTATIONS

No. Consulted: 80; Total No. of Replies: 14

13 letters of objection and 1 neutral letter received on the following grounds:

Basement and construction issues

» Impact on the stability of neighbouring properties.

» Impact on the water table and local drainage.

¢ Harm to amenity of residents as a result of construction noise, fumes, dust and scaffolding
from works and vehicles associated with the development.

» Inconvenience caused to residents and businesses from construction works and
associated disruption.

» The development would set an unacceptable precedent for basements.

» Bingham Mews is too narrow for the large vehicles associated with the construction works

¢ The impact of canstruction traffic on the local traffic network

Design
« Design fails to respect charad®Bgf@eddley Street Conservation Area.



[tem No.

10

» Harmfu! effect on the architectural and historic interest of the mews

s Contributes to the wider impact on the character of Marylebone caused by a number of
recent large developments.

« Substantial loss of original fabric is unacceptable.

Highways
« - Loss of residential parking spaces during construction works.
« Increase in traffic congestion on local road networks as a result of construction works.

Amenity

« Roof terrace will encourage outdoor activities and associated noise.

» Overlooking from Bingham Place to Albert Mansions.

» Loss of daylight and sunlight to surrounding residential properties and hotel on Nottingham
Place.

Cther
« The proposal will provide luxury accommodation not homes for local residents.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
41  The Application Site

No.5 Bingham Place is a two storey unlisted mews building currently in use as a single family
dwelling (Class C3) and located within the Harley Street Conservation Area. Part of the
property oversails office premises (Class B1) at lower ground floor level which are part of 21
Nottingham Place, located immediately to the rear of the application property.

4.2 Relevant History

On 7 August 2001 an application (RN:01/03999/FULL) for the erection of a mansard roof and
two storey rear extension was refused due to the impact that the proposals would have on the
appearance of the conservation area and the sense of enclosure and impact on amenity of
neighbouring residents at 21 Nottingham Place.

On 11 July 2002 an application (RN:02/03705/FULL) for the use of the rear ground floor flat
roof as terrace and erection of associated screens was refused for design and amenity
reasons. At present, this area of roof appears to be unlawfully in use as a terrace.

THE PROPOSAL

Permission is sought for the demolition of the existing dwelling behind a retained front fagade
and the rebuilding of a replacement dwelling. Subterranean excavation is proposed to create a
second basement level. The existing lower ground floor level, which is currently in use as
office premises forming part of, and accessed from, 21 Nottingham Place will be amalgamated
into the new replacement dwelling. The new dwelling will have three upper stories including a
mansard storey. The rebuilt rear elevations will largely follow the existing form of the building
with a slight extension at rear first floor level.

DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 Land Use

The proposal increases the amount of residential floorspace in accordance with UDP Policy
H3 and City Plan Policy S14.

Page 249



tem No.

10

It is proposed to amalgamate the office floorspace at lower ground floor of 21 Nottingham
Place into the new single family dwelling at 5 Bingham Place. There are no current or
emerging policies which protect offices outside of the core Central Activities Zone. The loss of
office floorspace is considered to be acceptable.

6.2 Townscape and Design

5 Bingham Place is an attractive mews building within the Harley Street Conservation Area.
The mews as a whole has a mixed Victorian character and many of the buildings have
undergone alterations, with the majority of the eastern side of the street having already had
mansard roof extensions. The Harley Street Conservation Area Audit does not identify No. 5
as a building which contributes to the character of the conservation area. However, this is
considered to be an error as the building makes a positive contribution to this mews and the
character of the wider area. The audit also identifies no. 5 as a building which is unsuitabie for
roof extension. The primary policies of relevance in relation to the design conservation are
DES1, DES 5, DES6 and DES9 of the Westminster Unitary Development Plan.

The proposed demolition of the building behind retained fagade is considered acceptable in
principle, as it is the front fagade which makes the greatest contribution to the character and
significance of this part of the conservation area. The rear elevations on this mews have a
mixed character, with many buildings having undergone significant alterations and extensions.
No 5 has been extended and does not retain its original detail and character to the rear. The
rebuilt rear elevations will largely follow the existing form of the building with slight extension
and partial rebuilding of the closet wing to 21 Nottingham Place. Traditional materials are to
be used at rear which will be in brick with all windows in timber and glazed brick in the lower
courtyard. Subject to conditions to ensure appropriate details, this is considered acceptable.

The proposed new basement will have no visual impact and, as such, it is not considered this
will affect the townscape or character and appearance of the conservation area. It is, however,
recognised that this is a constrained mews site and the demolition/ excavation methodology
will therefore be important. It is recommended a condition is imposed to ensure demolition and
excavation will be undertaken sensitively and original historic fabric o the front fagade of the
building will not be damaged and will be retained.

The principle of a mansard roof extension on this site is contentious as the conservation area
audit identifies No. 5 as unsuitable for roof extension. In 2001 permission was refused for a
scheme which involved a mansard roof extension and larger rear extension. However, since
this refusal permission has been granted for mansard roof extensions at several other
properties along Bingham Place.

There are mansard roof extensions at the majority of properties on the east of Bingham Place;
the exceptions being No’'s 2, 3, 12 and 15 Bingham Place. In addition, the building retains its
attractive original pitched roof form and is already taller than No 4, whilst the adjoining building
at No. 6 is already taller than No. 5, with a prominent party wall upstand which has a
detrimental impact in street views. The proposed mansard will partially obscure views of this
upstand.

In terms of its detailed design, the height of the proposed mansard to No. 5 has been kept to a
minimum and chimney stacks will be retained to maintain the character of the roofscape. It will
be a traditionally detailed natural slate mansard and the parapet will be in brick, with brick on
edge coping to match the detail of the adjoining buildings on the street. On balance, the
principle of a mansard on this site is therefore considered acceptable. In light of the above,
proposals are considered to be acceptable in design and conservation terms and will accord
with UDP Policies DES5, DES6 and DES®9.

Page 250



Item No.

10

6.3 Residential Amenity

UDP Policy ENV 13 and $29 of the City Management Plan: Strategic Policies seeks to ensure
that new developments do not result in a material loss of amenity to existing residents.

Overlooking

Located directly to the rear of the application property No. 21 Nottingham Place has
residential windows from ground floor level and above. The proposal’s new ground ficor level
window will look towards an obscure giazed ground floor bathroom window within 21
Nottingham Place, thus having no additional impact on privacy.

As existing there is a level of mutual overlooking between the application property and No. 21
Nottingham Place. It is not considered that the new east facing windows at first and second
floor level will have any greater impact on the neighbouring occupiers’ privacy than the
existing windows allow. At first floor level a new bathroom window is proposed in very close
proximity to the rear window of No. 21. In order to ensure overlooking is not possible a
condition is proposed to require that the bathroom window is obscure glazed.

A previous application for the use of the rear ground floor roof area as a terrace was refused
as it was considered that it would result in a loss of privacy to the neighbouring residential
properties within 21 Nottingham Place. At present, this area of roof appears to be untawfully in
use as a terrace. It is considered that there has been no material change in circumstances
that would allow the use of this area of roof as a terrace. In order to protect the amenity of
residents at No. 21 it is proposed that conditions are imposed to prohibit the use of this area
for sitting out, and requiring the submission of amended drawings which detail an
appropriately designed barrier across the first floor sliding doors to prevent access to the flat
roof.

Objections have been received from occupiers of Albert Mansions, which is located on the
opposite side of Bingham Mews, on the grounds that the mansard roof extension will result in
a loss of privacy and loss of daylight and sunlight.

The mansard roof will have three new dormer windows which will look towards Albert
Mansions. However, it is considered that the existing character of Bingham Place is that of a
narrow mews with mutual overlooking from properties on both sides. Albert Mansions is
already overlooked by No. 5's windows at first floor level as well as windows on the upper
floors of several other properties on the eastern side of Bingham Place. It is not considered
that the addition of three new dormer windows will have a significant impact on the privacy
levels of residents within Albert Mansions.

Daylight and Sunlight

With regard to the loss of light to properties within Albert and Nottingham Mansions,
recommended standards for daylight and sunlight in residential accommodation are set out in
the Building Research Establishment (BRE} publication 'Site layout for daylight and sunlight'
2011.

Vertical Sky Component (VSC}) is the amount of light hitting the surface of a window. If this
achieves 27% or more, the BRE guidance advises that the window will have the potential to
provide good levels of daylight. The guidance also suggests that reductions from existing
values of more than 20% should be avoided as occupiers are likely to notice the change. In
respect of sunlight, the guidelines also suggest that any reductions of over 20% over the
whole year are likely to be noticeable.

Page 251



B s s i el

Iterm No.

10

A Daylight Report has been submitted in support of the application. This assesses the impact
of the development on windows within Albert Mansions. The report illustrates that windows at
ground and first floors of Albert Mansions will not be affected by the proposals. There will be
slight reductions to existing VSC levels however, the losses wilt be between 0% and 5.5%.
The losses are therefore significantly below the BRE guidance of 20% which should be
avoided as occupiers are likely to notice the change.

The Daylight Report considers the impact on 21 Nottingham Place located to the rear of the
application property. The windows on the upper floors will suffer no loss of daylight, however
two windows at ground floor level have VSC reductions of 33% and 46%. The window that
loses 46% supplies a bathroom and is not afforded the level of protection that a habitable
window would receive. With regard to the window which would experience a 33% loss of VSC,
the actual reduction (from 7.83% to 5.86 %) is only 1.97%, but the overall percentage loss is
relatively high due to the fact that the existing level of light is relatively low and any loss is
therefore proportionately higher when expressed as a percentage of the original value. In
these circumstances, it is not considered that the impact will be significant.

in terms of sunlight the BRE guidance states that sunlight need only be tested where the
development lies within 90 degrees to the south of the window in question. In this case the
residential flats at Albert Mansions are situated to the west of the application premises and the
residential windows to the rear of Nottingham Place are located to the east. A sunlight test is
not therefore required.

Noise from construction

Objections have been received on the grounds that the proposed works will be noisy and
disruptive, that construction vehicles in the mews will make it difficult for existing residents to
park, and that construction vehicles will potentially cause congestion to the local road network.
Objections on the grounds of noise and disruption during construction do not in themselves
form a sustainable reason for refusal. The City Council's standard building works and
excavation condition is recommended to control the hours of building works.

The applicant has submitted a Construction Management Plan (CMP) which addresses how
the proposed works will commence. However, given the proximity to neighbouring residents,
the level of objection from neighbours, and the potential for disruption it is recommended that
a condition is imposed requiring a more detailed CMP to be submitted which specifically sets
how it is intended to ameliorate the impact of works on neighbouring residents.

A plant area is indicated within a basement level store to provide domestic scale mechanical
ventilation heat recovery. The plant is located internally and will recover heat by extracting air
from two WCs and the kitchen. If any additional air conditioning plant were to be proposed in
the future it would require a new planning application. Notwithstanding this, the Council's
standard noise conditions are proposed in order to protect against any noise outbreak.

6.4  Transportation/Parking

As the proposal does not involve an increase in residential units there is no requirement for
any additional car parking provision. However, the redevelopment does provide an opportunity
for the provision of cycle and waste storage. Conditions requiring the necessary details will be
imposed.

6.5 Economic Considerations

Any economic benefits generated are welcomed.

Page 252



.

Item No.

10

6.6 Other UDP/Westminster Il='olicy Considerations
Not applicable.

6.7 London Plan

The proposal does not raise any' strategic implications.
6.8 National Policy/Guidance Considerations

Central Government’s National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) came into effect on 27
March 2012. It sets out the Government’s planning policies and how they are expected to be
applied. The NPPF has replaced almost all of the Government’s existing published planning
policy statements/guidance as well as the circulars on planning obligations and strategic
planning in London. It is a material consideration in determining pianning applications.

Untit 27 March 2013, the City Council was able to give full weight to relevant policies in the
Core Strategy and London Plan, even if there was a limited degree of conflict with the
framework. The City Council is now required to give due weight to relevant policies in existing
plans “according to their degree of consistency” with the NPPF. Westminster’s City Plan:
Strategic Policies was adopted by Full Council on 13 November 2013 and is fully compliant
with the NPPF. For the UDP, due weight should be given to relevant policies according to their
degree of consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies in the plan to the NPPF, the
greater the weight that may be given).

The UDP policies referred to in the consideration of these applications are considered to be
consistent with the NPPF unless stated otherwise.

6.9 Planning Obligations

None required.

6.10 Environmental Assessment including Sustainability and Biodiversity Issues
None required.

6.11 Access

Access to the main building would be unaffected.

6.12 Otherlssues

Objections have been received concerning any potential impact that the basement excavation
would have on the foundations and structural integrity of other buildings, and to the potential
effects on the water table and the potential increase in the risk of flooding.

This impact of basement excavation is at the heart of concerns expressed by residents across
many central London Boroughs, heightened by well publicised accidents occurring during

basement constructions. Residents are concerned that the excavation of new basements is a
risky construction process with potential harm to adjoining buildings and occupiers.

Page 253



ltem No.

10

Studies have been undertaken which advise that subterranean development in a dense urban
environment, especially basements built under existing vulnerable structures is a challenging
engineering endeavour and that in particular it carries a potential risk of damage to both the
existing and neighbouring structures and infrastructure if the subterranean development is ill-
planned, poorly constructed and does not properly consider geology and hydrology.

While the Building Regulations determine whether the detailed design of buildings and their
foundations will allow the buildings to be constructed and used safely, the National Planning
Policy Framework March 2012 states that the planning system should contribute to and
enhance the natural and local environment by preventing both new and existing development
from contributing to or being put at unacceptable risk from, or being adversely affected by land
instability.

The NPPF goes on to state that in order to prevent unacceptable risks from land instability,
planning decisions should ensure that new development is appropriate for its location. It
advises that where a site is affected by land stability issues, responsibility for securing a safe
development rests with the developer and/or landowner.

The NPPF advises that planning decisions should ensure that a site is suitable for its new use
taking account of ground conditions and land instability and any proposals for mitigation, and
that adequate site investigation information, prepared by a competent person, is presented.

Officers consider that in the light of the above it would be justifiable to adopt a precautionary
approach to these types of development where there is a potential to cause damage to
adjoining structures.

To address this, the applicant has provided a structural engineer’s report explaining the likely
methodology of excavation. Any report by a member of the relevant professional institution
carries a duty of care which should be sufficient to demonstrate that the matter has been
properly considered at this early stage.

The purpese of such a report at the planning application stage is to demonstrate that a
subterranean development can be constructed on the particular site having regard to the site,
existing structural conditions and geology. 1t does not prescribe the engineering techniques
that must be used during construction which may need to be altered once the excavation has
occurred. The structural integrity of the development during the construction is not controlled
through the planning system but through Building Regulations and the Party Wall Act.

This report has been considered by our Building Control officers who have advised that the
structural approach appears satisfactory. We are not approving this report or conditioning that
the works shall necessarily be carried out in accordance with the report. Its purpose is to
show, with the integral professional duty of care, that there is no reasonable impediment
foreseeable at this stage to the scheme satisfying the Building Regulations in due course. This
report will be attached for information purposes to the decision letter. It is considered that this
is as far as we can reasonably take this matter under the planning considerations of the
proposal as matters of detailed engineering techniques and whether they secure the structural
integrity of the development and neighbouring buildings during construction is not controlled
through the planning regime but other statutory codes and regulations as cited above. To go
further would be to act beyond the bounds of planning control.

The City Management Plan will include policies specifically dealing with basement and other
subterranean extensions. This is at an early stage of development and will not carry any
weight as a material consideration in determining planning applications untif it has progressed
significantly along the route to final adoption.

6.13 Conclusion Page 254



O e I . b e e g A TI T et o T e

ltem No.

10

The proposals are considered acceptable on amenity, design and conservation grounds, and
comply with the policies set out in the UDP and City Plan.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Application forms

Letter from Marylebone Association dated 07 May 2015

Memorandum from Highways Planning Manager dated 28 April 2015

Letter from owner/occupier of 8 Albert Mansions, Luxborough Street dated 25 April 2015

Letters from owner/occupier of 1A Nottingham Mansions, Nottingham Street dated 26 April 2015
and 6 May 2015

Letter from ownerfoccupier of 7 Albert Mansions, Luxborough Street dated 01 May 2015

Letter from ownerfoccupier of 9 Nottingham Mansions, Nottingham Street dated 5 May 2015
Letter from owner/occupier of 8 Nottingham Mansions, Nottingham Street dated 06 May 2015
Letter from owner/occupier of 21 Bingham Place dated 06 May 2015

. Letter from managing agent {Quadrant Properties Ltd) of Albert Mansions, Luxborough Street

dated 06 May 2015

. Letter from owner/occupier of 6 Albert Mansions, Luxborough Street dated 06 May 2015

. Letter from management agents of Nottingham Mansions dated 07 May 2015

. Letter from owner/occupier of 11 Albert Mansions, Luxborough Street dated 09 May 2015
. Letter from ownerfoccupier of 11 Albert Mansions, Luxborough Street dated 09 May 2015
. Letter from ownerfoccupier of 10 Albert Mansions, Luxborough Street dated 09 May 2015
. Letter from owner/occupier of 4 Bingham Place dated 28 July 2015

. Letter from owner/occupier of 1A Nottingham Mansions, Nottingham Street

. Email from District Surveyor's Service dated 25 September 2015.

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT OR WISH TO INSPECT ANY OF THE
BACKGROUND PAPERS PLEASE CONTACT MIKE WALTON ON 020 7641 2521 OR BY E-
MAIL — mwalton@westminster.gov.uk

i\d_wpdocsishort-telse\2015-10-27\tem1 0.dockd
19/110/2015

Page 255



15/02805/FULL

DRAFT DECISION LETTER
Address: 5 Bingham Place, London, W1U 5AT

Proposal: Demolition of the existing dwelling behind the retained front facade. Excavation
beneath site and erection of replacement dwelling (Class C3) over two basement
storeys, ground, first and new mansard second storey. Use of Part of 21
Nottingham Place to form part of replacement dwelling (Class C3).

Plan Nos: AL [00] 001/01; 110/01; 111/01; 112/01; 113/01; 114/02; 115/01; 210/04; 310/04;
311/03; 312/04; 313/04; 314/02; 100/01; 101/01; 102/01; 200/01; 300/01; 301/01,
302/01; 303/01; 304/01; Construction Management Plan Ref MCM/FJK/A17238;
Daylight and Sunlight Report Ref P144

Case Officer: Billy Pattison Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 3267

Recommended Condition(s) and Reason(s):

* betweeh 0 _00 an
allon 'S,wﬁay\s"

You must apply to us for approval of samples & ils of the. faterials you will use,
including glazing, and elevations and roof plans annotated.io-sh ere the materials are to
be located. You must not start any work on these partg’ ‘of the d pment until we have
approved what you have sent us. You must then carry ou__-__..e jork Using the approved

materials. (C26BC) \ &

Reason:
To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Harley Street Conservation Area. This is as set

Page 256



15/02805/FULL

out in $25 and $28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013
and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26BE)

Pre Commencement Condition. No development shall take place, including any works of
demolition, until a construction management plan for the proposed development has been
submitted to and approved in writing by the City Council as local planning authority. The plan
shall provide the following details:

M a construction programme including a 24 hour emergency contact number;

i} parking of vehicles of site operatives and visitors (including measures taken to ensure
satisfactory access and movement for existing occupiers of neighbouring properties during
constructiony;

(i) locations for loading/unloading and storage of plant and materials used in constructing
the development;

(iv) erection and maintenance of security hoardings (including decorative displays and
facilities for public viewing, where appropriate);

(v) wheel washing facilities and measures to control the emission of dust and dirt during
construction; and

{vi) a scheme for recycling/disposing of waste resulting from demolition and construction
works.

You must not start work until we have approved what you have sent us. You must then carry
out the development in accordance with the approved details.

You must apply to us for approval of details of secure cycle storage for the residential use.
You must not start any work on this part of the development until we have approved what you
have sent us. You must then provide the cycle storage in line with the approved details prior to
occupation. You must not use the cycle storage for any other purpose.

Reason:
To provide cycle parking spaces for people using the development as set out in TRANS 10 of
our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

You must apply to us for approval of details of how waste is going to be stored on the site and
how materials for recycling will be stored separately. You must not start work on the relevant
part of the development until we have approved what you have sent us. You must then
provide the stores for waste and materials for recycling according to these details, clearly
mark the stores and make them available at all times to everyone using the dwellinghouse.
(C14EC)

Reason:

To protect the environment and provide suitable storage for waste as set out in 544 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 12 of our
Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R14BD)

You must apply to us for approval of detailed drawings at 1:10 or 1:20 of the following parts of
the development - all new windows and doors. You must not start any work on these parts of
the development until we have approved what you have sent us.

You must then carry out the work according to these detailed drawings. (C26DB})

Page 257



10

11

12

15/02805/FULL

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Harley Street Conservation Area. This is as set
out in $25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013
and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26BE)

The tiles that you use on the new mansard roof must be natural Welsh slate tiles.

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Harley Street Conservation Area. This is as set
out in $25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan; Strategic Policies adopted November 2013
and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26BE)

You must paint all new outside rainwater and soil pipes biack and keep them that colour.
{C26EA)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the Harley Street Conservation Area. This is as set
out in S25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013
and DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26BE)

The glass that you put in the first floor bathroom window in the northern elevation of the of the
new dwellinghouse must not be clear glass, and you must fix it permanently shut. You must
apply to us for approval of a sample of the glass (at least 300mm square). You must not start
work on the relevant part of the development until we have approved the sample. You must
then fit the type of glass we have approved and must not change it without our permission.
(C21DB)

Reason:
To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring properties. This is as set
out in S29 and S32 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013
and ENV 8 and ENV 13 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.
{R21BC}

You must not use the ground floor roof of the building for sitting out or for any other purpose.
You can however use the roof to escape in an emergency. (C21AA)

Reason:
To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring properties. This is as set
out in 529 and S32 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013
and ENV 6 and ENV 13 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.
(R21BC)

You must apply to us for approval of detailed drawings showing the following alferation(s) to
the scheme:

Page 258



13

14

15/02805/FULL

The installation of an appropriately detailed metal railing to prevent access from the ground
level kitchen to the adjacent flat roof.

You must not start on these parts of the work until we have approved what you have sent us.
You must then carry out the work according to the approved drawings. (C26UB)

Reason: :

To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring properties. This is as set
out in 529 and S32 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013
and ENV 6 and ENV 13 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.
(R21BC)

No vibration shall be transmitted to adjoining or other premises and structures through the
building structure and fabric of this development as to cause a vibration dose value of greater
than 0.4m/s (1.75) 16 hour day-time nor 0.28 m/s (1.75) 8 hour night-time as defined by BS
6472 (2008) in any part of a residential and other noise sensitive property.

Reason:

As set out in ENV6 (2) and (8) of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January
2007, to ensure that the development is designed to prevent structural transmission of noise
or vibration.

{1} Where noise emitted from the proposed plant and machinery will not contain tones or will
not be intermittent, the 'A’ weighted sound pressure leve! from the plant and machinery
(including non-emergency auxiliary plant and generators) hereby permitted, when operating at
its noisiest, shall not at any time exceed a value of 10 dB below the minimum external
background noise, at a point 1 metre outside any window of any residential and other noise
sensitive property, unless and until a fixed maximum noise level is approved by the City
Council. The background ievel should be expressed in terms of the lowest LAS0, 15 mins
during the proposed hours of operation. The plant-specific noise level should be expressed as
LAegqTm, and shall be representative of the plant operating at its maximum.

(2) Where noise emitted from the proposed plant and machinery will contain tones or will be
intermittent, the 'A’ weighted sound pressure level from the plant and machinery (including
non-emergency auxiliary plant and generators) hereby permitted, when operating at its
noisiest, shall not at any time exceed a value of 15 dB below the minimum external
background noise, at a point 1 metre outside any window of any residential and other noise
sensitive property, unless and until a fixed maximum noise level is approved by the City
Council. The background level should be expressed in terms of the lowest LA90, 15 mins
during the proposed hours of operation. The plant-specific noise level should be expressed as
LAeqTm, and shall be representative of the plant operating at its maximum.

(3) Following installation of the plant and equipment, you may apply in writing to the City
Council for a fixed maximum noise level to be approved. This is to be done by submitting a
further noise report confirming previous details and subseguent measurement data of the
installed plant, including a proposed fixed noise level for approval by the City Council. Your
submission of a noise report must include:

(a) A schedule of all plant and equipment that formed part of this application;

(b} Locations of the plant and machinery and associated: ducting; attenuation and damping
equipment;

(c) Manufacturer specifications of sound emissions in octave or third octave detail;

(d) The location of most affected noise sensitive receptor focation and the most affected
window of it;

{e) Distances between plant & equipment and receptor location/s and any mitigating features

Page 259



L

15/02805/FULL

that may attenuate the sound level received at the most affected receptor location;

(f) Measurements of existing LAS0, 15 mins levels recorded one metre outside and in front of
the window referred to in (d) above (or a suitable representative position), at times when
background noise is at its lowest during hours when the plant and equipment will operate. This
acoustic survey to be conducted in conformity to BS 7445 in respect of measurement
methodology and procedures;

(g) The lowest existing L A90, 15 mins measurement recorded under {f) above;

(h) Measurement evidence and any calculations demonstrating that plant and equipment
complies with the planning condition;

(i) The proposed maximum noise level to be emitted by the plant and equipment.

Reason:

Because existing external ambient noise levels exceed WHO Guideline Levels, and as set out
in ENV 6 (1), {8) and (8) and ENV 7 (A)}(1) of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted
in January 2007, so that the noise environment of people in noise sensitive properties is
protected, including the intrusiveness of tonal and impulsive sounds; and as set out in 532 of
Westminster's City Plan; Strategic Policies adopted November 2013, by contributing to
reducing excessive ambient noise levels. Part (3) is included so that applicants may ask
subsequently for a fixed maximum noise level to be approved in case ambient noise levels
reduce at any time after implementation of the planning permission.

Informative(s):

In dealing with this application the City Council has implemented the requirement in the
National Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive
way. We have made available detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies in
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013, Unitary Development
Plan, Supplementary Planning documents, planning briefs and other informal written
guidance, as well as offering a full pre application advice service, in order to ensure that
applicant has been given every opportunity to submit an application which is likely to be
considered favourably. In addition, where appropriate, further guidance was offered to the
applicant at the validation stage.

This development has been identified as potentially liable for payment of the Mayor of
London's Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). Responsibility for paying the levy runs with the
ownership of the land, unless another party has assumed liability. We will issue a CiL Liability
Notice to the landowner or the party that has assumed liability with a copy to the planning
applicant as soon as practicable setting out the estimated CIL charge.

If you have not already done so you must submit an Assumption of Liability Form to ensure
that the CIL liability notice is issued to the correct party. This form is available on the planning
portal at htfp.Avww.planningportal. gov. uk/planning/applications/howtoapply/whaftosubmit/cil
Further details on the Mayor of London's Community Infrastructure Levy can be found on our
website at: http./www.westminster.gov. uk/services/environment/planning/apply/mayoral-cil/.
You are reminded that payment of the CIL charge is mandatory and there are strong
enforcement powers and penalties for failure to pay.

This permission is based on the structural report by Price & Myers submitted with the
application. For the avoidance of doubt these reports have not been assessed by the City
Council and as a consequence we do not endorse or approve it in anyway and have included

Page 260



15/02805/FULL

it for information purposes only. Its effect is to demonstrate that a member of the appropriate
institution applying due diligence has confirmed that the works proposed are feasible without
risk to neighbouring properties or the building itself. The construction itself will be subject to
the building reguiations and the construction methodology chosen will need to satisfy these

regulations in all respects.

Page 261



1 0oL ool v = LLOEL
NN CRTMWe]  WORVASTYD M Wl i
DNINNY I nn(@%h— 28 Al
N’ 1 x
gy - (w) ageosg

Tem  swems  spwews

NY¥d LNIWESYE L5HId ONLLSIND
[rr=—t)

N¥d LNIWISVE LSHId ONILSIXT 1O




- R S T
£VE00LL gy
ONINNY I LYEOs o8 iMW o qmnenta pemag
. Ten  owomo  swenn - L (W) #eas
HY I HOOT ANNOHS ......n.ll.ll.-!.ﬂ._u..um e e T PIR———.
e S [T ————
S i FEaserere e L S s o
pree ey sl“-zsﬂ’—.—gg i.ﬂl“-‘uh"_l“- ﬁ-” I‘i‘h
[ P ——— i T e
A3INdOHL NOs8I9/® i = o T A
NY¥Td 40074 ONNOED ONILSIX3 10
Lo'wog [001Y 7 1o'zog [ooly 10°g0€ [0017Y Lorooz [ooIy
t WOOHA38 e
HOOHHLYE g
g 2 al
=1 =]
”m L]
: B :
m._ WOOH DNIAT m.
S E
S— TIEMLHOE NIHILIA
=) : =]
$ [5) g
g S
£ £
1OF0E _”OO“_._(_ 10'zoE [oolv Log0s [oolw Loooz [ooly




10 ZoL ool v = LWDEL
ot cnora i W wor  owas
EVEQoLL
DNINNY D VS0 o8 AW
e Tem  owowo s

N¥d HOOTd L5HId ONLLSIXD
pee

AFTINHOHL NOSHI9

0)

1 e put Satrat et
A coprcicion 82 e e

e 1 e B

(W) ajeag

s s | e —

e owea | O L 4 5
e o i
S T S
S W R Do
b S I 300 ]

oL

NYTd 40074 LSyld ONILSIX3 10
o'vos ooy Lozos [oolnv 1o'e0g [ooly 10'00Z [oolY
OO L YE 4
oo d ©
5 g (b))
2 a (@))]
] E| (al
ADvEMIL TYNEILT
5 5
o
S g
g g g
o _ s
< =4
10'rOg [001Y 7 __.o;n_um [oolny wreog [oolv 1000z [001Yv




o ou [oc]l v = LIOEL
oG s RO i wer oo
IVEOOLL

DHINNYId IvE0s:iL o8 AW

M omowo  ssmesa

o (w) ajeas
NYld INIWI5YE ONOD3S 0350d0ud s

L BZLL QTN PPe T i e
ks AN ) g st B
WCT R CUIOREE W RIS B iy o

PATNATT TR AL A

AZINNOHL NOsaIo|®

NY7ld LNIWISVE ONOI3S A350d404d 10




—o E ngua{ .h_.On—
e R e
EVE0OLL
DNINNY I IYE0SL o8 AW
s

MvE o amsewn

NYd LNIWISVE L5414 03S0d0dd
Tt o

AFTNGOHL NOSHID

(W) aeas

N3O
VAUV SNNIG

YWY

< WD

®

NVId LNIFWISYE LSHId d350d40ud 10




[ool v - Ziom {i&;n!iihmm
.l!l—u AIIN_.“ O TN T - L g Iﬂ‘ﬂ!'l"’i
EVEODLL ey ]
oNINNYTd  lveosL 98 rW e .
] . & o e iy sl sk T
NYd 40074 ONNOYD G25040Ud EIESLL
e T e — ]
30W1d WYHONIE eyl S — =4
VICL BLLL GOLD) Pr Tl i wopua prarpiepy e L B8 mox mmesazan | O L z [
o e s S Ryl s
st ey G e g e K s SV iowd. smesva aresemss
PR T ALY WD A e ] S8 TAd LD YIS DR
6 o o0 DA o e Y i iR L wmans o n
AFTINHQOHL NOSEID — i = i s ey S st
N¥d 30074 ANNOYD a350d0¥d 1O
LO'PIE mOO“_Jd._; __.O.N_.m [oolnw woeie [oolv Loote [oolw
B I
il (o)
AINULS
J(Ch jam o)
) (@)]
- o5 ©
5 ! B
& I ] f & ol
- : el
. / b o
g W -1 g
] e i W N._
< .A : ... __h _|_=.G\_ﬁ_un_.wozw II/ %.,, !
\.\ .I. ] “ _ £ h . —
m, /4 b ! ‘ b H <
2 . . 3w TN : ¥l 2
i o RCC N | [ £t ) i
= : R S ! i y o
—IOL 3 SRR e m.
E =]
LO'FIE ﬁOOun_(_ Lozl [ooly Lo'eLE [ooITv woroLz [oolny




T
ot inranstaned
P . L R (R ]
E¥E00LL - o o
ek ]
GIEI‘:..;—“ —‘gcmu o8 ..o.r_.x = &l‘-!ﬂ oy oS
HV14 Boo'd sind GR§0de04 e s . e et | e ————————
o o
WYHONIE ety e ——
e o puaiioiniiszio] B, L z s ol
R0 B Q2D voe WD LN P U P ) Al RATOR W) Y
e I i s
Ty S (W e ey g
P T Y AT SAGD R G TN e A AR EEOTIRCE  LYEYT0 S
e -‘ilﬂllil‘d S S warn
AITINHJOHL NOSHID — S = T e

N¥1d 80074 LS4 d350d04d 10

loviE [ooNY * _wo.wwm [oolnw Lo's1E [001v Lo'olz ool

@ st | Vi S

Page 268

é
=
AL[00] 31.01

|
AL[0O] 310.00

AL[0O] 310.0'I| 'AL[OO] .01

opie [0o1Y Lozie [ooly Lo'gle [oolnv Lo'olz [ooly




20 oo gol - e st 8
st

e o e RS e st e el

. I‘I.lhll’l.l
fyBocit ey oy
DONINNY 1D IV EO5L 28 ArW a3 VAL FE T
i Ton__awawes o e e (uiy oreas
N¥1d 40074 ONDJ3S 0350d0kd R e o
e e T B e B e
35V HYHONIE e g et i
Yo AL OTEI e pemrr—— oyl egioe it e e [ —— ] L % g ol
ot Ry o L o LT mevema e
o T TN
[T —— e S [ ————

i s ) e 0 T P — et s v s gn 8

A3INdOHL NOsgIol® e RS s o A RO £

NYd 40014 ANOD3S d350d0ud 10

lo'vie [oo1w Lo'zle ooy l0'ELE [001W lo'olz [oolw

: o

©

T | ~

g

8 » . P g

: AR | - o
g " g
A T T R e CH T i || BRI 2 7 [ ]
= ™ WODHG3S 2
5 g
o 2
L] B ”
: _. ¢
3 = = S
LO'pLE mgu.._(# _a.ﬁh [oolnw Lo'glE [oo]Tv Lo'olz [ooIY




00z (ool 101 S ot e
T e et s o v
£VH0OLL e trmaiare ey
ONINNYId  LYBOS1T 98 ArW it
- T mcen e s (W) apeas
OILYASTE LNOHS DNLLSING gy o s
B v AR T B e —
HON P T b S———E—
oo o 03 e v ey By wx searum| O L z . 5 ol
s AP i D T T AT B [r— [EN———
i ar S s o s art |
A T AN 8 0] manig OY T
!!!!! T H s S mans
ATTINHOHL NOSHID — phosiaiely o~ o

NOILYAZT3 LNO¥L ONILSIXS 1O

|

| (i

Page 270




0 oL [ool v

wogn  Cumaersl  SUYRSEYD) e mor  owos

EVEQOLL
ONINNYTd IYEOs o8 Wi

M omamo e

o woymag sm

1 ey e mn v

HIOMANIG TL

MU RS PITER SEINOR S N T

Ay Ila Bupssixs 10

ST RO KNP PATRIE HET T
Guana J0 PUETURW S

Ao

s o v v e
Y 5 s ?
e e —— e T
32%7d WYHONIE AR e somer  wmiowoa| 2
0L B2 BT) PR T R u.l,.:!luﬂl-l].uq If.” .l.l!.“ L €
IOTARMOUNORCATE WA 4 KBS L L I R e ¥ S T R RIS e s ) 1T -
PR RNy A0y uaegD e P o ea kg AL BT RO LW WY SR Hi“ b -
e e 1yt PSSt AT o RIS e -
ATTINHOHL NOSHIO o i i - o "Ei et
NOILYAIN3 LNOY4 9350d0dd 1O
¥ " e i ey e = J— SO

-i-.-!...-.!!mii..ii
oo ]t

®

|
1

=
g
=4

&)

Page 271




Page 272

01 EXISTING SECTION

-
. ; L
x ?g @ |
ol L
= 3 £
ol Blig
gigﬁi;,' b
Géiﬁilé s g
;

i
i"g‘illlxlli ‘“iiu

i h!g!;lg:i!il%ﬂ!}

Scale (m}

o




[ool v

R g A
EVEDOLL

IyBosi 28 WIr

Tew  meose  snew

NOLLD3S 035040ud

Tl et

32V71d WYHONIE

FICL BILL OTLD) - IN SOpT

AFTINIGOHL NOS8I9

e ] w

...............................

&)
=24
AemEna 71
Pl A o
1 DR MOBNS. Su-a._”g! wnag hﬂ‘.-—
WSl 00 "0l

PGS PAZRIG 6O

BUTSAS B3 4TI OF NG O

oop Buipgs parnl awely gua) .0

eusd LORESA 90

MO BTUAL 'S0

O LSS DOZEIE HANOD S BN VO
A BURRAT TO

MODUIM SR SRLI0P PIZOIE AFNOG T
GUMAAND D0 BUBSLEW 3115 10

A

®

®

e Apied papusie B




This page is intentionally left blank



e e v A s A T L L

Agenda ltem 11

ltem No.

11

CITY OF WESTMINSTER

PLANNING APPLICATIONS
COMMITTEE

Date
27 QOctober 2015

Classification

For General Release

Report of
Director of Planning

Wards involved

Bryanston And Dorset Square

Subject of Report 9 Montagu Mews West, London, W1H 2EE
Proposal Alterarions including the erection of a 2nd floor roof extension, to provide
access to an existing roof terrace.

Agent Higgs Young Architects

On behalf of Mr Neil Cooper

Registered Number 15/04673/FULL TP /PP No TP/1190

Date of Application 30.04.2015 Date amended/ 27.05.2013
completed

Category of Application Minor

Historic Building Grade Unlisted

Conservation Area

Portman Estate

Development Plan Context

- London Plan July 2011

- Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies 2013

- Unitary Development Plan
(UDP) January 2007

Within London Plan Central Activities Zone

Qutside Central Activities Zone

Stress Area

Qutside Stress Area

Current Licensing Position

Not Applicable

1. RECOMMENDATION

Grant conditional permission

Page 275




This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordnance

Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's

Stationery Office. -

© Crown copyright andlor database right 2013. Data Source: 20 Metres




9 MCNTAGU MEWS WEST, W1

Page 277



4.1

At o AT R e

item No.

11

SUMMARY

The site is a two storey mews house. Montagu Mews is a short residential mews situated to
the west of Montagu Square within the Portman Estate Conservation Area. Permission was
granted the use of the roof as a terrace in 2004. Access onto the roof terrace is via a small
access hatch.

Permission is sought for the erection of a roof extension and new metal balustrade. The
addition would provide more convenient access onto the roof terrace.

The key issues for consideration in this case are:

« The impact on residential amenity
s The impact on the appearance of the building and its setting in the Conservation Area.

The proposed extension is a relatively modest addition, which would not advesrely impact on
the amenity of surrounding residents. The extension would not readily visible from street level
view$ and is considered acceptable in design terms. The application accords with adopted
City Plan and Unitary Development Plan (UDP) policies and is recommended for approval.

CONSULTATIONS

MARYLEBONE ASSOCIATION :
Objection roof addition is too high and out of characater with host property

ADJOINING OWNERS OCCUPIERS: No Consulted 70 Total No of responses 6
B8 objections from 4 individual occupants raising some or all of the following issues:

Amenity

Loss of daylight/ sunlight/ privacy
Increased sense of enclosure

Loss of sight lines

Noise nuisance from use of the terrace

Design

The Portman Estate Conservation Area Audit indicates that the mews building is unsuitable
for a roof extensions

The extension would not make a positive contribution to the character and appearance of the
Portman Estate Conservation Area

Fails to preserve and enhance a listed buiiding

Loss of original fabric

Excessive height and bulk

Inappropriate to context

Other Issues

Architects statement that neighbours support the proposal is incorrect
Marylebone Association have a conflict of interest

BACKGROUND INFORMATION

The Application Site

The application premises is a two storey mews building located on the western side of
Montagu Mews West, a cul de sapg‘céeessg?gom George Street to the south. The building is



ltem No.
11

in use as a 2 x bedroom house, comprising living room, dining room, kitchen and garage at
ground floor level with bedrooms, bathroom and study on the first floor. A small access hatch
allows access onto a decked roof terrace. The roof is enclosed by a high balustrade. The
mews and surrounding area are residential primarily residential.

The building is not listed but lies within the Portman Estate Conservation Area.

4,2 Relevant History

On 23 September 2004 permission was granted for retention of a staircase enclosure allowing
access onto the roof level terrace (RN 14/01193/FULL).

THE PROPOSAL

Permission is sought for the erection of a pavilion roof structure. At present the roof terrace is
accessed via a pull down ladder and the small access hatch. The proposed scheme would
extend a staircase into the new glazed pavilion structure to provide improved access cnto the
roof. The application includes the provision of a new front and rear metal balustrade.

DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS
6.1 Land Use

Not applicable

6.2 Townscape and Design

No. 9 forms part of a group of post-war mews buildings, from nos. 4 to 9 inclusive, which do
not feature full roof storeys. However, they do have roof level terraces with small access
structures. The Portman Estate Conservation Area Audit states that, because of the
unextended nature of the group, the principle of a roof extension is unacceptable. However,
since the Audit was published circumstances have changed slightly. Planning permission has
been granted for a roof level extension {but not a full roof storey) at no.5 in 2008 and no.6 in
2014. These are modern in design, do not occupy the full width of the buildings and are set
back so that they are not visible from street level.

The current proposal is to add a modern extension to provide access to the roof. It is set back
from the front facade and does not extend the full width of the property. The extension will be
barely visible from the street; the fascia will be visible above the existing parapet from the east
side of the mews.

Objections have been received from the Marylebone Association and nearby residents that
the extension is out of keeping with the building and would be harmful to the appearance of
the building and its setting in the Portman Estate Conservation Area. One of these objections
refers to harm to a listed building. The building is not listed and for the reasons set out above
it is considered that the set- back extension would not harm the appearance of the building or
the townscape.

Given the recent history of this side of the mews and the relatively small visual impact from
street level the proposal is considered to comply with UDP Policies DES 1, DES 6 and DES 9.

6.3 Amenity

The proposed pavilion is set in from the front eastern elevation and the flank elevation with
number 8 on the southern boundary.

Page 279



i e T A 3t

Item No.

11

Policy 529 of the City Plan seeks to safeguard the amenity of existing residents. Policy
ENV13 of the UDP seeks to protect and improve the residential environment and resist
proposals which would result in a material loss of daylight and sunlight and/or significant
increase in sense of enclosure or overlooking.

Objections have been received from neighbouring residents on the grounds that the height
and bulk of the extension would result in a material loss of daylight and sunlight, an increased
sense of enclosure and that the proposal would result in a loss of privacy.

6.3.1 Daylight and Sunlight

Policy ENV13 seeks to ensure good daylighting levels for habitable rooms in existing
premises. Recommended standards for daylight and sunlight in residential accommodation
are set out in the Building Research Establishment (BRE) publication ‘Site layout ptanning for
daylight and sunlight’ (second edition 2011). The applicant has undertaken a daylight and
sunlight assessment in accordance with the BRE guidelines.

The properties tested include No’s 8, 9, 10-12 Bryanston Squaresituated directly to the rear
and 12 Montagu Mews West located to the front, all of which are residential properties.

With regard to daylight, Vertical Sky Component (VSC) is the most commonly used method
for calculating daylight levels and is a measure of the amount of sky visible from the centre
point of a window on its outside face. This method does not need to rely on internal
calculations, which means it is not necessary to gain access to all the affected properties. If
the VSC achieves 27% or more, then the BRE guide advises that the windows wili have the
potential to provide good levels of daylight. If, however, the light received by an affected
window, with the new development in place, is both less than 27% and would be reduced by
20% or more as a result of the proposed development, then the loss would be noticeable.

The assessment demonstrates that the impact to daylight levels to all the windows tested
would be very minor. The greatest loss is only 2.6%. in all cases the losses in VSC levels are
well below the 20% guideline which the BRE guidelines refer to as being noticeable.

In terms of sunlight, the BRE guidelines state that if any window receives more than 25% of
the Annual Probable Sunlight Hours (APSH} including at least 5% during the winter months
(21 September to 21 March) then the room should receive enough sunlight. The BRE guide
suggests that any reduction in sunlight below this level should be kept to a minimum. If the
proposed sunlight is below 25% {(and 5% in winter) and the loss is greater than 20% of the
original sunlight hours either over the whole year or just during the winter months, then the
occupants of the existing building will notice the loss of sunlight. Windows are tested if they
face within 90 degrees of due south.

At 10-12 Bryanston Street ( to the rear) one window would experience a loss of 33% winter
sunlight. The windows are east facing and only receive early morning sunlight. The study
shows that in the case of the single window in which there is a technical breach currently
receives 3% of the annual probable winter sunlight hours and this would be reduced to 2%.
Therefore although this is of 33% and a technical breach of the BRE guidelines this can be
attributed to the existing low winter sunlight fevels and the actual impact of the development is
minimal.

6.3.2 Sense of enclosure

Given the distance between the application premises and neighbouring buildings it is
considered that the increase in bulk and mass would not result in a significant increased
sense of enclosure. '

Page 280



Item No.

11

6.3.3 Privacy/Overlooking

The use of the roof as a terrace was permitted in 2004. A number of other properties on the
western side of the Montagu Mews West have permitted roof terraces. The proposed
extension will facilitate improved access to the existing terrace. It is considered that this will
not result increased overlooking or loss of privacy.

6.4 Transportation/ Parking

Not applicable

6.5 Equalities and Diversities

Not applicable

6.6 Economic Considerations

Any economic benefits generated are welcomed.

6.7 Other UDP/Westminster Policy Consideratibns

Not applicable

6.8 London Plan

The proposal does not raise any strategic issues.

6.9 National Policy/Guidance Considerations

Central Government’s National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) came into effect on 27
March 2012. It sets out the Government’s planning policies and how they are expected to be
applied. The NPPF has replaced almost all of the Government’s existing published planning
policy statements/guidance as well as the circulars on planning obligations and strategic
planning in London. It is a material consideration in determining planning applications.

Until 27 March 2013, the City Council was able to give full weight to relevant policies in the
Core Strategy and London Plan, even if there was a limited degree of conflict with the
framework. The City Council is now required to give due weight to relevant policies in existing
plans “according to their degree of consistency” with the NPPF. Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies was adopted by Full Council on 13 November 2013 and is fully compliant
with the NPPF. For the UDP, due weight should be given to relevant policies according to their
degree of consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies in the plan to the NPPF, the
greater the weight that may be given).

The UDP policies referred to in the consideration of these applications are considered to be
consistent with the NPPF unless stated otherwise.

6.10 Planning Obligations
None required.
6.11 Environmental Assessment including Sustainability and Biodiversity Issues

Not applicable
Page 281



S e A et =4 e 4 e ek b Rt e b AT it Lo Ll s

Item No.

11

7. CONCLUSION

The proposal is considered acceptable subject to the recommended conditions and would accord
with relevant design and amenity policies within the UDP and City Plan.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

1. Application forms

2. Email from Marylebone Association dated 30 June 2015

3. Email from Owner/Occupier Flat 18 Ellerton House 11 Bryanston Square dated 9 June 2015

4. Emails from Owner/ Occupier Flat 1 9 Bryanston Square dated 15 June ( x 2) and 12 August 2015
5. Email from Owner /Occupier Flats 2 and 3 48 Montagu Square dated 23 June 2015

6. Email from Owner/Occupier Flat 4 50 Montagu Square dated 6 September 2015

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT OR WISH TO INSPECT ANY OF THE
BACKGROUND PAPERS PLEASE CONTACT MIKE WALTON ON 020 7641 25621 OR BY E-
MAIL — mwalton@westminster.gov.uk

Niclienty$id_wpdocsishort-tetsc\2015-10-27\item11.doce
19/10/2015

Page 282



15/04673/FULL

DRAFT DECISION LETTER
Address: 9 Montagu Mews West, London, W1H 2EE,

Proposal: Alterarions including the erection of a 2nd floor roof extension, to provide access to
an existing roof terrace.

Plan Nos: 15009, 15008-11, 15008-12,15008-13, 15008-14, 15008-15, 15008-16, 15008-17.
Case Officer: Mike Walton Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 2521

Uncenditional or if an Advert Application only the standard advert conditions

Page 283



WEST

Floor Plans

z g
-~  go g
; ’
@ M.l gi
| i
1.
|
m '_ |
g
A
é 8 N E%
; § aft!
: |
. |
= _'_._L !ﬁ
i : i
i @ N g,
I\
[ AN [
X | |
]
2 :
Q
e <]
g i
- ifl
: =8 e |
2 H HH i
=} E ig X =
P E 1
) NI B
o i
g - s
|0
£t §
i il
Revision A - Front building line set back
CLIENT DATE STATUS SCALE rroiecT P g )@~ P 8de DRAWING NUMBER _ HIGGS YOUNG ARCHITECTS LTD
COOPER | 30-04-15 | Planning | 1:100 @ A3 | @ MONTAGU MEWS Proposed 15008 - P - 17A [ ARCHITECTS] gmz&"m%:“% J




HIGGS YOUNG ARCHITECTS LTD

54 BOSTOM PLACE

Tal: 0044 (0120 7724 9395 ’
E-maik: Info@higgsyoung.com

Revision A - Front building line set back

LONDON NW1 6ER

H

i

i
Page =285 orawnc s
Proposed Terrace Level Plan| 15008 - P - 16A

COOPER

Front of pavilk
1o align with edge
Tanks
Dacking m
ko mm
: o
2
m @
8
EXISTING TERRACE | " EXISTING TERRACE =
Balustrading m .m
B| &
No. 7 No. 8 ARl el raleinad No. 10 m
Al I x| 3
7 No.9 Montagu Mews West J - 8 M
zu&..@ 0 1 2 5 i i m
MONTAGU MEWS WEST 5
g
<




OPEN YARD

. 9 BRYANSTON
SQUARE
Existing Access
10 o_ﬁ
o et I
=R = Slate raof
Asphalt roof lght
Existing Access
Flat Asphalt Roof
7
s e &
EXISTING TERRACE e o gl — ey
. " e b i EXISTING TERRACE
Compliant Balustrading
No.7 No. 8 added/ Pergola retained No. 10
A
L No.9 Montagu Mews West <
MONTAGU MEWS WEST
0 1 2

&

1:100 meters

Revision A - Front building line set back

E-mall: info@higgsyoung.com

[ocs vounc R S
54 BOSTON PLACE
LONDON NW1 BER

Tal: 0044 ()20 7724 5385

15008-P-11A

DRAWING NUMBER

~J

o PAgePB6«
Proposed Roof Plan

9 MONTAGU MEWS
WEST

SCALE
| 1:100 @ A3

STATUS
Planning

DATE
30-04-15

COOPER

i




u

5 | «— Line of 10-12
BryanstonSquare
: (7/8 storey) beyond
2nd
Brick and
coping of
parapet Wall
No. 8 s
Bryanston
= \
(5 storey) | \
‘melal
18t A
. R \ by
Intornal Alerations
. part of the planning
appkcatan
Ground }
line from
rear yard cut off by
existing mansard roof
party wall parapet and
balustrade
G REAR YARD

o Brymtiton Saare 7

It

Existing Terrace Level

Na. 12 (4 store:

-

Eye lavel
Sight line from
igag

o

BEEE

Revision A - Front building line set back

HIGES YOUNG ARCHITECTS LTD
54 BOSTON PLACE

LONDON NW1 6ER

Tel: 0044 (0)20 7724 8365
E-mail: info@higgsyoung.com

15008 - P - 14A

NO—7

ALl O 1 ormws vowess | ppeeesrerry

™

Proposed Section A-A

: 9 MONTAGU MEWS
1:100 @ A3 WEST

STATUS

Planning

DATE

30-04-15

LCLIENT
[

COOPER



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 1

2

ltem No.
12
CITY OF WESTMINSTER
PLANNING APPLICATIONS Date Classification
COMMITTEE 27 October 2015 For General Release
Addendum Report of Wards involved
Director of Planning - St James's
Subject of Report 40 - 41 Pali Mall, London, SW1Y 5JG
Proposal Demolition of 40 and 41 Pall Mall hehind retained facades and
redevelopment to provide a building of basement, ground and five
upper floors comprising retail (Class A1) at part basement and part
ground floor levels with the remainder of the building in use as four
self-contained residential flats (Class C3).
Agent Savills
On behalf of Pall Investments Ltd
Registered Number 14/10618/FULL TP /PP No TP/10116
Date of Application 24.10.2014 Date 17.12.2014
amended/
completed
Category of Application Minor
Historic Building Grade Unlisted
Conservation Area St James's
Development Plan Context Within London Plan Central Activities Z
- London Plan July 2011 il -ondon Hlan Lentral Activities Zone
_ Westminster's City Plan: Within Central Activities Zone
Strategic Policies 2013
- Unitary Development Plan
(UDP) January 2007
Stress Area Outside Stress Area
Iiurrent Licensing Position Not Applicable

1. RECOMMENDATION

Grant cenditional permission.

Page 289



W e rougl
Gate

Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's

Stationery Office. 0 510 20Metres
@men copyright md!or database right 13,




40-41 PALL MALL, SW1




i e e T P

ltern No.
12

SUMMARY

Nos. 40 and 41 Pall Mall are unlisted buildings of merit located within the St James's
Conservation Area. Permission is sought for the demolition of the buildings behind
retained facades and redevelopment to create a building comprising basement,
ground and five upper floors. The proposals would provide an enlarged retail unit at
part basement and part ground floor level with the reminder of the building providing
four residential flats and ancillary areas.

A substantial amount of objection has been received from the adjoining Army and
Navy Club and from occupiers of the existing building.

The key issues are:

« The impact of the proposals on the character and appearance of the conservation
area.
« The impact of the proposals on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers.

The redevelopment of Nos. 40 and 41 are considered acceptable in design and
conservation area terms as is its impact on amenity of neighbouring occupiers. The
proposed development is considered to comply with relevant policies in the Unitary
Development Plan (UDP) and Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies (City Plan).

CONSULTATIONS

HISTORIC ENGLAND
Authorisation given to determine as seen fit.

WESTMINSTER SOCIETY
No objection.

ST JAMES'S CONSERVATION TRUST

Supports the Army and Navy Club and objects to the increased height and bulk, loss
of privacy and loss of light. The proposals would conflict with the St. James's Special
Policy Area status by harming the reputation of the Club and the enjoyment of Club
users,

BUILDING CONTROL
The method of construction is acceptable.

CLEANSING MANAGER
No objection subject to conditions.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH
No objection subject to conditions.

HIGHWAYS PLANNING MANAGER
One cycle parking space should be provided for the retail use. If the retail unit is to be
used as a food retailer, a Servicing Management Plan should be required.

ADJOINING OWNERS/OCCUPIERS AND OTHER REPRESENTATIONS

No. Consulted: 64; Total No. of Replies: 22.

Letters have been received from and on behalf of one commercial and two residential
occupiers within the application site and from a neighbouring office occupier. Letters

Page 292



Item No.

12

have also been received from and on behalf of the Army and Navy Club and its
members. The responses raise the following concerns and objections,

Design

+ The increase in height and bulk of the development would be harmful;
¢ The proposals would represent overdevelopment;

» The residential entrance would create a dead frontage.

Amenity

» Increased height and bulk would result in a loss of light, increased
overshadowing and increased sense of enclosure to the Club;

* The terraces and additional windows would result in a loss of privacy and loss of
security to the Club.

Land Use

¢ Lack of mix in unit sizes; _
» Lack of outdoor amenity space;
+ Query whether the Council protects offices.

Other

Concern over noise, vibration, dust and disruption during construction;

Request to delay works until nearby redevelopment is completed;

Office occupier requests works be undertaken outside normal office hours;

The Club requests works do not take place before 10.00hrs, between 12.00-

14.30hrs or after 17.30hrs.

¢ The proposals would prejudice the potential for redevelopment of the Club in the
future;

» Residential occupiers within the application site hold life interest/assured tenancy
and seek re-housing;

o Reference is made to the Landlord and Tenant Act;
No provision to replace the existing cafe operator,

+ Query why no full height extract duct is provided.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

SOENO RGN

11.

0.

Application form.

Letter from English Heritage dated 13 January 2015.

Letter from the Westminster Society dated 20 January 2015.

Letter from the St. James's Conservation Trust dated 17 August 2015.

Memorandum from Environmental Health dated 9 January 2015.

Memorandum from Cleansing Manager dated 9 January 2015.

Memorandum from Highways Planning Manager dated 20 January 2015.

Letter from Building Control dated 2 September 2015.
- Letter from occupier of 45 Pall Mall dated 21 January 2015.
Letters on behalf of the occupier of 4th-5th floor flat 40 Pall Mall dated 21, 27 January, 2
February and 14 August 2015.
Letters on behalf of the St James Cafe at 40 Pall Mall dated 28 January and 2 February
2015.

12. Letters from and on behalf of the Army and Navy Club dated 28 January, 25 March, 29

April, 14 July, 19 August and 2 September 2015

Page 293



Item No,
12

13. Letter on behalf of the occupier of 4th floor 40-41 Pall Mall dated 28 January 2015.
14. Letters from members of the Army and Navy Club dated 19 (x4}, 20 (x2), 21 (x2), 26, 27
August and 1 September 2015.

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT OR WISH TO INSPECT ANY OF THE
BACKGROUND PAPERS PLEASE CONTACT VINCENT NALLY ON 020 7641 56947 OR BY
E-MAIL — vnally@westminster.gov.uk

JMd_wpdocsishort-telsc\2015-10-27\item 12. doc\d
19/10/2015

Page 294




Planning Applications Committee (4) Decisions - Tuesday, 2g* September 2015 \//\[

2 40-41 PALL MALL, SW1

Demoiition of 40 and 41 Pall Mall behind retained facades and redevelopment to
provide a five storey building comprising retail (Class A1) at part basement and part
ground floor levels with the remainder of the building in use as four self-contained
residential flats (Class C3).

Councillor Hyams addressed the Committee in her capacity as a Ward Councilior in
objecting to the application.

RESOLVED:
That the application be deferred for the applicant to consider the following:

(@) Improving the window design at the rear 3™ and 4" floors to minimise
overlooking.

(b}  Making provision for retaining the cafe.

(c)  Reducing bulk at the rear of the'proposed buiiding to minimise the impact on
the Army and Navy Club. '

Page 295



ltem No." -

’ .
CITY OF WESTMINSTER
PLANNING APPLICATIONS | Date Classification
COMMITTEE 29 September 2015 For General Release
Report of “ Wards involved
Director of Planning St James's

R el L T I

‘Subject of Report | 40-41 Pall Mall, London, SW1Y 5JG
Proposal Demolition of 40 and 41 Pall Malt behind retained facades and
_redevelopment to provide a building of basement, ground and five upper
i floars comprising retail (Class A1) at part basement and part ground
floor levels with the remainder of the building in use as four self-
contained residential flats {Class C3).
Agent Savills
On behalf of Pall Investments Ltd
Reglstered Number 14/10618/FULL TP/ PP No TP/10116
Date of Application 24.10.2014 Date 17.12.2014
| amended/
" completed
Category of Application Minor
Historic Building Grade | Unlisted
Conservation Area St James's

Development Plan Context

- London Plan July 2011

- Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies 2013

- Unitary Development Plan
{UDP} January 2007

Within London Plan Central Activities Zone
Within Central Activities Zone

Stress Area

Current Licensing Position

QOutside Stress Afea

Not Applicable

1. RECOMMENDATION

Grant conditional permission.

Page 296




ltem No.

SUMMARY

40 and 41 Pall Mall are unlisted buildings of merit located within the St James's Conservation
Area. Permission is sought for the demolition of the buildings behind retained facades and
redevelopment to create a building comprising basement, ground and five upper floors. The
proposals would provide an enlarged retail unit at part basement and part ground floor level
with the reminder of the building providing four residential flats and ancillary areas.

A substantial amount of objection has been received from the adjoining Army and Navy Club
and from occupiers of the existing building.

The key issues are:

« The impact of the proposals on the character and appearance of the conservation area.
« The impact of the proposals on the amenity of neighbouring occupiers.

The redeveiopment of Nos. 40 and 41 are considered acceptable in design and conservation
area terms as is its impact on amenity of neighbouring occupiers, The proposed development
is considered to comply with relevant policies in the Unitary Development Plan (UDP) and
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies (City Plan).

CONSULTATIONS

HISTORIC ENGLAND _
Authorisation given to determine as seen fit.

WESTMINSTER SOCIETY
No cbjection.

8T JAMES'S CONSERVATION TRUST

Supports the Army and Navy Club and objects to the increased height and bulk, loss of
privacy and loss of light. The proposals would conflict with the St. James's Special Policy Area
status by harming the reputation of the Club and the enjoyment of Club users.

BUILDING CONTROL
The method of construction is acceptable.

CLEANSING MANAGER
No objection subject to conditions.

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH
No cbjection subject to conditions.

HIGHWAYS PLANNING MANAGER
One cycle parking space should be provided for the retail use. i the retail unit is to be used as
a food retailer, a Servicing Management Plan should be required.

ADJOINING OWNERS/OCCUPIERS AND OTHER REPRESENTATIONS

No. Consulted: 64, Total No. of Replies: 22.

Letters have been received from and on behalf of one commercial and two residential
occupiers within the application site and from a neighbouring office occupier. Letters have also
been received from and on behalf of the Army and Navy Club and its members. The
responses raise the following concerns and objections.

Page 297



item No.

Design

» Theincrease in height and bulk of the development would be harmful;
+ The proposals would represent overdevelopment;
» The residential entrance would create a dead frontage.

Amenity

+ Increased height and bulk would result in a loss of light, increased overshadowing and
increased sense of enclosure to the Club;

= The terraces and additional windows would result in a loss of privacy and loss of security
to the Club.

Land Use
+ Lack of mix in unit sizes;

¢ Lack of outdoor amenity space;
« Query whether the Council protects offices.

Other

« CGoncern over noise, vibration, dust and disruption during construction;

s Reqguest to delay works until nearby redevelopment is completed;

« Office occupier requests works be undertaken outside normal office hours;

» The Club requests works do not take place before 10.00hrs, between 12.00-14.30hrs or

after 17.30hrs.
The proposals would prejudice the potential for redevelopment of the Club in the future;
» Residential occupiers within the application site hold life interest/assured tenancy and
seek re-housing;
« Reference is made to the Landlord and Tenant Act;
No provision to replace the existing cafe operator;
Query why no full height extract duct is provided,

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
41 The Application Site

40-41 Pall Mall consists of two adjacent unlisted buildings located on the northern side of Fall
Mall close to the junction with St James's Square. To the east of the site is the Army and Navy
Club and to the west is Nos.42-43 Pall Mall which has recently been redeveloped to provide
retail and residential.

No.40 dates from the 1850s and No.41 is dated from the 1870s. Neither building is listed but
the two facades contribute positively to the character of the St James’s Conservation Area.
Both buildings comprise of basement, ground and five upper floors, albeit No.41 is taller by
approx.3.5m. The buildings share a central stair core which links the different leveis between
the two properties.

The ground floor of No.41 contains a cafe (mixed Class A1/A3/A5). The ground floor of No.40
contains a vacant unit for which the history is unclear but appears to have last been used by
an architectural design and construction business, Existing offices (Class B1) are located at
basement and first to third floor levels and three self-contained residentiat fiats (Class C3) are
located at fourth and fifth floor levels.

Page 298



ftern No. |

2

4.2  Relevant History

13 March 2012 - Permission granted for the continued use of the ground floor of 41 Pall Mall
as a sui generis mixed retail/cafe/takeaway {Class A1/AJ/AD).

13 February 2012 - Permission granted for the redevelopment of Nos.42-43 Pall Mall behind
retained facade at No.42 to provide a building of basement, ground and five upper floors, use
of part basement and part ground floors for retail purposes and the upper floors as four
residential flats comprising 3 x 3 bed and 1 x 4 bed units.

THE PROPOSAL

Permission is sought for the demofition of both buildings behind retained facades which
includes the removal of the fifth floar extensions and redevelopment to create a building
comprising basement, ground and five upper floor levels (part sixth floor to No.40). Alterations
are also sought to introduce traditional shopfronts.

The replacement building would comprise of a retail unit (Class A1) at part basement and part
ground floor levels with the remainder of the building containing four seif-contained residential
flats comprising 3 x 3 bed and 1 x 4 beds {Class C3). The replacement building woulid include
plant, cycle and refuse storage within the basement and a modest plant and ventilation
housing at roof level.

DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS

6.1 Land Use

Existing (m2) Proposed (m2) Change (+ or —
i m2) -
Office 456 ) 0 456
Residential | 423 © 1,081 + 658
Retall 112 185  +73 |
Total 991 1,266 +275 |

6.1.4 Loss of Offices

The proposals wauld resuit in the loss of office floorspace amounting to 456m2 within the
CAZ. The change of use needs to be assessed in the context of Policy S47 of the City Plan
which advises that ‘when considering development proposals, the Council will take a positive
approach that reflects the presumption in favour of sustainable development contained in the
National Planning Policy Framework... to secure development that improves the economic,
social and environmental conditions in the area.’

Paragraph £1 of the NPPF advises that local planning authorities should normally approve
planning applications for change of use to residential and any associated development from
commercial buildings (currently in the B use class) where there is an identified need for
additional housing in that area, provided that there are not strong economic reasons why such
development would be inappropriate.

Whilst there would be a net reduction in office floorspace and employment as a result of the
development, there is no evidence to suggest that the economic impact of the propasals on
this part of Pall Mall, the St James's area or the City as a whole would be sufficiently harmfut
in this instance to withhold permission. The change to increase residential use would provide
social benefits with the provision of a net increase of one residential unit and all four units

being family sized.
Page 299



Item No.

’ 4

6.1.2 Residential Use

Two residential occupiers within the application site hold life interest/assured tenpancy.
Objections have been raised on the grounds that alternative comparable accommodation
should be secured. A request has been made for the Council to require the applicant to enter
into a legal agreement to ensure an existing occupier is re-housed. This legal agreemant is
sought by the objector on the basis that the separate private legal agreement between the
applicant and tenant is unlikely to be resolved prior to determination of the application.

Officers have sought legal opinion on this point, and whilst we sympathise with the personal
position of the existing tenants, the matter of securing alternative accommadaticn, through the
Landlord and Tenancy Act or by other means, is considered to be a private matter between
the respective parties and it is entirely appropriate that this is dealt with outside of the planning
application process.

Policy S14 of the City Plan and Policy H3 of the UUDP seek to maximise the amount of land or
buildings in residential use. The introduction of an additional residential unit on site would help
the Council meet its housing target and is weicomed in policy terms. The mix of the residential
provided on site would be 3 x 3 bed and 1 x 4 bed units.

The residential provisicn is less than 1000m2 and does not trigger a requirement to provide
affordable housing. The units proposed would range in size between 171m2 (three bed) to
336m2 (four bed). Although large, the units are typical for this type of development and are
not considered to be oversized. It could be possible to increase the number of residential units
on site, however, given the location of the access core, this would likely to resuit in residential
flats which would be wholly north facing. It is considered that a request to increase the unit
numbers could not be reasonably sustained in this instance.

The flats would all be dual aspect and would receive acceptable levels of natural light for this
urban location. All units comply with the LLondon Plan housing minimum space standards and
all bedrooms are cver the minimum 8m2 requirement. The Councii wants to encourage more
families to move inte and stay in the City by providing more family sized housing. Policy HS of
the UDP requires that 33% of housing units be family sized (being three or more bedrooms).
All of the proposed units are family sized which is considered acceptable.

As part of housing developments, Policy H10 of the UDP nermally expects the provision of
amenity space. The policy recognises that this can be met through the use of balconies and
roof terraces on sites within CAZ. Only the top floor maisonette includes outdoor amenity
space in the form of two roof terraces to the front of the building. An additional terrace was
proposed at rear fifth floor level but this has subsequently been omitted following concemns
raised by the Club. Given the dense urban location of the site, the inability to increase cutdoor
amenity space to the front of the building, and the enciosed north facing rear aspect, the level
of outdoor amenity space provided is considered acceptable in this instance.

Background noise levels in this area of the City can be high. Policy ENV6 of the UDF states
that residential developments are required to provide adequate protection from existing
background noise. Environmental Health officers have confirmed that subject to the imposition
of safeguarding conditions, it is considered that sufficient measures can be put into place to
mitigate against internal and external noise.

6.1.3 Retail Use

The proposal would result in the loss of a retail type premises at No .40, although the planning
history of this unit does not conclusively confirm it as having a lawful Class At use. It appears
that the unit was last in use by an architectural and building company. The proposal would
also result in the loss of a mixed ﬁlgﬁ 61%6\5 café at No.41.



s |on b e e

em No.
F 4

Permission is sought for a single retaii unit (Class A1) amounting to 185m2 which amounts to
more than the two existing units combined. This would represent 73m2 of additional retail
floorspace and is considered compliant with Policy S21 which seeks to protect existing A1 and
non-A1 retail uses.

Objections have been received on behalf of the current café operator on the grounds that their
operation will not be replaced. Planning legislation cannot protect individual occupiers, and
instead can only have regard to the use classes in which they operate. [t would be
unreasonable to withhold permission on the ground that the café operator is not to be
reinstated. In any event, the replacement retail as part of the schemne is for a Class A1 use
rather than A1/A3/Ab café operation.

Comments have been received with regard to the lack of a replacement full height extract
duct. The proposal does not include a full height duct due to the replacement retail unit being
a Class A1 shop. A Ciass A3 or A5 unit is not proposed, and it is these uses that would
normally involve cooking and the requirement of a duct.

The point has been raised that the residential entrance to No.41 would create a dead
frontage. The proposal is similar to that implemented next door at Nos.42-43 where one
shopfrant is used as the entrance lobby for the residential flats and the other shopfront is used
for an enlarged retail unit. Given the application proposes an increase in retall floorspace,
improvements to the shopfronts and that site has existing dead frontage, the proposals are
considered acceptable in this regard. :

6.2 Townscape and Design

Nos.40 and 41 are not listed buildings but are considered to be unlisted buildings of merit and
contribute positively to the character of the St James’s Conservation Area. The main
consideration in design terms is the proposed demolition of the buildings behind the retained
front facades.

The facades of both Nos.40 and 41, whilst not listed, are positive features of Pall Mall. Behind
the facades, the buildings have been substantially altered in the 1950s. The rear facades do
not retain the interest of the front and therefore the proposed demolition behind the front
facades is considered acceptable in principle.

The rebuilt rear building line extends further than existing, however, it has been designed to
closely replicate two projecting wings, which helps to break up the overall mass. At roof level,
mansards are propaosed to both buildings, set back behind the existing retained fagade. Both
are considered in keeping with the buildings overall appearance and similar to alterations that
have previously been allowed to buildings along Pall Mall.

The proposed redevelopment is considered to preserve the character and appearance of the
existing buildings and this part of the St James’s Conservation Area, Subject to conditions
requiring the submission of facing materials, a sample pane! of brickwork and details of
windows and doors, the proposals are considered acceptable.

The new shopfronts which reinstate historically appropriate features are also considered in
keeping with the style and character of the buildings and area as a whole. The shopfront
works are considered acceptable, subject to a condition requiring the submission of additional
details on the construction and finish of the shopfronts.

Page 301



B e

P

Ite_'m No.
&

6.3  Amenity

Policy ENV13 of the UDP states that the Council will resist proposals that would result in a
material loss of daylight/sunlight, particularly to dwellings, and that develepments should not
result in a significant increased sense of enciosure, overlooking or cause unacceptable
overshadowing. Similarly, Policy $29 of the City Plan aims to protect the amenity of residents
from the effects of development.

The nearest residential properties to the site are located adjoining the site at No.42-43 Pall
Mall. Objections have not been received from these residential properties. The remainder of
the surrounding properties are in commercial use. These include the large office building to
the rear at 20 St. James's Square and the Army and Navy Club adjoining the site to the east
and to the rear which includes a large roof terrace. A large amount of objection has been
received from the Club on the grounds of loss of light, increased overshadowing, increased
sense of enclosure and loss of privacy.

The redeveloped No.41 will be similar in height to the existing with a replacement mansard.
The redeveloped No.40 would include an additional roof storey increasing in height by approx.
3.5m to match the height of No 41 and the adjoining Nos.42-43. The closet wing to the rear of
No.40 would also be increased by a single storey.

The current building line to the rear will, on the whole, decrease at ground and first floor levels
with the relocation of an internal lightwell to the rear boundary of the site. From second to
fourth floor levels the rear building line will be altered with the closet wing to the rear of No.40
increasing in width by approx.1m and the closet to No.41 increasing in width by approx. 0.5m.
The depth of the closet wing at No.40 would remain the same and the depth of the closet wing
to No.41 would be reduced by approx.300mm. The rear building line in between the closet
wings would increase in depth by approx.3.7m.

6.3.1 Dayiight and Sunlight/Overshadowing/Sense of Enclosure

Policy $29 of the City Plan seeks to resist proposals that result in an unacceptable material
loss of residential amenity. Policy ENV 13 of the UDP seeks to resist proposals which result in
a material loss of daylight/sunlight, particularly to existing dwellings and education buitdings.
In addition, developments should not result in a significant increase in the sense of enclosure
or averiooking, or cause unacceptable overshadowing, particutarly on gardens, public open
space or on adjoining buildings, whether in residential or public use.

Given the orientation and scale of the proposals, it is considered that the only residential
dwellings neighbouring the site at Nos 43-44 would not experience a material loss of light,
increase in overshadowing or increased sense of enclosure as a result of the proposals.

In policy terms it is ¢lear that commercial premises are not afforded the same protection as
residential properties. Notwithstanding this, the Army and Navy Club does include an element
of residential occupancy by members of the type akin to a hotel service. Windows to these
boarding rooms is located to the north east of the application site and the windows face south
west. The roof terrace which serves the Club’s bar is also located behind to the north of the
application site.

Officers consider that the Ciub is a nen-domestic use which has a reasonable expectation of
daylight and sunlight, similar to that of a hotel. However, the windows which serve the
boarding rooms are set back from the application site by the depth of the roof terrace and are
substantially screened by the Club itself which adjoins the appilication site to the east being
two storeys taller than the proposed development. it is considered that the application site is
orientated in such a way and located sufficient distant from these windows to ensure there is

no unacceptable loss of light or iﬂﬁe&éegﬁzse of enclosure.



Item No.
8

With regard to the terrace which serves the Club bar, it is acknowledged that this is a valued
space for members, however, given ihe modest increase in height to No.40 by approx. 3.5m
and the increase in depth of the building line by aprox.3.7m which is set between the two
projecting closet wings, it is considered that there wouid not be a sufficiently detrimental loss
of light, increase in overshadowing or sense of enclosure to preciude the continued use of this
space.

6.3.2 Privacy

Policy ENV13 of the UDP seeks to resist development which would result in an unacceptable
degree of overlooking. Once again the most sensitive area in this respect would be the
residential dwellings located within the adjoining Nos. 42-43. Given the orientation of the site
to the neighbouring dwellings and location of the proposed terraces to the front of the building.,
the proposals will not result in an unacceptable loss of privacy.

Objections have been received from the Club on the grounds of loss of privacy in particular to
the terrace area. The concemns are intensified due to the potential security implications as
current and former armed forces personnel frequently use the terrace.

The terrace, when compared to the application site, is located at approx. third floor level. A
substantial amount of plant and ducting is located between the terrace and the application site
which is surrounded with a single storey timber ptant screen which terminates at approx.
fourth floor level. Due to the level of existing screening, the majority of overlapking would
oceur from the proposed fourth and fifth floor maisonette. The terrace is already overlooked by
the existing top floor flat within No.41.

The proposals will introduce additional windows to the rear elevation, although no windows
are located within the rear of the cioset wing to No.40 which shares a boundary with the
terrace. From third to fifth floor levels, four bedrooms, a kitchen and a dining room could have
views towards the terrace. The maijority of new windows in the rear elevation will face towards
a lower plant area, located beyond the roof terrace. No terraces or balconies are proposed to
the rear of the site.

The replacement building will continue to be used as private dwellings an the upper floors. tis
acknowledged that there will be an increase in overlooking from the new windows and
extension, however, the orientation of these windows and level of existing screening will to
some extent mitigate overiooking. The level of overlooking wouid be no more than one would
reasonably expect in such a dense urban environment and similar relationships are found
throughout the City. A large number of windows already overlook the terrace from the
surrounding office buildings. It is considered that the replacement building would not cause an
unacceptable degree of overlooking to the Club sufficient to justify refusing permission.

6.2.4 Noise

Given the Jevel of separation between the site and neighbours, and typically the naisy nature
of this area, the potential for increased noise from the residential fiats would not be sufficient
to justify refusing permission.

New plant is proposed within the basement and at roof [evel. Environmental Health officers
have confirmed that they have nc objection subject to the Council’s standard noise conditions
including a supplementary acoustic report to ensure compliance once the plamt items have
been finalised.

Page 303



P o oy o _ ’ e e et e i farieem

ltem No.
.
Subject to these conditions, it is considered that the plant will not result in noise nuisance or a
loss of neighbouring amenity. It is also considered that additional retail floarspace and

residential units, including roof terraces, would not result in an unacceptable level of noise to
the existing neighbouring properties.

With regard to construction impact, this is dealt with under Section 6.10 of this report.
6.4 Transportation/Parking
6.41 Car Parking

Policy TRANS23 requires, where appropriate and practical, the provision of off-street parking
for new residential developments. Given the site constraints, including the ‘ack of vehicular
access into the application site, car parking is not provided as part of the proposals.

The policy states that the Council will normally consider there to be a serious deficiency where
additional demand would result in 80% or more of available legal on-street parking spaces.
The evidence of the Council's most recent parking survey in 2011 indicates that parking
occupancy of lega! parking spaces within a 200m radius of the site is 54% at night and 61%
during the day.

Although the introduction of two additional residential units in this area without off-street
parking or on-street parking restraint would likely increase the stress levels, the Highways
Planning Manager has advised that the potential on-street parking generated could be
absorbed Into the surrounding street network.

6.4.2 Cycle Parking

Seven secure cycle parking spaces are to be provided for the residential units at basement
level. Ideally one cycle parking space should be provided for the retail unit, however, given the
fimited floorspace it is not considered reasonable to require its provision in this instance.

6.4.3 Servicing

Policy TRANS 20 of the UDP generally reguires servicing o be provided off-street. Servicing
for development is to be undertaken on-street with delivery vehicles temporarily waiting on
Pall Mall, as per the existing arrangement. The Highways Planning Manager has stated that
the servicing requirements are likely to be similar to the existing situation. A condition is
recommended to secure the submission of a Servicing Management Plan in the event that the
retail unit is to be used by a food retailer

6.5 Economic Considerations

The proposal is in accordance with the UDP and the economic benefits generated by the
increase in retail floorspace and new residential units are welcomed.

6.6  Other UDP/Westminster Policy Considerations

Access

All thresholds inte both the retail and residential areas will be designed as level access. A
mechanical lift will provide access across all floors. The residential units at first to third floor
levels all have a split level element due to the staggered window positions to the front
elevations of Nos. 40 and 41. Short stairs are designed to be wide ehough to retrofit a stair lift
should this be required. The access arrangements are considered acceptable.

Page 304



[tem No.

Refuse .

Policy ENV12 of the UDP requires the provision of suitable facilities for waste storage and
recycling in new developments. The waste store for the residential and commercial unit will be
stored at basement level. It is recommended that the provision of this storage is secured by

condition.
6.7 London Pian

The application is not referable to the Mayor and is not considered to raise strategic issues of
any significance.

6.8 National Policy/Guidance Considerations

Central Government’s National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) came into effect on 27
March 2012. It sets out the Government's planning policies and how they are expected to be
applied. The NPPF has replaced almost all of the Government's existing published planning
policy statements/guidance as well as the circulars on planning obligations and strategic
planning in London. It is a material consideration in determining planning applications.

Until 27 March 2013, the City Council was able to give full weight to relevant policies in the
Core Strategy and London Plan, even if there was a limited degree of conflict with the
framework. The City Council is now required to give due weight to relevant policies in existing
plans “according to their degree of consistency” with the NPPF. Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies was adopted by Full Council on 13 November 2013 and is fully compliant
with the NPPFE. For the UDP, due weight should be given to relevant policies according to their
degree of consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies in the plan to the NPPF, the
greater the weight that may be given).

The UDP policies referred to in the consideration of this application are considered to be
consistent with the NPPF unless stated otherwise.

6.9 Planning Obligations
Not applicabie.
6.10 Otherissues

Future Club development

The Club has raised concern with regard to the proposals prejudicing any future
redevelopment opportunities of the Club in the future. Each application must be considered on
its own merits. The current application cannot be reasonably withheld on the basis that a
future application on an adjoining site may be submitted.

Construction

The proposal does not include basement excavation. The fagade retention structure relies on
flying shores and ladder beams spanning between the retained party walls. Building Control
has confirmed that this appears well designed. The permanent structure behind the retained
fagade is a reinforced concrete frame founded on a new basement slab.

With regards to noise, vibration, dust and disruption from construction, the worst effects of
these can to some degree be mitigated by the careful management of the site. Much of this
can be negotiated and agreed outside of the planning process with other mechanisms such as
through the Party Wall Act.

Page 305



R W 2 e

Jtem No.
[ ]

An [nformative is recommended to encourage the applicant to join the Considerate
Constructors Scheme. The Council's standard condition to control hours of building work is
recommended which ensures works can only be carried out between 08.00 and 18.00
Monday to Friday, between 08.00 and 13.00 on Saturdays and not at all on Sundays, bank

holidays or public holidays. It is not considered reasonable to restrict the hours of work further.

6.11 Ceonclusion

The demoliticn of Nos.40 and 41 behind retained fagades is considered acceptable to provide
a mixed use development that will complement the character and appearance of the
conservation area. The principie of new residential units in this location is acceptable and the
scheme is considered acceptable in terms of its impact on the amenity of surrounding
occupiers.

In all other respects the proposals are considered acceptable in land use, design and amenity
terms and therefore planning permissian is recommended for approval.

BACKGROUND PAPERS

D WoNDG A WD -

Application form.

Letter from English Heritage dated 13 January 2015

Letter from the Westminster Society dated 20 January 2015.

Letter from the St. James's Conservation Trust dated 17 August 2015,
Memorandum from Environmental Health dated 8 January 2015.
Memorandum from Cleansing Manager dated 9 January 2015.
Memorandum from Highways Planning Manager dated 20 January 2015.
Letter from Building Control dated 2 September 2015.

Letter from occupier of 45 Pall Mall dated 21 January 2015.

. Letters on behalf of the occupier of 4th-5th floor flat 40 Pall Mall dated 21, 27 January, 2 February

and 14 August 2015.

. Letters on behalf of the St James Cafe at 40 Pall Mall dated 28 January and 2 February 2015.
. Letters from and on behalf of the Army and Navy Club dated 28 January, 25 March, 28 April, 14

July, 19 August and 2 September 2015

. Letter on behalf of the occupier of 4th floor 40-41 Pall Mall dated 28 January 2015.
. Letters from members of the Army and Navy Club dated 19 (x4}, 20 (x2), 21 (x2), 26, 27 August

and 1 September 2015,

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT OR WISH TO INSPECT ANY OF THE
BACKGROUND PAPERS PLEASE CONTACT VINCENT NALLY ON 020 7641 5947 OR BY
FAX 020 7641 2338 OR BY E-MAIL — vnally@westminster.gov.uk

| Wi_wpdocsishon-1eWsch2)15-08- 284 em2 docd
21/09/2015

Page 306



DRAFT DECISION LETTER
Address: 40 - 41 Pall Mall, London, SW1Y 5JG

Proposal: Demolition of 40 and 41 Pall Mall behind retained facades and redevelopment to
provide a building of basement, ground and five upper floors comprising retail (Class
A1) at part basement and part ground floor levels with the remainder of the building
in use as four self-contained residential flats (Class C3).

Plan Nos: 4046(L0)001; 4046(EX)001D; 4046(EX)002D; 4046(EX)003D; 4046(EX)004D;
4046(EX)005D; 4046(EX)006D; 4046(EX)007D; 4046(EX)008C; 4046(EX)009D;
4046(EX)010D; 4046(EX)011D; 4046(EX)012D; 4046(EX)013C; 4046(EX)015;
4046(EX)016; 4048(EX)017; 4046(EX)018; 4046(EX)019; 4046(EX)020;
4046(EX)021; 4046(EX)022; 4046(EX)023; 4046(EX)024; 4046(EX)025; .
4046(EX)026; 4046(EX)027; 4046(EX)028; 4046(EX)029; 4046(EX)030;
4046(EX)031; 4046(EX)032; 4046(SK)0011; ; 4046(SK)002G; ; 4046(SK)003G;
4046(SK)004(; 4046(SK)005F; 4046(SK)006E; 4046(SK)007B; 4046(SK)008B;
4046(SK)009C; 4046(SK)010B; 4046(SK)011; 4046(SK)012A; 4046(SK)013B;
4046(SK)14C; 4046(SK)015; L(14)01P1; L(14)02P1; BRE Daylight/Sunlight Report
dated October 2014; Sustainability Statement; Preliminary M&E Services
Description; Historic Building report dated October 2014; Noise Impact Assessment
Ref: 102792.ph.1ssue1; Design and Access Statement RevB.

Case Officer:  Vincent Nally Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 5947

Recommended Condition{s) and Reason(s):

1 The development hereby permitted shall be carried out in accordance with the drawings and
other documents listed on this decision letter, and any drawings approved subsequently by the
City Council as local planning authority pursuant to any conditions on this decision letter.

Reason:
For the avoidance of doubt and in the interests of proper planning.

2 You must carry out any building work which can be heard at the boundary of the site only:

* between 08.00 and 18.00 Monday to Friday;
* between 08.00 and 13.00 on Saturday; and
* not at all on Sundays, bank holidays and public holidays.

Noisy work must not take place outside these hours. (C11AA)

Reason:

To protect the environment of neighbouring residents. This is as set out in 529 and S32 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 6 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R11AC)

3 Before anyone moves into the property, you must provide the separate stores for waste and
materials for recycling shown on drawing number 4046(SK)001 |. You must clearly mark them
and make them available at all times to everyone using the premises and the waste store shall
not be used for any other purpose.

Page 307



Reason:

To protect the environment and provide suitable storage for waste as set out in 844 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and ENV 12 of our Unitary
Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R14BD)

© You must provide each cycle parking space shown on the approved drawings prior to
occupation. Thereafter the cycle spaces must be retained and the space used for no other
purpose without the prior written consent of the local planning authority.

Reason:
To provide cycle parking spaces for people using the development as set out in TRANS 10 of
our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.

You must hang all doors or gates so that they do not open over or across the road or pavement.
(C24AA)

Reason:

In the interests of public safety and to avoid blocking the road as set out in S41 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and TRANS 2 and TRANS
3 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R24AC)

All new work to the outside of the building must match existing original work in terms of the
choice of materials, method of construction and finished appearance. This applies unless
differences are shown on the drawings we have approved or are required by conditions to this
permission. (C26AA)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the St James's Conservation Area. This is as set out
in S25 and $28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26BE)

You must apply to us for approval of samples of the facing materials you will use, including
glazing, and elevations and roof plans annotated to show where the materials are to be located.
You must not start any work on these parts of the development until we have approved what
you have sent us. You must then carry out the work using the approved materials. (C26BC)

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the St James's Conservation Area. This is as set out
in $25 and $28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26BE)

You must apply to us for approval of a sample panel of brickwork which shows the colour,
texture, face bond and pointing. You must not start work on this part of the development until

we have approved what you have sent us. You must then carry out the work according to the
approved sample. (C27DB)

Page 308



10

11

Reason:

To protect the special architectural or historic interest of this building and to make sure the
development contributes to the character and appearance of the St James's Conservation Area.
This is as set out in 25 and $28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted
November 2013 and DES 1 and paras 10.108 to 10.146 of our Unitary Development Plan that
we adopted in January 2007. (R27AC)

You must submit detailed drawings at a scale of 1:10 and sections at 1:5 of the following parts
of the development:

i} Windows,
iy Doors,
iii) Shopfront, including proposed finishes.

You must not start work on these parts of the development until we have approved what you
have sent us. You must then carry out the works according to the approved details.

Reason:

To make sure that the appearance of the building is suitable and that it contributes to the
character and appearance of this part of the St James's Conservation Area. This is as set out
in $25 and S28 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
DES 1 and DES 5 or DES 6 or both and paras 10.108 to 10.128 of our Unitary Development
Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R26BE)

You must not carry out demolition work unless it is part of the complete development of the site.
You must carry out the demolition and development without interruption and according to the
drawings we have approved. {C29BB)

Reason:

To maintain the character of the St James's Conservation Area as set out in 525 and 528 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and DES 1 and DES 9 (B}
of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007 and Section 74(3) of the
Planning {Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990. (R29AC)

(1) Where noise emitted from the proposed plant and machinery will not contain tones or will not
be intermittent, the 'A' weighted sound pressure level from the plant and machinery (including
non-emergency auxiliary plant and generators) hereby permitted, when operating at its noisiest,
shall not at any time exceed a value of 10 dB below the minimum external background noise, at
a point 1 metre outside any window of any residential and other noise sensitive property, unless
and until a fixed maximum noise level is approved by the City Council. The background level
should be expressed in terms of the lowest LAS0, 15 mins during the proposed hours of
operation. The plant-specific noise level should be expressed as LAeqTm, and shall be
representative of the plant operating at its maximum.

(2) Where noise emitted from the proposed plant and machinery will contain tones or will be
intermittent, the 'A' weighted sound pressure level from the plant and machinery {including non-
emergency auxiliary plant and generators) hereby permitted, when operating at its noisiest,
shall not at any time exceed a value of 15 dB below the minimum external background noise, at
a point 1 metre outside any window of any residential and other noise sensitive property, unless
and until a fixed maximum noise level is approved by the City Council. The background leve!
shoutd be expressed in terms of the lowest LA90, 15 mins during the proposed hours of
operation. The plant-specific noise leve! should be expressed as LAeqTm, and shait be

Page 309



12

13

representative of the plant operating at its maximum.

(3) Following installation of the plant and equipment, you may apply in writing to the City
Council for a fixed maximum noise level to be approved. This is to be done by submitting a
further noise report confirming previous details and subsequent measurement data of the
installed plant, including a proposed fixed noise level for approval by the City Council. Your
submission of a noise report must include:

{(a) A schedule of all plant and equipment that formed part of this application; :
{b) Locations of the plant and machinery and associated: ducting; attenuation and damping
equipment;

(c) Manufacturer specifications of sound emissions in octave or third octave detail;

{(d) The location of most affected noise sensitive receptor location and the most affected window
of if;

{e) Distances between plant & equipment and receptor location/s and any mitigating features
that may attenuate the sound level received at the most affected receptor location;

(f) Measurements of existing LAS0, 15 mins levels recorded one metre outside and in front of
the window referred to in (d) above (or a suitable representative position), at times when
background noise is at its lowest during hours when the plant and equipment will operate. This
acoustic survey to be conducted in conformity to BS 7445 in respect of measurement
methodology and procedures;

(@) The lowest existing L A90, 15 mins measurement recorded under {f) above;

{h) Measurement evidence and any calculations demonstrating that plant and equipment
complies with the planning condition;

(i} The proposed maximum noise level to be emitted by the plant and equipment.

Reason:

Because existing external ambient noise levels exceed WHO Guideline Levels, and as set out
in ENV 6 (1), {68) and (8) and ENV 7 {A)(1) of our Unitary Development Plan that we adapted in
January 2007, so that the noise environment of people in noise sensitive properties is
protected, including the intrusiveness of tonal and impulsive sounds; and as set out in S32 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013, by contributing to reducing
excessive ambient noise levels. Part (3} is included so that applicants may ask subsequently
for a fixed maximum noise level to be approved in case ambient noise levels reduce at any time
after implementation of the planning permission.

No vibration shall be transmitted to adjoining or other premises and structures through the
building structure and fabric of this development as to cause a vibration dose value of greater
than 0.4m/s (1.75) 16 hour day-time nor 0.26 m/s {1.75)} 8 hour night-time as defined by BS
6472 (2008) in any part of a residential and other noise sensitive property.

Reason:

As set out in ENV6E (2) and (6) of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January
2007, to ensure that the development is designed to prevent structural transmission of noise or
vibration.

The design and structure of the development shall be of such a standard that it will protect
residents within it from existing external noise so that they are not exposed to levels indoors of
more than 35 dB LAeq 16 hrs daytime and of more than 30 dB LAeq 8 hrs in bedrooms at night.

Reason:

As set out in ENV6 (4) of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007, and
the related Policy Application at sections 9.84 to 9.87, in order to ensure that design, structure

Page 310



PREETT R .

14

15

16

17

and acoustic insulation of the development will provide sufficient protection for residents of the
development from the intrusion of external noise.

The design and structure of the development shall be of such a standard that it will protect
residents within the same building or in adjoining buildings from noise and vibration from the
development, so that they are not exposed to noise levels indoors of more than 35 dB LAeq 16
hrs daytime and of more than 30 dB LAeq 8 hrs in bedrooms at night.

Reason:

As set out in ENV8 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007, and the
related Policy Application at section 9.76, in order to ensure that design, structure and acoustic
insulation of the development will provide sufficient protection for residents of the same or
adjoining buildings from noise and vibration from elsewhere in the development.

You must apply to us for approval of details of a supplementary acoustic report demonstrating
that the plant will comply with the Council's noise criteria as set out in Condition 11 and 12 of
this permission. You must not start work on this part of the development until we have approved
what you have sent us.

Reason:

Because existing external ambient noise levels exceed WHO Guideline Levels, and as set out
in ENV 6 (1), (6) and (8) and ENV 7 (A)(1) of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in
January 2007, so that the noise environment of people in noise sensitive properties is
protected, including the intrusiveness of tonal and impulsive sounds; and as set out in S32 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013, by contributing to reducing
excessive ambient noise levels.

You must apply to us for approval of sound insulation measures to demonstrate that the
residential units will comply with the Council's noise criteria set out in Condition 13 and 14 of
this permission. You must not start work on this part of the development until we have approved
what you have sent us. You must then carry out the work according to the details approved
before the residential units are occupied and thereafter retain and maintain.

Reason:

Because existing external ambient noise levels exceed WHO Guideline Levels, and as set out
in ENV 6 (1), (6) and (8) and ENV 7 (A)(1) of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in
January 2007, so that the noise environment of people in noise sensitive properties is
protected, including the intrusiveness of tonal and impulsive sounds; and as set out in 532 of
Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013, by contributing to reducing
excessive ambient noise levels.

You must apply to us for approval of details of all ventilation systems, flues and plant associated
with the residential use. You must not start work on the relevant part of the development until
we have approved what you have sent us. You must then carry out the work according to these
details prior to occupation.

Reason:

As set out in ENV6 (4) of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007, and
the related Policy Application at sections 9.84 to 9.87, in order to ensure that design, structure
and acoustic insulation of the development will provide sufficient protection for residents of the
development from the intrusion of external noise.

Page 311



18

19

If the Class A1 retail unit hereby approved is to be used by a food retailer, you must submit a
detailed Servicing Management Plan for the approval of the City Council before occupation of
the Class A1 retait unit. The pian must include details of the management of waste, delivery
vehicles, number of deliveries, time of deliveries and how deliveries will be managed. The Class
A1 use must then operate in accordance with the approved Servicing Management Plan.

Reason:

To make sure that the use will not cause nuisance for people in the area. This is as set out in
$24, $29 and $32 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
ENV 6 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007. (R05GB)

You must not use areas of roof at rear fourth and fifth floor levels for sitting out or for any other
purpose. You can however use the roof to escape in an emergency. (C21BA)

Reason:

To protect the privacy and environment of people in neighbouring properties. This is as set out
in $29 and S$32 of Westminster's City Plan: Strategic Policies adopted November 2013 and
ENV 6 and ENV 13 of our Unitary Development Plan that we adopted in January 2007.
(R21BC)

Informative(s):

In dealing with this application the City Council has implemented the requirement in the National
Planning Policy Framework to work with the applicant in a positive and proactive way. We have
made availabie detailed advice in the form of our statutory policies in Westminster's City Plan:
Strategic Policies adopted November 2013, Unitary Development Plan, Supplementary
Planning documents, planning briefs and other informal written guidance, as well as offering a
full pre application advice service, in order to ensure that applicant has been given every
opportunity to submit an application which is likely to be considered favourably. In addition,
where appropriate, further guidance was offered to the applicant at the validation stage.

You will have to apply separately for a licence for any structure that overhangs the road or
pavement. For more advice, please phone our Highways section on 020 7641 2642. (I110AA)

We recommend you speak to the Head of the District Surveyors’ Services about the stability
and condition of the walls to be preserved. He may ask you to carry out other works to secure
the walls. Please phone 020 7641 7240 or 020 7641 7230. (122AA)

You must apply for a licence from our Highways Licensing Team if you plan to block the road or
pavement during structural work to support the building. Your application will need to show why
you cannot support the building from private land. For more advice, please phone 020 7641
2560. (I136AA)

Page 312



When carrying out building work you must do all you can to reduce noise emission and take
suitable steps to prevent nuisance from dust and smoke. Please speak to our Environmental
Health Service to make sure that you meet all requirements before you draw up the contracts
for demolition and building work.

Your main contractor should also speak to our Environmental Health Service before starting
work. They can do this formally by applying to the following address for consent to work on
construction sites under Section 61 of the Control of Pollution Act 1974,

24 Hour Noise Team
Environmental Health Service
Westminster City Hall

64 Victoria Street

London

SW1E 8QP

Phone: 020 7641 2000

Our Environmental Health Service may change the hours of working we have set out in this
permission if your work is particularly noisy. Deliveries to and from the site should not take
place outside the permitted hours unless you have our written approval. (I50AA)

Your proposals include demolition works. If the estimated cost of the whole project exceeds
£300,000 (excluding VAT), the Site Waste Management Plan (SWMP) Regulations 2008
require you to prepare an SWMP before works begin, to keep the Plan at the site for inspection,
and to retain the Plan for two years afterwards. One of the duties set out in the Regulations is
that the developer or principal contractor "must ensure, so far as is reasonably practicable, that
waste produced during construction is re-used, recycled or recovered” (para 4 of the Schedule
to the Regulations). Failure to comply with this duty is an offence. Even if the estimated cost of
the project is less than £300,000, the City Council strongly encourages you to re-use, recycle or
recover as much as possible of the construction waste, to minimise the environmental damage
caused by the works. The Regulations can be viewed at www.opsi.gov.uk.

You are encouraged to join the nationally recognised Considerate Constructors Scheme. This
commits those sites registered with the Scheme to be considerate and good neighbours, as well
as clean, respectful, safe, environmentally conscious, respensible and accountable. For more
information please contact the Considerate Constructors Scheme directly on 0800 783 1423,
siteenquiries@ccscheme.org.uk or visit www.ccscheme.org.uk.

Conditions 11 and 12 control noise from the approved machinery. lt is very important that you
meet the conditions and we may take legal action if you do not. You should make sure that the
machinery is properly maintained and serviced regularly. (182AA)

Page 313



P S2RALY YN FLOE O

sinep |ned

SIOBHUDIO VAN

0@ sguwin BME PO mg
120 (IS) 9vov

<o Bushaag)

pasodoid g Buisix3 100]4 pauL
i, Gy

PI] sjuawilsanu] lew led
5

rab LIMS

. uopuon
JejsuIIISIA
lew lled Ly-0%

o Py

ONINNVYd

adij Buweg

I P | waiwwa] =]

Bupyng qnin Ay pue
fuuy pugaqg 15
Buppng pasodaig

anjg Aep
pue Ay |

| pesodold sy
ue|d oo piiyL

Bunsnea
0 BUIING

pasodod
10 aupng

Bupsixg sy
ueld 100]d payL

srofasang Tuy i |
P11 sdoaang Dgy

Ul ASAINS 1N pE

A papinoid




T UMY AN PI0E 3

sinep |ned
$158HUOID V4N
a papaiD G E]
220 (1S) ovor
an B
pasodoid + Bunsixg Jooj4 ypnoH
EP’!H

P1 SjusWiSaAU e Ifed
ray LMS

uopuo

JBIsuILISIN

Il lled L¥-0%

g

ONINNY1d
s By

[ P | w1 1.!.'!

o 189
Buippng
pasodoly

Gunysiva
J0 BUIING

Buipgng gnio Asen pue
funy puiag 19s
Buipyng pasodaig

qnyo Aey

e pasodold sy

ueld J0o|4 YHno

anip Aney
pue Auing

Bugisixg sy
ueld 100|4 Yuno

sdofasang furpping




B SR il P02 0

= siep |ned

o T g £
i 1y P

$198HYID VAN

19505 | RRL 00l L

03w SUE PO awg

€20 (MS) 9ro¥

o Buvamic)
pasodoid +Bugsix3 10014 Yyl

) Boaniny

PI SuBLASBAU IR Ifed
rey LMS

uopuo

19)SUILISIMN

Il lled Ly-0f

s

ONINNV1d
m B
[ ] vyl o

qmio Aen
pue Ay

ueld J0o|4 yuno

Hoeq jas
Busping
“ pasodoig
i |_ ', Buippng anio Aren
Y pue Auy puiyaq jas Gunspa
- Buipying pasodoig 10 aupNg
qro ey
pue Autry
anio Aen
PuR Auing pasodold sy

Bunsix3 sy
ue|d Jooj4 yuno4

sanfasing Fuping




[

{03 ]

v 810 (MS) 9vor
L]

wesBeiq Bupjoopang
o B

Py sjusunsanuy) ey |led
... -}

rdr LMS
uopuoT]
JjsuiLnsapn
IIew lied Ly-0v

—

|

B - S MRl . o i o 280 N | s |
=i 3 e = ) Bl p . =
{

b

0y ey
ONINNV1d

|
|

|
—._.

s
Page 317

¢ TRINTREIY FIH T

oy

srofaning Bupppmg
PVl SAAINS DEY g onuon
uoiEwuop ABAns uo paseq shuwe g

AN A e 10
TR STV 45 AN B N, W G Lot T




Wi

O s t # 2 | 1y
ani Aepy
1 pue Ay
(
w . site e o _ _ weibeig Bunoopsng
_|l|h.u_l| ; | 10014 pay)
8610 (IS) 9r0or | _ 610(4S)

Jopy Buseg __l.l_l_lL|.|” g _
wesBei BunjoopianQ - ATA._/V A/a).v AY-A_V

| i J | ] | }
ey S o

ray LS e
uopua

Jaisuiunsapn
Ilew lied Ly-0

SmLpoyg

_
ONINNY1d ﬁ_ O~ i e

saiy Suweig _ _ qryD Anapy
| pue fury

g ymma] v
smnws] v
| swomm| d

ALy Pt g |
[ Sy s}

T
P ::A... »
|
N
| _ |BAB] SHy 1B Sadew O'F /f \/\.V
| _ xoudde 1By aouay /
B
= 1\ uorsiA o aun _ I
100y 100 : e nys pay _.
; 1803 - sewemnomo |
b 3 h

WL 41 PALL MALL

B
b
L
._.M...nu.::a Furpning | ﬁ i
sdaaIn T
Py 8 I . 7 ,
uonewsojul Asnns uo paseq sBuweln EiE L I 1
~ jooy | I L i
ez R = atisia i)
. z
=
./ BgEuEdD B % ap -
- sse|fi papn
et LIS, jo aury




T e
340 T

SIO8JIYID VAN

%.S ia..ia:!. _ . weJBeig Bunoopang
D dweg g emg 2 T, 1T TR e | R 100[4 yuno
. e owcnxw“%
g 020 (MS) 9v0ov £ i e Rl _
_ony Buamesgy 1 .|._..I»|m +

5 ]

b Ly M
P SWauASaAU| 2 e <y A\

FHY LMS e
uopuo . o
JoISUILIISIM m - pi
Iew iied Ly-0v | pue Ay !
sy puos | = m

ONINNY1d |

...... 1804 S, ssey anasqg

stofaang Fupping
PYL Ba8sang DHV ooy
uoneuLou fanins uo paseq sBuweg

MO 42 PALL MALLX

. ajqeuado /
. ssef egyn <

B [1Bd 2F

= L LUIDISIA O BN

THE AR AND NAVY CLUB

MO 40 PALL MALL

N &1 PALL AL




" e R IR i i Pesodoild SY e g UoHEAaS Bunsacd 5y §OIN I2d UoneAa3

B0 AN WY RN 3R T T o % T BT xu!aﬂ.#&& 0 A L TR e Mﬁ T TG 1 TN T W Ch

- . . :

AL 1 s T

3 900 (IS) @Evéﬁ“ﬁ - :
Buashyasotos] Sy UOIBAAL W0 . \ La p——s

S o 5 ]

o gﬁ& . — it uoRmod - ——————————

1

- — .

ﬂ&.ﬁw&w\

apwoR G
: £ i
i

a} wi0op spgnog - | F : - =

g:ﬁﬂ&% . s....u..r} |||p.. .. ﬂ

B Bang -!!Sn




st 1ot o ey information ! s
"' ABC Surveys Ltd .
Huildiog Sirveyors

T R o § A

paul davis &clitecte

Page 321 T T———




s 0N suney Informtion

ABC Surveys Ltd
Buliding Survwyors

o Ay and Navy Chub

Phagst hossing niof -
ghar Shan oesting bullding \\

Dathad B incicases ‘\

autiing of ssisling roof fine \

Hapwmmﬂm\ \
stacks vsedd a8 vanls
N

Hetes
o 4 18 DR R S8
:.mwzmwmmzx

o ot o e o

—— - -
e

A 15 " e o TS AT A S S
e At AT

o B ot
//mmm

; Wall botween
A Atand 42 Pall Mall

i
¢

42 Fail Mall approved in applications.
1109618
1100877
1208143

due 16 lack of acoens

T T
Faar Elevation As Proposed

D
4046 (SK) 010 B

== = S

o :miw m
NFA architects

=
e
paul davis achilectue

& LR, R




cutine of propased

Lottt bine inchoton "

|~ Doftec line
indicaies

(R T

I L N g K] e
2 2 i 8 _!‘um Page 323 %Mm

Pall Mall Invesiments L1d
Sacton B8 As Surveyed
m..:

46 (EX) 010 D

o e
gl e
NFA architects




o

AN, S———

eanddd o Sureiy mfarmation

ABC Surveys Litd

Building Survepars
==
3 [ Dotted e incicalegs -,
i outline of N4 Pall Mall behirgt i
Dittad fne indicales
aatin of existing

P 15, R 1.

b
N e 5 L 7 B

sEmmTa
i
e il

s s U SRR T S A

Dafted line indiatas
outing of No.41 Pall Mall behind

Dutted hina indicates
outling of eegting.

. Bhoptiont retained

iechure




P - L K]

1 10O (MS) OpOp__ mowecs

_ S o] paus €

pasodalg Sy Ueid PUGI RS i
.

1bSEBTZ [ g 2 - SRy BURNG B30I :

UGBS | [ WYL - AOMOUANGT (¥
FSEL (WY - SERRY UCHAIGD PR
B PG

RERZ'D F WhSELE - MY EIGPG SSouE)
Josgeg [ whbngg - @RMURIOT) (Y

IS LG/ g - Uty

R4 NG - SRy UOURROD DRIUG
U jUBsuETRg

B T SR i PP Y R R e

TR 5t P A A

H i

siakisrng Puppiing

P11 sdsaing DAY



i o e

— e . SRS o
O 200 (HS) IPOY ween s~
o e

] SIBUISAA |
o nﬂaﬁ

{begae'z f using) 2 - swaNy LN
333::&.;1%9“
i % . [£0%: 571
g B J0O0RS PRIIGOS

BSTRE ] WRROLE - Gary kRN S0I0

~
i
WA UOLIOT) PODUS e .w
i
. W
S ST N
e, A i S o S R B, T
%
e
S R OB =

windasing Harprng
Pyl sfsamg N8V . .




Page 327

sandmasng WEREG
Pyl W»ﬁu.?uﬁw o8y Ay fragan

......




p nﬁi!ii% T AT 3 T O N

SN SRS U
aii
0 PR BRI

Pyl sdasang DAV

Ay it
LR AR U0 DOSUG SBUWEIC)

P 3

i Pt o

| i s st G vl o

A T TR W S

b it s 90 e AL S 44 1 3 ST 1

i e A s s St | |
s o s A A A S L




LA S DERY RS

M

oy i




This page is intentionally left blank



P P RGBT

Item No.

13

CITY OF WESTMINSTER

PLANNING APPLICATIONS
COMMITTEE

Date Classification

For General Release

Report of
Director of Planning

Wards involved
St James's

Subject of Report Clutha House, 10 Storey's Gate, London, SW1P 3AY

Proposal Conversion of part lower ground and all upper floors from offices (Use
Class B1) to 8 x residential flats (Use Class C3), including the erection of
an enlarged mansard roof extension at fourth floor level, extension to
wine bar within the internal courtyard area at rear lower ground floor
level with ground floor roof terrace above and associated external and
internal works.

Agent Montagu Evans LLP

On behalf of GM Investment Trustees Limited

Registered Number 15/03907/FULL TP /PP No TP/20287 .

PP-04123664
Date of Application 05.05.2015 Date amended/ | 18.08.2015
completed
Category of Application Other
Historic Building Grade Unlisted

Conservation Area

Westminster Abbey And Parliament Square

Development Plan Context

- London Plan July 2011
- Waestminster's City Plan: Strategic
Policies 2013

- Unitary Development Plan (UDP)
January 2007

Within London Plan Central Activities Zone
Within Central Activities Zone

Stress Area

Qutside Stress Area

Current Licensing Position

Westminster Arms, 9 Storey’s Gate
Playing of Recorded Music: Unrestricted
Late Night Refreshment: Monday — Saturday 23.00 to 23.30

Private Entertainment consisting of dancing, music or other
entertainment of a like kind for consideration and with a view to profit:
Unrestricted

Sale by Retail of Alcohol: Monday — Saturday 10.00 to 23.00; Sunday
12.00 to 22.30

1.

RECOMMENDATION

Refuse permission - quality of the residential development (noise) and impact on the operation of
the adjoining public house and wine bar.

Page 331




Ditch o urse of)

Long

STOREY'S GATE

[
v
o
W
:
=
e
4

TOTHILL ST

The Elms
(siteof)

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordnance
Survey with the permission of the Controller of Her Majesty's
Stationery Office.

@ Crown copyright and/or database right 2013,




=
/2]
E’
T
<
O)
%
>
11
@)
o
/2]
=)
i
2.
-
@)
.
<
-
-
-
et
o

Page 333




Item No.

13

SUMMARY

10 Storey's Gate is located within the Westminster Abbey and Parliament Square
Conservation Area and the Central Activities Zone. It is not a listed building, but is of merit,
occupying a prominent corner location at Storey's Gate and Matthew Parker Street. The
building is currently in use as offices throughout with the exception of part of the basement
which is in use as a wine har. The wine bar is connected at basement level to the
neighbouring public house 'The Westminster Arms' (9 Storey's Gate).

Planning permission is sought for the conversion of part lower ground and all upper floors
from offices (Use Class B1) to 8 x residential flats (Use Class C3) (6 x 2 bed and 2 x 3 bed
flats), including the erection of an entarged mansard roof extension at fourth floor level,
extension to the wine bar within the internal courtyard area at rear lower ground floor level
with ground floor roof terrace above, and associated external and internal works.

The key issues in this case are:

e The quality of the residential development in terms of provision of adequate means to
protect residents from noise disturbance (internal noise levels and patron noise from
adjoining public house and wine bar};

Impact on the operation of the adjoining public house and wine bar;
The acceptability of the proposals in land use terms with particular regard to the Council's
affordable housing policies;

» The impact on the character and appearance of the building and the Westminster Abbey
and Parliament Square Conservation Area,

+ The impact of the proposals on the surrounding highway network.

In summary, it is not considered that the development would provide good quality residential
accommodation in terms of provision of adequate means to protect residents from noise
disturbance. In Westminster, noise from bars, and other commercial and entertainment uses
can form a significant element of noise disturbance to residents. It is therefore vital that
exceptional attention is paid to providing good quality residential accommeodation for future
residents. It has not been demonstrated that the proposed residential use would provide
adequate means of protection to residents from noise disturbance. In particular, potential
noise disturbance from internal noise levels ,and patron noise associated with the adjoining
public house and wine bar 'Westminster Arms and Storey’s Wine Bar'. The proposals are
likely therefore to harm the amenity of future occupiers of the residential flats. This would be
contrary to polices ENV8, $29 and $32 which require all new housing to provide a high quality
living environment, including adequate means of protection from existing background noise.

In addition and as a result of this deficiency, it has not been demonstrated that the proposed
residential use would be compatible with the adjoining public house and wine bar, which may
lead to future complaints concerning the operation of the public house jeopardizing its
continued future existence. The loss of the pub, or any significant curtaiiment of its current
operation, would harm the special local character and entertainment offer in this busy part of
the central Activities Zone. This would be contrary to Policies 2.10 and 3.1B of The London
Plan March 2015 and the advice contained in the National Planning Policy Framework (March
2012).

CONSULTATIONS

WESTMINSTER SOCIETY:
No objection.

Page 334



{tem No.

13

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH:
Objection on following grounds:

— Sound Insulation: Potential noise disturbance from internal noise levels and failure to meet
Westminster City Council standard policy {(ENV 8) on internal noise levels from adjoining
commercial activity.

— Patron Noise: Potential noise disturbance and likely complaint from patron noise
associated with the adjacent and adjoining Pub and Wine bar.

HEAD OF AFFORDABLE AND PRIVATE SECTOR HOUSING:
No objection

HIGHWAYS PLANNING MANAGER:
Object to lack of off-street car parking.

ADJOINING OWNERS/OCCUPIERS AND OTHER REPRESENTATION:
No. consulted: 196; No. of replies: 170

170 objections received on one or more of the following grounds:

— Loss of offices/ Central London activity within the CAZ.

— Change of use would threaten continued operation of existing office accupiers who require
a Central London/ Westminster location.

— The development would likely put, The Westminster Arms, out of business. The area does
not need 9 new luxury apartments, but it does need a hub for tourists, for local workers,
and the heritage of the area should be protected. (N.B. circa 160+ objections received on
these grounds),

- Potential for noise impact from existing wine bar and public house on the residential units/
future occupiers.

—  The daily activity at the adjacent Queen Elizabeth Il Conference Centre's would adversely
affect the residential units/ future occupiers

— Risk of conflict and objections from future residents due to the operation of the centre's
business.

- Noise and disturbance from building works will adversely affect adjacent premises.

— Loss of wine bar {N.B. the proposal was amended to retain the wine bar at lower ground
floor level)

— No on-site affordable housing.

—~ Residential use at basement levels poses a flood risk {N.B. the proposal was amended to
retain the wine bar at lower ground floor level)

ADVERTISEMENT / SITE NOTICE:
Yes

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
4.1 The Application Site

10 Storey's Gate is located within the Westminster Abbey and Parliament Square
Conservation Area and the Central Activities Zone. It is not a listed building, but is of merit,
occupying a prominent corner location on Storey's Gate and Matthew Parker Street. The
building is currently in use as offices (Class B1} throughout with the exception of part of the
basement which is in use as a wine bar (Class A4). The wine bar is connected at basement
level to the neighbouring public house The Westminster Arms’ (9 Storey’s Gate).

Page 335



[tem No.

13

4.2 Relevant History

On 16 May 1991 planning permission was granted for the use of part of the basement as
offices (Ref. 91/01569/FULL).

THE PROPOSAL

Planning permission is sought for the conversion of part lower ground and all upper floors
from offices (Use Class B1 (a)) to 8 x residential flats (Use Class C3) (6 x 2 bed, 2 x 3 bed),
including the erection of an enlarged mansard roof extension at fourth floor level, extension to
wine bar within the internal courtyard area at rear lower ground floor level with ground floor
roof terrace above, and associated external and internal works.

DETAILED CONSIDERATIONS

6.1 Land Use

The existing and proposed land uses are summarised below:
Table 1. Existing and Proposed Land Uses

Use Existing Proposed Uplift
(m2 GEA) {m2 GEA) (m2 GEA)
Office (Class B1) 1,108 0 -1,108
Wine Bar (Class A4) 64 72 +8
Residential (Class C3) 0 1,250 +1,250
Total 1,172 1,250 +78

6.1.1 Loss of office

The proposals would result in the loss of office floorspace amounting to 1,108m2 within the
CAZ. There have been objections to the loss of office floorspace, however the change of use
needs to be assessed in the context of Policy S47 of the City Plan which advises that ‘when
considering development proposals, the Council will take a positive approach that reflects the
presumption in favour of sustainable development contained in the National Planning Policy
Framework... to secure development that improves the economic, social and environmental
conditions in the area’

Paragraph 51 of the NPPF advises that local planning authorities should normally approve
planning applications for change of use to residential and any associated development from
commercial buildings {currently in the B use class) where there is an identified need for
additional housing in that area, provided that there are not strong economic reasons why such
development would be inappropriate.

Whilst there would be a net reduction in office floorspace and employment as a result of the
development, there is no evidence to suggest that the economic impact of the proposals on
this part of Central Activities Zone or the City as a whole would be sufficiently harmful in this
instance to withhold permission. The change {o increase residential use would provide social
benefits with the provision of a net increase of eight residential units.

6.1.2 Residential Use

The use of the proposed building for residential purposes is supported by Policies H3 of the
UDP and 514 of Westminster's City Plan.

Page 336



ltem No.

13

The proposal would create 1,250m2 of residential floorspace (GEA) in the form of 8 flats. This
would make an important contribution to new housing provision and is welcomed in policy
terms.

6.1.3 Affordable Housing

Policy H4 of the UDP and $16 of Westminster's City Plan and Interim Guidance Note
Implementation of Affordable Housing are relevant.

The policy requirement is that proposals for housing developments of either 10 or more
additional units or over 1000m2 additional residential floorspace will be expected to provide a
proportion of the floorspace as affordable housing.

The proposed residential floorspace is 1,250m2 GEA. Using the calculations set out in the
Interim Guidance Note, this requires 160m2 of the total residential floorspace to be provided
as affordable housing (2 on site affordable homes).

Policy 816 requires the provision of affordable housing on-site. It adopts a ‘cascade’
approach and states that “where the Council considers that this is not practical or viable, the
affordable housing should be provided off site in the vicinity. Off site provision beyond the
vicinity of the development will only be acceptable where the Council considers that the
affordable housing provision is greater and of a higher quality than would be possible on or off
site in the vicinity...”. If these options are not feasible, then a financial contribution in
mitigation is an appropriate alternative, calculated according to our Interim Affordable Housing
Note. A policy compliant payment in lieu is £660,100. The agents have confirmed that the
applicant is willing to make a full policy compliant payment in lieu which could be secured by
legal agreement.

As this development is a conversion rather than a new build, it will prove difficult to provide a
separate core and access arrangements for 2 on-site affordable homes. It is also highly
improbable that any affordable units provided could avoid a proportion share of high service
charges making these affordable homes unaffordable. The applicant has also confirmed that
they do not have any suitable alternative sites to provide off-site provision. The Head of
Affordable and Private Sector Housing advises that a policy compliant payment in lieu is
acceptable in the circumstances of this case.

6.1.3 Residential mix and layout

The proposal would create 8 residential units in the following housing mix:
Table 2. Mix of units

Units Number %

2 bed 6 75
3 bed 2 25
Total No. 8 100

Policy HS of the UDP requires that 33% of housing units be family sized (being three or more
bedrooms). In this case 2 (25%) of the 8 units are family sized. It is considered that there is a
case for a slightly lower amount of family housing given that this is a central location within the
CAZ and the opportunities to provide outdoor space for all flats is limited given the constraints
of the site.

All units have been designed to meet or exceed the Mayor's dwelling space standards set out
in London Ptan Policy 3.5.

Page 337



item No.

13

Policy H10 (A) states that the City Council will normally expect the provision of amenity space.
Only one of the units would have access to an outdoor terrace. it is acknowledged that the
constraints of the site would make it difficult to provide sufficient amenity space for all units in
line with policy H10. Given the site is in close proximity to public parks, the proposals can be
considered acceptable in the context of policy H10 even if it not possible to provide each flat
with outdoor space.

6.2 Townscape and Design

10 Storey's Gate, known as Clutha House is located within the Westminster Abbey and
Parliament Square conservation area. It is not a listed building. This application seeks to erect
a mansard roof extension and to extend at lower ground floor level. Plus the creation of a
terrace at ground floor level, and associated works including the installation of a satellite dish
and alterations to the existing windows and doors.

Erection a mansard roof extension: The site currently has a mansard roof form, which is
restricted to the rear of the building, making it hidden from ground level. However, the safety
rails are visible and are considered unsightly. The new mansard will have a traditional
appearance and whilst visible from street level it is considered an improvement to the building
and the conservation area. Samples of the roofing slate are to be secured by way of condition.

Extension at lower ground floor level with terrace above: The existing courtyard is partially in
filled with a WC block, this is to be removed and an extension added to increase the internal
floor space. At ground floor level a terrace will be created above. Given the internal and
enclosed nature of this location, the works are not considered to harm the character of the
conservation area.

Installation of a satellite dish: The proposed ‘potential’ location is to the rear of the building,
located against the parapet wall. This location would not be visible from the surrounding
streets or from the open space in front of the Queen Elizabeth !l conference centre. As such it
is deemed acceptable.

Alterations to the existing windows and doors: The existing front windows are to be
refurbished and slim lite double glazing added. Three new windows are proposed in currently
blocked openings on the front elevation to match those already existing. New windows are
proposed for the rear elevations. Further details of all the new windows are to be secured by
way of condition. The main entrance door is also to be slightly lowered to accommodate the
removal of the stepped access. These works are not deemed to harm the character of the
building or conservation area.

in summary the works are considered acceptable in design terms, subject to the conditions
noted above.

6.3  Amenity

Policies S29 and S32 of the City Plan, and ENVS and ENV13 of the UDP seek to protect
residential amenity in terms of noise pollution, light, privacy, sense of enclosure, overlooking
and essentially encourage development which enhances the residential environment.

6.3.1 Noise pollution

In Westminster, noise from bars, and other commercial and entertainment uses form a
significant element of noise disturbance to residents. It is accepted that the background noise
levels in this area of the City are high. It is therefore vital that exceptional attention is paid to
providing good quality residential accommodation for future residents.

Page 338



[tem No.

13

Policy $29 states that all new housing will provide a well-designed, high quality living
environment, both internally and externally in relation to the site layout and neighbourhood.

Policy $32 states that the Council will work to reduce noise pollution and its impacts and
protect Noise Sensitive Receptors from noise by ensuring development provides an
acceptable noise and vibration climate for occupants and is designed to minimise exposure to
vibration and external noise sources.

Palicy ENV 6 covers noise pollution issues (other than noise from plant, which is covered by
ENV 7). Policy ENV 6 (4), states ‘The City Council will require residential developments to
provide adequate protection from existing background noise’.

Para 9.83 of the UDP states that residential developments that will be exposed to high levels
of existing noise will require design, features and sound insulation to enable residents to be
protected from such external noise. These should be designed to enable the following WHO
guideline levels to be met in all residential developments:

a) indoors: 35dBs.q1e, daytime to prevent interference of speech and moderate annoyance

b) inside bedrooms, night time: 30 dB\aeqs / 45dB amax t0 prevent sleep disturbance.

The application is supported by an Acoustic Assessment by RBA acoustics which assesses
the issue of internal noise levels to the new flats and assesses the building envelope's
acoustic performance. The Acoustic Assessment concludes that acceptable internal noise
levels, assessed against Westminster’s standards, can be achieved on all facades using high
specification thermal slim line double-glazing and a further layer of secondary glazing, and
sound insulation between the retained wine bar and the ground floor residential unit.

The Council has received objections on behalf of Shepherd Neame Ltd, operators of the
adjoining public house and wine bar 'Westminster Arms and Storey’s Wine Bar'. Shepherd
Neame have provided their own Acoustic Assessment by Hann Tucker and object on the
grounds that the applicant's Acoustic Assessment does not sufficiently demonstrate that the
proposed residential use will be adequately protected from potential noise disturbance from
internal noise levels and patron noise associated with the adjoining public house and wine
bar. Shepherd Neame are concerned that this could lead to future complaints to the Council’s
Environmental Health Department from occupants of the residential flats, which can be
damaging to business and potentially lead to future licensing problems.

Environmental Health has assessed the applicant's original Acoustic Assessment, the
objector's Acoustic Assessment, and the applicant's subsequent follow up report.
Environmental Health object to the application on the basis of noise and nuisance grounds for
two main reasons:

1. Potential noise disturbance from internal noise levels and failure to meet Westminster City
Council standard policy (ENV 8) on internal noise levels from adjoining commercial
activity. — Sound Insulation,

2. Potential noise disturbance and likely complaint from patron noise associated with the
adjacent and adjoining Pub and Wine bar. — Patron Noise

Sound Insulation

Environmental Health has considered the application which includes the applicant’s additional
acoustic report by RBA acoustics and the objector's acoustic report by Hann Tucker. While
RBA acoustics have rightly considered the issue of internal sound transmission, neither RBA
nor Hann Tucker has considered the worst case situation which is possible in this case. The
Licence which covers the Lower Ground, Ground, First and Second floor areas of part of the
same and adjoining building, allows f@ag@sl@@@i music and/ or entertainment in terms of
the noise (dB) level and the hour at which these may be conducted.



. ki e P e e s m R A £ o b A gl a7 et £ e 11

Item No.

13

While the Council has standard conditions which seek to protect future residents from existing
commercial activities, it is a concern in cases where two parties are unable to work together or
worse still, where both parties are at odds about the proposals.

There is a particular risk to sound insulation work performance where the developer is not in
control or cannot guarantee control of either side of the partitions (walls / floors). For the best
sound insulation performance / results, then both sides of the partition should be treated
especially where loud music including bass content of music is involved. It is acknowledged
that RBA and Hann Tucker have suggested a bespoke planning condition to require sound
insulation work to be undertaken to achieve a particular standard. However, this is not
acceptable for two main reasons:

a. The Licenced premises also includes Ground, 1st and 2nd floors within the Licence
with no restrictions on music and entertainment (either level of noise or terminal hour)
in any of these areas. The assessment carried out by RBA is only for the Floor
between the Wine Bar and Living room of the 3 x bed unit located on the ground floor.
The assessment should be carried out at all partitions between the Licence Premises
and the proposed residential (which does include living rooms as well as Bedrooms).

b. The stated sound insulation performance of 60 dB D,r, may not be adequate,
especially when taking into consideration low frequency noise from bass music
content.

It should also be noted that there appears to be a service lift which runs from the lower ground
to upper floors as well as the opening between the basements of Clutha House and 9 Storey's
Gate. Both of these openings in the partition structures have not been dealt with within the
applicant’s submissions.

It is noted that in the latest Acoustic Report by RBA Acoustics (15" October 2015} and
submitted acoustic details; the proposed sound insulation treatment is provided to the wine
bar ceiling. It is unknown how this will work in practice. For instance, the applicant will have to
have access and agree with the wine bar operators to carry out this work and the wine bar
operators will have to ensure that this treatment is kept in situ and kept within the condition
that it is installed. Therefore, this will have an on-going impact upon the wine bar operator's
ability to install fixings, lighting, ventilation, services, speakers etc. to the proposed ceiling.

Notwithstanding the above points of access, agreement and on-going up-keep of the ceiling
treatment, the acoustic specifications provided in the latest acoustic report are still based upon
the existing measured noise levels within the wine bar, and do not take into consideration the
‘potential’ dB levels and the terminal hour which could be operated under the Licence.

Patron Noise

Given the close proximity of residential windows to the front of the Westminster Arms and
Storeys Wine bar, it is a concern that noise from patrons (vertical drinking, patrons arriving
and departing) is likely to give rise to noise complaint. It is noted in the Environmental Health
database that only one (unsubstantiated) complaint has been received with regard to patron
noise from the Licence premises in the last 15 years, this is most likely because of the lack of
residential which is currently affected by the premises.

Premises Licensing officers have confirmed that the pub regularly has very large numbers of
vertical drinkers outside of the front of the pub in Storeys Gate (+50 patrons). Large groups of
vertical drinkers will be in very close proximity to proposed residential habitable rooms on
ground {the same level) and 1st floor level, and such activity is very likely to be clearly audible
with windows open or closed. P age 340



ltem No.

13

Environmental Health agrees with the objector's assertion in the Hann Tucker report that
insufficient consideration has been given to this issue. RBA’'s measurements on 30th January
2015 would not have captured the levels of noise which undoubtedly arise from the use of this
premises during summer months. Environmental Health agrees with the correction of the
January 30th noise survey by 5 dB to reflect the noise from patrons at the ground and 1st floor
windows of the proposed residential. Although, Environmental Health accept that a 5 dB
correction would be applicable to the exposure of road traffic noise to the proposed 1st floor
windows (which is what it was intended for), this would not be the same correction for a
source of noise such as a group of vertical drinkers to a window only circa 3 — 5 metres away.

RBA state that they have measured the patron noise on Friday the 24th July at the time that
they conducted the internal noise level survey within the wine bar. However, there is
insufficient information with regard to this measurement to determine if this is an appropriate
assessment of the typical noise levels associated with Patrons drinking outside the pub. it is
unknown if the measurements were taken before, during or after the internal wine bar survey.
The number of customers is also unknown, if they were seated, standing or a single large
group or a number of smaller groups. Also a 5 minute measurement is not adequate sample
duration to properly assess this noise.

Insufficient information and consideration has been given to the impact of patron noise and
the potential adverse impact on the existing licence due to complaints. It is also noted that
Table and Chairs Licences have been given over a number of years and the future
consideration of such Licences will be impacted upon the introduction of residential units
particularly at street level.

Noise pollution surmmary

In summary, the applicant has not taken into consideration the ‘potential’ legitimate worse
case operation of the Licence, or the fact that the licence covers the ground, 1% and 2™ floor
levels of the public house within the adjoining building, and not just the wine bar within the
lower ground floor of the same building. Even if sound insulation conditions were imposed, it is
a concern that unless all interested parties can work together than the results of sound
insulation may be limited and may disadvantage the current legitimate licensed operation.
Insufficient information and consideration has also been given to the impact of patron noise
and the potential adverse impact on the existing licence due to complaints.

It is not considered that the development would provide good quality residential
accommodation in terms of provision of adequate means to protect residents from noise
disturbance. It has not been demonstrated that the proposed residential use would provide
adequate means of protection to residents from noise disturbance. In particular, potential
noise disturbance from internal noise levels, and likely complaint from patron noise associated
with the adjoining public house and wine bar 'Westminster Arms and Storey's Wine Bar'. The
proposals are likely therefore to harm the amenity of future occupiers of the residential flats.
This would be contrary to polices ENV&, 829 and S32 which require all new housing to
provide a high quality living environment, including adequate means of protection from
existing background noise.

6.3.2 Light/ Sense of Enclosure/ Overlooking

The application is supported by a Daylight and Sunlight Report that analyses the impact of the
development on the amount of natural light available to neighbouring buildings. The report
finds that all neighbouring properties fully meet the BRE guidelines for daylight and sunlight.

The alterations and extensions, including terrace, are not considered to have any material
impact on the amenity of neighbouring residents in terms of loss of light, increase in sense of

enclosure, or overlooking. Page 341



e s AR Y e A 1 Bt £ 7m i R s S Th LA A s

[term No.

13

6.4 Transportation/ Parking
6.4.1 Car Parking

UDP Policy TRANS 23 requires sufficient off-street parking to be provided in new residential
schemes to ensure that parking pressure in surrounding streets is not increased to ‘stress
levels'. ‘Stress levels’ are defined as circumstances where the occupancy of on-street legal
parking spaces exceeds 80%.

The City Council's most recent daytime survey (2011) indicates that occupancy of legal
parking spaces within a 200m radius of the site is 84% occupied during the day. During the
daytime, the only legal parking spaces for permit holders are Residential and Shared Use
Bays.

During the evening, occupancy of Residential and Shared Use Bays increases to 88%.
However TRANS 23 includes all legal parking spaces, and with the addition of Single Yellow
fine availability during the night, the stress level reduces to 26%.

The Highways Planning Manager has recommended that the application be refused due to no
off street car parking. However given that the site benefits from excellent public transport links,
it is not considered that refusal on these grounds could be sustained.

6.4.2 Cycle Parking

The plans show provision for cycle spaces within a secure internal store at basement level.
This level of provision is secured by condition.

6.5 Economic Considerations

The proposal is in accordance with the UDP and the economic benefits generated by the
proposed residential units are welcomed.

6.6 Access

A platform lift is provided within the entrance to allow step free access. All of the units have
been designed to meet Lifetime Home space standards, and the main core is fitted with a
wheelchair accessible lift that provides flush access to all floors.

6.7  Other UDP/Westminster Policy Considerations

A condition is recommended to restrict the hours of building works in order to mitigate the
impact on nearby residential occupiers. In terms of disturbance from construction works, it is
considered that works can be adequately controlled by use of the City Council's standard
hours of work condition.

The application has attracted objections on ground that the development would lead to the
loss of the neighbouring ‘Westminster Arms Public House'. This application does not propose
to change the use of the neighbouring ‘Westminster Arms Public House’.

The proposals have attracted significant objections on grounds that the development would
likely put, The Westminster Arms, out of business. The objections further state that the area
does not need 9 new luxury apartments, but it does need a hub for tourists, for local workers,
and the heritage of the area should be protected. (N.B. circa 160+ objections received on
these grounds).

There is also objection from the gl t n Elizabeth I Conference Centre’s on grounds
that their daily activities would ad ly” affect the residential units/ future occupiers which



- . v e e e e oAb A B e i it St B LB L E A b e s e

ltem No.

13

may lead to a risk of conflict and objections from future residents due to the operation of the
centre's business.

As outlined in section 6.1.4 of this report, conditions are recommended to minimise noise
intrusions within the flats. As such the scheme, subject to the additional measures to be
secured by condition, is considered to comply sufficiently with ENV 6 (4) which requires
residential developments to provide adequate protection from existing background noise.

6.8 London Plan

Shepherd Neame has raised concerns that the proposed residential use could lead to future
noise complaints to the Council’'s Environmental Health Department from occupants of the
residential flats, which could be damaging to business and potentially lead to future licensing
problems.

Paragraph 4.48A of the London Plan states that the Mayor recognises the important role that
London's public houses can play in the social fabric of communities. Policy 3.1B is also
specifically referenced so that pubs are included in the following protection: ‘Development
proposals should protect and enhance facilities and services that meet needs of particular
groups and communities (Policy 3.1 BY.

Palicy 2.10A relates to the Central Activities Zone and states that the Mayor will, and
boroughs and other relevant strategic partners should enhance and promote the unique
international, national and London wide roles of the Central Activities Zone (CAZ), supporting
the distinct offer of the Zone based on a rich mix of [ocal as well as strategic uses and forming
the giobally iconic core of one of the world's most attractive and competitive business
locations.

Section 6.3.1 of this report (noise pollution} lustrates the concerns over the quality of the
residential accommodation, in terms of protecting residents from noise disturbance. As a
result of this deficiency, it has not been demonstrated that the proposed residential use would
be compatible with the adjoining public house and wine bar, which may lead to future
complaints concerning the operation of the public house jeopardizing its continued future
existence. The loss of the pub, or any significant curtailment of its current operation, would
harm the special local character and entertainment offer in this busy part of the central
Activities Zone. This would be contrary to Policies 2.10 and 3.1B of The London Plan March
2015.

6.9  National Policy/Guidance Considerations

Central Government’s National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) came into effect on 27
March 2012. It sets out the Government’s planning policies and how they are expected to be
applied. The NPPF has replaced almost all of the Government’s existing published planning
policy statements/guidance as well as the circulars on planning obligations and strategic
planning in London. It is a material consideration in determining planning applications.

Until 27 March 2013, the City Council was able to give full weight to relevant policies in the
Core Strategy and London Plan, even if there was a limited degree of conflict with the
framework. The City Council is now required to give due weight to relevant policies in existing
plans “according to their degree of consistency” with the NPPF. Westminster's City Plan;
Strategic Policies was adopted by Full Council on 13 November 2013 and is fully compliant
with the NPPF. For the UDP, due weight should be given to relevant policies according to their
degree of consistency with the NPPF (the closer the policies in the plan to the NPPF, the
greater the weight that may be given).

The UDP policies referred to in the ider tl?g of this application are considered to be
consistent with the NPPF unless stated oterwise.



[

ltem No,

13

The National Planning Policy Framework seeks to promote healthy communities by guarding
against the unnecessary loss of valued facilities and services, particularly where this would
reduce the community’s ability to meet its day to day needs. It is clear that community
facilities in this context include public houses.

The loss of the pub, or any significant curtailment of its current operation, would be contrary
to the advice contained in the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012).

6.10 Planning Obligations

On 6 April 2010 the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Regulations came into force which
make it unlawful for a planning obligation to be taken into account as a reason for granting
planning permission for a development, or any part of a development, whether there is a local
CIL in operation or not, if the obligation does not meet all of the following three tests:

(a) necessary to make the development acceptable in planning terms;
(b) directly related to the development;
{c) fairly and reasonably related in scale and kind to the development.

Policy 533 of the City Plan relates to planning obligations. It states that the Council will require
mitigation of the directly related impacts of the development; ensure the development
complies with policy requirements within the development plan; and if appropriate, seek
contributions for supporting infrastructure. Planning obligations and any Community
Infrastructure Levy contributions will be sought at a level that ensures that the overall delivery
of appropriate development is not compromised.

From 6 April 2015, the Community [nfrastructure Levy Regulations (2010 as amended)
impose restrictions on the use of planning obligations requiring the funding or provision of a
type of infrastructure or a particular infrastructure project. Where five or more obligations
relating to planning permissions granted by the City Council have been entered into since 6
April 2010 which provide for the funding or provision of the same infrastructure types or
projects, it is unlawful to take further obligations for their funding or provision into account as a
reason for granting planning permission. These restrictions do not apply to funding or
provision of non-infrastructure items (such as affordable housing) or to requirements for
developers to enter into agreements under Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 dealing with
highway works. The recommendations and detailed considerations underpinning them in this
report have taken these restrictions into account.

The City Council has consuited on the setting of its own Community Infrastructure Levy, which
is likely to be introduced later in 2015. In the interim period, the City Council has issued
interim guidance on how to ensure its policies continue to be implemented and undue delay to
development avoided. This includes using the full range of statutory powers available to the
Council and working pro-actively with applicants to continue to secure infrastructure projects
by other means, such as through incorporating infrastructure into the design of schemes and
co-ordinating joint approaches with developers.

Had the application been considered acceptable, a $S106 legal agreement would be required
to secure the following:

- Payment in lieu of affordable housing (£660,100).
- $§106 monitoring payment.

The proposed development is also liable for a Mayoral Cil payment.

It is considered that the ‘Headi:pédgrgsl’l%ted above satisfactorily address City Council
policies. The planning obligations t securad, as outlined in this report, are in accordance



bt vt bttt bk P et 0 i L oy i e e

[tem No.

13

with the City Council's adopted City Plan and London Plan policies and they do not conflict
with the Community Infrastructure Levy Regulations (2010 as amended).

7. Conclusion

In conclusion, it has not been demonstrated that the development would provide good quality
residential accommodation that would provide adequate means of protection to residents from
noise disturbance. In particular, potential noise disturbance from internal noise levels and
patron noise associated with the adjoining public house and wine bar ‘Westminster Arms and
Storey's Wine Bar'. The proposals are likely therefore to harm the amenity of future occupiers
of the residential flats.

In addition and as a resuit of this deficiency, it has not been demonstrated that the proposed
residential use would be compatible with the adjoining public house and wine bar, which may
lead to future complaints concerning the operation of the public house jeopardizing its
continued future existence. The loss of the pub, or any significant curtaiment of its current
operation, would harm the special local character and entertainment offer in this busy part of
the Central Activities Zone.

The proposal would be contrary to Policy ENV 6 of our Unitary Development Plan that we
adopted in January 2007, Policies S29 and S32 of the City Plan: Strategic Policies that we
adopted in November 2013, Policies 2.10 and 3.1B of The London Plan March 2015 and the
advice contained in the National Planning Policy Framework (March 2012).

BACKGROUND PAPERS

Application form.

Memos from the Westminster Society dated 08.09.2015 and 16.06.2015.

Memo from Highways Planning Manager dated 09.06.2015

Memo from Environmental Health dated 16.10.2015.

Letter and emails with attached Acoustic Report from Milliken & Company on behalf of Shepherd

Neame Ltd, Westminster Arms, 9 Storey's Gate dated 17.06.2015, 08.08.2015, and 22.08.2015.

. Letter from the Policy Exchange Ltd, Clutha House, 10 Storey's Gate dated 09.05.2015.

7. Email from PACTS {Parliamentary Advisory Council for Transport Safety), Clutha House, 10
Storey's Gate dated 01.07.2015.

8. Letter and email from the Queen Elizabeth |l Centre dated 22.06.2015 and 23.06.2015.

9. Email from Head of Affordable and Private Sector Housing dated 15.09.2015.

10. Email from The Heritage Alliance, Clutha House, 10 Storey's Gate dated 14.09.2015.

11. 165 emails from interested parties received between 17.06.2015 and 09.07.2015.

oA W=

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUERIES ABOUT THIS REPORT OR WISH TO INSPECT ANY OF THE
BACKGROUND PAPERS PLEASE CONTACT DAVID DORWOOD ON 020 7641 2408 OR BY
E-MAIL - ddorwood@westminster.gov.uk

Wclienty$id_wodocsishort-teisc\2015-10-27\item13.docw

Page 345 19/10/2015



Address:

Proposal:

Plan Nos:

Case Officer:

15/03907/FULL

DRAFT DECISION LETTER
Clutha House, 10 Storey's Gate, London, SW1P 3AY

Conversion of part lower ground and all upper floors from offices (Use Class B1) to
8 x residential flats (Use Class C3), including the erection of an enlarged mansard
roof extension at fourth floor level, extension to wine bar within the internal courtyard
area at rear lower ground floor level with ground floor roof terrace above and
associated external and internal works.

PLOO1, 009, 010, 011, 012, 013, 014, 015, 040, 070, 070.1, 071, 072, 073, 109D,
110D, 111D, 112C, 113C, 114B, 115, 140C, 170B, 170.1, 171B, 172D, 173C, 600,
601, 209B, 210B, 211B, 212B, 213B, 214, 215, 240B, 270, 271, 272B, 273B;
Schedule SG1; Montagu Evans Covering Letter dated 31 July 2015, Location Plan;,
Schedule SG2; Design and Access Statement; Planning Statement dated 31 July
2015; Daylight and Sunlight Assessment; RBA Acoustic Assessment dated
03.08.2015 and addendums dated 18.09.2015 and 15.10.2015; Energy Statement;
Building Services Repont; Flood Risk Assessment; Structural Statement.

David Dorward Direct Tel. No. 020 7641 2408

Recommended Reason(s) for Refusal:

Informative(s}:

London Plan March
(March 2012).

1at the proposed residential use would be compatible with the adjoining
wine bar which may lead to future complaints concerning the operation of the

o’o’ o’o’o’o’o’o’o’o’

af Jﬁng its continued future existence. This would be contrary to Policy ENV 6

}Opment Plan that we adopted in January 2007, PoI|c1es 829 and 832 of the
!g@fc Pojigte

Page 346



re—— ~ . BARBUUPLL U PR BLSELSLIE |y
a0 wong okl He | wﬂ“l..i.ﬂl!_ i BUWIID S W HEIE 1oU og)
YIS 0] oG )l ) S Y ‘SALON TVE3INID
SRE00L:L / 1Y 5L
Uy 100k PUnas s - Bunsng
AVE dLMS Uopuo ‘e sAu0is 0L < QOOI—l
BLOF) e

ue|d Joopy punoib 1amoj - Bupsixa

el




e e L e ill_ '_ -
Eé R i T s i ey Buwmeip s} oy ewss o og wol
“S3LON TveaN3o

o AR O
EVEND0L /1Y 051 s - S .

>§&§En_n“”ﬂunaaﬂ““ﬂ v 0LOd

BLO¥E v T, i

AN
ueyd Jooy punoub - Bunsixe
Ji¥E SATHEOLS
ﬁ _ Dﬂﬂuuuﬂﬂu
2 533388858 | | 388855058
| \
g ¢ ooo
it
| i e ga®
ooo
i __ _ ann 0
It L_ sovenug | | 0
“ __ oo o Y e - i 53
[ 20W0 » >
} e > o
L H i i o ©
L | {4 | « UI
il L ! 2
Il E
i = i
= fagoy || -
o e | |- )
gt * I ) = «
R I 3
] % 200 x
I I
ﬂ — ——
DM eew B F\_|l|||“_zh ! :
- 3 ! i -
\ ) T
\ | e g e W
g | % 5
LT // {mojaq) \\ 3
5 bt /?an\ :
M E s it i :
A\l r.h.L_Ut.Eu_ h -
y -ow_o. ! \__33...73_ _ — = -
A . SIS u 3] <
_/ - Lo !./; " |
/ "3
&
_ / \ :
\ G ey 15 Jayreg
+:man:z \ mauEN / acese g
BuynoguBisu \Zorpiop S voniil :
by prop, \ \ 't ]




s i s e ‘BARSUIYAL 1 848 SUSEUSLAD Iy []
_ oL R T W " St w— wa
oo LB s - “S3LON TvH3INID
THO0L 1 | 1w 508 L W Wy By SR W

= Bugsp
e yoocs ¥ b0 1d
BLOF) e o uegInEUes (e Bugseg I

A3M

ueyd 100} 154l - Bunsixs

J1VD SAIHOLS \\\

349

Page

STREET

PARKER

B i SRR e A

¢
2
MATTHEW




A o . B B SAQRLEAL 1 AR SIORUNUD [ I
a9 wons ek v+ 1 31 13 e
E Yoy OSUIE (X L T S G e e —— - TR S5 WA aos K0 ) gl
*SALON TYHIANID

W AR sUWrE -
EV00LL { 1Y 505 L LA nET SRR ¥

Py i ol NS._."_

BLOPE uoyoruauns fem Bugison l

uejd 100} puooas - Bunsixe

31VOY SAIHOLS \\

5 K
| |
| X Q
om0 s "_ I Mw
£ § ttesiote st e =
0l | “ 1 aoyQ (N} D
™ i i = S
b __ X - o
| _ _ﬂ IIIIIIIIIII =
Ll | I et e ——— . o
I | A : Ll
ot el | SRR 1 ¥
! P oo R § Z
|| | B
_nHIIIIIIIHl_
L
6
wiooy Buaapy =
e == m
M TTTTIITIT] T i s
o
| LTS MDA MEHLLYA




Seh e S i s I
W O] PO PR L T SR G —— k- - UG B Loy M 0 00 g

g , ~ ‘SILON TYHINID

Evlbool-L / 1¥ EosiL L e R v

Freewmoemy ¥ IO

oo . —

ueyd sooy paiy) - Busixe

FIVE BAIHOLS : \

I i —
| : &
1§ il
wooy Buisan |} illi o (@)
I 1 w a
| | 2 v
_ ===== o
il Il oTo
e =
[ 1= .“.__ W
afeuiay @ | L
Aaqol n
OM 2N 1 T | R
2 =3 &
o _ o
Ll
e
i - -
<
W T, T il Y =
I I _




e bt e AR s
89 WBALETIN PP | 3R 133 R
VoG w0 TS P S P SR Ty e — - -

iy Lana By s -
Eviani:| / oy dBos i w - E L T L

»ﬁm?m%u“.uﬂ”aeﬂ“”ﬂ < 1% —.Ol_n_

BLOVE e 3

SIS Ul B SUISLILIP [y
Ui SRA W) MRS j0u o

‘SALON TYH3INTD

e [

A3M

ueyd i00)) yunoy - Bupsixe

apensneg pajured yoeyg Buisixa

3i%0 BVRIHOLS

31vO

o
WATH
. mO_.m SAFHOLS
6

ooy e

B0

133418 H3AdYd MIHLIVIN €

apeysniaq

A

pajured yoeq|Bugsme

>

STREET
Page 352

PARKER

MATTHEW




STOREY'S GATE

8 STOREYS GATE LEWESAM STREET

STOREYS GATE

CLUTHA HOUSE - 10 STOREYS GATE

MATTHEW PARKER BTREET

METHODIST CENTRAL HALL WESTMINSTER

existing - east elevation - to Storey's Gate

== 14078

ey

10 Starey's Gate, London SW1P 3AY

Exiating - East Elevation

100G A1/ 1: 200043

PLO70 A

msmr

Losctn. BE1BLE 1 -+-34 {100 7808 707
B LT

WEMS Archincts L. The O School. fatrn Seet.

82 |

A MO Pl SSUL
< BOUE Pl DRAFT
e o —

key plan

GENERAL NOTES:
Do not scale from this densing.
All dimansions are in milimeres.

10




e o DT EOUBLLILL Ly S SUOISUSLIE iy I
Eé e ] “BLaMmIp BiL) Wey sEos Jou o] ki
P U RO TR UL TV SRRETY LS e ] — - - :
*S3LON TWHINID

w oo Lt By giWres -
w o . E L T L
aqERSE WS - P.!nm
AVE diMS uopuon 'apEs skaiog oL < PNOJ&
BLOVE -t
199118 Ja)ied MaYNe O} - UOHEAS|S Yinos - Bunsixa
PR e T ] bt ECoE e TV SIS 0 FROH VAT o I i NHLNE

49 wolg+
H
1o T Swoie <t
L0
- ™M
| = |- = - le)
zo T Fuworse | | g
©
’ ol
£0 [ Twooisl
g
vo T ®uoesoz
¥
oou ¥ Pugyez %ﬂmﬁ
I — - e

-




A s i Ty g s “SAQMUALL LI AT SUKSLBLIE [Ty
- - - é 909 860 ORI R4 | WS e BRI S WLIOK 38 U O
I O] O TR0 L T SRRy HASA v
‘S3LON TVHINID
" .

EVEI00L°L/ LY 051

R G0 =g p——

BLOPL e

ued Joo}} punoib Jamoj - pasodoid

% \\\\\\ v ﬁ‘\ %

“r__...._—!. |




820 WIS DK PH4 | 308 135 Voper)
e

Bia

AW

gid !

4358 |
gogag |

i

ueyd Jool punoJb - pasodosd

SAIHOLS

>

STREET
Page 356

PARKER

MATTHEW




E—

St
Rl =====_ i Ses————
L Gres - “SALON TVHINID
IEETONNYL SRR W

SOB.__:«?E
Ll L TR0
np NN OV D uesonasuco gas pesodaly

r&u-aﬁﬁ!“””ﬁ:ﬂﬁ D _-—.—-I—& Pl Ampre R @

BLOF} - uonanEuea (R Bugsig l

A3M

sag58 |
sggag |

ueld Jooy s1y - pasodoid

31¥9D '$A43H0OILS | _ \

~
{ Lo
o™
| o
1§ - > e ©
¥ L2 o
m i
m e
S | 93]
i ﬂf EOID / 28 “
i i
- i 13 i 9% N vy
e o
A 9 :
. 18
== <
LI _ﬂ - .




E—

[ e ———————
ERI0 IS XN Fh o | I IS W]
K S RS 1) ] TR SR PR ey s - I

- LB s
V001 L/ b 05 ” “ L -.HH .
B K00y puCOes - pesodoly S o
AVE dLMS UopUoT ‘aleD s A0S 01 O clitd =~ Supimpas swwm o
71— 3

ue|d Jool} puodas - pesodoid
FJI¥BD SAIHODLS
P /
= ¥ ; L
m e ate T uw
.@. mﬁ H m m.v
= al
ﬁ » . Y010/ 2v8 U M
RSN %Wn_m o 1 ﬂ ,W|J “
A | N :
A < o .
(I TITTTI T N =
i| |




Fu

B e L T
ERI0EDAL ORI FPe | W DS )

IS T NG TN L T SR HAVER = o -

o -

I“t “. A0 T o1
EWB00L {1y B05 L " N i ] WIS LY ”,MM “
weamsmwaveoss, O EHId - o) 2
BLOFE e Yoo

uejd Jooy paiy} - pasodoud

2LVD S4AIHOLS

| ]
Q%
|
L
Page 359

B = . : L
_ .@. - mg H nmmu m
- [ il .

ﬁa ﬁn i o m
NS M TS <

, (1] > a2 | g
WL LTI [T [Rai ) Lo =

|

—




L R S — ‘SRS U AU BLOBLIBAD [ [}
2009 Boey G200 e | 3R LY wope] BUMEID SR LWAK BEIS 10U 0 oy
e ] G AL ) SESRAY AT L o i : 'SALON TVH3INID
EYE00LL{ ¥ Bt
o
Ul 004 YLno - Pascdioly UDIINEFIOD [[RM DAS000L
AVE dILMS uopua ‘s sfamis 01 m ?—- —-l—l

[ 70, — unonewo gem Buses l

53
sa8 }
;

ueyd Jool} yunoy - pasodoad

JL¥ED SAIBOLS

1vO ﬂ g E
3vo
WAL SAZHOLS

¥ 6

i

Buissaig

i

i

5
&

el vl

7 saynb mau jo

h 112) sa

Aos'g_ﬁuu:_ca_ﬁuc_uﬁmm_a;ua: an
96pu ffem Auied su) puokeq pusixs jou pue
1edesed joos Ag paeasuco aq o] - sjuslupede
{Ie 8IS 0 ysIP Ajgjales feuNWLIC [enusod —— T (- S e
1

1334H1S HIAHYd MIHLLVIN

STREET
Page 360

PARKER

MATTHEW




"SRNBUAJIAL U] BIF SUDBUSLIE [

&=

A IR il B e AT R TUIWEID 1L L] BE9S 10U 90
JUUSU ==z, — — = ueid Aoy ‘SaUON TviaNZD
e L e T
EVEO0ZE / 1Y 0011 “ H _..Haui ,””M gl T
uSijesaf 1593 - pAsodnig "
AVE dLMS UopuoT ‘a1BD s/81015 0L m ON —.I_n_ UosanuU0D e Bupsne I
o 2 A3M
ajen) s,Aa1015 0} - UOjjEAS|@ JSke - pesodoid
b4 1315 B3k MIHLLYA b 4 TTwH TYELNID LEIO0HLS
Buszed Sjanop sul| LS i LOTESE .
=B ines o Bunsom e o mopuw 39 WOy
S ————— [
e
i
T PFue = il
i | L - = -l A
™71 -
-
wajsds Buzel Arpucses z0 LS| :
meu pue Burefl snop supas =
B SEFEL O PERSI0EI-R PUR PRI
| uayeneps jme o swopum Bugses i
co T Mwoors i i Li o
= A i S
vo T uosoes 3
! 11 1 14
| i .
o PR [ A Ll | | I I | | | =

B RGO 00 FURTUEL ME MO o] pas) adesmd [Em Aed. ek

oo Fuggz

SMapUAM JBLLIOD PBUY PR
DL LA LML JO0) [UESLITLL DR DVRJS [RINFEU ML

1001 Bugsna (2 o

{0 - SnaRoIL uanEDo] puE azis) juliey By e Aued
) puodaq puapa Jou pue jedesed (00 AQ peEAIUCS #q

Enumod

O UnuBAG 1) Meu

W BSOS e




[ S—— “SBIBUIEAL i 817 SUISLOLIP Fy ]
- - - é £800 WL G20 TP+ 1 A0E 35 e “BUMMEID S} W) B[R0S 10U 50 e
!igglﬁ.ﬂ.—i; o — R - - :
*SALON TYHINID
L3 L3 Lvil Tmm gL ¥
L3 &r e ] e v
D Ampniieg
i.%&ut&& m—.N—.l—& o, . N ® i g
AVE dLMS uopuo ‘aieg sAaoig oL
BLOPE o e oAU (i Bunspg
19941S 19)ied Mayjjely o} - uoijenae ynos - pesodoid
LN WL SVETT A 4 ETCH Y E[GTE] b4 A1vD EAJHOLS 01 - J00H VHLITID p 4 LTIHLE HAY MANLLYA &
Ty —
Burri apnop s
[ i, RSN UL ) MIPLM, IR 051G Pogared
49 uhl e, LI Ll PRETSABI LRSS mOpLI ana) o)
i
10 T %uo (9]
i o
z0 T Fuores (@)]
SNOP BUILLIES MaU SRS o PaysKqIn-al
i PUE PaUNTAL LgEASS |50 of SMOpUW Bugsos | Dl
B0 [ Twoosizi+
i
- & pouibe aq o) pesu m
v0 R 0 G et
wans moyE [P R—
:
joos * Fuggie
AMOPUW, ISR I, LI PP Ims R meu
U 1 [P PAPUT u
o Busoo jo suy
21 2] sedd
100 puw jocu Aq " o




Agenda ltem 14

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 Tree Preservation Order 628, 11 Gerald Road, SW1W 9EH
	 Schedule of Applications
	1 11 Gerald Road, NW6
	2 Lords Cricket Ground, St John's Wood Road, NW8
	3 12 Trevor Square, SW7
	4 5 Denning Close, NW8
	5 98 Westbourne Grove, W2
	6 3 Hall Gate, NW8
	7 31 Eastcastle Street, W1
	8 41 Farm Street, W1
	9 32 Harcourt Street, W1
	10 5 Bingham Place, W1
	11 9 Montagu Bryanston And Dorset Square Mews West, W1
	12 40-41 Pall Mall, SW1
	13 Clutha House, 10 Storey's Gate, SW1
	14 8 Carlton Vale, NW6

